Rel 1-1





TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

F.A.R. Part 150 Update

REVISED NOISE EXPOSURE MAP and NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM

Prepared for:

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Board Members:

W. Crosby Few, Chairman Stella F. Thayer, Vice Chairman Alfred S. Austin, Secretary County Commissioner Chris Hart, Treasurer Mayor Dick A. Greco, Assistant Secretary/Assistant Treasurer

Louis E. Miller, Executive Director

Prepared by:

HNTB Corporation

In association with:

Harris Miller Miller & Hanson Inc.

WilsonMiller

Date: 2000

CERTIFICATION

This is to certify the following:

- (1) The Noise Exposure Maps and associated documentation for Tampa International Airport submitted in this volume to the Federal Aviation Administration under Federal Aviation Regulations Part 150, Subpart b, Section 150.21, are true and complete under penalty of 18 U.S.C Part 1001.
- (2) All interested parties have been afforded opportunity to submit their views, data and comments concerning the correctness and adequacy of the revised existing and forecast conditions noise exposure map, and of the descriptions of forecast aircraft operations.

By:

Louis E. Miller, Executive Director

Date: _____

Airport Name:Tampa International AirportAirport Operator:Hillsborough County Aviation Authority

Address:

Post Office Box 22287 Tampa, Florida 33622

(813) 870-8701

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

CHAPTER ONE - OVERVIEW

1.1 F	FAR PART 150	
1.1.1	NEM	
1.1.2	NCP	
1.2 P	PROJECT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	
1.2.1	НСАА	1-3
1.2.2	Consulting Team	
1.2.3	Working and Input Groups	
1.2.4	FAA	1-4
1.3 S	STUDY GOALS	
1.4 E	EXISTING NCP	
1.4.1	Aircraft Noise Abatement Measures	
1.4.2	Compatible Land Use Measures	

CHAPTER TWO - NOISE ANALYSIS

2.1	INTRODUCTION TO ACOUSTICS AND NOISE TERMINOLOGY	
2.1.1	The Decibel, dB	
2.1.2	2 A-Weighted Decibel, dBA	
2.1.2	3 Maximum A-Weighted Noise Level, L _{max}	2-3
2.1.4	4 Sound Exposure Level, SEL	
2.1.5	5 Equivalent Sound Level, L _{eq}	2-5
2.1.6	5 DNL	2-6
2.2	THE EFFECTS OF AIRPORT NOISE ON PEOPLE	
2.2.1	Speech Interference	2-8
2.2.2	2 Sleep Interference	2-9
2.3	COMMUNITY ANNOYANCE	2-10
2.4	NOISE/LAND USE COMPATIBILITY GUIDELINES	2-1 1

CHAPTER THREE - NOISE MEASUREMENTS

3.1	MEASUREMENT PROGRAM OBJECTIVES, DESIGN, AND EXECUTION 3-1
3.2	WEATHER DURING MEASUREMENT PERIOD

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

3.3	NOISE MEASUREMENT INSTRUMENTATION	
3.4	DAY-NIGHT AVERAGE SOUND LEVEL RESULTS	
3.5	SITE-BY-SITE RESULTS	
3.5.1	1 Site 1: 5833 Mariner Street, Beach Park	
3.5.2	2 Site 2: 5140 Longfellow Avenue, Sunset Park	
3.5.3	3 Site 3: 4923 St. Croix Drive, Culbreath Isle	
3.5.4	4 Site 4: 13902 Pepperrell Drive, Carrollwood	
3.5.5	5 Site 5: 4816 Sierra Madre Drive	
3.5.6	6 Site 6: 4610 Westford Circle, Village West	
3.5.7	7 Site 7: Clubhouse, Plantation	
3.5.8	8 Site 7A: 10557 Park Crest, Plantation	
3.5.9	9 Site 8: 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard	3-21
3.5.1	10 Site 9: 4613 D'Azzo Avenue, Drew Park	
3.5.1	11 Site 10: 6526 Johns Road, Northwest Park	
3.5.1	12 Site 11: 5215 West Laurel Street	3-25
3.5.1	13 Site 12: North Street/Occident Avenue Intersection	3-25
3.5.1	14 Site 13: Leeward Drive, Watermill Village	3-30
3.5.1	15 Site 14: 3947 Doral Drive, Dana Shores	3-30
3.5.1	16 Site 15: Cypress Point Park	3-30
3.5.1	17 Site 16: 3405 Aileen Street	3-30

CHAPTER FOUR - EXISTING AND FORECAST NOISE EXPOSURE

4.1	AIRPORT AND PHYSICAL PARAMETERS	
4.1.1	Airport Location and Layout	4-2
4.1.2	Climate	4-2
4.1.3	Terrain	
4.2	AIRSPACE AND AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL	
4.2.1	Types of Airspace	
4.2.2	Air Traffic Control	
4.2.3	Neighboring Airports	
4.2.4	Local Air Traffic Control Procedures	4-7
4.3	NOISE MODELING METHODOLOGY	
4.3.1	Aviation Forecasts	4-9
4.3.2	Runway Utilization	
4.3.3	Flight Track Geometry and Usage	
4.3.4	Maintenance Runup Activity	
4.4	DAY-NIGHT AVERAGE SOUND LEVEL	
4.4.1	2000 Base Case and 2005 Forecast Case DNL	<u>4</u> _25
4.4.2	Comparison of Measured and Calculated DNL	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER FIVE – LAND USE

5.1	EXISTING AND PLANNED LAND USE	5-1
5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2	LAND USE COMPATIBILITY CRITERIA Federal Guidelines Recommended Guidelines	
5.3	EXISTING LAND USE CONTROLS	5-4
5.4 5.4.1 5.4.2	EXISTING AND FORECAST LAND USE COMPATIBILITY Current (2000) Non-Compatible Land Uses Potential (2000) Non-Compatible Land Uses	5-5 5-5 5-7

CHAPTER SEVEN - NOISE ABATEMENT

7.1	RECOMMENDED CHANGES TO EXISTING NCP	
7.2	CATEGORIES OF MEASURES REQUIRED FOR CONSIDERATION UNDER FAR PART 150	
7.3	IMPLEMENTATION OF NOISE ABATEMENT ELEMENTS OF EXISTING NCP	7-5
7.4	POTENTIAL NEW OR REVISED MEASURES	7-12
7.4.1	Preferential Runway Use	7-12
7.4.2	Noise Abatement Cockpit Procedures	7-16
7.4.3	Runup Noise Control	7-18
7.4.4	Noise Abatement Flight Paths	7-19
7.4.5	Noise Abatement Arrival Procedures	7-22
7.4.6	Modeling Assumptions for Preferred Alternative	7-23
7.5	UPDATED LETTER TO AIRMEN	7-23

TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT F.A.R. Part 150 Update

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER EIGHT - LAND USE COMPATIBILITY

8.1	REVIEW OF 1985 FAR PART 150	
811	1985 FAR Part 150 Land Use Recommendations	8-1
812	Implementation of the FAR Part 150 Recommendations	8-2
8.1.3	Results of Implementation	8-2
8.2	FUTURE (2005) NON-COMPATIBLE LAND USES	
8.3	RECOMMENDED LAND USE ALTERNATIVES	
8.4	POTENTIAL NEW OR REVISED LAND USE MEASURES	
8.4.1	Aviation Easement Acquisition	8-4
8.4.2	Soundproofing/Climate Control Program	8-4
8.4.3	Purchase of Undeveloped Land	8-5

CHAPTER NINE - RECOMMENDED NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM

9.1	PROGRAM SUMMARY	
9.1.1	Noise Abatement Measures	9-1
9.1.2	Land Use Measures	
9.2	OVERALL BENEFITS OF THE PROPOSED REVISED	
	NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM	
9.3	CONTINUING PROGRAM ELEMENTS	
9.3.1	Operations, Noise and Complaint Monitoring	9-4
9.4	NCP IMPLEMENTATION	
9.4.1	Time Period Covered by the Revised NCP	
9.4.2	Implementation Responsibility	
9.4.3	Indication of Agreement to Implement	9-5
9.4.4	Further Environmental Review	9-5
9.4.5	Summary of Implementation Actions, Responsibilities, Costs, Funding Sources,	and Schedules9-5
9.5	NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM REVISION	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER TEN - CONSULTATION WITH PUBLIC, USERS, AND OUTSIDE AGENCIES

.

10.1	WORKING GROUPS	10-1
10.2	PUBLIC INFORMATION WORKSHOPS	10-3
10.3	EXPERT PANEL FORECAST SESSION	10-3
10.4	PART 150 PUBLIC HEARING	10-3
10.5	WRITTEN COMMENTS AND RESPONSES	10-5

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A	Part 150 NEM and NCP Checklists
APPENDIX B	Technical and Agency Working Groups
APPENDIX C	INM Aircraft Substitution Information
APPENDIX D	TPA ATCT Letter to Airmen No. 98-05, "Informal Runway Use
	Program."
APPENDIX E	Operational Flow Sensitivity Analysis
APPENDIX F	Runway and Flight Track Use with Revised Noise Compatibility Program
APPENDIX G	Working Group Meeting Summaries
APPENDIX H	Public Information Workshops
APPENDIX I	Newsletters
APPENDIX J	Expert Panel Participants
APPENDIX K	Part 150 Public Hearing
APPENDIX L	Written Correspondence

LIST OF TABLES

<u>Table</u>		<u>Page</u>
2.1	FAR Part 150 Noise/Land Use Compatibility Guidelines	2-13
3.1	Summary of Noise Monitoring Locations, Dates (1997), and Times	3-3
3.2	Summary of Day-Night Average Sound Level, DNL, Measurements	3-6
4.1	Modeled Average Daily Aircraft Operations - 2000	4-12
4.2	Modeled Average Daily Aircraft Operations - 2005	4-13
4.3	FAA Recommended Aircraft Substitution	4-14
4.4	North-South Traffic Flow	4-16
4.5	Modeled Runway Use, North Flow	
4.6	Modeled Runway Use, South Flow	
4.7	Modeled Runway Use, Annual Average Day.	
4.8	Modeled Air Carrier Jet Flight Track Use (includes Military DC9s)	
4.9	Modeled Corporate Jet Flight Tracks (includes Military GIBs)	4-21 A_23
4.10	Modeled Turboprop and Piston Flight Track Use	4-23
4.11	Modeled Helicopter Flight Track Use	.4-26
4.12	Modeled US A invavs Maintenance Rununs for the Average Annual Day	
4.15	Comparison of DNL Measurements (October 14-21, 1997) to INM-Calculated Values for	
4.14	2000 North-Flow Contour Case	4-27
5.1	Existing Land Use Non-Compatible Properties for 2000 DNL Noise Contour Intervals	5-6
5.2	Planned Land Use Non-Compatible Properties for 2000 DNL Noise Contour Intervals	
6.1	Non-Compatible Land Use within Updated 2000 and 2005 Noise Exposure Maps, with	6-2
	Existing and Revised Noise Compatibility Programs	0-2
71	Comparison of Original and New/Revised Noise Abatement Elements of NCP	7-4
7.1	Population Within Contour Intervals for Differing Runway Use Assumptions	7-6
7.3	Turbojet Operations on Runways 18L and 36R from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from	
	March and October 1997	7-7
7.4	Turbojet Operations from Midnight to 6 a.m. from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from	
	March and October 1997	7-8
7.5	Turbojet Operations on Runways 18L and 36R from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from	
• .	March and October 1997	7-13
7.6	Turbojet Operations from Midnight to 6 a.m. from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from	7 1 4
	March and October 1997	
7.7	Comparison of AC 91-53 NADP to AC 91-53A Close-In and Distant NADPs	
7.8	Runup Enclosure Cost Estimates for a Variety of Air Carrier Aircraft Types	/-19
7. 9	Frequency of East Downwinds Based on 15-Day AK1S Data Sample from	7_20
	March and October 1997	

1

LIST OF TABLES

<u>Table</u>		Page
7.10	INM-Estimated Reduction in Maximum A-Weighted Sound Level of Straight-In B737-200 Approaches from Increasing Approach Slope from 3 to 4.5 Degrees	7-22
8.1	Non-Compatible Land Use Properties by Noise Contour	8-4
8.2	Non-Compatible Land Use Properties by Noise Contour	8-5
9.1	Comparison of the Estimated Residential Population within the Existing Condition and	
	5-Year Forecast NEMs for the Existing and Proposed NCPs	9-4
9.2	Summary of NCP Implementation Details for Proposed Noise Abatement Elements of Revised NCP	9 - 6
9.3	Summary of NCP Implementation Details for Proposed Lane Use Elements of Revised NCP	9-7
9.4	Summary of NCP Implementation Details for Proposed Continuing Program Elements of	
	Revised NCP	9-7
10.1	Schedule of Working Group Meetings	10-2
10.2	Schedule of Public Workshops/Hearings	10-3

LIST OF FIGURES

On or

Figure		Following Page
2-1	Frequency Domongo Characteristics of Varians Weinhains Meters	
2-1	Common Environmental Sound Levels in dDA	2-3
2-2	Variation in the A Weighted Sound Level, III dBA	2-4
2-3	Sound Exposure Level	2-5
2-4	Example of a One Minute Equivalent Sound Level	2-5
2-5	Examples of Day Night Average Sound Level.	
2-0	Outdoor Speech Intelligibility	2-7
2-7	Sleen Interference	
2-0	Dercentage of Deople Highly Approved	
2-10	Community Reaction as a Function of Outdoor DNU	
2-10	Community Reaction as a Function of Outdoor DNL	2-12
3-1	Noise Measurement Locations	3-3
3-2	TPA Wind Conditions, October, 1997	3-4
3-3	TPA Maximum and Minimum Daily Temperature, October, 1997	
3-4	Lmax Measured at Site 1, 5833 Mariner Street, Beach Park	
3-5	Leq Measured at Site 1, 5833 Mariner Street, Beach Park, October 14 and 15, 1997	
3-6	Leq Measured at Site 1, 5833 Mariner Street, Beach Park, October 16 and 17, 1997	
3-7	Lmax Measured at Site 2, 5150 Longfellow Avenue, Sunset Park	
3-8	Leq Measured at Site 2, 5140 Longfellow Ave., Sunset Park, Oct. 14 and 15, 1997	
3-9	Leq Measured at Site 2, 5140 Longfellow Avenue, Sunset Park, October 16, 1997	3-13
3-10	L _{max} Measured at Site 3, 4923 St. Croix Drive, Culbreath Isle	3-13
3-11	Leq Measured at Site 3, 4923 St. Croix Dr., Culbreath Isle, October 14 and 15, 1997	3-14
3-12	Lmax Measured at Site 4, 13902 Pepperrell Drive, Carrollwood	3-15
3-13	L _{eq} Measured at Site 4, 13902 Pepperrell Dr., Carrollwood, October 16 and 17, 1997	3-16
3-14	L _{max} Measured at Site 5, 4816 Sierra Madre Drive	3-16
3-15	L _{eq} Measured at Site 5, 4816, Sierra Madre Drive, October 16 and 17, 1997	3-17
3-16	Leq Measured at Site 5, 4816, Sierra Madre Drive, October 18, 1997	3-18
3-17	L _{max} Measured at Site 6, 4610 Westford Circle, Village West	3-19
3-18	Lmax Measured at Site 7, Clubhouse, Plantation	3-19
3-19	Leq Measured at Site 7, Clubhouse, Plantation, October 17 and 18, 1997	3-20
3-20	L _{max} Measured at Site 7A, 10557 Park Crest, Plantation	3-20
3-21	L _{max} Measured at Site 8, 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard	3-21
3-22	Leq Measured at Site 8, 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard, October 17 and 18, 1997	3-22
3-23	Leq Measured at Site 8, 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard, October 19, 1997	3-23
3-24	L _{max} Measured at Site 9, 4613 D'Azzo Avenue, Drew Park	3-23
3-25	Leq Measured at Site 9, 4613 D'Azzo Ave., Drew Park, October 18 and 19, 1997	3-24
3-26	L _{max} Measured at Site 10, 6526 Johns Road, Northwest Park	3-25
3-27	L _{eq} Measured at Site 10, 6526 Johns Road, Northwest Park, October 18 and 19, 1997	3-26
3-28	L _{eq} Measured at Site 10, 6526 Johns Road, Northwest Park, October 20, 1997	3-27
3-29	L _{max} Measured at Site 11, 5215 West Laurel Street, Dana Shores	3-27
3-30	L _{eq} Measured at Site 11, 5215 West Laurel St., Dana Shores, Oct. 19 and 20, 1997	3-28
3-31	L _{eq} Measured at Site 11, 5215 West Laurel Street, October 21, 1997	3-29
3-32	L _{max} Measured at Site 12, North St./Occident Avenue Intersection	3-29
3-33	L _{max} Measured at Site 13, Leeward Drive, Watermill Village	3-30
3-34	L _{max} Measured at Site 14, 3947 Doral Drive, Dana Shores	

LIST OF FIGURES

		On or
101		Following
Figu	re	<u>Page</u>
3-35	Les Measured at Site 14, 3947 Doral Drive, Dana Shores, October 20, 1007	2 21
3-36	L _{max} Measured at Site 15. Cypress Point Park	
3-37	Len at Site 15 Cypress Point Park October 20 and 21 1007	
3-38	L _{mm} Measured at Site 16, 3405 Aileen Street	
4-1	Location Map	4-2
4-2	Existing Airport Layout	4.7
4-3	Tampa Class B Airspace	4-4
4-4	Airspace Structure and Surrounding Airports	4-7
4-5	Existing Standard Terminal Arrival Routes (STARs) and Arrival Transition Areas (ATAs)	4-8
4-6	Existing Standard Instrument Departure Routes (SIDs) and Departure Transition Areas (DTAs)	4-8
4-7	Air Carrier Jet Departure Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-8	Air Carrier Jet Arrival Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-9	Corporate Jet Departure Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-10	Corporate Jet Arrival Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-11	Turboprop Departure Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-12	Turboprop Arrival Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-13	Piston Propeller Departure Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	4-18
4-14	Piston Propeller Arrival Tracks - Modeled and ARTS Sample	
4-15	Modeled Helicopter Tracks	4-18
4-16	Run-up Locations	
4-17	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level Contours	
4-18	2005 Day-Night Average Sound Level Contours	4-26
5-1	Existing Land Lice	
5-2	Planned Land Lise	
5-3	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level Contours with Airport Special Zaning Districts	
5-4	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level Contours with Non-Compatible and	
	Noise Sensitive Land Uses	5-5
5-5	Planned Land Use with 2000 DNL Contours	5-7
6-1	2000 Existing Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Existing Noise Compatibility Program	6-1
6-2	2005 Five-Year Forecast Conditions Noise Exposure Man with Existing Noise Compatibility D	rooram 6-1
6-3	2000 Existing Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Revised Noise Compatibility Program	6_1
6-4 .	2005 Five-Year Forecast Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Revised Noise Compatibility Pr	ogram6-1
7-1	Airspace "Gator" Haad in Elicht Trach Analysi	<u> </u>
7-1	Air Carrier Let Demonstrate Durate 10D with W.	7-8
7-2	An Carrier Jet Departures, Kunway 18K with Westshore Gate	7 - 9
7-5 7_A	Air Carrier let Departures, Burnare 181 with Westley, Carrier Jet Departures	7-9
7-5	Panetration Plot for Weathers Cate Durante 101 di Cati I and	7-9
7-5 7-6	Air Carrier let Departures, Burgary 181 with W. Charles Jet Departures	7 - 9
/-0	An Carrier Jer Departures, Kunway 18L with Westshore Gate	

.

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure

On or Following <u>Page</u>

7-7	Penetration Plot for Westshore Gate, Runway 18L Air Carrier Jet Departures	7-9
7-8	Air Carrier Jet Departures, Runways 36R and 36L, with 36R and 36L Gates	7-9
7-9	Penetration Plot for Gate 36R, Runway 36R and 36L Air Carrier Jet Departures	7-9
7-10	Penetration Plot for Gate 36L, Runway 36R and 36L Air Carrier Jet Departures	7-9
7-11	Approach Altitude Profiles, B727200s on Runway 18R	7-10
7-12	Approach Altitude Profiles, B727200s on Runway 18L	
7-13	Approach Altitude Profiles, B727200s on Runway 36R	7-10
7-14	Approach Altitude Profiles, B727200s on Runway 36L	7-10
7-15	Runup Procedures Recommended in Original Part 150	
7-16	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1A,	
	Preferential Runway Use - 80% South Flow	
7-17	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1B.	
	Preferential Runway Use - Improved Corporate Jet Compliance	
7-18	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1C.	
	Preferential Runway Use – Improved Nighttime Preferential	
7-19	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1D.	
	Preferential Runway Use – Night Preferential for All Aircraft Types.	
7-20	Departure Altitude Profiles Corporate Jets on Runway 18L	
7-21	Departure Track Plots for Corporate Jet Departures on Runway 18L and Air Carrier	
	Jet Departures on Runway 18R	
7-22	Penetration Plots for the Franklin Bridge/Airspace Gate for Corporate Jet Departures on	
	Runway 18L and Air Carrier Jet Departures on Runway 18R	
7-23	737-200 95 dB SEL Contours for INM Standard Departure Procedures, and for Close-in and	
	Distant Noise Abatement Departure Procedures, on Runway 18R	
7-24	737-200 95 dB SEL Contours for INM Standard Departure Procedures, and for Close-in and	
	Distant Noise Abatement Departure Procedures, on Runway 36R.	
7-25	737-200 95 dB SEL Contours for INM Standard Departure Procedures, and for Close-in and	
	Distant Noise Abatement Departure Procedures, on Runway 36L	
7-26	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 4A.	
	Elimination of Turbojet East Base Legs North of MacDill AFB	
7-27	Representative Boeing 737-200 70dB Maximum A-Weighted Sound Level Single Event	
	Contours for Straight-in and Left Downwind Approaches to Runway 36L.	
7-28	Representative 70dB Maximum A-Weighted Single Event Contours for Shorts SD-330	
	Twin-Engine Turboprop Departures off of Runway 36L	
7-29	Representative 70dB Maximum A-Weighted Single Event Contours for Shorts SD-330	
	Twin-Engine Turboprop Departures off of Runway 36R	7-21
7-30	2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 4B.	
	Elimination of Propeller Departure Turns Sharper than 20 Degrees, Compared to Base Case	
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	······································

8-1

2005 Day-Night Average Sound Level Contours without the Proposed Noise Compatibility Program8-3

Chapter One Overview

Tampa International Airport (TPA) has a long and successful history of noise compatibility planning. Previous efforts have established aircraft operational procedures and land use planning policies which substantially improve the compatibility of surrounding land uses with aircraft operations at TPA.

This document was developed in accordance with Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 150, "Airport Noise Compatibility Planning."¹ The Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (HCAA) completed its first Part 150 Study for TPA in 1987. In 1997, the HCAA retained a team of consulting firms to update both the existing Airport Master Plan (AMP) and the Part 150 noise compatibility plan.

This chapter provides an introduction to FAR Part 150 (Section 1.1), a summary of project organization (Section 1.2), and a summary of airport master planning and noise compatibility planning goals (Section 1.3).

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has developed checklists for their use in review of Noise Exposure Map (NEM) and Noise Compatibility Program (NCP) Submittals. A copy of these checklists to be completed prior to submission of the complete NEM and NCP are provided in Appendix A. The checklists include specific page and section references indicating the locations where this document addresses the required items.

1.1 FAR PART 150

Part 150 sets forth standards for airport operators to use in documenting noise exposure in the airport environs and establishing programs to minimize noiserelated land use incompatibilities. Part 150 prescribes specific standards for:

- measuring noise;
- estimating cumulative noise exposure using computer models;
- describing noise exposure (including instantaneous, single event, and cumulative levels);
- coordinating NCP development with local land use officials and other interested parties;
- documenting the analytical process and development of the compatibility program;
- submitting documentation to FAA;
- FAA and public review processes; and
- FAA approval or disapproval of the submission.

A full Part 150 submission to the FAA consists of two basic elements: a NEM and a NCP.

1.1.1 NEM

The NEM describes the airport layout and operation, aircraft-related noise exposure, land uses in the airport environs, and the resulting noise/land use compatibility situation. The NEM must address two time frames: the year of submission (the "existing conditions") and the fifth calendar year following the year of submission (the "forecast conditions"). It includes graphic depiction of existing and future noise exposure resulting from aircraft operations, and of land uses in the airport environs. The NEM documentation must describe the data collection and analysis undertaken in its development.

The submission year for this update is 2000, with existing conditions noise contours for that year, and 5-year forecast case contours for 2005.

The FAA requires airports to base the existing conditions NEM on "current data as of the date of submission (i.e., the year of submission)" and the 5-year forecast map on "forecast aircraft operations at the airport and on other reasonable planning assumptions ... for the fifth calendar year beginning after the year of submission."2 Consistent with Part 150 requirements, this document labels the existing conditions contours "2000" and the 5-year forecast contours "2005."

FAA's Part 150 guidelines for Noise Exposure Map preparation recognize the difficulty of preparing an existing conditions map for the year of submission, which is still underway:

If the maps are based on data generated for timeframes other than the current year of submission and the fifth year following the year of submission, the airport proprietor must verify that the data are representative of existing and 5-year forecast conditions (i.e., airport layout, runway use percentages, flight tracks, general aircraft mix and operational data, and non-compatible land uses are equivalent; total numbers of operations do not vary over 15% in the aggregate).³

HNTB estimated existing conditions and 5year forecast activity based on current information during the data collection phase of the study, in 1998. Section 4.3.1 discusses the forecasts prepared for annual activity in 1998 and 2003. The 2000 and 2005 NEMs are based on the fleet mixes for those calendar years, since the forecast changes in activity from 1998 to 2000 and from 2003 to 2005 were substantially below the FAA's 15% threshold:

- The forecast 2-year increase in overall operations is approximately 3%.
- The forecast 2-year increase in air carrier jet operations is approximately 8%.
- The forecast 2-year increase in general aviation jet operations is approximately 10%.
- The forecast 2-year increase in non-jet operations is approximately 6%.

Therefore, under FAA guidelines, the NEM developed based on 1998 data accurately represents the year of submission (2000) and the forecast NEM developed base on 2003 data accurately represents the 5-year forecast (2005) conditions.

The Noise Exposure Maps replace previously approved maps for 1985 and 1990.

1.1.2 NCP

The NCP is essentially a list of the actions the airport proprietor, airport users, local governments, and the FAA propose to undertake to minimize existing and future noise/land use incompatibilities. The NCP documentation must recount the development of the program, including a description of all measures considered, the reasons that individual measures were accepted or rejected, how measures will be implemented and funded, and the predicted effectiveness of individual measures and the overall program.

Official FAA acceptance of the Part 150 submission and approval of the NCP does not eliminate requirements for formal environmental assessment of any proposed actions pursuant to requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). However, acceptance of the submission is a prerequisite to application for funding of implementation actions.

1.2 PROJECT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Several groups had major roles in the Part 150 process, including the HCAA, the consulting team, the Working and Input Groups, and the FAA.

1.2.1 HCAA

As the "airport operator," the HCAA has responsibility over the entire Part 150 update, including ultimate responsibility for determining what elements are included in the NCP when it is submitted to the FAA for review. The HCAA is also responsible for pursuing implementation of adopted measures.

1.2.2 Consulting Team

The HCAA retained a team of consultants to conduct the technical work required to fulfill Part 150 analysis and documentation requirements.

The Part 150 update is one element of a contract between the HCAA and HNTB Corporation. HNTB has overall responsibility for the Part 150 update. Harris Miller Miller & Hanson, Inc. (HMMH), a subcontractor to HNTB, has responsibility for all noise-related technical elements. HNTB has responsibility for the land use elements. WilsonMiller, another HNTB subcontractor, is responsible for coordinating public consultation efforts.

1.2.3 Working and Input Groups

The HCAA established three working and input groups to ensure that the project team had access to the information necessary to conduct the study, and to ensure that all interested parties have an opportunity to provide input. Appropriate exchange of information is the key element of a comprehensive public involvement program. Following are descriptions of the working and input groups and their contributions to the study.

The Technical Working Group (TWG) included representatives from the aviation community, including the FAA, The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), airlines, neighboring airports (MacDill Air Force Base and St. Petersburg/Clearwater International), and airport services providers (rental car, corporate pilot, food service, concessions, the hotel, FBOs, etc.). In particular, this group provided important input and feedback related to airport operation. The TWG was responsible for commenting on the adequacy and accuracy of collected data, simplifying assumptions, and technical analyses. The TWG also served as a forum for the varied interest groups to discuss complex issues and share their very different perspectives on the aircraft noise issue. **Appendix B** provides members of the TWG.

The Agency Working Group (AWG) included representatives from State, County, and local government and planning and transportation agencies, and local business organizations. This group provided important input and feedback related to local land use, planning, and business development issues. Appendix B provides members of the AWG.

The Community Input Group (CIG) included representatives from local civic, neighborhood, and community organizations. This group provided important input on specific issues of concern to residents of areas surrounding the Airport. **Appendix B** provides members of the CIG.

1.2.4 FAA

The FAA has ultimate review authority over the NCP submitted under Part 150. Their review encompasses the details of technical documentation, as well as broader issues of safety and constitutionality of recommended noise abatement measures.

FAA involvement includes participation by staff from three levels in the agency: (1) local, (2) regional, and (3) national.

• The Airport's Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT) provides significant input in several areas, including: operational data from their files, judgment regarding safety and capacity effects of alternative noise abatement measures, and input on implementation requirements.

- On a regional level, the FAA's Southern Region also has several roles. The Air Traffic Division staff will support the ATCT role, with final review and decision authority over changes in flight procedures. When the HCAA submits the Part 150 documentation to the FAA for review, the Airports Division will determine whether or not it satisfies all NEM and NCP requirements, and will conduct the initial FAA review of the NCP submission.
- On a national level, the FAA's Washington headquarters is responsible for the final review of the NEM and NCP documentation for adequacy in satisfying technical and legal requirements.

1.3 STUDY GOALS

A number of goals have been identified to guide the development of updated Master Plan and FAR Part 150 documents for TPA. This section outlines these master planning and noise compatibility goals. While Goals No. 6 through 8 and 11 most directly relate to noise compatibility (Part 150 Study), all of these goals should be considered in evaluating noise compatibility options.

GOAL NO. 1

Continue to meet and enhance the existing high level of service provided to all Airport users.

Objectives:

- 1.1 Promote passenger processing that is convenient for all segments of the traveling public, reduces unreasonable delay, is safe, and is a pleasant experience.
- 1.2 Provide adequate runway capacity for the estimated demand in terms of annual and hourly operations.
- 1.3 Provide adequate runway length to meet existing and forecast needs of all domestic and international departures (scheduled and nonscheduled).
- 1.4 Provide an international arrivals facility that is well-integrated with domestic terminal facilities and adequately sized to encourage airline development of international routes.
- 1.5 Provide facilities for regional airlines that maintain and enhance the airlines' functions as feeders to scheduled air carriers and as pointto-point carriers.
- 1.6 Locate designated regional aircraft parking spaces together with code-sharing air carriers.
- 1.7 Facilitate movement of passengers and baggage so that walking distances and connection times are minimized.
- 1.8 Provide opportunities for development of services for corporate-type general aviation (GA) activity that supports and interacts with air carrier operations at the Airport.
- 1.9 Provide other aviation-related support facilities needed to support a

full range of aviation services, with a high level of service to the public to meet the forecasted demand levels.

1.10 Consolidate functions within specific land use areas where possible.

GOAL NO. 2

Provide an airport that is safe and reliable.

Objectives:

- 2.1 Provide navigational, landing aids, and meteorological facilities which enhance the safety and reliability of operations under all weather conditions.
- 2.2 To the maximum extent possible, protect FAA-mandated safety areas, runway protection zones, and other clear areas.
- 2.3 Provide Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) access roads and facilities to maintain specified response times under all weather conditions.
- 2.4 Ensure that terminal, parking, and support facilities meet all applicable security standards.
- 2.5 Ensure parking facilities are adequately sized and easy to negotiate. Provide a clear and easily understood locator system.

GOAL NO. 3

Minimize costs to all users (passengers, airlines, employees, etc.) of the Airport.

Objectives:

- 3.1 Minimize airside congestion through construction of runways and taxiways when the costs of providing the additional capacity are less than the additional operating costs associated with aircraft delays.
- 3.2 Minimize congestion and delay by designing terminal layouts which achieve unconstrained flows between the terminal areas and runways.
- 3.3 Minimize airspace congestion and delays for air carrier and GA aircraft operations through procedural changes and/or provision of additional navigational aids, as long as they do not unduly impact the environment.

GOAL NO. 4

Ensure adequate and convenient ground access to the Airport.

Objectives:

- 4.1 Continue to provide easy-to-follow signs to airport roadways and facilities.
- 4.2 Provide adequate lane capacity on roadways leading to the Airport to serve existing and future airport facilities.
- 4.3 Provide adequate lane capacity on internal circulation roadways serving all functional areas (terminal complex, GA, and cargo).
- 4.4 Provide parking facilities that are conveniently located and easily accessed.

- 4.5 Incorporate multi-modal opportunities into airport development concepts.
- 4.6 Maintain close coordination with FDOT, local Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs), and other transportation groups.

GOAL NO. 5

Develop the Airport in a manner that is flexible and adaptable to changing conditions.

Objectives:

- 5.1 Develop airside facilities using concepts that provide flexibility to respond to changes in FAA standards and changes in the type or size of passenger carrier, cargo carrier, GA, or military aircraft.
- 5.2 Provide the short-term terminal upgrades needed to accommodate near-term demand.
- 5.3 Develop terminal facilities using concepts that permit ready responses to expansion or reductions in operations while maintaining passenger service and revenue flows.
- 5.4 Acquire adequate land to meet contingencies for future demand while minimizing disruption to the community and roadway system.

GOAL NO. 6

Minimize, to the extent feasible, the impact of aircraft noise on neighboring residents and noise-sensitive land uses through noise abatement and noise mitigation.

Objectives:

- 6.1 Design and select noise abatement measures that minimize the number of people exposed to noise above Day-Night Noise Level (DNL) 65 decibels (dB).
- 6.2 Ensure that no residential uses are exposed to aircraft noise above DNL 75 dB.
- 6.3 In selecting noise abatement actions, avoid those that would adversely affect airport capacity or result in significant delays, under current or forecast operations.
- 6.4 In selecting noise abatement actions, avoid imposing restrictions on airport use that would be discriminatory or interfere with interstate commerce.
- 6.5 In selecting noise abatement actions, avoid those that could erode prudent margins of safety.
- 6.6 Design and select land use mitigation measures for noise-sensitive land uses projected to be exposed to aircraft noise between 65 and DNL 65 and 75 dB through the 5-year forecast.
- 6.7 Ensure that mitigation projects are capable of being fully funded and implemented.
- 6.8 Maximize, to the extent practical, any mitigation projects are eligible for FAA funding assistance through the noise set-aside of the Airport Improvement Program.

GOAL NO. 7

Promote the development of compatible land uses in undeveloped areas in the Airport vicinity.

Objectives:

- 7.1 Promote the land use planning and development objectives of local governments in the Airport area to the extent that they are compatible with aircraft noise levels.
- 7.2 Promote long-term economic development in the Airport area consistent with the land use planning and development objectives of local governments.
- 7.3 Develop realistic plans for future land use, recognizing the development capacity of the land and economic feasibility.
- 7.4 Balance the need for compatible land use in the Airport vicinity regarding the potential impact to land owners.
- 7.5 Locate airport and access facilities so that growth of associated uses may best be controlled through land use planning and zoning.

GOAL NO.8

Develop the Airport and its vicinity to minimize negative environmental impacts.

Objectives:

8.1 Identify the major environmental issues of concern regarding regulatory requirements at the Federal, State, regional, and local levels.

- 8.2 Minimize potential environmental impacts identified in the Airport Environmental Handbook by developing a plan to prevent, minimize. mitigate or impacts. Provide special attention to minimizing residential dislocation, air and water pollution, and wetland impacts.
- 8.3 Provide a facility which minimizes adverse effects on other environmental concerns (water quality, flora and fauna, etc.).
- 8.4 Develop an energy-efficient airport layout providing ease of air and ground access.

GOAL NO. 9

Develop an airport that supports local and regional economic goals and plans while providing the flexibility to accommodate new opportunities and shifts in development patterns.

Objectives:

- 9.1 Achieve a level of service and user convenience such that the Airport is a positive factor in regional economic development decisions.
- 9.2 Achieve capacities of the airfield and the terminal area systems so that the Airport is an attractive location for major airline maintenance, cargo, and other aviation-related activities.
- 9.3 Provide appropriate and achievable commercial opportunities at and near the Airport.

- 9.4 Investigate the opportunity for collateral commercial development to increase revenue.
- 9.5 To assure economic feasibility, identify an equitable distribution of user charges, and distribute the burden of capital investment, maintenance, and operating costs while keeping overall costs within acceptable limits.
- 9.6 Identify financial alternatives and funding sources available to implement the recommended plan for both aviation and non-aviation projects needed for the Airport.
- 9.7 Quantify financial resources available for funding projects identified in the analysis of alternatives, and identify the priority of project implementation for the recommended plan.
- 9.8 Establish an efficient airport layout integrated with the existing transportation infrastructure which will encourage continued economic development and diversification consistent with local and regional growth plans.

GOAL NO. 10

Develop an airport that is consistent with Federal, State, regional, and local plans.

Objectives:

10.1 Develop the Airport as the region's primary international air carrier airport consistent with the national, State, and metropolitan airport system plans.

10.2 Develop the Airport in accordance with metropolitan and local land use and transportation plans.

GOAL NO. 11

Build and maintain public confidence and support.

Objectives:

- 11.1 Establish and maintain an effective working relationship between the project team, Hillsborough County, the State, local metropolitan planning organizations, surrounding communities, the FAA, the aviation industry, and the private sector.
- 11.2 Coordinate continually with established working groups to ensure local issues are addressed in a timely and effective manner.
- 11.3 Encourage and utilize comments from all sectors of the aviation community, as well as the general public, in developing a Master Plan and NCP for the Airport.
- 11.4 Identify the implementation mechanisms for the plan, and determine implementation responsibilities for both the public and private sectors.

1.4 EXISTING NCP

The existing NCP contains 12 elements, including five noise abatement measures (i.e., measures that affect the size and shape of the noise contours) and seven land use measures (measures that address land use incompatibilities that remained after the implementation of the noise abatement measures).

1.4.1 Aircraft Noise Abatement Measures

The original NCP proposed the implementation of five noise abatement measures. The Authority has implemented all of these measures, which include the following:

- 1. Use southerly traffic flows whenever possible to reduce noise levels over the surrounding communities to the north.
- 2. Encourage operators of turbojet aircraft to use ATA recommended noise abatement arrival procedures to reduce noise levels under approach flight paths.
- 3. Designate engine run-up areas to limit run-up noise exposure on the surrounding communities.
- 4. Augment vegetation noise barrier along the western perimeter of the Airport to increase its noise attenuation qualities.
- 5. Establish a helipad on the east side of the Airport to help in separating helicopter traffic from fixed wing flows and thereby reduce unnecessary overflight of areas adjacent to the airport.

Chapter Seven reviews the implementation of these measures.

1.4.2 Compatible Land Use Measures

The 1987 FAR Part 150 Study recommended two remedial land use measures and five preventive land use measures to correct or enhance development within the vicinity of the Airport.

The recommended remedial land use measures are summarized below:

- 1. Acquisition of developed land with incompatible use for conversion to compatible land use.
- 2. Purchase of avigation easement from property owners in airport noise zones permitting overflight of aircraft and the associated noise.

The recommended preventive measures are summarized below:

- 1. Zoning for compatible use to promote compatible land use in airport noise zones and allow only low density uses in noise zones.
- 2. Overlay zoning to require noise reduction construction techniques for land uses permitted in noise zones.
- 3. Purchase of undeveloped land to prevent non-compatible land uses from developing.
- 4. Soundproofing of new construction to achieve recommended EPA interior noise level standards of 45 dBA.
- 5. Public information program that would provide information on aircraft noise zones and noise impacts.

Chapter Eight provides a more detailed discussion of the land use measures contained in the 1987 FAR Part 150 Study.

Chapter Two Noise Analysis

FAR Part 150 is based largely on a description of airport noise exposure using Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) noise contours. This study also involves the use of supplemental noise measures where DNL does not provide an adequate basis for quantifying a specific situation. To assist reviewers in interpreting these complex noise measures, this chapter presents an introduction to relevant fundamentals of acoustics and noise terminology (Section 2.1), the effects of noise on human activity (Section 2.2), and currently accepted noise-land use compatibility guidelines (Section 2.3).

2.1 INTRODUCTION TO ACOUSTICS AND NOISE TERMINOLOGY

This chapter discusses the following acoustic metrics:

- Decibel, dB
- A-Weighted Decibel, dBA
- Maximum A-Weighted Sound Level, Lmax
- Sound Exposure Level, SEL
- Equivalent Sound Level, Leq
- Day-Night Average Sound Level, DNL

2.1.1 The Decibel, dB

All sounds come from a sound source—a musical instrument, a speaking voice, an airplane passing overhead. It takes energy to produce sound. The sound energy produced by any sound source is transmitted through

the air in sound waves—tiny, quick oscillations of pressure just above and just below atmospheric pressure. These oscillations, or sound pressures, impinge on the ear, creating the sound we hear.

Our ears are sensitive to a wide range of sound pressures. The loudest sounds that we hear without pain have about one million times more energy than the quietest sounds we hear. But our ears are incapable of detecting small differences in these pressures. Thus, to better match how we hear this sound energy, we compress the total range of sound pressures to a more meaningful range by introducing the concept of sound pressure level (SPL).

SPL is a measure of the sound pressure of a given noise source relative to a standard reference value (typically the quietest sound that a young person with good hearing can detect). SPLs are measured in decibels (abbreviated dB). Decibels are logarithmic quantities—logarithms of the ratio of the two pressures, the numerator being the pressure of the sound source of interest, and the denominator being the reference pressure (the quietest sound we can hear).

The logarithmic conversion of sound pressure to sound pressure level means that the quietest sound we can hear (the reference pressure) has a sound pressure level of about zero decibels, while the loudest sounds we hear without pain have sound pressure levels of about 120 dB. Most sounds in our day-today environment have sound pressure levels from 30 to 100 dB.

Because decibels are logarithmic quantities, they do not behave like regular numbers with which we are more familiar. For example, if two sound sources each produce 100 dB and they are operated together, they produce only 103 dB-not 200 dB as we might expect. Four equal sources operating simultaneously result in a total sound pressure level of 106 dB. In fact, for every doubling of the number of equal sources, the sound pressure level goes up another three decibels. A tenfold increase in the number of sources makes the sound pressure level go up 10 dB. A hundredfold increase makes the level go up 20 dB, and it takes a thousand equal sources to increase the level 30 dB!

If one source is much louder than another, the two sources together will produce the same sound pressure level (and sound to our ears) as if the louder source were operating alone. For example, a 100 dB source plus an 80 dB source produce 100 dB when operating together. The louder source "masks" the quieter one. But if the quieter source gets louder, it will have an increasing effect on the total sound pressure level. When the two sources are equal, as described above, they produce a level 3 decibels above the sound of either one by itself.

From these basic concepts, note that one hundred 80 dB sources will produce a combined level of 100 dB; if a single 100 dB source is added, the group will produce a total sound pressure level of 103 dB. Clearly, the loudest source has the greatest effect on the total.

Two useful rules of thumb to remember when comparing sound pressure levels are: (1) most of us perceive a 6 to 10 dB increase in the sound pressure level to be an approximate doubling of loudness, and (2) changes in the sound pressure level of less than about 3 dB are not readily detectable outside of a laboratory environment.

2.1.2 A-Weighted Decibel, dBA

Another important characteristic of sound is its frequency, or "pitch." This is the rate of repetition of the sound pressure oscillations as they reach our ear. Formerly expressed in cycles per second, frequency is now expressed in units known as Hertz (Hz).

Most people hear from about 20 Hz to about 10,000 or 15,000 Hz. People respond to sound most readily when the predominant frequency is in the range of normal conversation, around 1,000 to 2,000 Hz. Acousticians have developed "filters" to match our ears' sensitivity and help us judge the relative loudness of sounds made up of different frequencies.

The so-called "A" filter does the best job of matching the sensitivity of our ears to most environmental noises. Sound pressure levels measured through this filter are referred to as A-weighted decibels (dBA). A-weighting significantly de-emphasizes noise at low and high frequencies (below about 500 Hz and above about 10,000 Hz) where we do not hear as well. The filter has little effect at intervening frequencies where our hearing is most efficient. Because this filter generally matches our ears' sensitivity, sounds having higher A-weighted sound levels are usually judged to be louder than those with lower Aweighted sound levels, a relationship which does not always hold true for unweighted levels. It is for this reason that A-weighted sound levels are normally used to evaluate environmental noise.

Other weighting networks include the B, C, and D filters. They correspond to four different level ranges of the ear (see Figure 2-1). The rarely used B-weighting attenuates low frequencies (those less than 500 Hz), but to a lesser degree than Aweighting. The D-weighting network, also rarely used, is similar to the B-weighting network at low frequencies, but includes a significant amplification of the sound (up to about 10 dB) in the 2,000 to 8,000 Hz range.



Figure 2-1

Frequency Response Characteristics of Various Weighting Networks

Source: Harris, Cyril M., editor; <u>Handbook of Acoustical Measurements and Noise Control</u>, (Chapter 5, "Acoustical Measurement Instruments"; Johnson, Daniel L.; Marsh, Alan H.; and Harris, Cyril M.); New York; McGraw-Hill, Inc.; 1991; p. 5.13.

C-weighting is nearly flat throughout the audible frequency range, hardly deemphasizing the low frequency noise. Cweighted levels are not used as frequently as A-weighted levels, but they may be preferable in evaluating sounds whose lowfrequency components are responsible for secondary effects such as the shaking of a building, window rattle, perceptible vibrations, or other factors that can cause annoyance and complaints. Uses include the evaluation of blasting noise, artillery fire, and, in some cases, aircraft noise inside buildings.

Because of the correlation with our hearing, the A-weighted level has been adopted as the basic measure of environmental noise by the U.S. EPA and by nearly every other agency concerned with community noise throughout the United States. **Figure 2-2** presents typical A-weighted sound levels of several common environmental sources.

An additional dimension to environmental noise is that A-weighted levels vary with time. For example, the sound level increases as an aircraft approaches, then falls and blends into the background as the aircraft recedes into the distance (though even the background varies as birds chirp or the wind blows or a vehicle passes by). **Figure 2-3** illustrates this concept.

2.1.3 Maximum A-Weighted Noise Level, L_{max}

The variation in noise level over time often makes it convenient to describe a particular noise "event" by its maximum sound level, abbreviated as L_{max} . In Figure 2-3, it is approximately 85 dBA.

The maximum level describes only one dimension of an event; it provides no information on the cumulative noise exposure generated by a sound source. In fact, two events with identical maxima may produce very different total exposures. One may be of very short duration, while the other may continue for an extended period and be judged much more annoying. The next measure corrects for this deficiency.

Sound Levels	Sound Levei dBA	Common Indoor Sound Levels			
Concorde, Landing 1000 m. From Runway End		Rock Band			
47-100 Takeoff 6500 m. From Start of Takeoff Ro	" 100	Inside Subway Train (New York)			
27-200 6500 m. From Start of Takeoff Diesel Truck at 50 ft.	- 90 -	Food Blender at 3 ft.			
loisy Urban Daytime	- 80 -	Garbage Disposal at 3 ft. Shouting at 3 ft.			
757-200 6500 m. From Start of Takeoff	- 70 -	Vacuum Cleaner at 10 ft.			
Commercial Area Cessna 172 Landing 1000 m. From Runway End	- 60 -	Normal Speech at 3 ft.			
Quiet Urban Daytime	- 50 -	Large Business Office Dishwasher Next Room			
Quiet Urban Nighttime	- 40 -	Small Theater, Large Conference (Background)			
ulet Suburban Nighttime	- 30 -	Library Bedroom at night			
alet Aural Nightume	- 20 -	Concert Hall (Background)			
	- 10 -	Broadcast & Recording Studio			
		Threshold of Hearing			

Figure 2-2

Common Environmental Sound Levels, in dBA

Source: Harris, A.S., and Miller, R.L., <u>Airport Noise Seminars</u>, documentation prepared for the Airports Division, Southern Region, Federal Aviation Administration, November 1977.



Figure 2-3 Variation in the A-Weighted Sound Level Over Time Source: HMMH.

2.1.4 Sound Exposure Level, SEL

The most frequently used measure of noise exposure for a single aircraft flyover (and the measure that Part 150 specifies) is the Sound Exposure Level, or SEL. SEL can be thought of as an accumulation of the sound energy over the duration of an event, where duration is defined as the time, in seconds, when the A-weighted sound level first exceeds a threshold level (normally just above the background or ambient noise) to the time that the sound level drops back down below the threshold⁴. The shaded area in **Figure 2-4** illustrates that portion of the sound energy included in this dose.

To account for the variety of durations that occur among different noise events, the dose is normalized (standardized) to a one-second duration. This "revised" dose is the SEL; it is shown as the shaded area in Figure 2-4. It has exactly the same sound energy as the actual event, though it is presumed to last for a much shorter (one-second) period. Note that because the SEL is normalized to one second, it will always be larger in magnitude than the maximum A-weighted level for an event which lasts longer than one second. In fact, for most aircraft overflights, the SEL is on the order of 7 to 12 dB higher than the L_{max} . The fact that it is a cumulative measure means that not only do louder flyovers have higher SELs than quieter ones, but <u>longer</u> flyovers also have greater SELs than shorter ones.

This metric provides a comprehensive basis for modeling a noise event in determining noise exposure.

2.1.5 Equivalent Sound Level, Leq

Maximum A-weighted levels and SELs are used to measure the noise associated with individual events. The remaining metrics in this section describe longer-term cumulative noise exposure that often include many events.



Figure 2-4 Sound Exposure Level Source: HMMH.

The first, the Equivalent Sound Level (abbreviated L_{eq} ,) is a measure of the exposure resulting from the accumulation of A-weighted sound levels over a particular period of interest—for example, an hour, an 8-hour school day, nighttime, or a full

24-hour day. However, because the length of the period can be different depending on the time frame of interest, the applicable period should always be identified or clearly understood when discussing the metric. Such durations are often identified through a subscript, for example $L_{eq(8)}$ or $L_{eq(24)}$.

Conceptually, L_{eq} may be thought of as a constant sound level over the period of interest that contains as much sound energy as the actual time-varying sound level with its normal peaks and valleys. This is illustrated in Figure 2-5. It is important to recognize, however, that the two signals (the constant one and the time-varying one) would sound very different from each other if compared in real life. Also, be aware that the "average" sound level suggested by Leq is not an arithmetic value, but a logarithmic, or "energy-averaged" sound level. Thus, loud clearly dominate noise events anv environment described by the metric.



Figure 2-5

Example of a One-Minute Equivalent Sound Level Source: HMMH.

As for its application to airport noise issues, L_{eq} is often presented for consecutive 1-hour periods to illustrate how the hourly noise dose rises and falls throughout a 24-hour period, as

well as how certain hours are significantly affected by a few loud aircraft.

2.1.6 DNL

FAR Part 150 requires that a slightly more complicated measure of noise exposure be used to describe cumulative noise exposure during an average annual day: the DNL. The U.S. EPA identified DNL as the most appropriate means of evaluating airport noise based on the following considerations (from "Information on Levels of Environmental Noise Requisite to Protect Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of Safety," Report No. 550/9-74-004, U.S. EPA September 1974):

- The measure should be applicable to the evaluation of pervasive long-term noise in various defined areas and under various conditions over long periods of time.
- (2) The measure should correlate well with known effects of noise on the environment, on individuals, and on the public.
- (3) The measure should be simple, practical, and accurate. In principal, it should be useful for planning as well as for enforcement or monitoring purposes.
- (4) Required measurement equipment, with standard characteristics, should be commercially available.
- (5) The measure should be closely related to existing methods currently in use.
- (6) The single measure of noise at a given location should be predictable, within an acceptable tolerance, from knowledge of the physical events producing the noise.

(7) The measure should lend itself to small, simple monitors which can be left unattended in public areas for long periods of time.

DNL has been adopted formally by most Federal agencies dealing with noise exposure, including the FAA, the Department of Defense, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Part 150 requires that DNL be used in describing cumulative noise exposure and in identifying aircraft noise-land use compatibility issues. In relatively simple terms, DNL is the average noise level over a 24-hour period, except that noises occurring at night (defined as 10 p.m. through 7 a.m.) are artificially increased by 10 dB. This weighting reflects the added intrusiveness of nighttime noise events attributable to the fact that community background noise levels typically decrease about 10 dB at night. Typical DNL values for a variety of noise environments are shown in **Figure 2-6** to indicate the range of noise exposure levels usually encountered.



Figure 2-6

Examples of Day-Night Average Sound Levels, DNL

Source: United States Environmental Protection Agency, <u>Information on Levels of Environmental Noise Requisite to Protect</u> <u>Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of Safety</u>, March 1974, p. 14. DNL can be measured or estimated. Measurements are practical only for obtaining DNL values for relatively limited numbers of points, and, in the absence of a permanently installed monitoring system, only for relatively short time periods. Most airport noise studies are based on computer- generated DNL estimates, depicted in terms of equal-exposure noise contours (much as topographic maps have contours of equal elevation). Part 150 requires that the 65, 70, and 75 dB DNL contours be modeled and depicted.

2.2 THE EFFECTS OF AIRPORT NOISE ON PEOPLE

To residents around airports, aircraft noise can be an annoyance and a nuisance. It can interfere with conversation and listening to television, it can disrupt classroom activities in schools, and it can disrupt sleep. Relating these effects to specific noise metrics helps in the understanding of how and why people react to their environment. This section addresses the various ways we are affected by airport noise.

2.2.1 Speech Interference

A primary effect of aircraft noise is its tendency to drown out or "mask" speech, making it difficult to carry on a normal conversation. The sound level of speech decreases as the distance between a talker and listener increases. As the background sound level increases, it becomes harder to hear speech. Figure 2-7 presents typical distances between talker and listener for satisfactory outdoor conversations in the presence of different steady A-weighted background noise levels for three degrees of vocal effort: raised, normal, and relaxed. As the background level increases, the talker must raise his/her voice, or the individuals must get closer together to continue talking.

As indicated in the figure, "satisfactory conversation" does not always require hearing every word; 95 percent intelligibility is acceptable for many conversations. Listeners can infer a few unheard words when they occur in a familiar context. However, in relaxed conversation, we have higher expectations of hearing speech and generally require closer to 100 percent intelligibility. Any combination of talker-listener distances and background noise that falls below the bottom line in Figure 2-7 (thus assuring 100 percent intelligibility) represents an ideal environment for outdoor speech communication and is considered necessary for acceptable indoor conversation as well.

One implication of the relationships in Figure 2-7 is that for typical communication distances of 3 or 4 feet (1 to 1.5 meters), acceptable outdoor conversations can be carried on in a normal voice as long as the background noise outdoors is less than about 65 dBA. If the noise exceeds this level, as might occur when an aircraft passes overhead, intelligibility would be lost unless vocal effort were increased or communication distance were decreased.

Indoors. typical speech communication distances, comfortable voice levels, and expectations regarding intelligibility general-ly require a background level less than about 45 dBA. Therefore, an acceptable background level of 60 to 65 dBA outdoors does not guarantee an acceptable background level indoors. This is because, with windows partly open, housing construction typically provides about 15 decibels of sound attenuation (reduction) from outside to inside. Thus, only if the outdoor sound level is 60 dBA or less is there a reasonable chance that the resulting indoor sound level will afford acceptable conversation inside. With windows closed, 25 dB of attenuation is typical.



Figure 2-7 Outdoor Speech Intelligibility

Source: U.S. EPA, Information on Levels of Environmental Noise Requisite to Protect Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of Safety, March 1974, p. D-5.

It follows, then, that the amount of time per day that aircraft noise exceeds either 60 or 65 dBA outdoors is indicative of the time during which speech interference can be expected. The U.S. EPA has used these same relationships to identify an outdoor criterion of DNL 60 as requisite to protect against speech interference indoors, and a criterion level 5 decibels less than that to provide for an additional "margin of safety."⁵

2.2.2 Sleep Interference

Research on sleep disruption from noise has led to widely varying observations. In part, this is because (1) sleep can be disturbed without causing awakening, (2) the deeper the sleep the more noise it takes to cause arousal, (3) the tendency to awaken increases with age and other factors. The FAA reviewed literature on sleep disruption in a study of hospitals. That study⁶ identified a maximum level of 40 dBA as a conservative threshold of sleep disturbance. Separately, the EPA identified 35 dBA L_{max} as a threshold of sleep disruption in the presence of steady noise, with maximum levels of 40 dBA resulting in a 5 percent probability of awakening.⁷ Assuming an interior threshold level of 40 dBA requisite to maintain sleep (with windows open) and 15 dB of outside-to-inside noise reduction, this means that levels exceeding about 55 dBA outdoors have the potential to cause arousal.⁸

Figure 2-8 shows a summary of laboratory findings on the topic.

2.3 COMMUNITY ANNOYANCE

Social survey data make it clear that individual reactions to noise vary widely for a given noise level. Nevertheless, as a group, people's aggregate response is predictable and relates well to measures of cumulative noise energy such as DNL. **Figure 2-9** shows the most widely recognized relationship between environmental noise and community annoyance.

Based on data from 18 surveys conducted worldwide, the curve indicates that at levels as low as DNL 55, approximately 5 percent of the people will still be highly annoyed, with the percentage increasing more rapidly as exposure increases above DNL 65.9



Figure 2-8

Sleep Interference

Source: Federal Interagency Committee on Aviation Noise (FICAN), " Effects of Aviation Noise on Awakenings from Sleep", June 1997, page 6.



Figure 2-9

Percentage of People Highly Annoyed

Source: Federal Interagency Committee on Noise (FICON), "Federal Agency Review of Selected Airport Noise Analysis Issues". August 1992. (from data provided by USAF Armstrong Laboratory). p. 3-6.

Separate work by the EPA has shown that overall community reaction to a noise environment is also dependent on DNL. This relationship is shown in Figure 2-10. Levels have been normalized to the same set of exposure conditions to permit valid comparisons between ambient noise Data summarized in that environments. figure suggest that little reaction would be expected for intrusive noise levels 5 decibels below the ambient, while widespread complaints can be expected as intruding noise exceeds background levels by about 5 decibels. Vigorous action is likely when the background is exceeded by 20 dB.

2.4 NOISE/LAND USE COMPATIBILITY GUIDELINES

DNL estimates have two principal uses in a Part 150 study:

- Provide a basis for comparing existing noise conditions to the effects of noise abatement procedures and/or forecast changes in airport activity.
- (2) Provide a quantitative basis for identifying potential noise impacts.

Both of these functions require the application of objective criteria for evaluating noise impacts. Part 150 provides the FAA's recommended guidelines for noise-land use compatibility evaluation. **Table 2.1** reproduces these guidelines.



Figure 2-10

Community Reaction as a Function of Outdoor DNL

Source: Wyle Laboratories, <u>Community Noise</u>, Prepared for the U.S. EPA, Office of Noise Abatement and Control, Washington, D.C. 20406, December 1971, page 63.

These guidelines represent a compilation of the results of extensive scientific research into noise-related activity interference and attitudinal response. However, reviewers of DNL contours should recognize the highly subjective nature of response to noise, and that special circumstances can affect individuals' tolerances. For example, a high non-aircraft background noise level can reduce the significance of aircraft noise, such as in areas constantly exposed to relatively high levels of traffic noise.

Alternatively, residents of areas with unusually low background levels may find relatively low levels of aircraft noise annoying.

Response may also be affected by expectation and experience. People may get used to a level of exposure that guidelines indicate may be unacceptable, and changes in exposure may generate response that is far greater than that which the guidelines might suggest.

Table 2.1

	Yearly Day-Night Average Sound Level, DNL,						
	in Decibels						
		(Key a	ind notes	s on follo	wing pag	ge)	
Land Use	<65	65-70	70-75	75-80	80-85	>85	
Residential Use							
Residential other than mobile					•		
homes and transient lodgings	Y	N(1)	N(I)	N	N	N	
Mobile home park	Ŷ	N '	N	N	N	N	
Transient lodgings	Ŷ	N(1)	N(1)	N(1)	N	N	
Public Use							
Schools	Y	N(1)	N(1)	N	N	N	
Hospitals and nursing homes	Ŷ	25	30	N	N	N	
Churches, auditoriums, and concert halls	v	25	30	N	N	IN N	
Governmental services	Ŷ	V	25	30	N	N	
Transportation	v	v	$\mathbf{Y}(2)$	V(3)	$\mathbf{V}(\mathbf{A})$	$\mathbf{V}(\mathbf{A})$	
Parking	Y	Y	Y(2)	Y(3)	Y(4)	1 (4) N	
Commercial Use							
Offices, business and professional	v	v	25	30	N	N	
Wholesale and retail-building materials	•	1	20	50	19	19	
hardware and farm equipment	v	v	$\mathbf{v}(2)$	V(3)	$\mathbf{V}(A)$	N	
Retail tradegeneral	v	v	25	30	N	N	
Utilities	v	v	$\mathbf{v}_{(2)}$	V (3)		N	
Communication	Y	Y	25	30	N	N ·	
Manufacturing and Production							
Manufacturing general	v	v	$\mathbf{V}(2)$	V(3)	$\mathbf{V}(\mathbf{A})$	N	
Photographic and optical	Ŷ	v	25	30	N	N	
Agriculture (except livestock) and forestry	Ŷ	Y(6)	$\mathbf{Y}(7)$	V(8)	$\mathbf{V}(8)$	V(8)	
Livestock farming and breeding	Ŷ	Y(6)	$\mathbf{Y}(7)$	N	N N	N	
Mining and fishing, resource	•	- (0)	• (1)		.,	14	
production and extraction	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	
Recreational							
Outdoor sports arenas and spectator sports	Y	Y(5)	Y(5)	N	N	N	
Outdoor music shells, amphitheaters V	N	N	N	N	N	11	
Nature exhibits and zoos	Y	Y	N	N	N	N	
Amusements, parks, resorts and camps	Ŷ	Ŷ	Y	N	N	N	
Golf courses, riding stables, and water recreation	Ŷ	Ŷ	25	30	N	N	

FAR Part 150 Noise/Land Use Compatibility Guidelines

See following page for Table Key and Notes.
Key to Table 2.1

SLCUM	Standard Land Use Coding Manual.
Y(Yes)	Land use and related structures compatible without restrictions.
N(No)	Land use and related structures are not compatible and should be prohibited.
NLR	Noise Level Reduction (outdoor to indoor) to be achieved through incorporation of noise attenuation into the design and construction of the structure
25, 30, or 35	Land use and related structures generally compatible; measures to achieve NLR of 25, 30, or 35 dB must be incorporated into design and construction of structure.

Notes for Table 2.1

The designations contained in this table do not constitute a Federal determination that any use of land covered by the program is acceptable or unacceptable under Federal, State, or local law. The responsibility for determining the acceptable and permissible land uses and the relationship between specific properties and specific noise contours rests with the local authorities. FAA determinations under Part 150 are not intended to substitute Federally determined land uses for those determined to be appropriate by local authorities in response to locally determined needs and values in achieving noise compatible land uses.

- (1) Where the community determines that residential or school uses must be allowed, measures to achieve outdoor to indoor Noise Level Reduction (NLR) of at least 25 dB and 30 dB should be incorporated into building codes and be considered in individual approvals. Normal residential construction can be expected to provide a NLR of 20 dB, thus, the reduction requirements are often stated as 5, 10, or 15 dB over standard construction and normally assume mechanical ventilation and closed windows year round. However, the use of NLR criteria will not eliminate outdoor noise problems.
- (2) Measures to achieve NLR of 25 dB must be incorporated into the design and construction of portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas or where the normal noise level is low.
- (3) Measures to achieve NLR of 30 dB must be incorporated into the design and construction of portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas or where the normal noise level is low.
- (4) Measures to achieve NLR of 35 dB must be incorporated into the design and construction of portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas or where the normal noise level is low.
- (5) Land use compatible provided special sound reinforcement systems are installed.
- (6) Residential buildings require an NLR of 25.
- (7) Residential buildings require an NLR of 30.
- (8) Residential buildings not permitted.

Source: FAR Part 150.

The cumulative nature of DNL means that the same level of noise exposure can be achieved in an essentially infinite number of ways. For example, a reduction in a small number of relatively noisy operations may be counterbalanced by a much greater increase in relatively quiet flights, with no net change in DNL. Residents of the area may be highly annoyed by the increased frequency of operations, despite the seeming maintenance of the noise status quo.

With these cautions in mind, the Part 150 guidelines can be applied to the DNL contours to identify the potential types, degrees, and locations of incompatibility. Measurement of the land areas involved can provide a quantitative measure of impact that allows a comparison of at least the gross effects of existing or forecast operations.

Part 150 guidelines indicate that all uses are normally compatible with aircraft noise at exposure levels below DNL 65. This limit is supported in a formal way by standards adopted by HUD. The HUD standards address whether sites are eligible for Federal funding support. These standards, set forth in Part 51 of the Code of Federal Regulations, define areas with DNL exposure not exceeding 65 dB as acceptable for funding. Areas exposed to noise levels between DNL 65 and 75 are "normally unacceptable," and require special abatement measures and review. Those at 75 and above are "unacceptable" except under very limited circumstances.

This study will use the Part 150 Table 2.1 guidelines in identifying potential land use incompatibilities in the TPA environs. Chapter Four will provide a more detailed discussion of the land use compatibility guidelines recommended for the TPA environs.

Chapter Three Noise Measurements

Part 150 does not require airport operators to measure noise levels. However, measurements provide important input to an understanding of the noise environment. Noise measurements were conducted in the TPA environs from October 14-21, 1997.

This chapter provides the noise measurement program (Section 3.1), a summary of weather during the measure-ment period (Section 3.2), a description of noise measurement instrumentation (Section 3.3), DNL results (Section 3.4), and the site-by-site results (Section 3.5).

3.1 MEASUREMENT PROGRAM OBJECTIVES, DESIGN, AND EXECUTION

The noise measurement program was conducted with these objectives as guidelines:

- To measure cumulative noise exposure for comparison with noise contours.
- To sample aircraft single event noise levels at representative community locations.
- To address specific community concerns regarding aircraft noise exposure.

To accomplish these objectives noise measurements were conducted at 17 temporary locations. At 11 of the locations, the measurements covered at least 24 hours, providing samples of DNL. Measurements at the remaining sites focused on single event levels, with shorter-term measurements of cumulative exposure.

Consultant staff observed and recorded noiseproducing activity at each measurement location for several hours during the measurement period. The measurement locations were selected based on input received at the first Community Input Group meeting, held on September 9, 1997, taking into account the following site selection criteria:

- Complement previous Part 150: Some of the sites should provide a basis for comparing noise levels to those measured in January 1983 during the preparation of the original Part 150 Noise Exposure Map.
- Under, or near to, major flight "corridors": A majority of the sites should be near major flight corridors, to maximize the number of operations monitored.
- Areas exposed to unusual sources: Measurements are appropriate away from major flight corridors, to address special noise issues.
- Within or near to 65 dB DNL contour: It is appropriate to focus the measurements in the areas exposed to the highest noise levels, including areas within the noise contour areas which the FAA considers potentially incompatible with some land uses.

- Security, low ambient: Equipment security is a practical matter. Sites should also be isolated from unusual non-aircraft levels, such as high levels of traffic noise, barking dogs, etc. This does not mean that measurements should be avoided in neighborhoods near to major roads. Rather, the measurement site should be placed in a parcel that is representative of inner lots that do not directly abut the major roads.
- Technical purposes: The overall group of sites must provide representative data on the broadest possible range of aircraft operations and geographic areas around the Airport, to provide the most diverse and comprehensive information possible for use in the development of the updated Noise Exposure Map and Noise Compatibility Program.

HMMH and HNTB staff spent the daylight hours conducting observations at the monitoring locations, to log the noiseproducing aircraft and non-aircraft activity.

Table 3.1 summarizes the measurement locations, dates, and times at each location. Overall, approximately 400 hours of measurements were conducted at 17 locations (numbered 1-16, with a 7 and 7A, to reflect the two sites within the Plantation subdivision).

Figure 3-1 depicts the measurement locations.

Section 3.2 summarizes weather conditions during the monitoring session.

Section 3.3 describes the measurement instrumentation.

Section 3.4 summarizes the DNL measurement results for all sites where sufficient hours of measurement were conducted to calculate that daily value.

Section 3.5 summarizes the site-by-site measurement results, including the measured hourly L_{eq} and the L_{max} for individual aircraft noise events.

3.2 WEATHER DURING MEASUREMENT PERIOD

The weather during the measurement period was largely clear and mild, with little overcast, and relatively light winds from the north. For approximately 12 hours on Saturday, October 18, there were periods of heavy rain.

The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) operates an automated weather observation station at TPA. **Figure 3-2** plots the daily average wind speed and highest sustained wind speed for October 1997 from that station.

Figure 3-3 plots the daily maximum and minimum temperatures for October 1997. The average temperature during the measurement period was approximately equal to the annual average of 72 degrees (the long-term average reported by the National Climatic Data Center).

3.3 NOISE MEASUREMENT INSTRUMENTATION

Measurements at Sites 1, 2, 3, 4 (on October 16-17 only), 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, and 15 were conducted with Larson-Davis Model 870 (LD 870) noise monitors. The LD 870



Table 3.2

	1	<u> </u>			<u> </u>					
		Daily DNL (dBA)								
Site No.	Address	Tue. 10/14	Wed. 10/15	Thu. 10/16	Fri. 10/17	Sat 10/18	Sun. 10/19	Mon. 10/20	Tue. 10/21	Average DNL at Site
1	5833 Mariner St., Beach Park	77.4	74.1	75.3	72.7					74.9
2	5140 Longfellow Ave., Sunset Park	59.7	55.9	57.8						57.8
3	4923 St. Croix Dr., Culbreath Isles	60.1	57.8							59.0
4	13902 Pepperrell Dr., Carrollwood			61.1	62.3					61.7
5	4816 Sierra Madre Dr.				68.5	61.8				65.2
6	4610 Westford Cir., Village West	No cumulative exposure measurements.								
7	Clubhouse, Plantation				63.8	65.2				64.5
7A	10557 Park Crest, Plantation	No cumulative exposure measurements.								
8	6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard				65.0	63.6	64.6			64.4
9	4613 D'Azzo Ave., Drew Park					60.3	62.6			61.5
10	6526 Johns Rd., Northwest Park					59.0	58.7	60.3		59.3
11	5215 West Laurel St.						67.3	69.6	69.3	68.7
12	North St./Occident Ave. Intersection	No cumulative exposure measurements.								
13	Leeward Dr., Watermill Village	No cumulative exposure measurements.								
14	3947 Doral Dr., Dana Shores							66.9		66.9
15	Cypress Point Park							78.3	72.0	69.4
16	3405 Aileen St.	No cumulative exposure measurements.								

Summary of Day-Night Average Sound Level, DNL, Measurements

Source: HMMH.

- "Twin Turbo Props" Twin engine propeller driven aircraft with turbine engines.
- "Twin Piston" Twin engine propeller aircraft, with piston engines.
- "Single Piston" Single engine propeller driven aircraft, with piston engines.

• "Helicopter" - Helicopter operations.

Discussions of air carrier jets often raise the issue of their "Part 36" status, a term which merits introduction at this point. As a means of controlling noise at the source, the Federal government sets limits that aircraft must meet to be "certificated" for operation in the U.S. These noise limits are set out in Federal Aviation Regulation Part 36. New turbojet aircraft must meet the most stringent "Stage 3" limits. Older turbojet aircraft that meet certain minimum noise standards are "Stage 2." The oldest, noisiest category of jets, that do not meet any Part 36 limits, are "Stage 1."

Another Federal regulation "Part 91" prohibits operation in the U.S. of Stage 1 turbojets with maximum certificated gross takeoff weights over 75,000 pounds; it requires operators to cease Stage 2 operations by the year 2000, either by retiring their Stage 2 aircraft or modifying them to meet Stage 3 limits. Operators may apply for extensions to that phase out date, but only for very limited reasons, and only until 2003. There are no phase-out dates for Stage 1 or 2 jets under 75,000 pounds ("corporate jets"). Aircraft of similar size and configuration with differing Part 36 classifications can produce very different noise levels. as the single event measurements for several sites reveal. The Stage 2 phase out is a very important abatement action on a national and local level.

Presentation of Hourly Equivalent Sound Level (L_{eq}) Data

For those sites at which cumulative exposure measurements were conducted with the LD 870 monitors, the discussion also includes figures that graphically present the hourly L_{eq} results and states the DNL for each calendar day during which measurements were performed at the site. For any days with less than 24 hours of data, the DNL estimate is based on the proper weighting of the available day and night hours. The hours indicated on the figures represent the starting time of the measurement interval; e.g., hour "0" starts at midnight and hour "10" starts at 10 a.m. The figures use a 24-hour clock

("military time"), where the hour starting at 1 p.m. is "13," 2 p.m. is hour "14," through the hour starting at 11 p.m., which is "23."

Many of the measurement locations are near measurement sites from the 1983 Part 150 study. For those sites, the discussions also compare the current DNL measurements to measured and modeled DNL results from that study. A later chapter in this study's documentation will compare the measured DNL to the modeled 2000 base case exposure. Comparison of measured DNL from different dates must take into consideration the fact that operations can differ substantially because of changes in airport operating mode (i.e., north or south flow), variation in weather conditions, nonaircraft noise sources. and other uncontrollable factors. In addition, the DNL measurements in the previous study were all for a single day, whereas the current measurements had a variety of durations, mostly longer.

Another important factor to consider in reviewing the measurements is that most of the measurement locations are outside of the 65 dB DNL contour interval. In developed suburban areas, such as around TPA, background noise has a major effect on total noise exposure, particularly where the aircraft noise exposure is below 65 dB DNL. Above 75 dB DNL, aircraft noise generally dominates. However, the specific microphone siting, local traffic levels, and unusual noise sources must be considered for each location.

Comparison of any measurements to the previous study's modeled DNL must take into consideration the fact that the noise contours from that study represented projected activity for the "average annual day" in 1985 and 1990; that is, for

hypothetical days in which overall airport operations, runway use, and flight track use are the same as the total annual activity divided by 365, and the temperature is equal to the average annual level. On any given day of measurements, actual activity will not match these hypothetical conditions. Because of day-to-day variation in operating conditions and airport activity, and the contributions of non-aircraft noise exposure sources, it would be very unusual for the modeled DNL to agree very closely with the result of relatively short-duration measurements.

3.5.1 Site 1: 5833 Mariner Street, Beach Park

Site 1 is located approximately 7,500 feet due south of the west parallel, Runway 18R/36L. Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site are Runway 36L arrivals and Runway 18R departures. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period, so arrivals were measured.

The residents at this site indicated that turbojet arrivals are generally much louder than departures. The noise from departing aircraft is diminished compared to arrivals, because departures are almost always higher than arrivals at the site, and because the existing noise abatement procedures call for turbojet departures on Runway 18R to execute turns to the west (to 200°) immediately upon departure.

The site faces north, toward the Howard Franklin Bridge (Route 275), which is less than 500 feet away. During most of the day, starting as early as 5 or 6 a.m. and running until as late as midnight, there was a fairly steady "drone" from the surface traffic. However, the loudest individual events are aircraft-related. As shown in **Figure 3-4**, measured maximum levels for aircraft ranged from approximately 62 dB, to as high as approximately 95 dBA. The loudest single events from surface traffic (normally from heavy trucks) ranged from only 60 to 65 dBA.

Measurements at the site included all or a portion of four days. As shown in Figures 3-5 and 3-6, the DNL values over the four days ranged from approximately 73 to 77 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 75.

The measurement site is very close to measurement Site 12 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 72 dB. The previous Part 150 study included DNL contours for 1985 and 1990 contours. Site 1 was approximately under the 75 dB contour line in both cases.

3.5.2 Site 2: 5140 Longfellow Avenue, Sunset Park

Site 2 is located approximately 16,000 feet south of the Airport, approximately midway between the parallel runways. The site faces northwest onto Tampa Bay. It is directly on the water. Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site during the measurements were Runway 36L and 36R arrivals, since the Airport was operating in the north flow. The site is also affected by Runway 18R and 18L departures, although noise abatement flight paths direct a majority of the departures away from the site, particularly turbojets.

Measurements at the site included all or a portion of 3 days.















As shown in **Figure 3-7**, air carrier jets, corporate jets, and propeller-driven aircraft produced similar noise levels. Noise levels were similar for approaches to both runways, consistent with the central location of the site. The range of single event levels was approximately 20 dBA lower than at Site 1, reflecting higher aircraft altitudes at this greater distance from the Airport and the fact that most operations were to the right or left of the site, rather than directly overhead.

As shown in **Figures 3-8 and 3-9**, hourly noise levels were substantially lower at the site than at Site 1, reflecting both the lower aircraft noise level, and the absence of any unusual non-aircraft noise source. The measurement location was behind a residence on a cul-de-sac, with little traffic noise, and well shielded from neighboring residences.

The DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 56 to 60 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 58 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 4,500 feet north and west of measurement Site 14 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 55 dB. Site 2 was well outside the 65 dB DNL in both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases from that study.

3.5.3 Site 3: 4923 St. Croix Drive, Culbreath Isle

Site 3 is located approximately 12,000 feet south of the Airport, between the extended centerlines for the parallel runways, slightly closer to the east parallel. Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site during the measurements were Runway 36L and 36R arrivals, since the Airport was operating in the north flow. The site is also affected by Runway 18R and 18L departures, although noise abatement flight paths direct a majority of the departures away from the site, particularly turbojets.

As shown in **Figure 3-10**, arrivals on the east parallel (36R) are generally louder than those on the west parallel (36L), due to the site's closer proximity to the 36R approach course. Even propeller-driven aircraft approaches to the east runway were louder than jet approaches to the west runway.

Measurements at the site ran for 24 hours over two days. As shown in **Figure 3-11**, the measured DNL was approximately 60 dB.

Site 3 was well outside 65 dB DNL in both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases prepared for the original Part 150 study. No measurements were conducted near this site in that study.

3.5.4 Site 4: 13902 Pepperrell Drive, Carrollwood

Site 4 is located approximately 31,500 feet due north of the east parallel, Runway Two rounds of measurements 18L/36R. were conducted at the site, including a few hours of measurements using a hand-held monitor on October 15th, and then approximately 24 hours of measurements on October 16th and 17th. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. Aircraft operations measured at the site were departures from Runways 36L and 36R. The site would also be affected by approaches to Runways 18R and 18L in south-flow operations.















Figure 3-11

L_{eq} Measured at Site 3, 4923 St. Croix Dr., Culbreath Isle, October 14 and 15, 1997 Source: HMMH, October 1997 Measurements

As shown in Figure 3-12, air carrier jet departures were the loudest events on average, followed by corporate jets and twin turboprops. Lighter aircraft were not measured at the site, because the generally turn away from the runway centerline closer to the Airport. There was a wide range in jet noise levels, due to flight track dispersion, and differences in aircraft performance and emission levels. The noisiest aircraft were generally older Stage 2 airline jets that do not meet the more stringent Stage 3 noise levels. The Stage 3 airliners emit less noise and also generally climb faster than the Stage models. The measured maximum levels for Stage 3 airliners were generally seven to eight decibels quieter than comparably sized Stage 2 models at this site. Federal regulations require operators to phase out their Stage 2 aircraft or retrofit them to met Stage 3 limits by the year 2000. Therefore, it would not be unusual for most of the air carrier noise events above 80 dB shown in Figure 3-12 to be eliminated by that date.

As shown in **Figure 3-13**, there is a missing hour of L_{eq} data at 8 a.m. on October 17. There was rain during the night which appeared to cause a transient signal at the site that corrupted the data for that hour.

The DNL calculated from the remaining hours was approximately 62 dB.

This site is very close to measurement Site 4 from the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured at that site over a single day in 1983 was 64 dB. Both measurement locations are well outside the 65 dB contours for 1985 and 1990 in the original study.

3.5.5 Site 5: 4816 Sierra Madre Drive

Site 5 is located approximately 3,200 feet due west of the north end of Runway 18R-36L. Operations on both parallel runways were measured at the site. As shown in **Figure 3-14**, air carrier jet departures were generally the loudest and most frequently measured events. It was difficult to reliably distinguish between operations on the two runways, because the aircraft were hidden from view until some distance from the Airport.

The DNL calculated from measurements on two consecutive days was approximately 65 dB. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period.

Site 5 is approximately 2,500 feet northeast of 8 in the original Part 150. The DNL measured at that site over a single day in 1983 was 70 dB. That original measurement location was outside the 1985 and 1990 65 dB DNL contour. As shown in Figures 3-15 and 3-16, the current location falls within the 65-70 dB contour intervals from those two cases.

3.5.6 Site 6: 4610 Westford Circle, Village West

Site 6 is located approximately 3,500 feet east of the extended centerline for the east parallel, approximately 28,000 feet north of the Airport. Five hours of single event noise measurements were conducted at the site on October 16th. Aircraft operations measured at the site were almost exclusively air carrier jet departures from Runways 36L and 36R. The site would also be affected by approaches to Runways 18R and 18L in south-flow operations.

Tal	ble	3.	1
	$\mathbf{v} \mathbf{v}$	~.	

Summary of Noise Monitoring Locations, Dates (1997), and Times

	Site No.	Address	Approximate Start Date/Time	Approximate End Date/Time	Approx. Hours of Monitoring	Primary Noise- Producing Aircraft Activity During Measurements	Comments
	1	5833 Mariner St., Beach Park	Tues., 10/14, 4 p.m.	Friday, 10/17, 10 a.m.	66	Runway 36L arrivals	Essentially the same location as site 12 in original Part 150. The resident indicated that the Runway 36I
-			·				arrivals are the most annoying normal activity.
	2	5140 Longfellow Ave., Sunset Park	Tues., 10/14, 5 p.m.	Thursday, 10/16, 10 a.m.	41	36L arrivals	The resident indicated that the Runway 36L arrivals are the most annoying normal activity.
	3	4923 St. Croix Dr., Culbreath Isles	Tuesday, 10/14, 6 p.m.	Wednesday, 10/15, 6 p.m.	24	36L arrivals	
	4	13902 Pepperrell Dr., Carrollwood Village	Two sessions: 1. Wednesd 2. Thursday 10/17, 1 g	ay, 10/15, 3:30 - 5 p.m. ., 10/16, noon - Friday, p.m.	26.5	36L/R departures	Within several hundred feet of site 4 in original Part 150.
	5	4816 Sierra Madre Dr.	Two sessions: 1. Thursday 2. Friday 10 10/18, no	, 10/16, 10 a.m 5 p.m. /17, 9 a.m Sat. on	34	36L/R departures	Approximately 2,500' northeast of site 8 in original Part 150.
ω 	6	4610 Westford Cir., Village West	Thursday, 10/16, noon	Thursday 10/16, 5 p.m.	5'	36L/R departures	
-	7	Clubhouse, Plantation	Friday, 10/17, noon	Saturday, 10/18, 1 p.m.	257	36L/R departures	Development staff requested additional short-term measurement of single events on south
	7A	10557 Park Crest, Plantation	Friday, 10/17, 4:30 p.m.	Friday, 10/17, 6 p.m.	1.5	36L/R departures	end of development. Site 3 in original Part 150 was on east side of development.
	8	6719 Twelve Oaks Blvd., Twelve Oaks	Friday, 10/17, 4 p.m.	Sunday, 10/19, 4 p.m.	48	36L/R departures	Approximately 2,500' west of site 5 in original Part 150.
	9	4613 D'Azzo Ave., Drew Park	Saturday, 10/18, 1 p.m.	Sunday, 10/19, 1 p.m.	24	36L/R departures	Approximately 500' north of site 10 in original Part 150.
	10	6526 Johns Rd., Northwest Park	Saturday, 10/18, 8 p.m.	Monday, 10/20, 10 a.m.	38	36L/R departures	Approximately 2,000' northwest of site 6 in original Part 150.
	11	5215 West Laurel St.	Sunday, 10/19, 4 p.m.	Tuesday, 10/21, 9 a.m.	41	36L arrivals	Approximately 2,500' northwest of site 16 in original Part 150.
	12	North St. and Occident Ave.	Saturday, 10/18, 4 p.m.	Saturday, 10/18, 6 p.m.	2	36L/R departures	Approximately 1,500' south of site 7 in original Part 150.
	13	Leeward Dr., Watermill Village	Sunday, 10/19, 4:30 p.m.	Sunday, 10/19, 6 p.m.	1.5	36L/R departures	
	14	3947 Doral Dr., Dana Shores	Monday 10/20, 11 a.m.	Tuesday 10/21, midnight	13	36L/R arrivals and departures	Approximately 1,000' northeast of site 9 in original Part 150.
	15	Cypress Point Park - west end of Cypress Ave.	Monday, 10/20, noon	Tuesday, 10/21, noon	24	36L/R arrivals	
=	16	3405 Aileen St.	Monday, 10/20, 2:30 p.m.	Monday, 10/20, 4:30 p.m.	2	Runway 9/27 operations and 36L/R departures	Approximately 500' south of site 11 in original Part 150.

.

.

Source: HMM&H, 1998.

TAMPA INTL AIRPORT Florida Knots - Knots Knots - Knots ġ Day of the Month: October, 1997 ● Mean Wind Speed Maximum Wind G 16 missing observation(s)

Figure 3-2

TPA Wind Conditions, October, 1997

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Climatic Data Center, Data from Tampa International Airport Weather Station (Internet Access, February 6, 1998)



Figure 3-3

TPA Maximum and Minimum Daily Temperature, October, 1997

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Climatic Data Center, Data from Tampa International Airport Weather Station (Internet Access, February 6, 1998)

meets American National Standards Institute (ANSI) S1.4-1983 standards for a Type I sound level meter. Measurements at Sites 4 (on October 15), 6, 7A, 12, and 16 were conducted using a Brüel & Kjaer Model 2221 Type 2 sound level meter. All measurements. instrumentation and calibrators meet or exceed accuracy requirements outlined in FAR Part 150 Appendix A, paragraph A150.5. Calibrations of the equipment were carried out in the field before and after each of the measurements. These calibrations are traceable to the United States National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST), formerly the National Bureau of Standards).

The type of monitor used at each site was based on the measurement objective for that site. The LD 870s were used at sites where both single event and cumulative exposure measurements were desired. The B&K 2221 was used at sites where the objective was to obtain only representative single event information, through short-duration measurements.

The LD 870 units were programmed to record hourly L_{eq} , daily DNL, and SEL and L_{max} for individual noise events. The B&K 2221 allowed measurement of L_{max} values. Section 2.1 introduces these metrics. All measurements were A-weighted, as discussed in Section 2.1.2.

3.4 DAY-NIGHT AVERAGE SOUND LEVEL RESULTS

Table3.2summarizestheDNLmeasurement results for the sites at whichboth daytime and nighttime measurementswere conducted.

3.5 SITE-BY-SITE RESULTS

This section provides site-by-site discussions for each monitoring location. The summaries present the A-weighted maximum single event level (L_{max}) and hourly equivalent sound level (L_{eq}) data in graphical form, and compare measured and modeled DNL.

Presentation of Maximum A-Weighted Levels (L_{max}) for Individual Aircraft Noise Events

A project team member observed and logged aircraft activity for a portion of the measurement period at each location, providing a basis for identifying a sample of single event noise levels, in terms of L_{max} . These measurements provide a basis for comparing the maximum levels produced by different aircraft types, and for comparing single event levels among sites.

For each measurement location, there is a figure that presents L_{max} data in a "thermometer" form. Representative sound levels from typical community sources are on the left of the thermometer. The ranges of L_{max} values for observed aircraft operations are on the right.

The figures group the aircraft data by type of operation (i.e., arrival, departure, and overflight) and by major aircraft type categories. The aircraft type categories include:

- "Air Carrier Jets" Large turbojet aircraft operated by commercial airlines.
- "Corporate Jets" Small turbojet aircraft operated by private owners.



















As at nearby Site 4, the loudest operations were in Stage 2 models (see Figure 3-17). While precise aircraft identification was difficult at this distance, Stage 2 models appeared to account for most of the aircraft in the noisiest 10 dB of the measured range. Once again these noisiest operations will be eliminated by the Federal Stage 2 phase out, scheduled for completion in 2000.

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were conducted at this site.

3.5.7 Site 7: Clubhouse, Plantation

Site 7 is located approximately 23,000 feet north of the Airport, approximately 1,000 feet east of the extended centerline of the east parallel. Measurements at the site included portions of two days, covering a total of approximately 27 hours. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. As shown in Figure 3-18, aircraft operations measured at the site were almost exclusively air carrier and corporate jet departures from Runways 36L and 36R. The site would also be affected by approaches to Runways 18R and 18L in south-flow operations. Propeller-driven aircraft generally turn from centerline prior to reaching this site.

As shown in **Figure 3-19**, the DNL values for the two partial days had a mathematical average of approximately 64.5 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 2,000 feet northwest of measurement Site 3 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 65 dB. The 1985 and 1990 DNL calculated for that site in the 1983 study were also approximately 65 dB.

3.5.8 Site 7A: 10557 Park Crest, Plantation

Site 7A is located approximately 2,500 feet southwest of Site 7, approximately directly under the Runway 18L/36R extended centerline, approximately 20,000 feet north of the Airport. This second location in the Plantation subdivision was visited for a short measurement duration, at the request of the development staff, because of its closer proximity to direct overflight.

Single event measurements were conducted at the site for approximately 1.5 hours. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. Aircraft operations measured at the site were almost exclusively air carrier jet departures from Runways 36L and 36R. The site would also be affected by approaches to Runways 18R and 18L in south-flow operations.

Review of the single event measurement results for this site (see Figure 3-20) reveals that the maximum levels for air carrier jet departures fell within the range measured for that aircraft type at the Clubhouse site (Figure 3-18). This comparison provides an example of the fact that, at such relatively large distances from the Airport, shifts in measurement location can be less important than variability flight tracks, the specific aircraft models, power settings, pilot technique, air-to-ground sound propagation, and other factors affecting the noise level we measure and hear.

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were conducted at this site.







Site 7, 10/18/97 Clubhouse, Plantation



Figure 3-19 L_{eq} Measured at Site 7, Clubhouse, Plantation, October 17 and 18, 1997 Source: HMMH, October 1997 Measurements



3.5.9 Site 8: 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard

Site 8 is located approximately 10,000 feet north of the Airport, approximately 3,000 feet west of the extended centerline of the west parallel. Measurements at the site included all or a portion of three days. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period.

Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site during the measurement period were Runway 36R and 36L departures. During south-flow operations, the site would also be affected by Runway 18R and 18L arrivals.

As shown in **Figure 3-21**, air carrier jets departures from Runways 36R and 36L were the most common and loudest events measured, as would be expected. There was approximately a 30 dB variation in measured maximum levels for air carrier jets, due to differences in flight path, runway used, and aircraft model.

As shown in **Figures 3-22 and 3-23**, the DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 63 to 65 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 64.

The measurement site is approximately 2,500 feet west of measurement Site 5 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 71 dB. That measurement location had a calculated noise exposure of approximately 72 dB for the 1985 and 1990 DNL cases in the original study.

3.5.10 Site 9: 4613 D'Azzo Avenue, Drew Park

Site 9 is located approximately 1,700 feet due east of the midpoint of the east parallel, in the

Drew Park neighborhood. The major operations affecting the site are arrivals and departures on both of the parallel runways.

As shown in **Figure 3-24**, the loudest aircraft noise events are departures. Interestingly, single engine propeller aircraft produced almost exactly the same range of maximum levels as air carrier jets. The propeller aircraft turned to the east after takeoff in many cases, and flew nearly over the site, whereas the jets flew straight out along the runway centerline. The approximate 30 dB variation in air carrier jet departure noise levels is the result of difference in aircraft types and runway used.

As shown in **Figure 3-25**, measurements at the site included portions of two days, for a total of approximately 24 hours. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. The average DNL over the two days was approximately 61 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 500 feet north of measurement Site 10 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 72 dB. The calculated 1985 DNL was approximately 67 dB. The calculated 1990 DNL was approximately 65 dB.

3.5.11 Site 10: 6526 Johns Road, Northwest Park

Site 10 is located approximately 4,900 feet north of the Airport, approximately 3,600 feet west of the extended centerline of the west parallel. Measurements at the site included all or a portion of three days. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period.









L_{eq} Measured at Site 8, 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard, October 17 and 18, 1997 Source: HMMH, October 1997 Measurements







TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY




Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site during the measurement period were Runway 36R and 36L departures. During south-flow operations, the site would also be affected by Runway 18R and 18L arrivals.

As shown in **Figure 3-26**, air carrier jets departures from Runways 36R and 36L were the most common and loudest events measured, as would be expected. There was over a 30 dB variation in measured maximum levels for air carrier jets, due to differences in flight path, runway used, and aircraft model. Twin turboprops also caused many noise events at the site, and the maximum levels produced by those aircraft fell within the range for air carrier jets. The turboprops produced these high noise levels because many turned west toward (or directly over) the site, whereas the jets continued straight out along the extended runway centerline.

As shown in **Figures 3-27 and 3-28**, the DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 59 to 60 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 59 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 2,000 feet northwest of measurement Site 6 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 71 dB. That measurement location had a calculated noise exposure of approximately 71 dB for both the 1985 and 1990 cases in the original study.

3.5.12 Site 11: 5215 West Laurel Street

Site 11 is located approximately 2,000 feet south of the Airport, approximately between the two runways. As shown in **Figure 3-29**, principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site during the measurement period were Runway 36L and 36R arrivals, which passed to either side of the site. The second most common category of noise events was start-of-takeoff-roll noise from Runway 36R and 36L departures, proceeding north. The site would be affected by Runway 18R and 18L departures during south-flow operations.

Measurements at the site included all or a portion of three days. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. As shown in Figures 3-30 and 3-31, the DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 67 to 70 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 69 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 2,500 feet northwest of Site 16 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 62 dB. The calculated DNL at that site was below 65 dB for both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases in the previous study. However, the current location was approximately on the 65 dB contour in the 1985 case, and just inside it for the 1990 case.

3.5.13 Site 12: North Street/Occident Avenue Intersection

Site 12 is located approximately 7,000 feet north of the Airport, approximately 1,500 feet east of the extended centerline of the east parallel. Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site are arrivals and departures on both parallels.

Measurements were conducted at this site using a portable noise monitor for a period of approximately 2 hours, to obtain a sample of single event levels, depicted in **Figure 3-32**. As would be expected, departures produced the highest noise levels, with the average levels higher on the east runway.

























TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were collected at this site.

3.5.14 Site 13: Leeward Drive, Watermill Village

Site 13 is located approximately 14,000 feet north of the Airport, approximately 3,000 feet west of the extended centerline of the parallel. west Measurements were conducted at this site using the B&K sound level meter for a period of approximately 1.5 hours, to obtain a sample of single event levels, depicted in Figure 3-33. The Airport operated in the north flow during the measurements. As would be expected, a majority of the measured operations were air carrier jet departures on Runways 36R and 36L. Because of the site location, it was not possible to differentiate between operations on the east and west runways.

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were collected at this site.

3.5.15 Site 14: 3947 Doral Drive, Dana Shores

Site 14 is located approximately 2,800 feet due west of the west parallel, approximately one-third of the distance from the south end of the Airport. Measurements were conducted at the site for a portion of a day.

As shown in **Figure 3-34**, the site is affected by a diverse range of aircraft activity, because of its proximity to the airfield. Principal aircraft operations affecting noise levels at the site during the measurements were air carrier jet arrivals on Runway 36L and departures on Runways 36R and 36L. Runway 18R and 18L arrivals and departures would affect the site during south-flow operation. As shown in **Figure 3-35**, the DNL values for the partial day allowed calculation of a DNL value of approximately 67 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 1,000 feet northeast of measurement Site 9 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 69 dB, and the calculated 1985 DNL was approximately 67 dB.

3.5.16 Site 15: Cypress Point Park

Site 15 is located approximately 4,000 feet due south of the west parallel, Runway 18R/36L.

As shown in **Figure 3-36**, the most common aircraft noise events measured at the site were Runway 36L arrivals, particularly by air carrier jets, which flew directly over the site. The two Runway 36L departure measurements are start-of-takeoff roll noise for jets departing to the north.

As shown in **Figure 3-37**, measurements at the site included portions of two days, with a total measurement duration of approximately 24 hours. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. The average DNL calculated from the two days was approximately 69 dB.

3.5.17 Site 16: 3405 Aileen Street

Site 16 is approximately 4,300 feet east of the east end of Runway 9/27, slightly south of the Runway 9/27 extended centerline. Measurements were conducted with a portable noise monitor at this site for a period of approximately 2 hours, to obtain a sample of single event data for light aircraft operations.



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY





Figure 3-35 L_{eq} Measured at Site 14, 3947 Doral Drive, Dana Shores, October 20, 1997 Source: HMMH, October 1997 Measurements



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY







As shown in **Figure 3-38**, single engine propeller departures from Runway 9 and single engine overflights (most likely aircraft in the traffic pattern) produced the highest noise levels. Sideline noise from jet departures on Runways 36L and 36R produced noise events just as frequently, with nearly the same noise levels.

The site is approximately 500 feet south of Site 11 in the 1983 study. The DNL from a single day of measurement at the site in 1983 was approximately 59 dB.



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

Chapter Four Existing and Forecast Noise Exposure

This chapter presents a description of the existing and future aircraft-related noise exposure in the TPA environs in the form of Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) "noise contours." These contours all assume the Airport is operating under the provisions of the existing NCP described in Chapter One. Noise exposure cases include:

- 2000 existing conditions
- 2005 forecast conditions

DNL contours for this study were prepared using Version 5.1a of the FAA's Integrated Noise Model (INM), which was the most current version of the INM available at the time the Noise Exposure Map contours were prepared. The INM requires inputs in the following areas:

- airport layout;
- number and mix of aircraft operations;
- day-night split of operations (by aircraft type);
- noise and performance characteristics of aircraft types;
- runway utilization rates;
- prototypical flight track descriptions; and
- flight track utilization rates.

As discussed in Section 1.1.1, the existing conditions contours are based on a level of activity that is representative of 1998 activity levels. All other modeling assumptions, including airport layout, flight geometry and utilization, and runway use rates, are representative of conditions as of the date of submission.

As discussed in Section 1.1.1, HNTB estimated existing conditions and 5-year forecast activity based on current information during the data collection phase of the study, in 1998. Therefore, the 2000 and 2005 NEMs are based on the estimated fleet mixes for 1998 and 2003. However, consistent with FAA guidelines, the data for those years are representative of conditions for 2000 and 2005. That is, airport layout, runway use percentages, flight tracks, general aircraft mix, and operational data, and noncompatible land uses are equivalent; and total numbers of operations do not vary over 15% in the aggregate.

4.1 AIRPORT AND PHYSICAL PARAMETERS

Runway orientation has a significant influence on aircraft operations and the resulting pattern of noise exposure. Since climate and terrain can affect aircraft performance and air traffic control (ATC) procedures, these factors also play major roles in aircraft noise exposure. The location of the Airport within an urban area directly affects the types of land uses exposed to aircraft overflights and noise. This section reviews the major factors affecting aircraft flight patterns and performance at TPA.

4.1.1 Airport Location and Layout

TPA is located approximately five miles west of downtown Tampa and covers an area of 3,100 acres (3,300 acres after acquiring additional land) in Hillsborough County. The predominant features of the Airport include two parallel north-south runways, an east-west crosswind runway. associated taxiways, the landside/ airside terminal complex, a cargo area, airline maintenance area, and a GA area. Figure 4-1 depicts the location of the Airport in its regional setting. The existing Airport Layout Plan is presented in Figure 4-2. The runway-taxiway components of the airfield pavement as they exist in 2000 are summarized in this section.

Runways - The existing airfield configuration consists of three runways: two parallel north-south runways designated as Runways 18L-36R and 18R-36L, and an east-west crosswind runway designated as Runway 9-27.

- **Runway 18L-36R** is an air carrier runway. It is 8,300-feet long with an effective gradient of 0.11 percent.
- **Runway 18R-36L** is an air carrier runway. It is 11,002-feet long with an effective gradient of 0.10 percent.
- **Runway 9-27** is an air carrier runway. It is 6,998-feet long with an effective gradient of 0.17 percent.

Operational System - The Airport's runway system is operated with mixed operations

depending on wind and weather conditions and demand. Because of noise abatement requirements on Runway 18L-36R, airport capacity is constrained.

4.1.2 Climate

Weather plays a significant role in the operational capabilities and noise characteristics of aircraft. Temperature is an important factor in determining aircraft performance. In addition, prevailing winds have a major role in determining the pattern of runway use.

Temperature - Warmer air temperatures cause lower air densities and result in lower thrust output and lift. Consequently, aircraft take longer to become airborne and climb. At TPA, normal daily mean temperatures range from 61 degrees Fahrenheit (F) in December and January to 82 °F in July and August, with an annual average daily mean temperature of 72 °F. August is the hottest month with an average daily mean maximum temperature of 90 °F. January is the coldest month with a daily mean minimum temperature of 50 °F.

Wind Direction - Wind speed and direction determine runway selection and operational flow. Operating with a headwind is desirable for takeoffs and landings, as headwind can help to decrease takeoff and landing distance requirements. The average annual wind speed in the Tampa area is 6.3 knots. March is the windiest month with winds averaging about 7.5 knots. Because the average wind speed is below 10 knots, the tailwind component is not as frequent a consideration for runway operations at TPA. A tailwind component is that portion of the wind which acts directly on the tail of the aircraft. A strong tailwind component can





increase the airplane's forward speed and thereby increase the time required to reduce speed enough to exit the runway. Winds are most frequent from the north-northeast to east during the winter months and from the south-southwest to west in the summer months. The strongest winds, over 6 knots, typically originate from these sectors. Because the prevailing winds are from the north, the primary runways are typically aligned in a north-to-south configuration.

Humidity - Humidity alone is not considered a significant contributing factor in reducing aircraft performance or increasing noise levels. It does, however, affect aircraft engine performance by taking up space that is normally available for vaporized fuel. Typically, as humidity increases less air enters the engine, causing a small increase in density altitude. For reciprocating engines, moist air tends to retard even fuel burning in the cylinder, which causes engine power loss. In reciprocating engine aircraft, the loss in engine power translates into reduction in total takeoff and climb performance. Relative humidity typically affects smaller training type aircraft. Humidity also has a minor effect in reducing the density of air, thus decreasing aircraft lift. The annual average relative humidity in the Tampa area is 74 percent. At TPA, humidity influences aircraft performance.

Visibility - The percent of time visibility is impaired due to cloud coverage is a major factor in determining the use of instrument approach aids. The FAA classifies weather conditions according to two basic types: visual meteorological conditions (VMC) and instrument meteorological conditions (IMC). VMC conditions are weather conditions such that an aircraft can maintain safe separation by visual means. IMC conditions

prevail when the visibility or ceiling falls below those minimums prescribed for VMC conditions. During periods of IMC conditions, all aircraft must operate under IFR flight plans, and operating patterns become the responsibility of ATC. Based on 1984-1993 meteorological data from the National Climatic Center, VMC conditions exist 95.1 percent of the time and IMC conditions 4.9 percent of the time in the Tampa area. Visual approaches can be conducted on any runway at TPA when the cloud ceiling is at least 2,600 feet and the visibility is at least 5 miles. Weather conditions permit visual approaches to TPA approximately 95 percent of the time.

Precipitation - Precipitation influences flight types by requiring IFR flights for flights that would normally be VFR. Additionally, precipitation also influences the ATC arrival separation time when an IFR flight plan is required. The normal precipitation annual in Tampa is approximately 44 inches. Precipitation is highest during the month of August. April is typically the driest month. The majority of traffic operations at TPA are IFR flights. The Tampa Bay area is known for its thunderstorm season, with on average 88 days of thundershowers per vear. Precipitation may influence operations due to facility closure, if only for a few hours. Closure of runways due to weather conditions could potentially influence noise levels along approach and departure paths associated with the redirection of flights to open runways. The redirection of flights may increase noise levels along the flight tracks for the runway(s) in-use. The potential change in typical noise levels due to weather conditions would be temporary and would not present a significant impact to average annual noise levels for any specific points.

4.1.3 Terrain

The terrain surrounding an airport can also influence aircraft operations and thereby the areas of potential noise impact. Because the terrain surrounding TPA is relatively flat due to its proximity to the ocean, terrain does not impact operational use of the Airport.

4.2 AIRSPACE AND AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL

The structure of airspace around an airport significantly affects the pattern of aircraft overflights, the types of aircraft which may operate in specific areas, and the options available to air traffic controllers in directing aircraft. Accordingly, airspace structure also influences the range of potential noise abatement measures.

4.2.1 Types of Airspace

The FAA Act of 1958 established the FAA responsible for the control and use of navigable airspace within the United States. Airspace is currently classified as either controlled or uncontrolled. Controlled airspace is supported by ground-to-air communications, navigation aids, and air traffic services.

The types of controlled airspace in the Tampa area are:

- Class A airspace, which includes all airspace between 18,000 feet mean sea level (MSL) and 60,000 feet MSL;
- Tampa Class B airspace (formerly, the Terminal Control Area), which includes all airspace from the Airport's

established elevation of 27 feet MSL up to 10,000 feet MSL (9,973 feet above ground level (AGL)) and consists of four layers which generally parallel the bay area, roads, and railroads;

- Sarasota/Bradenton International Airport (SRQ) Class C airspace (formerly referred to as the Airport Radar Service Area) which includes all airspace from that airport's established elevation of 28 feet MSL up to 4,000 feet MSL (3,972 feet AGL) and consists of two airspace layers;
- Class D airspace for airports with air traffic control towers (ATCTs), which normally extends from the surface to 2,500 feet above an airport's established elevation (but is charted in MSL) and includes control zones and airport traffic areas. The Class D airspace surrounding the airports in the Tampa area are individually configured; and
- Class E airspace, which includes all controlled airspace other than Classes A, B, C, or D. Class E airspace extends upward from either the surface of a designated altitude to overlying or adjacent controlled airspace. Class E airspace includes transition areas and control zones for airports without ATCTs.

Uncontrolled airspace is referred to as Class G airspace.

Only those areas which pertain to the study (Classes B, C, and D) are described further.

Class B Airspace

Figure 4-3 shows the Tampa Class B airspace. Class B airspace is established at



29 high-density airports in the United States as a means of regulating air traffic activity in these areas. It is established on the basis of a combination of enplaned passengers and volume of operations.

Class B airspace is designed to regulate the flow of uncontrolled traffic above, around, and below the arrival and departure airspace required for high-performance, passengercarrying aircraft at major airports. Class B airspace is the most restrictive controlled airspace routinely encountered by pilots operating under visual flight rules (VFR) in an uncontrolled environment. The four layers of the airspace surrounding TPA are shown in Figure 4-3.

To fly through Class B airspace, an aircraft must have special radio and navigation equipment and must obtain an ATC clearance. To operate within the TPA Class B airspace, a pilot must have at least a private pilot's certificate or be a student pilot who has met the requirements of Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) 61.95, which requires special ground and flight training for Class B airspace. Those aircraft within 30 miles of TPA and below 10,000 feet MSL must be equipped with a Mode C transponder, which automatically reports the aircraft's altitude to ATC radar. No fixedwing aircraft are allowed to operate under these Special VFR conditions; however, helicopters can operate within TPA Class B surface area under these rules as long as they stay at or below 1,600 feet. Helicopters flying under VFR and intending to depart TPA's Class B airspace must have clearance from TPA Clearance Delivery personnel.

Class C Airspace

Class C airspace surrounds airports that have an operational ATCT, are serviced by a radar approach control, and have a certain number of instrument flight rules (IFR) operations or passenger enplanements. In the case of SRQ, Tampa Approach Control provides approach control services.

There are two layers of Class C Airspace centered around SRQ. The inner core area is approximately 10 nautical miles in diameter and extends from the airport's elevation to 1,200 feet AGL. The outer area has a diameter of approximately 18 nautical miles and extends from 1,200 feet AGL to 4,000 feet AGL. The Class C airspace is active between 6 a.m. and 12 midnight local time. When the SRQ tower is not in operation, the Class C airspace resorts to Class E airspace.

Class D Airspace

The airspace under the jurisdiction of a local ATCT is called Class D airspace. Class D airspace provides airspace within which a tower can control aircraft in the vicinity of an airport. Its configuration is typically designed to encompass the published airspace procedures associated with the airport. Aircraft operating within this area are required to maintain radio communication with the control tower.

There are three airports in the vicinity of TPA that have a control tower and, therefore, require users to observe Class D airspace operating rules. These are St. Petersburg-Clearwater International (PIE), Albert Whitted Municipal, and MacDill Air Force Base (AFB). The top elevations of Class D airspace for PIE and Albert Whitted Municipal are both 2,500 feet MSL. The top elevation of Class D airspace for MacDill AFB is 2,600 feet MSL.

The Class B airspace associated with TPA encompasses and intersects portions of the

Class D airspace for these three airports. The PIE tower controls the Class D airspace in the areas that intersect the Tampa Class B airspace up to 1,600 feet MSL. The Class D airspace for PIE is active between 6:30 a.m. and 10:30 p.m. local time.

The tower at Whitted Municipal also controls the Class D airspace in the areas which intersect TPA's Class B airspace up to 1,600 feet MSL; however, this is scheduled to be lowered to 1,500 feet MSL. The Class D airspace at Whitted Municipal is active between 7 a.m. and 9 p.m. When the towers are not operating PIE or Whitted, the associated Class D airspace becomes Class E airspace.

The MacDill tower is a 24-hour facility that controls Class D airspace in the areas that intersect TPA Class B airspace to an elevation of 1,200 feet MSL. The MacDill tower also gives over control of a portion of its Class D airspace to Tampa Approach Control.

4.2.2 Air Traffic Control

Air traffic control plays a critical part in compatibility noise planning. The development of new flight tracks to provide noise abatement benefits must be coordinated and approved by ATC to insure procedures that the considered are operationally viable. ATC must consider safety and efficiency when new flight tracks are being developed. Noise abatement procedures can and should provide benefits to the Airport's surrounding communities but not at the cost of public safety.

The TPA ATCT is the agency responsible for controlling aircraft operations within the TPA terminal area. The TPA ATCT controls the airspace in an area extending approximately 45 nautical miles north, 60 nautical miles south, 45 nautical miles east, and 35 nautical miles west of TPA, with varying altitudes of control throughout. The bulk of this area is centered over the Airport from the surface up to 12,000 feet MSL. There are slight differences in the top elevation in some areas of this controlled airspace (to the west over water, to the north, to the northeast, and to the south) where control is limited to 10,000 feet MSL.

There is one other portion of the area controlled by the TPA ATCT (an area approximately 10 nautical miles east of Lakeland Linder Regional Airport (LAL) that is surface to 3,000 feet MSL). TPA's Class B airspace is a smaller interior portion of this larger area of control with four different segmented elevations centered on the Airport. The boundaries of the Class B airspace follow geographic features, including water and roads.

The TPA ATCT provides two levels of air traffic control: tower control for TPA itself, and terminal radar approach control (TRACON) for the rest of the terminal area surrounding TPA.

The TPA ATCT exercises control over aircraft operations on the ground and in the airport traffic control area (Class D) at TPA. Both the TPA ATCT and TRACON (described below) are headed by an area manager who uses 11 teams of controllers, each headed by an area supervisor, to control operations 24 hours a day.

The Tampa TRACON is the second level of air traffic control provided by Tampa ATCT. The TRACON exercises radar traffic control in the terminal area from a facility located in the base building for the Airport's ATCT. Tampa TRACON manages all traffic in the Class B airspace which is not under tower control, and handles IFR arrivals and departures for area airports and other IFR traffic within its designated airspace.

4.2.3 Neighboring Airports

Figure 4-4 shows the airports in the vicinity of TPA. There are currently 13 airports operating within 30 nautical miles of TPA. Although SRQ is more than 30 miles from TPA, it is included because of the extent of airspace interactions. The airports include:

- Albert Whitted Municipal
- Clearwater Airpark
- Hernando County
- Lakeland Linder Regional
- MacDill AFB
- Peter O. Knight
- Plant City Municipal
- Sarasota/Bradenton International
- St. Petersburg/Clearwater International
- Tampa North Aero Park
- Tampa Bay Executive
- Vandenberg
- Zephyrhills Municipal

Albert Whitted Municipal (SPG), SRQ, PIE, and MacDill AFB are the only airports within the TPA terminal area with ATCTs other than TPA.

4.2.4 Local Air Traffic Control Procedures

Local ATC procedures are established to separate traffic and assign ATC responsibilities, and to accommodate approved noise abatement procedures. These procedures are designed to maintain the capacity of the local system, simplify ATC coordination requirements, and reduce noise levels over non-compatible land uses. Different procedures apply to visual and instrument traffic.

Visual Flight Rules

Aircraft departing TPA under VFR come under positive control of the TPA ATCT when in Class B airspace. Aircraft must comply with local airspace restrictions and contact the appropriate controlling agency to enter special use airspace. Aircraft landing at TPA must contact appropriate TRACON personnel prior to entering the TPA Class B airspace. The arrival procedure will vary depending on the operational flow and volume of traffic.

IFR Procedures

Aircraft under IFR and coming from or going to the north are generally under control of the Jacksonville air route traffic control center (ARTCC) outside of Tampa TRACON airspace. ARTCCs control aircraft operating under IFR within controlled airspace in the en route phase of flight; an individual ARTCC is typically referred to as a "center." Aircraft staying low and going east may go directly into Orlando TRACON airspace. IFR aircraft coming from or going to the south are under control of the Miami ARTCC.

When ARTCC personnel prepare to transfer arriving turbojet or other high-performance IFR aircraft to Tampa TRACON control, they clear aircraft to TPA via a standard terminal arrival route (STAR). A STAR is a preplanned IFR ATC arrival procedure published for pilot use. STARs use a combination of published VOR radials and intersections and ATC-assigned vectors, altitudes, and speeds to route aircraft into the arrival flow sequence. STARs are generally utilized by heavier and faster turbojet aircraft. Other aircraft are brought to the Airport using Arrival Transition Areas (ATAs) which are defined in the agreements between the Tampa ATCT and the two Centers (Miami and Jacksonville). Aircraft are typically assigned to one of four established arrival posts based on the aircraft's city of origin. The four STAR routings are directed to the St. Petersburg VOR (the closest VOR to TPA).

TPA's STARs and ATAs are depicted in **Figure 4-5.** The four STARs, designated by five-letter codes, are briefly described below.

- BLOND TWO Arrival—for aircraft arriving from the west. This is an over-the-water STAR.
- BRDGE FIVE Arrival—for aircraft arriving from the southeast.
- DADES ONE Arrival—for aircraft arriving from the east and north using fixes off the MARVI checkpoint and from the Orlando VOR.
- DARBS ONE Arrival—for aircraft arriving from the northwest.

For departing IFR turbojet aircraft, the FAA issues standard instrument departures (SIDs). There is one official published SID available for TPA departures called the TAMPA THREE Departure. In addition to this single SID (usually utilized only by heavier and faster turbojet aircraft), all other aircraft are vectored toward Departure Transition Areas (DTAs).

There are eight DTAs associated with TPA which are defined in the agreements between

TPA ATCT and Miami and Jacksonville Centers. For turbojet aircraft, there are two departure routes to the north into Jacksonville Center airspace. For turbojet aircraft departing to the south, there are three routes into Miami Center airspace. TPA's SIDs and DTAs are depicted in **Figure 4-6**.

Other Procedures

To increase capacity, conserve fuel, and improve controller workload, certain aircraft landing on intersecting runways at TPA are allowed to land simultaneously and hold short of the intersecting runway. These land and hold short operations (LAHSOs) are permitted for certain aircraft and are allowed only when dry conditions prevail.

Runway 27 has a LAHSO effective length of 4,350 feet; LAHSO operations are authorized for aircraft within Design Groups I and II (e.g., most GA aircraft and most regional turboprops).

Runway 18L has a LAHSO effective length of 5,650 feet; LAHSO operations are authorized for Design Groups I, II, and III aircraft. Group III aircraft include most narrow-body air carrier aircraft, such as the DC-9, MD-80, B-737, and B-727.

Runways 9 and 36R have LAHSO lengths of 2,100 feet and 2,000 feet, respectively. Only smaller GA aircraft and small commuter aircraft (e.g., the Swearingen Metro) are authorized for LAHSO operations on these runways.

ATC personnel plan to allow LAHSO during wet conditions; however, HCAA would need to install in-pavement lighting.

A Media Control Route is available for operators of fixed- and rotary-wing aircraft







ŝ

operated by television and radio stations. To use this route, aircraft must fly along two elongated traffic patterns on either side of TPA's parallel runways. A crossover point between the two areas occurs approximately 1,000 feet MSL and approximately 9 nautical miles north of the Runway 18L threshold.

The 9-27 Bridge is a portion of the TPA Class B airspace earmarked for aircraft to transit the area from either an eastbound or westbound direction. All aircraft other than turbojets are allowed to utilize this "bridge" which is parallel to the east-west crosswind runway (9-27). The altitude limits within which these aircraft can traverse the area are 2,100 feet and 4,000 feet MSL. While the bridge is in use, aircraft departing the parallel runways and making turns must stay below 1,600 feet MSL to provide adequate altitude separation.

4.3 NOISE MODELING METHODOLOGY

The number and type of aircraft are obviously important aspects of the aircraft noise environment. Forecasts of aircraft operations are necessary to estimate future noise levels and to predict the pattern of runway and flight track use.

4.3.1 Aviation Forecasts

As part of the 1999 TPA Master Plan, a complete aviation activity forecast was completed. The Master Plan review process required that the forecast be reviewed and approved by the FAA. These forecasts were utilized for evaluating airfield capacity and delay as well as for analysis of environmentally sensitive impacts such as noise and air quality. The information that follows is a summary of the forecast factors used in the 1999 Master Plan forecasts. For a detailed discussion of these forecasts see Chapter Four, Annual and Derivative Forecasts, in the 1999 Master Plan.

Socioeconomic Factors

Passenger travel is ultimately determined by the strength of the economy and the cost of the service. The ultimate determinants of passenger travel are the strength of the economy and the cost of the service. Thus, any evaluation of this type of activity should take these factors into account.

The Tampa-St. Petersburg-Clearwater metropolitan statistical area (MSA) includes Hernando, Hillsborough, Pasco, and Pinellas Counties. For development of aircraft operations forecasts, the area of potential affect was defined to include the Tampa MSA, combined with Citrus, Sumter, and Manatee Counties and the western half of Polk County.

The numerical growth of the U.S. population between 1969 and 1995 totaled 61.6 million, an increase of 30.6 percent. The State of Florida population over this 26-year period more than doubled in size. The Tampa MSA increased at three times the rate of the U.S., more than doubling in size over the same period. However, when compared to the growth patterns of the entire State of Florida, the Tampa MSA grew at a slightly slower pace with an average annual increase of 2.8 percent compared to 3.0 percent for the State. The Tampa extended area grew slightly faster than the Tampa MSA, reflecting the trend for outer suburbs and satellite cities to grow faster than the core metropolitan areas.

The Tampa MSA is projected to increase to over 2.9 million by the end of the forecast period, an average annual growth rate of 1.2 percent. The population in the expanded area is projected to increase to over 3.8 million, an average annual increase of 1.3 percent. These growth rates are slightly lower than those projected for Florida over the same period (1.4 percent) but still much higher than the growth rate projected for the U.S. (0.9 percent).

Changes in employment numbers and the rate of change for the subject 25-year period would normally parallel those of the However, over the past 25 population. years, the overall rate of growth was significantly greater for employment than for population. For example, the overall population increase for the Tampa MSA was 102 percent but the employment increase was 163 percent. This increase in the employment-to-population ratio corresponds, in part, to the previously cited trends, such as the changing composition in the labor force, the maturing of the "Baby Boomer" generation, and the gradual decline in average family size during the past 25 Most of the employment growth vears. occurred in the 1970s and 1980s. The early 1990s saw a leveling off of employment which was directly attributable to the recession.

Both the Tampa and U.S. economies have experienced a significant transition over the past quarter of a century. The most rapidly growing sector has been the service sector, including personal services, business services, the amusement industry, legal services, and health services. There is no accurate information on the extent of this growth because the rapidly growing temporary employment sector, which is classified as a service industry, actually provides employment in all sectors. The most significant declines have been in the farm and manufacturing sectors, paralleling the experience in the U.S.

Both the BEA and UF forecasts project employment to continue to grow through the forecast period, but lower rates are projected in the later years as an increasing number of people enter retirement age.¹⁰ The BEA projects employment in the Tampa MSA to increase by 1.8 percent annually through 2020, while the UF projects employment to grow by 1.6 percent annually through 2010. The Expert Panel noted that the Tampa Bay area has a lower labor cost compared to the U.S. average, making it attractive to business and industry. This supports the BEA and UF projections that Tampa area employment will continue to exceed national averages.

As with population, a combined UF/BEA forecast of employment was developed for this study. The projected average annual growth rates are 1.4 percent for the Tampa MSA and TPA catchment areas, 1.6 percent for Florida, and 0.9 percent for the United States. Future employment is projected to continue to grow faster than population, though the difference is not expected to be as great as in the past. After 2010, the rate of increase in employment begins to parallel that of population as an increasing number of people enter retirement age.

Historical data from 1969 to 1995 indicates that the growth in both population and employment within the Tampa portion of the State of Florida has remained fairly constant. Conversely, the historic income data for Tampa as a portion of the U.S. income shows a steady increase, ranging from 0.50 percent in 1969 to 0.81 percent in 1995. During that time, income in Tampa grew at a 4.9 percent annual rate, compared to 5.0 percent for Florida and 3.0 percent in the United States over the same period.

Per capita income is a more reliable means of depicting changes in relative welfare per individual over time since it adjusts for population change. The combined UF/BEA forecasts show an average annual increase of 1.2 percent for the Tampa MSA and catchment area, 1.1 percent for Florida, and 0.8 percent for the United States.

Airline Industry Factors

Socioeconomic factors are an important determinant of passenger demand; however, the future structure of the aviation industry also plays a major role in shaping the level of passenger, cargo, and GA activity. The 1999 Master Plan forecast was developed considering the effect of yield (gross revenue per passenger mile) and the changes in the aviation industry that affect yield. Average aircraft size and load factor, developments in the regional carrier industry, and air cargo and GA trends were also considered in development of the forecast. Other aviation factors considered while developing the forecast included the decline in business travel as a percentage of U.S. air travel due to the use of teleconferencing, the introduction of new markets (i.e., leisure), and the potential for TPA to become a "focus city" for a low cost carrier.

Existing and Forecast Fleet Mix

Tables 4.1 and 4.2 show the fleet mix utilized for producing the noise contours by means of the INM Version 5.1. The Master Plan forecast was interpolated to determine operations for the years analyzed within this study. The INM database contains standard noise. arrival and departure profiles, and performance data for over 100 different fixed-wing aircraft types, most of which are civilian aircraft. The program automatically accesses the applicable noise and performance data for departure and approach operations by those aircraft. The data must be manually entered into the model for aircraft not included in the database, such as new aircraft, or modified helicopters. aircraft, or for non-standard operations such as training patterns.

The majority of helicopter operations at TPA are conducted by Bell 206-type helicopters. All helicopter operations were modeled as the Bell 206, using noise data from the 1982 FAA document, <u>Helicopter Noise Exposure</u> <u>Curves for Use in Environmental Impact</u> <u>Assessment¹¹ and flight profile data from the</u> FAA's Helicopter Noise Model (HNM) database. The FAA has previously approved this method for Part 150 noise contour development.

The 2000 and 2005 projected aircraft fleet mixes include DC-9 and 737 aircraft types with retrofitted or hushkitted engines to meet Stage 3 noise emission standards. Operations by these aircraft were modeled according to FAA guidelines, using noise data adapted from the retrofitted 727 aircraft data which are included in the INM database in conjunction with the standard DC-9 and 737 aircraft performance data.

All other modeled aircraft operations in this study used standard INM database noise and performance data. For aircraft types not specifically included in the database, substitutions were made according to the FAA's pre-approved substitution list.

Table 4.1

Air Carrier Jet INM Aircraft Type Day Night Day Night Air Carrier Jet 737600 89 0.12 0.86 0.14 Air Carrier Jet 737HK 10.42 0.65 10.61 0.46 A319 1.34 0.08 1.30 0.12 V27EM2 9,75 0.17 8,73 1.19 727EM1 0.80 0.26 1.01 0.05 727EM2 9,75 0.17 8,73 1.19 72707 1.42 0.06 0.46 0.02 737300 2.714 1.07 25.96 2.24 737400 12.74 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 2.77 0.24 6.06 0.00 73700 2.77 0.24 0.30 0.00 747400 0.000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 0.01 A310 0.09			Daily Departures		Daily Arrivals	
Air Carrier Jet 737600 89 0.12 0.86 0.141 Air Carrier Jet 737HK 10.42 0.65 10.61 0.46 A319 1.34 0.08 1.30 0.12 0.65 10.61 0.46 DC9HK 4.56 0.42 4.26 0.72 77 0.17 8.73 1.19 727EM1 0.80 0.26 0.04 8.93 1.69 727Q7 1.42 0.06 0.46 0.02 737300 2.714 1.07 25.96 2.24 737300 2.774 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 7.016 2.37 7.034 7.83 <t< th=""><th>Aircraft Category</th><th>INM Aircraft Type</th><th>Day</th><th>Night</th><th>Day</th><th>Night</th></t<>	Aircraft Category	INM Aircraft Type	Day	Night	Day	Night
737HK 10.42 0.65 10.61 0.04 A319 1.34 0.08 1.30 0.12 DC9HK 4.56 0.42 4.26 0.72 727EM1 0.80 0.26 1.01 0.05 727EM2 9.75 0.17 8.73 1.19 727Q17 1.42 0.06 0.48,93 1.69 727Q07 1.42 0.06 0.46 0.02 737400 1.274 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 50.24 0.06 0.00 7370 73700 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.00 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767179 3.61 0.06 0.01 3.59 0.07 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A30 0.07 0.01 0.02 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.07	Air Carrier Jet	737600	.89	0.12	0.86	0.14
A319 1.34 0.08 1.30 0.12 DC9HK 4.56 0.42 4.26 0.72 727EM1 0.80 0.26 1.01 0.05 727Q15 10.59 0.04 8.73 1.19 727Q17 1.42 0.06 0.46 0.02 737300 27.14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737400 12.74 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737500 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 767300 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 767300 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 767300 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.99 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41		737HK	10.42	0.65	10.61	0.46
DC9HK 4.56 0.42 4.26 0.72 727EM1 0.80 0.26 1.01 0.05 727Q15 10.59 0.04 8.93 1.69 727Q7 1.42 0.66 0.46 0.02 737300 27.14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737500 2.71 0.21 0.34 0.04 747400 0.00 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.83 11.89 7.81 767300 2.79 0.06 2.83 0.00 767300 2.79 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC870 0.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC909		A319	1.34	0.08	1.30	0.12
727EM1 0.80 0.26 1.01 0.05 727Q15 10.59 0.04 8.93 1.69 727Q15 10.59 0.04 8.93 1.69 737300 27.14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737400 12.74 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737500 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 767300 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 767179 3.61 0.06 0.09 0.01 A300 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.02 DC890 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC870 0.12 0.39		DC9HK	4.56	0.42	4.26	0.72
727Q15 9.75 0.17 8.73 1.19 727Q15 10.59 0.04 8.93 1.69 727Q17 1.42 0.06 0.46 0.02 737300 27.14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737D17 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 737500 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 767300 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 76300 2.77 0.66 2.83 0.00 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A310 0.99 0.62 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC999 2.33 0.21		727EM1	0.80	0.26	1.01	0.05
12/2015 10.59 0.04 8.93 1.69 727Q7 1.42 0.06 0.44 0.02 737300 27.14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737300 12.74 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737500 5.77 0.65 2.83 0.00 737500 2.77 0.06 3.83 0.00 767300 2.77 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC8QN 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC905 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC909 2.33 0.21		727EM2	9.75	0.17	8.73	1.19
77/07 1.42 0.06 0.46 0.02 737300 27.14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737400 12.74 0.44 10.92 2.28 737300 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737D17 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767179 3.61 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC370 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.01 DC99 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 DC950 1.11 0.14		727Q15	10.59	0.04	8.93	1.69
737400 127,14 1.07 25.96 2.24 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737D17 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 737D17 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 3.39 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC8QN 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC929 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 DC929 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 DC929 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 DC929 2.33 0.21		727Q7	1.42	0.06	0.46	0.02
13 400 12.74 0.44 10.92 2.28 737500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737D17 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767179 3.61 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC870 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC992 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L011 3.70 0.73		737300	27.14	1.07	25.96	2.24
173500 5.76 0.24 6.00 0.00 737D17 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767JT9 3.61 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC909 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03		737400	12.74	0.44	10.92	2.28
13.017 12.11 0.70 12.47 0.34 747400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767J79 3.61 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC990 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14		737500	5.76	0.24	6.00	0.00
14400 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00 757PW 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 7600 2.77 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC370 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC990 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 DC990 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD1PW 0.17 0.03 0.43 0.08 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14		737017	12.11	0.70	12.47	0.34
15/14 w 16.85 2.85 11.89 7.81 767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767JT9 3.61 0.06 2.83 0.00 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC590 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC9Q9 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.3 0.43 0.02 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14		747400	0.06	0.00	0.06	0.00
767300 2.77 0.06 2.83 0.00 767179 3.61 0.06 3.59 0.07 A300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC950 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC909 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14		757PW	16.85	2.85	11.89	7.81
A300 3.61 0.06 3.59 0.07 A310 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC909 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 DC909 2.33 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD1PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 Cl601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 0.18 0.02 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26		767300	2.77	0.06	2.83	0.00
A 300 0.80 0.00 0.04 0.76 A 310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A 320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC929 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 1.8 0.02 LEAR35 6.61		/6/J19	3.61	0.06	3.59	0.07
A310 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.01 A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC8QN 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC909 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIB 0.18 0.02 1.8 0.02 LEAR35 6.61		A300	0.80	0.00	0.04	0.76
A320 7.92 0.09 6.46 1.54 DC1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC80N 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC950 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC999 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD81 1985 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 0.04 <td< td=""><td></td><td>A310</td><td>0.09</td><td>0.02</td><td>0.09</td><td>0.01</td></td<>		A310	0.09	0.02	0.09	0.01
DC 1010 0.61 0.41 1.02 0.00 DC870 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DC8QN 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC909 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD1PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.17 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 2		A320	7.92	0.09	6.46	1.54
DCSY0 0.12 0.39 0.50 0.00 DCSQN 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC950 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC9Q9 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 GIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 <td></td> <td></td> <td>0.61</td> <td>0.41</td> <td>1.02</td> <td>0.00</td>			0.61	0.41	1.02	0.00
DC SQN 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.09 DC950 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC9Q9 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR25 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 2			0.12	0.39	0.50	0.00
DC909 1.11 0.14 1.23 0.02 DC909 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.33 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR25 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 DHC6 3		DCSQN	0.03	0.07	0.01	0.09
DC3Q9 2.33 0.21 2.30 0.23 F10062 1.53 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55		DC930	1.11	0.14	1.23	0.02
I 1002 1.33 1.37 2.12 0.78 L1011 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84		E10062	2.33	0.21	2.30	0.23
Libiti 3.70 0.73 3.68 0.75 MD11PW 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00		1 1011	1.53	1.37	2.12	0.78
MD11 0.17 0.03 0.18 0.02 MD81 19.85 1.90 20.07 1.68 MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 Sh330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00		MD11PW	3.70	0.73	3.68	0.75
MD9025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 Cloop 20.07 Cloop 20.07 0.03 0.43 0.08 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 Sb130 5.37 0.47		MD81	0.17	1.00	0.18	0.02
MD025 0.47 0.03 0.43 0.08 Subtotal 158.50 12.59 148.00 23.10 Corporate Jet CIT3 6.14 0.61 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10		MD9025	19.05	1.90	20.07	1.68
Corporate Jet CIT3 CL601 138.30 CL601 12.39 CL601 148.00 CL601 23.10 CL601 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 0.47 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13		Subtotal	158 50	12.50	0.43	0.08
CL601 C.14 0.01 6.28 0.47 CL601 2.15 0.04 2.15 0.05 CNA500 9.28 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD300 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helic	Corporate Jet	CIT3	6.14	12.59	148.00	23.10
CNA 500 9.28 0.04 2.13 0.03 GIIB 0.18 0.92 9.49 0.71 GIB 0.18 0.02 0.18 0.02 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01	1	CL601	2 15	0.01	0.20	0.47
GIIB 0.18 0.92 9.49 0.71 LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		CNA 500	9.28	0.07	2.13	0.05
LEAR25 4.10 0.41 4.19 0.32 LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		GIIB	0.18	0.02	0.18	0.71
LEAR35 6.61 1.14 6.49 1.26 Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		LEAR25	4.10	0.02	4 10	0.02
Subtotal 24.47 3.13 28.77 2.84 Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		LEAR35	6.61	1.14	6 49	1.26
Turboprop CNA441 10.21 0.77 10.43 0.55 DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		Subtotal	24.47	3.13	28 77	2.84
DHC6 37.99 0.00 37.15 0.84 DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01	Turboprop	CNA441	10.21	0.77	10.43	0.55
DHC7 0.97 0.00 0.97 0.00 DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		DHC6	37.99	0.00	37 15	0.55
DHC8 51.61 0.00 50.49 1.12 SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		DHC7	0.97	0.00	0.97	0.04
SD330 5.37 0.47 5.84 0.00 SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		DHC8	51.61	0.00	50.49	1.12
SF340 11.56 1.88 12.34 1.10 Subtotal 117.71 3.12 117.23 3.60 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		SD330	5.37	0.00	5 84	0.00
Subtotal 117.71 1.00 12.54 1.10 Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Subtotal 17.55 10.58 12.41 15.73 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		SF340	11.56	1.88	12 34	1 10
Piston BEC58P 6.25 1.73 5.49 2.49 COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Subtotal 17.55 10.58 12.41 15.73 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01		Subtotal	117.71	3.12	117.23	3.60
COMSEP 11.30 8.86 6.92 13.24 Subtotal 17.55 10.58 12.41 15.73 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01	Piston	BEC58P	6.25	1 73	5.40	2.40
Subtotal 17.55 10.58 12.41 15.73 Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01 TOTAL 209.82 45.29 224.07 0.01		COMSEP	11 30	1.75 8 86	6 02	2.49 12 74
Helicopter B206L 2.42 0.02 2.43 0.01 TOTAL 209.82 45.29 224.65 0.01		Subtotal	17.55	10.59	12 41	15.24
TOTAL 209.82 45.00 204.05	Helicopter	B206L	2 42	<u></u>	2 /2	13.73
	TOTAL		308.83	45 78	374 67	20.01

Modeled Average Daily Aircraft Operations - 2000

.

Table 4.2

.

		Daily Departures		Daily Arrivals	
Aircraft Category	INM Aircraft Type	Day	Night	Day	Night
Air Carrier Jet	737600	3.03	0.42	3.01	0.49
	737HK	14.11	0.84	14.32	0.63
	A19	14.27	0.59	7.35	0.75
	DC9HK	3.85	0.35	3.66	0.54
	727EM1	1.19	0.51	1.45	0.26
	727EM2	9.87	0.31	8.82	1.36
	737300	36.66	1.40	35.04	3.02
	737400	21.29	1.16	19.38	3.08
	737500	7.28	0.32	7.60	0.00
	747400	0.12	0.00	0.12	0.00
	757PW	23.42	3.82	17.90	9.28
	767300	7.74	0.32	7.92	0.13
	767JT9	5.39	0.19	5.29	0.29
	A300	1.07	0.00	0.05	1.02
	A310	0.30	0.05	0.26	0.09
	A320	20.13	0.33	16.64	3.83
	BAE146	1.28	0.02	1.27	0.03
	DC1010	0.65	0.45	1.10	0.00
	DC870	0.05	0.15	0.20	0.00
	DC950	0.18	0.02	0.18	0.02
	F10062	2.39	1.40	2.95	0.86
	L1011	2.11	0.4	2.08	0.43
	MD11PW	0.85	0.22	0.89	0.18
	MD81	18.49	1.55	18.30	1.70
	MD9025	1.80	0.09	1.62	0.28
	Subtotal	190.83	14.91	177.40	28.25
Corporate Jet	EMB135	0.98	0.02	0.97	0.03
	EMB145	0.98	0.02	0.97	0.03
	CIT3	6.73	0.67	6.88	0.52
	CL601	4.45	0.08	4.42	0.11
	CNA500	10.10	1.00	10.32	0.78
	GIIB	0.18	0.02	0.18	0.02
	LEAR25	4.50	0.45	4.60	. 0.35
	LEAR35	7.20	1.20	7.10	1.30
	Subtotal	35.13	3.46	35.45	3.13
Turboprop	AYRES	2.13	2.37	0.96	3.54
	CNA441	10.42	0.78	10.64	0.56
	DHC6	34.20	0.00	33.45	0.75
	DHC7	1.30	0.00	1.30	0.00
	DHC8	66.28	0.00	64.84	1.44
	SD330	7.45	0.65	8.10	0.00
	SF340	13.10	2.05	13.88	1.27
	Subtotal	134.88	5.85	133.17	7.56
Piston	BEC58P	6.37	1.73	5.61	2.49
	COMSEP	10.51	8.19	6.50	12.20
	Subtotal	16.88	9.92	12.11	14.69
Helicopter	B206L	2.48	0.03	2.49	0.01
TOTAL		360.62	53.64	380.11	34.16

Modeled Average Daily Aircraft Operations - 2005
Aircraft Substitutions

The INM database generally does not include the exact models of every aircraft type that must be modeled at an airport. To address this situation, the FAA policy is that the contour preparer presents a request identifying the aircraft types to be modeled, and the agency provides appropriate guidance. For the contours in this study, HMMH requested and received FAA guidance as shown in **Table 4.3**.

Appendix C provides a copy of the FAA response.

4.3.2 Runway Utilization

Part 150 specifies that the base case and 5year forecast case Noise Exposure Map (NEM) present DNL contours resulting from operations on the "average annual day"; i.e., total annual operations divided by 365. Operations must be allocated among the six runway ends at TPA in the same proportions as the overall yearly distribution. The runway use must take into account effects of wind, weather, runway instrumentation, traffic conditions, aircraft performance (runway length), and other operational requirements. Because of the 10 dB weighting added to nighttime activity, DNL requires separate runway use rates for day and night operations.

Wind speed and direction are critical considerations because safe aircraft operation places limits on permissible crosswind and tailwind components. The specific limits differ among aircraft types. In general, above approximately 10 knots, aircraft must take off and land into the wind. The TPA runway configuration lends itself to two principal flows: north (operation on Runways 36R and L) and south (18R and L). The crosswind component from the east or west is rarely high enough to require that larger aircraft use Runway 9 (east flow) or 27 (west flow). Lighter aircraft (particularly single and twin-engine propeller types) use this runway more frequently because of their lower crosswind limits, and also for capacity reasons to reduce demand on the north-south parallels.

Table	4.3
-------	-----

1	IMMH Reques	t for Substitu	tion	FAA Recommended Substitution					
Aircraft Type	Engine	Maximum Takeoff Weight	Thrust per Engine (1,000s of lbs.)	INM Aircraft Number	Aircraft Type	Engine	Maximum Takeoff Weight	Thrust per Engine (1,000s of lbs.)	
B737-600	CFM56-7B	143.5	22	36	737B2	CFM56- 3B-2	139	20	
B767-400	PW4000/CF M6-80	450	N/A	87	767300	PW4060	407	60	
A-319	CFM56-5A4 IAE-V2522	150	23	97	A320	CFM56- 5A-1	162	25	
Ayres Loadmaster	Allison CTP-800	19	2,400 h.p.	68	SD330	PT6A- 45AR	22.9	1,245 h.p.	
EMB 145	AE3007A	7	43	61	CL601	CF34-3A	9.2	43	
EMB 135	N/A	N/A	N/A	58	CL600	ALF502L	7.5	36	

FAA Recommended Aircraft Substitution

Source: HMMH analysis and coordination with FAA.

As Section 1.4.1 discusses, the FAAapproved elements of the NCP from the original Part 150 study included a measure calling for the Airport to "use southerly traffic flows whenever possible." The FAA ATCT at TPA implements the Airport's preferential runway program, through the Tampa Air Traffic Control Tower Letter to Airmen 98-05, that applies to all turbojet operations. **Appendix D** presents a copy of that Letter to Airmen.

The ATCT Letter establishes the following runway use priorities:

- Daytime (6 a.m. to midnight)
 - 1. South operation: arrive 18L/R, depart 18R
 - 2. South operation: arrive 18L/R, depart 18L
 - 3. North operation: depart 36L/R, arrive 36L
 - 4. North operation: depart 36L/R, arrive 36R
 - 5. East/west operation: arrive/depart 9 or 27
- Nighttime (midnight to 6 a.m.)

"When traffic, wind weather, and field conditions permit, and no delays to arrivals or departures will result, Tower will use Runway 18R for turbojet departures and Runway 36L for turbojet arrivals. If conditions do not permit, then runways will be assigned [in the daytime order of priority]."

The Letter includes additional terms related to "operational safety criteria" and the implementation of the procedures. The Letter also includes sections related to flight tracks, as discussed in Section 4.3.3. The NCP phase of this study will consider all elements of the Letter, including implementation criteria and procedures.

Development of Runway Use Rates for Modeling

Runway use rates were developed using a two-step process, as described below.

Step 1. Develop overall north/south/east/ west split of air carrier runway utilization.

Air carrier jets are the most important contributors to the overall airport noise exposure. The preceding runway use priorities were applied to long-term historic "wind rose" data to develop the overall split of traffic flow for these aircraft. FAA ATCT staff provided further clarification of their application of those priorities:

- Parallel runways used in south flow (18L-R) during calm winds (up to 3 knots).
- Parallel runways (18L-R and 36L-R) used up to a 15-knot crosswind.
- Crosswind runway (9-27) used when crosswind on parallels exceeds 15 knots.
- Most common air carrier use of crosswind runway is for arrivals on 27.
- Other air carrier use of crosswind runway is too rare to consider.

Application of these runway assignment criteria to historic wind data indicated that Runway 9-27 would only be required on the order of one percent of the time. It also suggested an overall south-flow (Runway 18) use on the order of 67 percent to 68 percent of the time. These results were consistent with verbal estimates of runway use from Authority and FAA staff, and also with the 65 percent use of Runway 18 that the original Part 150 study estimated for the preferential runway.

Table 4.4 presents the results of this overallflow analysis:

Table 4.4

North-South Traffic Flow

Estimated TPA Air Carrier Runway Flows

Assuming Use of 18R-36L Up to 15-Knot Crosswind and Use of 18L When Winds Below Three Knots

Runway	Percentage Use				
End	Departures	Arrivals			
18R	67	67			
36L	33	33			
9	Trace	Trace			
27	Trace	Trace			

Note: The term "trace" for air carrier use of Runway 9-27 is used in this table to recognize that large airline type jets do occasionally use the crosswind runway. However, that use is below one percent and would not have a significant effect on the contours; in fact, the number of affected operations would likely be below the noise model's threshold for inclusion in the calculations.

Source: HMMH, 1997.

Step 2. Distribute air carrier jet operations between parallels and develop detailed utilization rates for other aircraft groups.

The FAA provided a large sample of flight track (radar) data from the TPA Automated Radar Terminal Service (ARTS) system. The sample includes data from the following dates and times (a total of slightly over 18 days) and approximately 15,000 flight tracks:

 March 15, 1997, 2:07 p.m. - March 18, 1997, 2:37 p.m. October 8, 1997, 6:15 p.m. - October 23, 1997, 11:21 p.m.¹²

The ARTS data provide detail on the distribution of operations among the runways (such as the split of operations on the parallels) in north and south flow. **Tables 4.5 and 4.6** present the results of that analysis for major aircraft type categories (defined by common runway and flight track use characteristics) including:

- Air carrier jets, including military equivalents
- Twin turboprop aircraft
- Corporate jets, including military equivalents .
- Piston propeller aircraft

Combining the north and south detail from Tables 4.5 and 4.6 with the wind rose analysis from Table 4.4 provided the "annualized" runway use rates presented in **Table 4.7**.

4.3.3 Flight Track Geometry and Usage

The flight track geometry and use rates for each major category of aircraft operating at TPA were developed from the ARTS data samples. For each aircraft category, a set of prototypical arrival and departure flight paths on each runway end were prepared, and traffic counts were used to develop flight track utilization rates, including the split of use between the parallel runways.

.

Modeled Runway Use North Flow

		Depa	artures	Arı	ivals
Aircraft Category	Runway	Day	Night	Day	Night
Air Carrier Jet	09	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
(includes Military DC9s)	18L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	18R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	27	0.0%	1.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	36L	54.5%	54.5%	99.0%	99.0%
	36R	45.5%	45.5%	0.0%	0.0%
Corporate Jet	09	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
(includes Military GIIBs)	18L	0.0%	0.0%	87.2%	59.1%
	18R	0.0%	0.0%	11.8%	39.9%
	27	1.0%	0.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	36L	9.0%	0.0%	74.3%	58.8%
	36R	90.0%	100.0%	24.8%	40.2%
Turboprop	09	4.0%	1.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	18L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	18R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	27	1.0%	0.0%	3.0%	3.0%
	36L	68.3%	81.5%	61.9%	68.1%
	36R	26.7%	17.5%	34.1%	27.9%
Piston	09	54.0%	59.0%	3.0%	3.0%
	18L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	18R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	27	3.0%	14.0%	35.0%	35.0%
	36L	0.0%	0.0%	3.1%	6.2%
	36R	43.0%	27.0%	58.9%	55.8%

Source: HMMH analysis

Table 4.6

Modeled Runway Use South Flow

		Depa	rtures	Ari	rivals
Aircraft Category	Runway	Day	Night	Day	Night
Air Carrier Jet	09	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
(includes Military DC9s)	18L	1.5%	0.0%	38.4%	47.3%
	18R	98.5%	100.0%	60.6%	51.7%
	.27	0.0%	0.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	36L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	36R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
Corporate Jet	09	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
(includes Military GIIBs)	18L	6.0%	0.0%	87.2%	59.1%
	<u>18R</u>	93.0%	100.0%	11.8%	39.9%
	27	1.0%	0.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	36L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	36R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
Turboprop	<u> </u>	4.0%	1.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	18L	32.0%	33.5%	34.0%	62.0%
	<u>18R</u>	64.8%	65.5%	62.0%	34.0%
	27	1.0%	0.0%	3.0%	3.0%
	36L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	36R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
Piston	09	54.0%	59.0%	3.0%	3.0%
	18L	37.1%	27.0%	62.0%	62.0%
	18R	5.9%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	27	3.0%	14.0%	35.0%	35.0%
	36L	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	36R	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%

Source: HMMH analysis.

		Depa	artures	Arr	ivals
Aircraft Category	Runway	Day	Night	Day	Night
Air Carrier Jet	09	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
(includes Military DC9s)	18L	1.0%	0.0%	26.0%	32.0%
	18R	66.0%	67.0%	41.0%	35.0%
	27	0.0%	0.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	36L	18.0%	18.0%	32.0%	32.0%
	36R	15.0%	15.0%	0.0%	0.0%
Corporate Jet	09	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
(includes Military GIIBs)	18L	4.0%	0.0%	59.0%	40.0%
	18R	62.0%	67.0%	8.0%	27.0%
	27	1.0%	0.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	36L	3.0%	0.0%	24.0%	19.0%
	36R	30.0%	33.0%	8.0%	13.0%
Turboprop	09	4.0%	1.0%	1.0%	1.0%
	18L	20.0%	22.0%	23.0%	42.0%
	18R	43.0%	43.0%	42.0%	23.0%
	27	1.0%	0.0%	3.0%	3.0%
	36L	23.0%	28.0%	20.0%	22.0%
	36R	9.0%	6.0%	11.0%	9.0%
Piston	09	54.0%	59.0%	3.0%	3.0%
	18L	25.0%	18.0%	42.0%	42.0%
	18R	4.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%
	27	3.0%	14.0%	35.0%	35.0%
	36L	0.0%	0.0%	1.0%	2.0%
	36R	14.0%	9.0%	19.0%	18.0%

Modeled Runway Use Annual Average Day

Source: HMMH analysis.

Figures 4-7 through 4-14 present the modeling flight tracks overlaid on the actual radar tracks for departures and arrivals in the four major aircraft type categories. Figure 4-15 presents the modeling tracks for helicopters. There were no identifiable helicopters in the ARTS data to use in developing these modeling tracks so they were based on standard FAA entry and exit portions of the "media routes" used by traffic patrols. Tables 4.8 through 4.11 present the track utilization rates for air carrier jets. business jets, combined turboprop and piston propeller aircraft, and

helicopters. The departure and arrival use data are combined on one table in each case.

4.3.4 Maintenance Runup Activity

Significant runup activity is performed by Delta Airlines and USAirways at their maintenance facilities on the east side of the Airport. **Figure 4-16** depicts the major runup locations that the carriers use.

The airlines' maintenance facility managers provided estimates of average daily runup activity, as summarized below.



G	ARTS MODELED TRACKS		18RD4 18RD3 1	SFD2				G
T		MASTER PLAN UPDATE	AND F.A.R. 150 STUDY	HILLSBOROUCH COUNTY AVAN TAMPA INTERNATIO	NAL AIRPORT	DATE REVISIONS	٤ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	: III
	jure -7	AIR CARRIER JET DE MODELED AND ARTS	PARTURE TRACKS SAMPLE	HINTE ARCHITECTS The ENTE Com	ENGINEERS PLANNERS	DESIGN DRAWN CHECKED	_ SCALE _ JOB NO	 -
	G;	ı.	+	نې	ιώ		<u> </u>	









G	RTS DDELED TRACKS	188	4 19807 1880	18LD2 18LD4 18RD1 2					C	2
H	NORTH Figur 4-1	PROJECT NAME MASTER PLAN UPDATE A DRAWING TITLE TURBOPROP DEPARTUE	ND F.A.R. 150 STUDY	HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AWAT TAMPA INTERNATIO TAMPA - FLO ARCHITECTS	ION AUTHORITY NAL AIRPORT DRIDA ENGINEERS PLANNERS	DATE REVISION	NS SCALE JOB NO.	BY	AUTH.	H
	→ œ	MODELED AND ARTS	SAMPLE	The HNTB Com	ognies					
	୍ଦ	ان	<u>+-</u> -	ىن	iu					



G	(;	ELED TRACKS				36REA 36LA9				TH / HA	G
	H	Figure 4-12	PROJECT NAME MASTER PLAN UPDATE A DRAWING TITLE TURBOPROP ARRIVAL MODELED AND ARTS	AND F.A.R. 150 STUDY TRACKS SAMPLE	HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVAT TAMPA INTERNATION TAMPA - FLO TAMPA - FLO ARCHITECTS A The HNTB Comp	ION AUTHORITY NAL AIRPORT R I D A ENCINEERS PLANNERS Namies	DATE	REVISIONS	BY	AUTH.	Н



G	2	ARTS 			18LD2 18LD4 18RD1				The Martin	G
Ĩ	Н	Figure $4-13$	PROJECT NAME MASTER PLAN UPDATE A DRAWING TITLE PISTON PROPELLER D MODELED AND ARTS	ND F.A.R. 150 STUDY EPARTURE TRACKS SAMPLE	HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIA TAMPA INTERNATIO TAMPA - FLO HINTER ARCHITECTS The BNTB Comp	INDIAUTHORITY NAL AIRPORT DRIDA ENGINEERS PLANNERS parties	DATE RE	VISIONS E	3Y AUTH.	Н
		0	J)	· +-	Ċΰ	10		-		







	PROJECT NAME	HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIAT	ION AUTHORITY	DATE	REVISIONS	BY	AUTH.	Н
URTH URTH								
- Arrival Tracks - Departure Tracks							\$	G

.

_		Departures			Arrivals	
<u>Runway</u>	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use
09	09D1	0.0%	0.0%	09A1	0.0%	0.0%
	09D2	0.0%	0.0%	09A2	0.0%	0.0%
	09D3	0.0%	0.0%	09A3	0.0%	0.0%
	09D4	0.0%	0.0%			
	09D5	0.0%	0.0%			
	09D6	0.0%	0.0%			
	09D7	0.0%	0.0%			
18L	18LD1	0.0%	0.0%	18LA1	35.0%	59.0%
	18LD2	0.0%	0.0%	18LA2	20.0%	20.0%
	18LD3	100.0%	100.0%	18LA3	10.0%	0.0%
	18LD4	0.0%	0.0%	18LA4	15.0%	15.0%
	18LD5	0.0%	0.0%	18LA5	10.0%	3.0%
	18LD6	0.0%	0.0%	18LA6	10.0%	3.0%
				18LA7	0.0%	0.0%
	}			18LA8	0.0%	0.0%
18R	18RD1	1.0%	5.0%	18RA1	30.0%	46.0%
	18RD2	10.0%	15.0%	18RA2	20.0%	20.0%
	18RD3	20.0%	0.0%	18RA3	10.0%	10.0%
	18RD4	30.0%	20.0%	18RA4	10.0%	10.0%
	18RD5	30.0%	40.0%	18RA5	10.0%	0.0%
	18RD6	6.0%	20.0%	18RA6	6.0%	10.0%
	18RD7	3.0%	0.0%	18RA7	10.0%	0.0%
	18RD8	0.0%	0.0%	18RA8	4 0%	4.0%
	18RD9	0.0%	0.0%	18RA9	0.0%	0.0%
	18RD0	0.0%	0.0%	18RA0	0.0%	0.0%
	18RDA	0.0%	0.0%	18RAA	0.0%	0.0%
27	27D1	0.0%	0.0%	2741	100.0%	100.0%
	27D2	0.0%	0.0%	2742	0.0%	0.0%
	27D3	0.0%	0.0%	2743	0.0%	0.0%
		01070	0.070	2744	0.0%	0.0%
				2745	0.0%	0.0%
				2746	0.0%	0.0%
36L	36LD1	35.0%	35.0%	361 41	22.094	20.0%
	36LD2	32.0%	45.0%	361 42	22.076	20.0%
	36LD3	1.0%	5.0%	361 43	2.076	4.070
	36LD4	10.0%	10.0%	36LAJ	3.0%	3.070
	36LD5	1.0%	1.0%	361 45	3.076	10.0%
	36LD6	7.0%	0.0%	361 46	4.0%	10.0%
	36LD7	6.0%	0.0%	361 A 7	10.0%	17.0%
	36LD8	4.0%	0.0%	361 49	16.0%	8.0%
	36LD9	4.0%	4.0%	361 40	20.09/	10.0%
	361.00	0.0%	4.076	30LA9	20.0%	5.0%
	361.DA	0.070	0.076		12.0%	5.0%
	361 DB	0.0%	0.0%	JULAA 261 AD	0.0%	0.0%
	361 00	0.0%	0.0%		0.0%	0.0%
	361 DE	0.0%	0.0%	JOLAD	0.0%	0.0%
		0.0%	0.0%			
		0.0%	0.0%			
	30LDG	0.0%	0.0%			
	JOLDH	0.0%	0.0%			
	36LDI	0.0%	0.0%			

Modeled Air Carrier Jet Flight Track Use (includes Military DC9s)

-

4-19

•

Table 4.8 (cont.)

.

Î

Modeled Air Carrier Jet Flight Track Use	
(includes Military DC9s)	

		Departures			Arrivals	
Runway	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use
36R	36RD1	30.0%	30.0%	36RA1	100.0%	100.0%
	36RD2	4.0%	4.0%	36RA2	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD3	2.0%	18.0%	36RA3	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD4	1.0%	2.0%	36RA4	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD5	40.0%	40.0%	36RA5	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD6	2.0%	2.0%	36RA6	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD7	7.0%	2.0%	36RA7	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD8	7.0%	2.0%	36RA8	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD9	7.0%	0.0%	36RA9	0.0%	0.0%
	36RD0	0.0%	0.0%	36RA0	0.0%	0.0%
	36RDA	0.0%	0.0%	36RAA	0.0%	0.0%
	36RDB	0.0%	0.0%			
	36RDD	0.0%	0.0%			
	36RDE	0.0%	0.0%			
	36RDF	0.0%	0.0%			
	36RDG	0.0%	0.0%			
	36RDH	0.0%	0.0%			
	36RDI	0.0%	0.0%			

Source: HMMH analysis.

.

.

٠

Modeled Corporate Jet Flight Tracks (includes Military GIIBs)

Runway Track Name Day and Night Use Track Name Day and Night Use 09 09D1 30.0% 09A1 100.0% 09D2 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D7 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18RD1 0.0% 18RA4 12.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA5 10.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA5 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD4 0.0% 18RA6		Departures		Arrivals			
09 0901 30.0% 09A1 100.0% 09D2 0.0% 09A2 0.0% 09D3 70.0% 09A2 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 18LA 44.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA5 10.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA2 0.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 10.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6	Runway	Track Name	Day and Night Use	Track Name	Day and Night Use		
09D2 0.0% 09A2 0.0% 09D3 70.0% 09A3 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09D6 0.0% 09D6 0.0% 09D7 0.0% 09D6 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD2 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA3 10.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA3 10.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 0.0%	09	09D1	30.0%	09A1	100.0%		
00D3 70.0% 09A3 0.0% 00D4 0.0% 00D5 0.0% 00D6 0.0% 00D7 0.0% 00D7 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD1 0.0% 18LA2 12.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA3 10.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA4 </td <td></td> <td>09D2</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>09A2</td> <td>0.0%</td>		09D2	0.0%	09A2	0.0%		
09D4 0.0% 09D5 0.0% 09D7 0.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LD2 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA2 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA0 0.0%		09D3	70.0%	09A3	0.0%		
09D5 0.0% 09D7 0.0% 09D7 0.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LD2 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA2 12.0% 18LD3 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 0.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD1 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 27 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0%		09D4	0.0%				
09D6 0.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD2 0.0% 18LA2 12.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18RD 18RD1 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD 18RD2 10.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 270 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 <td></td> <td>09D5</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td></td> <td></td>		09D5	0.0%				
18L 09D7 0.0% 18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LA1 44.0% 18LD2 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD1 0.0% 18RA2 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 36LA1		09D6	0.0%				
18L 18LD1 0.0% 18LA1 14.0% 18LD2 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 0.0% 18LD7 0.0% 18LA5 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD7 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0%		09D7	0.0%				
I8LD2 0.0% I8LA2 12.0% I8LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% I8LD4 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 4.0% 18LD7 0.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18RD 10.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 36LD1 25.0% 36L	18L	18LD1	0.0%	18LA1	44.0%		
18LD3 100.0% 18LA3 12.0% 18LD4 0.0% 18LA4 12.0% 18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA5 4.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18LD7 4.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 27 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 36LD3 0.0% <td></td> <td>18LD2</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>18LA2</td> <td>12.0%</td>		18LD2	0.0%	18LA2	12.0%		
I8LD4 0.0% I8LA4 12.0% I8LD5 0.0% I8LA5 12.0% I8LD6 0.0% I8LA6 4.0% I8LA7 4.0% 18LA7 4.0% I8LA7 4.0% 18LA7 4.0% I8RD1 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% I8RD2 10.0% 18RA2 0.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2<		18LD3	100.0%	18LA3	12.0%		
18LD5 0.0% 18LA5 12.0% 18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18RD1 0.0% 18LA3 0.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA3 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A4 0.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36L		18LD4	0.0%	18LA4	12.0%		
18LD6 0.0% 18LA6 4.0% 1 18LA7 4.0% 18R0 18RD1 0.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0%		18LD5	0.0%	18LA5	12.0%		
18R 18D1 0.0% 18LA7 4.0% 18RD1 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA3 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 36LD 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 12.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% <td></td> <td>18LD6</td> <td>0.0%</td> <td>18LA6</td> <td>4.0%</td>		18LD6	0.0%	18LA6	4.0%		
18R 18RD1 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA8 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD4 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 36LD 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD4 0.0% </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>18LA7</td> <td>4.0%</td>				18LA7	4.0%		
18R 18RD1 0.0% 18RA1 60.0% 18RD2 10.0% 18RA2 0.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA3 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 27 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A5 0.0% 27A4 0.0% 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5				18LA8	0.0%		
18RD2 10.0% 18RA2 0.0% 18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 11.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA8 10.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA8 10.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA8 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RAA 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RAA 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0%<	18R	18RD1	0.0%	18RA1	60.0%		
18RD3 20.0% 18RA3 10.0% 18RD4 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A6 30.0% 27A5 0.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD6 0.0%		18RD2	10.0%	18RA2	0.0%		
18RD4 30.0% 18RA4 20.0% 18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD4 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 18RD4 0.0% 18RA4 0.0% 27 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A4 0.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LA6 5.0		18RD3	20.0%	18RA3	10.0%		
18RD5 30.0% 18RA5 0.0% 18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A6 30.0% 27A5 0.0% 27A5 0.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD0 6.0%		18RD4	30.0%	18RA4	20.0%		
18RD6 10.0% 18RA6 0.0% 18RD7 0.0% 18RA7 0.0% 18RD8 0.0% 18RA8 10.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RDA 0.0% 27A1 40.0% 27 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A5 0.0% 27A4 0.0% 27A5 0.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LA9		18RD5	30.0%	18RA5	0.0%		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		18RD6	10.0%	18RA6	0.0%		
18RD8 0.0% 18RA8 10.0% 18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RDA 0.0% 18RAA 0.0% 27 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A5 0.0% 27A5 0.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0		18RD7	0.0%	18RA7	0.0%		
18RD9 0.0% 18RA9 0.0% 18RD0 0.0% 18RA0 0.0% 18RDA 0.0% 18RAA 0.0% 27D1 100.0% 27A1 40.0% 27D2 0.0% 27A2 0.0% 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 27A4 0.0% 27A5 0.0% 27A5 0.0% 27A6 30.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0%		18RD8	0.0%	18RA8	10.0%		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		18RD9	0.0%	18RA9	0.0%		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		18RD0	0.0%	18RA0	0.0%		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	~-	18RDA	0.0%	18RAA	0.0%		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	27	27D1	100.0%	27A1	40.0%		
36L 27D3 0.0% 27A3 30.0% 36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA4 5.0% 36LD0 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDE		27D2	0.0%	27A2	0.0%		
36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 0.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA1 5.0% 36LD1 0.0% 36LA1 5.0% 36LD2 0.0% 36LA1 0.0% 36LD1 0.0% 36LA1 0.0% 36LD2 0.0%		27D3	0.0%	27A3	30.0%		
36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 0.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LD0 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%				27A4	0.0%		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$				27A5	0.0%		
36L 36LD1 25.0% 36LA1 37.0% 36LD2 45.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%	201	201 01	AF AA	27A6	30.0%		
36LD2 45.0% 36LA2 1.0% 36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDE 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%	30L	36LD1	25.0%	36LA1	37.0%		
36LD3 0.0% 36LA3 5.0% 36LD4 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		30LD2 36LD2	45.0%	36LA2	1.0%		
36LD4 0.0% 36LA4 1.0% 36LD5 12.0% 36LA5 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		36LD3	0.0%	36LA3	5.0%		
36LD3 12.0% 36LA3 6.0% 36LD6 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		361 D5	0.0%	30LA4	1.0%		
36LD0 0.0% 36LA6 5.0% 36LD7 6.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		361 D6	0.0%	30LA3	6.U% 5.0%		
36LD7 0.0% 36LA7 16.0% 36LD8 6.0% 36LA8 6.0% 36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDE 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		361 D7	6.0%	26LA0	5.0%		
36LD9 0.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA9 12.0% 36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		36LD8	6.0%	36LA7	10.0%		
36LD0 6.0% 36LA0 6.0% 36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDE 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		36LD9	0.0%	361 40	12.0%		
36LDA 0.0% 36LAA 5.0% 36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		36LD0	6.0%	361 40	6.0%		
36LDB 0.0% 36LAB 0.0% 36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDE 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		36LDA	0.0%	361 4 4	5.0%		
36LDD 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDE 0.0% 36LAD 0.0% 36LDF 0.0% 36LAD 0.0%		36LDB	0.0%	36I AR	0.0%		
36LDE 0.0% 36LDF 0.0%		36LDD	0.0%	361.4 D	0.0%		
36LDF 0.0%		36LDE	0.0%	JULAD	0.070		
		36LDF	0.0%				
36LDG 0.0%		36LDG	0.0%				
36LDH 0.0%		36LDH	0.0%				
36LDI 0.0%		36LDI	0.0%				

4-21

Table 4.9 (cont.)

Modeled Corporate Jet Flight Tracks (includes Military GIIBs)

	Дер	artures	Arrivals		
Runway	Track Name	Day and Night Use	Track Name	Day and Night Use	
36R	36RD1	36.0%	36RA1	40.0%	
	36RD2	5.0%	36RA2	15.0%	
	36RD3	4.0%	36RA3	10.0%	
	36RD4	1.0%	36RA4	0.0%	
	36RD5	36.0%	36RA5	20.0%	
	36RD6	2.0%	36RA6	15.0%	
	36RD7	5.0%	36RA7	0.0%	
	36RD8	8.0%	36RA8	0.0%	
	36RD9	2.0%	36RA9	0.0%	
	36RD0	1.0%	36RA0	0.0%	
	36RDA	0.0%	36RAA	0.0%	
	36RDB	0.0%			
	36RDD	0.0%			
	36RDE	0.0%			
	36RDF	0.0%			
	36RDG	0.0%			
	36RDH	0.0%			
	36RDI	0.0%			

Source: HMMH analysis.

.

Modeled Turboprop and Piston Flight Track Use

ļ

		Departures			Arrivals	
Runway	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use
09	09D1	75.0%	10.0%	09A1	90.0%	0.0%
	09D2	6.0%	40.0%	09A2	10.0%	50.0%
	09D3	4.0%	1.0%	09A3	0.0%	50.0%
	09D4	10.0%	35.0%			
	09D5	0.0%	4.0%			
	09D6	5.0%	4.0%			
	09D7	0.0%	6.0%			
18L	18LD1	38.0%	10.0%	18LA1	25.0%	65.0%
	18LD2	38.0%	25.0%	18LA2	5.0%	0.0%
	18LD3	14.0%	0.0%	18LA3	5.0%	5.0%
	18LD4	10.0%	10.0%	18LA4	5.0%	0.0%
	18LD5	0.0%	45.0%	18LA5	25.0%	10.0%
	18LD6	0.0%	10.0%	18LA6	0.0%	0.0%
				18LA7	25.0%	10.0%
				18LA8	10.0%	10.0%
18R	18RD1	30.0%	25.0%	18RA1	30.0%	0.0%
	18RD2	2.0%	0.0%	18RA2	5.0%	0.0%
	18RD3	3.0%	0.0%	18RA3	7.0%	0.0%
	18RD4	3.0%	0.0%	18RA4	5.0%	0.0%
	18RD5	5.0%	0.0%	18RA5	3.0%	0.0%
	18RD6	5.0%	25.0%	18RA6	5.0%	0.0%
	18RD7	2.0% ·	0.0%	18RA7	5.0%	0.0%
	18RD8	20.0%	0.0%	18RA8	10.0%	0.0%
	18RD9	10.0%	0.0%	18RA9	10.0%	0.0%
	18RD0	10.0%	25.0%	18RA0	10.0%	0.0%
	18RDA	10.0%	25.0%	18RAA	10.0%	0.0%
27	27D1	0.0%	20.0%	27A1	35.0%	26.0%
	27D2	100.0%	50.0%	27A2	0.0%	8.0%
	27D3	0.0%	30.0%	27A3	4.0%	25.0%
				27A4	30.0%	8.0%
				27A5	4.0%	25.0%
				27A6	27.0%	8.0%
36L	36LD1	3.0%	0.0%	36LA1	45.0%	40.0%
	36LD2	2.0%	0.0%	36LA2	2.0%	0.0%
	36LD3	0.0%	0.0%	36LA3	2.0%	10.0%
	36LD4	0.0%	0.0%	36LA4	8.0%	10.0%
	36LD5	0.0%	0.0%	36LA5	3.0%	10.0%
	36LD6	0.0%	0.0%	36LA6	10.0%	0.0%
	36LD7	0.0%	0.0%	36LA7	2.0%	0.0%
	36LD8	0.0%	0.0%	36LA8	4.0%	0.0%
	36LD9	0.0%	0.0%	36LA9	2.0%	20.0%
	36LD0	0.0%	0.0%	36LA0	0.0%	0.0%
	36LDA	5.0%	0.0%	36LAA	15.0%	0.0%
	36LDB	15.0%	0.0%	36LAB	1.0%	10.0%
	36LDD	15.0%	0.0%	36LAD	6.0%	0.0%
	36LDE	15.0%	0.0%			
	36LDF	25.0%	0.0%			
	36LDG	10.0%	0.0%			
	36LDH	5.0%	0.0%			
	36LDI	5.0%	0.0%			

Table 4.10 (cont.)

Modeled Turboprop and Piston Flight Track Use

		Departures			Arrivals	
Runway	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use
36R	36RD1	1.0%	3.0%	36RA1	55.0%	40.0%
	36RD2	0.0%	5.0%	36RA2	4.0%	2.0%
	36RD3	1.0%	0.0%	36RA3	15.0%	10.0%
	36RD4	3.0%	0.0%	36RA4	3.0%	10.0%
	36RD5	3.0%	2.0%	36RA5	1.0%	0.0%
	36RD6	0.0%	0.0%	36RA6	3.0%	0.0%
	36RD7	1.0%	0.0%	36RA7	2.0%	3.0%
	36RD8	0.0%	1.0%	36RA8	2.0%	10.0%
	36RD9	0.0%	0.0%	36RA9	4.0%	3.0%
	36RD0	11.0%	2.0%	36RA0	3.0%	1.0%
	36RDA	19.0%	18.0%	36RAA	8.0%	21.0%
	36RDB	14.0%	3.0%			
	36RDD	1.0%	30.0%			
	36RDE	0.0%	20.0%			
	36RDF	14.0%	0.0%			
	36RDG	11.0%	10.0%			
	36RDH	19.0%	5.0%			
	36RDI	2.0%	10.0%			

Source: HMMH analysis

Table 4.11

Modeled Helicopter Flight Track Use

Departures	_	Arrivals			
Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	
50.0%	3.0%	06HA	50.0%	50.0%	
50.0%	5.0%	31HA	50.0%	50.0%	
	Departures Day Use 50.0% 50.0%	Departures Day Use Night Use 50.0% 3.0% 50.0% 5.0%	Departures Track Name Day Use Night Use Track Name 50.0% 3.0% 06HA 50.0% 5.0% 31HA	Departures Arrivals Day Use Night Use Track Name Day Use 50.0% 3.0% 06HA 50.0% 50.0% 5.0% 31HA 50.0%	

Source: HMMH analysis.

Delta Airlines Runup Activity

Delta operates the northern maintenance facility. They run up their aircraft on the ramp on the west side of the facility. Aircraft are parked with their tails approximately 70 feet from the north and south ends of the ramp with their tails facing blast fences along the perimeter of the apron, as shown in Figure 4-16. When the wind is from the north, the aircraft are parked on the south end of the ramp with their noses facing north. When the wind is from the south, the aircraft are parked on the north end of the ramp with their noses facing south. There is approximately a 50/50 split of runups at the two locations.

Half of the Delta runups are between 6 and 7 a.m., the other half are between 7 and 10 a.m. The runups are approximately 15 to 20 minutes long, with approximately 20 to 30 seconds at takeoff power, the balance at idle. The modeling assumed the upper end of these times to take into account taxiing to and from the ramp and parking position. The runups are for one engine at a time.



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

Delta conducts an average of 10 runup sessions each week, split among the three aircraft types indicated in **Table 4.12**.

USAirways Runup Activity

USAirways operates the southern maintenance facility. They run up their aircraft on the ramp on the west side of the facility at the two positions shown in Figure 4-16. Takeoff runs are conducted with the aircraft's tail approximately 70 feet from the blast fence along the north perimeter of the apron. Idle runs are conducted in front of the hangar.

USAirways conducts an average of 12 runup sessions each week (two per day on Monday through Friday, one per day on Saturday and Sunday). The runups are primarily Boeing 737-300, Boeing 737-400, and DC9 aircraft. MD80 and 757 runups occur on rare occasions as well, but are too few to model. 75 percent of the runups are between 4 and 7 a.m., the other 25 percent are between 7 and 9 a.m. The condition runups are approximately 10 to 15 minutes long. All of the DC9 and 90 percent of the 737 runups are at idle power only. The remaining 10 percent of the 737s include approximately 2 minutes at takeoff power, the balance at idle. A majority of the runups are for a single engine only since the facility is doing "heavy engine servicing." Once again, the modeling assumed the upper end of the overall duration to take into account taxiing from the ramp to the gate. (The aircraft are almost always towed to the runup area.)

Table 4.13 summarizes the USAirwaysrunup activity modeled for the averageannual day.

4.4 DAY-NIGHT AVERAGE SOUND LEVEL

4.4.1 2000 Base Case and 2005 Forecast Case DNL

Figures 4-17 and 4-18 present the 2000 and 2005 DNL contours, respectively, overlaid on a street map of the TPA environs. These contours assume annual average day operations, including the level and mix of activity, runway use, flight track use, and runup activity.

The contours for 2000 and 2005 were developed using annualized runway use. A sensitivity analysis was completed to determine the impact of operating the Airport in north- and south-flow conditions. Results of the sensitivity analysis are provided in Appendix E. The north-flow and south-flow contours provided in Appendix E consider the noise environment produced by operating the Airport only in north-flow and only in south-flow conditions.

4.4.2 Comparison of Measured and Calculated DNL

Table 4.14 compares the INM-calculated DNL to the values measured in the October 1997 field trip. Chapter Three presents a detailed discussion of the measurement program objectives, design, execution, and results. Also in Chapter Three are the issues involved with site selection and the relationship of the sites to measurement locations in the original 1983 Part 150 Study. Figure 3-1 in Chapter Three depicts the measurement locations.

			Daily Run Activity					
Aircraft Type			Num North	ber at Position	Numl South H	ber at Position	Total Per	Total Per
(Modeled Type)	Power Settings	Duration	Day	Night	Day	Night	Day	Week
B727-232 JT8D15A	One engine at takeoff power, two at idle (1.4 EPR)	30 seconds	.18	.18	.18	.18	.72	5.04
(50% of runups)	Three engines at idle (1.4 EPR)	20 minutes	.18	.18	.18	.18	.72	5.04
B737-200 JT8D15A	One engine at takeoff power, two at idle (1.4 EPR)	30 seconds	.04	.04	.04	.04	.16	1.12
(10% of runups)	Three engines at idle (1.4 EPR)	20 minutes	.04	.04	.04	.04	.16	1.12
MD88 JT8D-219	One engine at takeoff power, one at idle (1.4 EPR)	30 seconds	.14	.14	.14	.14	.56	3.92
(40% of runups)	Two engines at idle (1.4 EPR)	20 minutes	.14	.14	.14	.14	.56	3.92

Modeled Delta Maintenance Runups for the Average Annual Day

Source: HMMH analysis and observation.

Table 4.13

Modeled USAirways Maintenance Runups for the Average Annual Day

				Daily Run Activity				
Aircraft			Num	ber at	No. i	n Front		
Type	Derror Setti	.	Blast	Fence	ofH	angar	Total Per	Total Per
<u>rype</u>	Power Settings	Duration	Day_	Night	Day	Night	Day	Week
B737-300	One engine at takeoff power	2 minutes	.02	.06	0	0	.08	.56
(45% of runups)	One engine at idle (10% power)	13 minutes	.02	.06	0	0	.08	.56
	One engine at idle (10% power)	15 minutes	0	0	.17	.52	.69	4.83
B737-400	One engine at takeoff power	2 minutes	.02	.06	0	0	.08	.56
(45% of runups)	One engine at idle (10% power)	13 minutes	.02	.06	0	0	.08	.56
	One engine at idle (10% power)	15 minutes	0	0	.17	.52	.69	4.83
DC9	One engine at idle (10% power)	15 minutes	0	0	.04	.13	.17	1.19
(10% of runups)								

Source: HMMH analysis and observation.



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

AUTHORITY

Figure 4-17

铜用用即

1

RECERT 西南

685

Solution.

in the local of



Site						
No.	Address	Average DNL				
1	Address	lvieasured	INM-Calculated DNL			
	5833 Mariner St., Beach Park	75	68			
2	5140 Longfellow Ave., Sunset Park	58	56			
3	4923 St. Croix Dr., Culbreath Isles	59	54			
4	13902 Pepperrell Dr., Carrollwood	62	57			
5	4816 Sierra Madre Dr.	65	62			
6	4610 Westford Cir., Village West	Short-term measure	ements only - no DNL			
7	Clubhouse, Plantation	65	59			
7A	10557 Park Crest, Plantation	Short-term measure	ements only - no DNL			
8	6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard	64	61			
9	4613 D'Azzo Ave., Drew Park	62	66			
10	6526 Johns Rd., Northwest Park	59	60			
11	5215 West Laurel St.	68	63			
12	North St./Occident Ave. Intersect.	Short-term measurements only - no DNI				
13	Leeward Dr., Watermill Village	Short-term measure	ements only - no DNL			
14	3947 Doral Dr., Dana Shores	67	58			
15	Cypress Point Park	69	71			
16	3405 Aileen St.	Short-term measurements only - no DNI				
Sources						

Comparison of DNL Measurements (October 14-21, 1997) to INM-Calculated Values for 2000 North-Flow Contour Case

Source: HMMH.

Table 4.14 lists only sites at which sufficient measurements were conducted to calculate DNL from the measurements. Chapter Three discusses sites at which short-term measurements of single-event noise levels were conducted. Table 3.1 in Chapter Three summarizes the dates, times, and durations of measurements. At sites with more than one day of measurements, the measured values presented are averages of the values from each day.

Overall, the measured and calculated values agree reasonably well, and the comparisons do not suggest any reasons to question the INM results.

It is normal for measured and INMcalculated values to disagree by even several decibels for several reasons. Part 150 requires that the base case contours represent activity on the "average annual day"; that is, activity for a hypothetical day in which overall airport operations, runway use, and flight track use are the same as the total annual activity divided by 365, and the temperature is equal to the average annual level. On any given day, it is very unlikely that actual activity and weather will match these hypothetical conditions. During the measurement period, the Airport operated only in north flow. The north-flow contour run provided in Appendix E eliminates at least the variable of overall traffic flow, providing a closer comparison to conditions during the measurements.

Even though the comparison presented here corrects for overall runway use, the exact level and mix of activity during the measurements differs from the activity assumed for the average annual day, as do the exact flight tracks and the exact distribution of operations among the runways (such as between the parallels). The INM also calculates only the aircraftrelated DNL, whereas the measurements include the effects of non-aircraft sources, such as local traffic, children playing, dogs barking, and the like. While measurement locations were selected to minimize the effects of non-aircraft sources, they cannot be avoided entirely.

At most locations, the measured DNL was higher than the INM-based modeling results. This result is reasonable given that the modeled DNL considers only the aircraft noise contribution, whereas the measurements include the noise from all sources. Most of the measurement locations are outside of the 65 dB DNL contour interval. In developed suburban areas, such as around TPA, background noise has a major effect on total noise exposure, particularly where the aircraft noise exposure is below 65 dB DNL. Above 75 dB DNL, aircraft noise generally dominates. However, the specific microphone siting, local traffic levels, and unusual noise sources must be considered for each location.

The following paragraphs discuss the DNL comparison in general terms on a site-by-site basis.

Many of the measurement locations are near measurement sites from the 1983 Part 150 study. Where possible, the 1983 and 1997 measurements are compared, and the 1985 contours from that study are compared to the updated 2000 base case. In general, aircraft noise levels dropped from 1983 to 2000, and are expected to drop further by 2005 despite increasing aircraft activity. The reduced noise exposure is largely the result of the airline transition to a quieter fleet. However, it should be recognized that the original Part 150 used an older version of the INM (Version 3.8) which included different computational algorithms and different aircraft noise and performance data than Version 5.1a used in this study. A portion of the difference in computed DNL comes from the change in models.

Site 1: 5833 Mariner Street, Beach Park

The site faces north toward the Howard Franklin Bridge (Route 275), which is less than 500 feet away. During most of the day, starting as early as 5 or 6 a.m. until as late as midnight, there was a fairly steady "drone" from the surface traffic. However, the loudest individual events are aircraft-related.

Measurements at the site included all or a portion of four days. The DNL values over the four days ranged from approximately 73 to 77 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 75.

The DNL for the 2000 average annual day and for the 100 percent north-flow case are both approximately 68 dB. The 2005 forecast DNL is approximately one decibel lower, reflecting anticipated noise reductions from transition to a quieter airline fleet that will overcome the forecast increase in activity.

It is reasonable to conclude that most of the difference between the measured and modeled values is due to the high level of noise exposure from the surface traffic on the bridge.

The measurement site is very close to measurement Site 12 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 72 dB. The previous Part 150 study included DNL contours for 1985 and 1990 contours. Site 1 was approximately under the 75 dB contour line in both cases.

Site 2: 5140 Longfellow Avenue, Sunset Park

Measurements at Site 2 included all or a portion of three days. The DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 56 to 60 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 58 dB. These measurements agree very well with the 2000 average day and 100 percent north-flow DNL calculations, which were both approximately 56 dB. The 2-decibel difference between measured and modeled values is likely to be the result of non-aircraft "background" noise. This very close level of agreement partly reflects the isolated and shielded measurement location. (The measured value on the one full day of monitoring, October 15, was 55.9 dB, essentially the same as the modeled 2000 values.)

The 2005 forecast DNL is approximately one decibel lower that the 2000 values, again reflecting anticipated noise reductions from the transition to a quieter airline fleet that will overcome the forecast increase in activity.

The measurement site is approximately 4,500 feet north and west of measurement Site 14 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 55 dB. Site 2 was well outside the 65 dB DNL in both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases from that study.

Site 3: 4923 St. Croix Drive, Culbreath Isle

Measurements at the site ran for 24 hours over two days. The measured DNL was approximately 59 dB. The 2000 base case aircraft DNL for this site is approximately 54 dB. The 2000 DNL for 100 percent north-flow operations is also approximately 54 dB. The forecast 2005 DNL is approximately one decibel lower, again reflecting anticipated noise reductions from the transition to a quieter airline fleet that will overcome the forecast increase in activity.

The difference between measured and modeled DNL can be attributed to normal community noise sources. While the microphone was behind the residence, away from the road, noise from neighboring roads was readily audible, and there were a number of dogs in the neighborhood. Community noise sources generally contribute significantly to the overall DNL outside of the 65 dB DNL contour, and are particularly important outside of the 60 dB contour.

Site 3 was well outside of the 65 dB DNL contour in both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases prepared for the original Part 150 study.

Site 4: 13902 Pepperrell Drive, Carrollwood

The DNL calculated from the measurements was approximately 62 dB.

The aircraft DNL calculated for this site for the 2000 base case and the 2000 100 percent north-flow case were both approximately 57 dB. The 2005 forecast DNL is approximately 54 dB. The difference between the measured and modeled DNL can be attributed to community noise, particularly traffic. As noted previously, a significant difference due to community sources is not unusual for a measurement location outside of the 65 dB contour. The site was within 100 feet of a suburban street with through traffic.

This site is very close to measurement Site 4 from the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured at that site over a single day in 1983 was 64 dB. Both measurement locations are well outside of the 65 dB DNL contour in both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases in the original study.

Site 5: 4816 Sierra Madre Drive

The DNL calculated from measurements on two consecutive days was approximately 65 dB. The Airport was operating in the north flow throughout the measurement period. The 2000 base case and 100 percent northflow aircraft DNL calculated for this site are both approximately 62 dB. The 2005 forecast DNL drops to approximately 58 dB. The 3-decibel difference between measured and modeled DNL for 2000 is typical for a measurement site in a built-up residential area.

Site 5 is approximately 2,500 feet northeast of Site 8 in the original Part 150. The DNL measured at that site over a single day in 1983 was 70 dB. That original measurement location was outside the 1985 and 1990 65 dB DNL contours. The current location falls within the 65 - 70 dB contour intervals from those two cases.

Site 6: 4610 Westford Circle, Village West

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were conducted at this site.

Site 7: Clubhouse, Plantation

The DNL values for two partial days of measurements had a mathematical average of approximately 64.5 dB.

The 2000 base case and 100 percent northflow case aircraft DNL calculated for this site are both approximately 59 dB. The forecast 2005 DNL is approximately 56 dB. The differences between measured and modeled values can be attributed to activity within the development, lawn maintenance that occurred during the measurements, and rain during part of the measurement visit. The difference between measured and modeled DNL is to be expected; the site was well outside the 65 dB DNL contour, in the area where community noise can have a significant effect on overall DNL.

The measurement site is approximately 2,000 feet northwest of measurement Site 3 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 65 dB. The 1985 and 1990 DNL calculated for that site in the 1983 study was also approximately 65 dB.

Site 8: 6719 Twelve Oaks Boulevard

The DNL values over three days of measurement ranged from approximately 63 to 65 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 64.

The 2000 base case and 100 percent northflow case aircraft DNL calculated for this site are both approximately 60 dB. The estimated 2005 DNL is approximately 54 dB. Again, the site was well outside the 65 dB DNL contour, in the area where community noise can have a significant effect on overall DNL.

The measurement site is approximately 2,500 feet west of measurement Site 5 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 71 dB. That measurement location had a calculated noise exposure of approximately

72 dB for the 1985 and 1990 DNL cases in the original study.

Site 9: 4613 D'Azzo Avenue, Drew Park

Measurements at the site included portions of two days, for a total of approximately 24 hours. The average DNL over the two days was approximately 61 dB. The 2000 base case and 100 percent north-flow aircraft DNL calculated for this site are both approximately 66 dB. The forecast 2005 DNL is approximately 62 dB. DNL at this site is sensitive to runup activity, use of the east parallel, and use of Runway 9-27. Conditions during the measurements appeared to be below the norm.

The measurement site is approximately 500 feet north of measurement Site 10 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 72 dB. The calculated 1985 DNL was approximately 67 dB. The calculated 1990 DNL was approximately 65 dB.

Site 10: 6526 Johns Road, Northwest Park

Measurements at the site included all or a portion of three days. The DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 59 to 60 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 59 dB. The 2000 base case and 100 percent north-flow case aircraft DNL calculated for this site are both approximately 59 dB. The estimated 2005 DNL is approximately 54 dB.

The measurement site is approximately 2,000 feet northwest of measurement Site 6 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 71 dB. That measurement location had a calculated noise exposure of

approximately 71 dB for both the 1985 and 1990 cases in the original study.

Site 11: 5215 West Laurel Street

Measurements at the site included all or a portion of three days. The DNL values over the three days ranged from approximately 67 to 70 dB, with a mathematical average of approximately 69 dB. The 2000 base case, 100 percent north-flow case, and 2005 forecast case aircraft DNL calculated for this site are all approximately 62 dB. Once again, the site was in an area outside the 65 dB DNL contour where the community noise levels would be expected to significantly effect the overall DNL.

The measurement site is approximately 2,500 feet northwest of Site 16 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 62 dB. The calculated DNL at that site was below 65 dB for both the 1985 and 1990 contour cases in the previous study. However, the current location was approximately on the 65 dB contour in the 1985 case, and just inside it for the 1990 case.

Site 12: North Street/Occident Avenue Intersection

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were conducted at this site.

Site 13: Leeward Drive, Watermill Village

No L_{eq} or DNL measurements were conducted at this site.

Site 14: 3947 Doral Drive, Dana Shores

The DNL values for the partial day of measurements allowed calculation of a DNL

value of approximately 67 dB. The 2000 base case and 100 percent north-flow aircraft DNL calculated for this site are both approximately 57 dB. The forecast 2005 DNL is approximately 62 dB. Closer agreement would not be expected at a site this far from the 65 dB contour.

The measurement site is approximately 1,000 feet northeast of measurement Site 9 in the original Part 150 study. The DNL measured over a single day at that site in 1983 was 69 dB, and the calculated 1985 DNL was approximately 67 dB.

Site 15: Cypress Point Park

Measurements at the site included portions of two days, with a total measurement duration of approximately 24 hours. The average DNL calculated from the two days was approximately 69 dB. The calculated 2000 average day and 100 percent northflow DNL for the site are both approximately 71 dB. The forecast 2005 DNL is approximately 70 dB. This is excellent agreement for a site at this orientation to the Airport.

The INM-calculated 2000 average day and 100 percent north-flow DNL for the site are both approximately 71 dB. The forecast 2005 DNL is approximately 70 dB.

DRAFT

Chapter Five Land Use

TPA and its surrounding communities have a successful history of planning for compatible land use in areas affected by aircraft noise. Previous planning efforts have developed noise abatement flight procedures, which minimize noise exposure in existing residential areas, and land use planning measures to reduce future noise sensitive development. After a brief description of existing and planned land use and a review of land use compatibility criteria, this chapter will examine the degree to which the measures recommended in planning earlier efforts have been implemented and the results of this implementation.

5.1 EXISTING AND PLANNED LAND USE

TPA straddles the city limits of the City of the current airport boundary Tampa. encompasses approximately 3,100 acres. After completion of the Drew Park acquisition, the airport land area will be approximately 3,300 acres in western Hillsborough County. Figure 5-1 illustrates the existing land use surrounding the Figure 5-2 presents the future Airport. zoning for the airport surrounds. The existing land use and future zoning was supplied by the Hillsborough County City County Planning Commission (HCCCPC).

The existing land use south of TPA is a mix of commercial and single-family residential development. The area between Kennedy Boulevard and the Airport has undergone intensive commercial development in recent decades along and west of West Shore Boulevard. This area includes a regional shopping mall and numerous commercial multi-story offices and hotels. Older established commercial development fronts Kennedy Boulevard, Dale Mabry Highway, and Gandy Boulevard.

The single-family residential land use south of the Airport ranges from modest- to highcost homes, including prestigious homes along Tampa Bay due south of the Airport.

Immediately east of the Airport is Drew Park, an older area of mixed use comprised of small businesses, shops, garages, and older low-cost, single-family homes. It is an area that has gradually shifted from residential to a predominance of industrial and commercial uses.

Al Lopez Park is located east of the Airport adjacent to Dale Mabry Highway. This is a park and recreation facility of regional importance. Also in this vicinity, to the south, is the new Raymond James Stadium, home of the NFL Tampa Bay Buccaneers, and Legend Field, spring training facility of the New York Yankee baseball team. Also in this immediate vicinity, east of Dale Mabry Highway, is a regional shopping mall and office center. The dominant land use east of the Dale Mabry and Himes Avenue is residential.

Middle- and upper-income, single-family residential housing characterizes most of the

area west of the Airport. Large, modern office complexes have been developed over the past two decades along the west side of Eisenhower Boulevard.

Directly north of the Airport is an area which extends northward to Waters Avenue and is comprised of industrial, wholesalecommercial, and warehousing development. Established single-family residential neighborhoods are located both to the east and to the west of this district. Residential development extends northward of Linebaugh Avenue:

Few mobile home parks are located within the study area. The largest of these are located between MacDill Air Force Base and on Hillsborough Avenue, west of Eisenhower Boulevard. Others are relatively small and scattered.

5.2 LAND USE COMPATIBILITY CRITERIA

The degree of annoyance which people experience from aircraft noise varies depending on their activities at any given time. People are usually less disturbed by aircraft noise when they are shopping, working, or driving than they are at home. Transient hotel and motel residents seldom express as much concern with aircraft noise as do permanent residents of an area. The concept of "land use compatibility" has arisen from this systematic variation in community reaction to noise.

5.2.1 Federal Guidelines

Studies by governmental agencies and private researchers, in particular those by the

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the FAA, and other Federal agencies, have compatibility guidelines for different land uses with varying noise levels. In 1980, the Federal Interagency Committee on Urban Noise (FICUN) published a report, <u>Guidelines for Considering Noise in Land Use Planning and Control</u>, which contained detailed land use compatibility guidelines for varying day-night noise levels (DNL). The FAA adopted a revised and simplified version of these guidelines when it promulgated Federal Aviation Regulations (FAR) Part 150.¹³ This study utilizes these guidelines.

5.2.2 Recommended Guidelines

Part 150 states that determinations of noise compatibility and regulation of land use are local responsibilities. Federal guidelines are provided to assist local communities in making land use compatibility determinations. Land use compatibility criteria recommended for the TPA Part 150 update are based on the Federal guidelines described earlier. Notes on selected categories of land use with explanations of the rationale for the criteria follow.

Residences (other than hotels)

All residential development within the DNL 75^+ contour should be considered noncompatible. New single-family residential development in DNL 65-70 and DNL 70-75 contour intervals should be permitted only where in-filling of existing residential neighborhoods is the only reasonable land use. In the 65-70 contour interval, insulation should be required to achieve interior noise level reduction (NLR) of at least 25 dBA, consistent with Part 150 Table 1 guidelines (see Table 2.1), resulting in an interior level



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Existing Land Use

Figure 5-1



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Planned Land Uses

Figure 5-2



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

of DNL 45, as recommended by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Similarly, in the 70-75 contour interval, an NLR of at least 30 dBA is required by Part 150 guidelines. In addition to acoustical treatment of structures, potential new residents should be made aware of the noise environment.

Hotels, Motels, and Transient Lodgings

It is recommended that hotels be permitted in all noise contours provided that interior NLR measures sufficient to achieve acceptable noise levels are required. The construction standards of hotels and motels generally provide interior sound attenuation higher than single-family homes. In addition, the temporary nature of their use justifies minimal restrictions, provided an interior noise level of no more 45 dBA is attained; i.e., 25 dBA in the 65-70 DNL interval, and 30 dBA in the 70-75 DNL interval.

Schools

It was determined in the previous Part 150 Study for TPA that schools should be considered compatible in the DNL 65-70 noise contour interval, provided they have an NLR of at least 30 dBA, but that they be considered non-compatible in the higher noise areas. The special sensitivity of classroom teaching to periodic aircraft noise events justifies that the NLR level be more stringent than that applied to residences. The criteria should apply equally to public and private schools.

Hospitals

Hospitals are generally well-constructed and centrally air conditioned with windows kept closed, resulting in high levels of interior noise attenuation. Hospital facilities are considered non-compatible in contours above DNL 75. From recommendations in the previous TPA Part 150 Study, they can be considered compatible in the DNL 65-70 contour interval with a NLR of at least 30 dBA, and in the DNL 70-75 contour interval with a NLR of 35 dBA.

Nursing Homes

Nursing homes are essentially residences and should be addressed consistent with requirements for multi-family dwellings.

Child Care Centers

Since classroom instruction is not as important a function of a child care center as it is a function of a school, it is recommended that criteria for child care centers be less stringent than those for schools. As with the previous TPA Part 150 Study, it is recommended that these facilities be considered compatible in the DNL 65-70 contour interval with an NLR of at least 25 dBA and in the DNL 70-75 contour interval with an NLR of at least 30 dBA, and noncompatible above the DNL 75 contour.

Churches

Given the small amount of time per week that a church is used for quiet activities, and given that the proportion of time spent by an individual in a church is also small, the justification for adopting more stringent compatibility standards for churches is less strong than for schools. It is recommended that the criteria proposed in the FAA's table of criteria in FAR Part 150 be applied (i.e., an NLR of 25 dBA in the 65-70 DNL interval, NLR 30 in the 70-75 interval, and no churches over 75 DNL). For schools, child care centers, or other types of facilities
that are part of a church complex, the criteria for these secondary types of facilities would In addition to structures be applied. specifically dedicated to church use. numerous small churches are often established in portions of commercial buildings. These "storefront churches" are frequently located in commercial areas which are otherwise compatible with aircraft noise levels. Due to their locational characteristics and sometimes transient nature, it is recommended that storefront churches be treated as other uses in commercial districts (i.e., non-compatible above 80 DNL, and NLRs of 25 and 30 in the 70-75 and 75-80 DNL intervals).

Commercial, Industrial, and Recreational Uses

Most uses in these categories are not as noise sensitive as the uses described previously. It is recommended that the FAA suggested criteria in FAR Part 150 be applied (i.e., non-compatible above 80 DNL, and NLRs of 25 and 30 in the 70-75 and 75-80 DNL intervals).

5.3 EXISTING LAND USE CONTROLS

Both the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County have adopted comprehensive plans for growth management in their respective jurisdictions. These plans have been developed in accordance with Chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes which require local government preparation and adoption of policies for land development regulation. The land use elements of these plans include future land use maps which reflect these policies for growth management.

The comprehensive plans for the City and the County were prepared in the mid-to-late 1980s and were adopted in 1989. These Florida Statutes require that the plans be evaluated and updated every five years. The County plan was updated in October 1994 and the City plan in May 1998. In addition, minor amendments are considered twice a year as provided by the State law.

Hillsborough County has adopted a Land Development Code, most recently amended in November 1996. This code regulates all land use in accordance with the adopted comprehensive plan. The code includes zoning regulations with specific sections related to districts likely to be affected by airports and airport operations.

The County Land Development Code sets forth a special Airport District with six subareas for regulating development "...to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare by limiting the type, the arrangement, and intensity of uses in an effort to minimize adverse affects of aircraft operations such as potential aircraft crash hazards. aircraft noise and vibration emissions, and related effects on uses, structures, and occupants of areas likely to be affected by airports and aircraft operations".

The sub-areas within the Airport District are identified as Special Interest Zoning Districts SPI-AP-1, SPI-AP-2, SPI-AP-3, SPI-AP-4, SPI-AP-5, and SPI-AP-V. The permitted uses in these zones exclude noise sensitive residential. outdoor passive recreation activities, and regional cultural and entertainment uses. Other zoning districts located north of TPA include industrial (District M) and commercial zones (Districts C-N, C-G, and C-I), all of which exclude residential development as a permitted use. Figure 5-3 presents these zones.



DRAFT

The City of Tampa Code of Ordinances provides for an airport compatibility district in accordance with the City's comprehensive plan. This district includes four subdistricts. Theses sub-districts regulate the types of uses, intensity of use, and heights of structures to minimize population and eliminate hazards to aircraft operations at TPA. These sub-districts are identified as M-AP-1, M-AP-2, M-AP-3, and M-AP-4. Permitted uses in these zones exclude residential development and places of public assembly. Figure 5-3 presents these zones.

The City's codes also include subdivision regulations and site development standards as further land development controls.

The Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (HCAA) is also involved in the review and approval process for developments proposed in the City and the County in the vicinity of the Airport which might pose a safety hazard.

5.4 EXISTING AND FORECAST LAND USE COMPATIBILITY

5.4.1 Current (2000) Non-Compatible Land Uses

Figure 5-4 shows the existing 2000 land use areas that are considered by FAA guidelines to be non-compatible with the noise levels generated by aircraft operating at TPA. The DNL contours for 2000 annual operations are evaluated for their impact on land use compatibility.

The 2000 DNL contours were developed for an average day that considers annualized runway use. A sensitivity analysis was completed to evaluate an average day when airport operations are primarily to and from the north, and an average day when operations are primarily to and from the south. The results of this analysis are found in **Appendix E**.

Table 5.1 summarizes the estimated population residing in these non-compatible areas for each of the three scenarios. The estimates were made by applying a factor of 2.46, the average household size for Hillsborough County, to the number of dwelling units located within the noise contours. The dwelling unit counts were determined by aerial photography supported by field investigation.

The following discussion examines the noncompatible land uses surrounding the Airport.

Areas North of TPA

The residential vicinity most potentially impacted by existing aircraft noise is located north of the Airport, as can be seen in both Figure 5-4 and Table 5.1.

West Park Estates is a subdivision of several hundred single-family homes. The 2000 DNL contours result in 0 dwelling units and 0 residents in the DNL 65-70 contour interval. No dwelling units are located within the 65 DNL contour in the south scenario

The Benjamin Road area in the vicinity of Barry Road has an estimated 27 dwelling units and 66 residents in the DNL 65-70 contour interval. No dwelling units are located within the 70 DNL contour. Field observation discloses that many of the dwellings are older mobile (manufactured) homes that appear to have been in place for many years.

DRAFT

Table 5.1

Location Contour Interva		Population ²	Residential Dwelling Units
South of TPA (Mariner St.)	65-70 DNL	54	
West of TPA	65-70 DNL	34	14
(Dana Shores)			
West of TPA	65-70 DNL	0	0
(George Road Vicinity)			
North of TPA	65-70 DNL	15	6
(Southern Comfort)			
North of TPA	65-70 DNL	66	27
(Benjamin Road/Barry Lane			
Vicinity)			
North of TPA	65-70 DNL	22	9
(Subdivision NE of R/W 18L-			-
36R)			
East of TPA	65-70 DNL	0	0
(Drew Park)			Ū.
Total		191	78

Existing Land Use Non-Compatible Properties for 2000 DNL Noise Contour Intervals

¹ There are no residential dwelling units within the 70 and higher DNL contours.

² Population estimated based on dwelling unit counts. Hillsborough County household size of 2.46 persons/household as estimated by Hillsborough County City-County Planning Commission, April 1997.

Areas South of TPA

The only existing non-compatible residential land use south of the Airport is the neighborhood that extends along Mariner Street. The residences are very large and situated on the waterfront of Tampa Bay. This street is located approximately one and one-half miles south of the end of Runway 18R-36L. An estimated 22 dwelling units with a population of 54 are located within the 2000 DNL 65-70 contour interval. No dwelling units are within the 2000 DNL 70⁺ contour.

Cypress Point Park, a City of Tampa park, is located south of Cypress Street due south of Runway 361. This is a swimming beach facility located within the DNL 70. The park has been in place for many years and is not considered noise sensitive by the City of Tampa.

Areas East of TPA

The Drew Park area is an older area in transition from a once residential area. It is now primarily comprised of small industrial and commercial uses with an interspersing of older, small single-family homes. No dwelling units are located in the 2000 DNL 65⁺ contour interval.

Areas West of TPA

Skyway Park is located on the west side of the Veterans Expressway in the DNL 65-70 contour interval. It serves as recreational playing fields and is not considered noise sensitive by the City of Tampa.

Another transitional area impacted by aircraft noise is east of George Road in the vicinity of Chelsea and Eleanor Streets. There are no dwelling units and no residents in the 2000 DNL 65-70 contour interval.



There are no dwelling units within the 2000 DNL 70^+ contour.

Additionally, the Dana Shores area is impacted by aircraft noise. There are an estimated 34 residents living in 14 dwelling units in the 2000 DNL 65-70 contour interval. There are no dwelling units within the 2000 DNL 70+ contour.

Conclusions

Table 5.1 summarizes the estimated dwelling units and population within the 2000 DNL contours. There are approximately 191 persons within the 2000 DNL 65^+ contour for TPA. There are no existing noise sensitive land uses other than residential located within the 2000 DNL 65dB contour.

5.4.2 Potential (2000) Non-Compatible Land Uses

The land use elements of the adopted comprehensive plans of the City of Tampa and of Hillsborough County are reflected in **Figure 5-5**. The 2000 noise contours superimposed on this composite map indicate potential areas of future land use non-compatibility.

These comprehensive plans, developed in the mid-1980s, had the benefit of considerable input from the HCAA and the findings of the FAR Part 150 Noise Study. This planning process addressed land use compatibility issues. The results of this cooperative effort are reflected in the land use plan elements of the comprehensive plans depicted in Figure 5-5, particularly in the areas north and south of TPA. Figure 5-5 shows the extent to which the plan designates future non-residential land uses north and south of the Airport where the 2000 DNL 65^+ contours are located.

The following discussion addresses the potential for future non-compatibility in the areas surrounding the Airport.

North of TPA

Southern Comfort, Oakview Terrace, and West Park Estates are totally built-out developments, therefore, no change is anticipated in the number of people impacted within the 2000 DNL contours.

The Benjamin Road area has vacant potentially developable land. However, the previously discussed land use controls have discouraged new residential development over the past decade and are expected to continue to discourage new residential development in areas within the DNL 65^+ contour.

Given the existing development already within the DNL 65^+ contour and the likelihood of little, if any, new residential development in these impacted areas, the existing number of residents is projected to be impacted in the future. Since there are a number of older mobile homes in the Benjamin Road vicinity that are in an area transitioning to commercial uses, the residential population within the DNL 65 contour could slightly decline during the next five years.

South of TPA

The Mariner Street neighborhood is totally developed. No new residential development in the next five years can be expected. Therefore, the same number of people within the DNL 65 contour is forecast for the future.

East of TPA

It is anticipated that there will be no residences within the DNL 65 contour in the future. This is due to the expansion of airport property coupled with the conversion of the land to commercial purposes in the vicinity of the DNL 65^+ contour.

West of TPA

It is likely that there will be fewer residents in the vicinity east of George Road. The transitioning of this area to commercial uses and restrictions on building new residential housing will continue to constrain development of future non-compatible land. Conservatively, it is estimated that the existing residential population will remain in this vicinity for the next 5 years.

Conclusions

The future land use within the 2000 DNL 65⁺ contour will not significantly change over the next five years for the reasons stated above. Table5.2conservatively reflects the projected population that will be residing within the DNL 65^+ contours. As discussed, because of certain areas undergoing transition from residential to commercial uses and the development controls in place to discourage new noncompatible uses, the resident population could actually slightly decline in these noise impacted areas.

Planned Land Use Non-Com	patible Properties for 200	00 DNL Noise Contour Intervals

Contour Interval	Population	Residential Dwelling Unit					
75+	0						
70-75	0	0					
65-70	191	78					
Total	191	78					
¹ Population estimated based on dw	elling unit counts. Hillsboroug	th County household size of 2.46					
persons/household as estimated by Hillsborough County City-County Planning Commission, April 1997							



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Planned Land Use with 2000 DNL Contours Figure 5-5



Chapter Six Updated Noise Exposure Maps

This section presents the TPA Noise Exposure Maps for 2000 and 2005, submitted in accordance with the provisions of FAR Part 150 <u>Airport Noise</u> <u>Compatibility Planning</u>.

Figures 6-1 through 6-4 present Noise Exposure Maps for the following cases, based on assumptions noted, and as replacements for existing maps as noted. The certification page at the front of this document addresses Part 150 requirements regarding accuracy of the maps and the opportunities provided for public review and input.

Figure 6-1 represents existing conditions for the year of submission, assuming the existing Noise Compatibility Program, airport layout, operations, and other noise modeling assumptions described in Chapter Four.

Figure 6-2 represents forecast conditions for the fifth year following the year of submission, assuming the existing Noise Compatibility Program (unchanged from 2000), airport layout (unchanged from 2000), forecast operations, and other noise modeling assumptions described in Chapter Four.

Figure 6-3 represents the existing conditions with the implementation of the revised Noise Compatibility Program, as described in Chapter Seven, including the revised runway and flight track utilization rates presented in **Appendix F**. Figure 6-4 represents the forecast conditions with the implementation of the revised Noise Compatibility Program, as described in Chapter Seven, including the revised runway and flight track utilization rates presented in Appendix F.

Figures 6-1 and 6-2 replace the previously approved 1985 and 1990 maps, pending FAA approval for revised Noise Compatibility Program. Following FAA review and approval of the revised program, Figures 6-3 and 6-4 will represent the official maps.

The 2000 Noise Exposure Map (Figure 6-1) shows 78 dwellings which represent approximately 191 people currently within the DNL 65 dB contour. Figure 6-2 shows that by the year 2005, with the existing NCP that shows 10 dwellings which represent approximately 24 people. This represents a 87% decrease in the number of dwellings and people within the DNL 65 dB contour as discussed in the tables and discussion in Chapter Five.

The 2000 Noise Exposure Map with the revised NCP (Figure 6-3) shows 70 dwellings and 172 people within the DNL 65 dB contour. Figure 6-4 shows by the year 2005, with the revised NCP that shows 10 dwellings which represent 25 people. This represents an 87% decrease in the number of dwellings and people within the DNL 65 dB contour as discussed in the tables and discussion in Chapter Five.

Table 6.1 summarizes the number ofdwelling units and people within the DNL65 dB contour.

Table 6.1

Non-Compatible Land Use within Updated 2000 and 2005 Noise Exposure Maps, with Existing and Revised Noise Compatibility Programs

Case	Estimated Dwelling Units within DNL 65-70 dB Contour Interval	Estimated Residents within DNL 65-70 dB Contour Interval
2000 with Existing Noise Compatibility Program	78	191
2005 with Existing Noise Compatibility Program	10	24
2000 with Revised Noise Compatibility Program	70	172
2005 with Revised Noise Compatibility Program	10	25

Source: HMMH, Inc.



2000 Existing Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Existing Noise Compatibility Program





2005 Five-Year Forecast Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Existing Noise Compatibility Program





2000 Existing Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Revised Noise Compatibility Program





2005 Five-Year Forecast Conditions Noise Exposure Map with Revised Noise Compatibility Program



Chapter Seven Noise Abatement

The existing TPA Noise Compatibility Program (NCP) includes three categories of compatibility measures: (1) noise abatement (measures that affect the size and shape of the noise contours), (2) land use (measures that address land use incompatibilities that remained after the implementation of the noise abatement measures), and (3) continuing program measures (measures related to the implementation and review of the NCP).

This study considered noise abatement alternatives first. Then. land use compatibility actions were considered because noise abatement measures are generally preferable to land use measures as a means of reducing noise impacts since land use measures typically involve higher economic, social, and political costs. This chapter presents the noise abatement analyses that initiated the TPA NCP update. Chapter Eight presents the review and update of land use measures that followed the noise abatement analyses.

Chapter Nine summarizes the revised NCP, including the recommended continuing program measures that complement the recommended noise abatement and land use actions.

7.1 RECOMMENDED CHANGES TO EXISTING NCP

The recommended NCP is a refinement of the existing, highly effective NCP. It

recommends continuation of one measure without change, changes to three of the measures, and four new measures. One measure is complete and will not require further action. Section 1.4.1 lists the noise abatement elements of the existing NCP.

The recommended revisions to the existing NCP follow (with the "existing" numbering from the original NCP documentation noted):

Completed measure (no FAA action required)

Augment vegetation noise barrier along the western perimeter of the Airport to increase its noise attenuation qualities. (Existing Measure #4. The highway structures west of the Airport make this recommendation largely irrelevant. Landscaping does not significantly attenuate sound, unless there is heavy vegetation over relatively long distances. No further noise barriers west of the Airport would offer potential benefits).

Established measure to be continued (no FAA action required)

• Establish a helipad on the east side of the Airport to help separate helicopter traffic from fixed wing flows, and thereby reduce unnecessary overflight of areas adjacent to the Airport. (*Existing Measure #5.* HCAA established a helipad location approximately 700 feet south of Runway 9-27, approximately 2,100 feet west of its east end. There is

no basis to consider a change in the helipad location).

Measures recommended to be modified from existing NCP

- The ATCT will make all reasonable efforts to implement the preferential runway program consistent with operating conditions and reasonable attention to delay. Adopt existing Tampa ATCT "Informal Runway Use Program" Letter to Airmen Daytime (6 a.m. to midnight) Preferential Runway Use Priority for Turbojets:
 - A. South Operation: Arrive 18L-18R
 - 1. Depart 18R
 - 2. Depart 18L
 - B. North Operation: Depart 36L-36R
 - 1. Arrive 36L
 - 2. Arrive 36R
 - C. East/West Operation: Arrive/Depart 9-27

(Modification of existing Measure #1.

- This measure amends existing Measure #1, which calls for maximizing south flow. It adds the detailed runway use priorities set form in the existing Letter to Airmen (Appendix D).
- Encourage operators of turbojet aircraft to use Air Transport Association (ATA)recommended noise abatement arrival procedures and "distant" Noise Abatement Departure Procedure (NADP) profiles, as recommended in FAA Advisory Circular 91-53A for turbojets over 75,000 pounds, or by National Business Aviation Association (NBAA) or manufacturers for corporate jets.

(*Modification of existing Measure #2.* This measure adds NADP profiles to complement existing arrival procedures.

• An engine maintenance runup enclosure will be constructed at the north end of the existing Delta Air Lines maintenance ramp, with the opening oriented to the south, with the requirement that operators share the facility and use it for all runups above idle power. Idle runups to continue at previously approved locations. Section 7.4.3 discusses and depicts the location of this proposed facility.

(*Modification of existing Measure #3*. This measure adds a runup enclosure for runups above idle.)

New measures to be added to NCP

- Initial turbojet departure headings:
 - Runway 36L or 36R 360°M (Magnetic) track
 - Runway 18R 200[°]M track
 - Runway 18L 210°M track
 - Runway 27 270 $^{\circ}$ M track
 - Runway 9 90°M track

Headings to be maintained until reaching 3,000 feet MSL unless instructed by the TPA ATCT "Informal Runway Use Program," which should be included in the NCP at this time.

• Nighttime bi-directional runway use:

When wind, weather, and field calculations permit, and no delays to arrivals or departures will result, all aircraft are to use Runway 18R for departures and Runway 36L for arrivals from midnight to 6 a.m. If conditions do not permit, use daytime preferential runway use program. (This measure is also an existing element of the TPA ATCT: "Informal Runway Use Program," which should be included in the NCP at this time. While the "Informal Runway Use Program" currently applies only to turbojets, it is recommended to be extended to all aircraft.)

- When wind, weather, field, and traffic conditions permit, and no excessive delays will result, turbojet arrivals to Runway 36L will not conduct base legs north of MacDill Air Force Base. (This measure incorporates a procedure into the NCP that the Tampa ATCT is currently implementing on an informal basis.)
- When wind, weather, field, and traffic conditions permit, and no excessive delays will result, the Tampa ATCT will not assign propeller-driven aircraft departure turns greater than 360°M (magnetic) on Runway 36L and greater than 20°M on Runway 36R. (This is a new measure not addressed in the original NCP or any subsequent ATCT procedures.)

Table 7.1 summarizes the recommendednoise abatement elements of the revised NCPas compared to the original NCP elements.

7.2 CATEGORIES OF MEASURES REQUIRED FOR CONSIDERATION UNDER FAR PART 150

Section B150.7(b) of FAR Part 150 requires airport proprietors to consider at least seven categories of compatibility measures for inclusion in the NCP. These measures and the sections of this document that address them follow:

- To ensure the use of property for purposes which are compatible with airport operations, acquisition of land and interests therein including, but not limited to, air rights, easements, and development rights. Addressed in Chapter Eight -Land Use Compatibility.
- The construction of barriers and acoustic shielding, including the soundproofing of public buildings. Addressed in Chapter Eight - Land Use Compatibility.
- 3) The implementation of a preferential runway system. Addressed in Section 7.4.1.
- 4) The use of flight track procedures, including modifications of flight tracks, to control aircraft operations to reduce exposure of individuals (or specific noise sensitive areas) to noise in the areas around an airport. Addressed in Section 7.4.4.
- 5) The implementation of any restriction on the use of an airport by any type or class of aircraft based on the noise characteristics of those aircraft. Such restrictions may include, but are not limited to, the following list. It is not necessary for all of these potential restrictions to be examined in each NCP, as long as a program gives consideration to at least one type of restriction. Addressed in Section 7.4.2.
 - Denial of an airport to aircraft types or classes which do not meet Federal noise standards;
 - ii) Capacity limitation based on the relative noisiness of different types of aircraft;

Table 7.1

Original					
NCP #	Original Measure	Revised or New Measure	FAA Action Required		
1.	Daytime south flow preferential	Revise wording in NCP to reflect runway use priority in existing Letter to Airmen.	Approve revised wording to make consistent with existing Letter to Airmen.		
2.	Recommend turbojet use of ATA arrival procedure.	Add request for turbojet use of distance NADP profiles.	Approve addition of distant NADP profile.		
3.	Recommend construction of shared runup enclosure for runups above idle power. Continue idle runups at designated locations.	Add runup enclosure.	Approve addition of runup enclosure.		
4.	Augment vegetative barrier on western perimeter or Airport.	Measure completed by effect of construction of highway berms.	None.		
5.	Establish helipad on east side of Airport.	Helipad designated. Use will continue.	None.		
N/A	Not applicable.	Initial turbojet departure headings, as set forth in Tampa ATCT Letter to Airmen.	Approve existing measure as part of NCP.		
N/A	Not applicable.	Nighttime bi-directional runway use. Extend existing nighttime turbojet runway use, as defined in existing Tampa ATCT Letter to Airmen, to all aircraft.	Approve measure as part of NCP.		
N/A	Not applicable.	Limit turbojet base legs on east downwind approaches to 36L north of MacDill AFB.	Approve measure as part of NCP.		
N/A	Not applicable.	Limit propeller departure turns greater than 310° on 36L and greater than 60° on 36R.	Approve measure as part of NCP.		

Comparison of Original and New/Revised Noise Abatement Elements of NCP

- iii) Requirement that aircraft using an airport must use noise abatement takeoff or approach procedures previously approved as safe by the FAA;
- iv) Landing fees based on FAAcertificated or -estimated noise emission levels or on time of arrival; and
- v) Nighttime restrictions.
- 6) Other actions or combinations of actions that would have a beneficial noise control or abatement impact on the public.
- 7) Other actions recommended for analysis by the FAA for a specific airport.

7.3 IMPLEMENTATION OF NOISE ABATEMENT ELEMENTS OF EXISTING NCP

The success of the abatement program depends on actions taken to implement and monitor the effectiveness of the measures. This study was initiated with a review of implementation of the existing noise abatement measures. The result of the review was that overall compliance with the existing noise abatement measures has been achieved with a high degree of compliance, as discussed below.

The original (1987) TPA Part 150 study recommended five noise abatement measures:¹⁴

1) Use southerly traffic flows whenever possible.

- 2) Encourage operators of turbojet aircraft to use ATA-recommended noise abatement arrival procedures.
- 3) Designate engine runup procedures.
- 4) Augment vegetation noise barrier along the western perimeter of the Airport.
- 5) Establish a helipad on the east side of the Airport.

The first measure (preferential south flow) is implemented through a "Letter to Airmen" on the TPA "Informal Runway Use Program" issued by the FAA's ATCT at TPA.¹⁵ **Appendix D** provides the Letter to Airmen, the Letter also defines two additional noise abatement measures:

- 1) Priority of turbojet runway use from midnight to 6 a.m.
- 2) Initial turbojet departure headings.

These two additional noise abatement measures were not addressed in the FAA's ROA and, therefore, are not part of the approved NCP. However, they are part of the Airport's noise abatement program. This Part 150 Update reevaluates these measures for formal inclusion in the NCP.¹⁶

The following subsections review the implementation status of these seven noise abatement measures. It should be noted that overall compliance with the existing noise abatement program is very high.

South Flow Preferential Runway

This measure is implemented by the TPA ATCT's "Informal Runway Use Program" Letter to Airmen. Paragraph 1 of that Letter identifies the runway use priority for turbojet operations from 6 a.m. to midnight, in somewhat greater detail, as follows:¹⁷

- South Operations Arrive 18L-18R
 (1) Depart 18R
 (2) Depart 18L
- North Operation Depart 36L-36R
 (1) Arrive 36L
 (2) Arrive 36R
- East/West Operation Arrive/Depart 9-27

As the preceding list indicates, this abatement measure is more than just south flow preferential; in operations in either flow, it sets the lowest priority to be operations on or off the south end of the east parallel. Therefore, it must be evaluated in two parts:

South Flow Preferential

Based on interviews conducted with ATCT staff and analysis of historic wind data, the runway use analysis conducted for the development of the NEM reveals that the south flow is used approximately 67 percent of the time overall. While this is a relatively high percentage of the time, it assumes that, on average, the ATCT assigns south flow up to approximately a 3-knot tail wind before switching to north flow. However, the FAA's criteria for assignment of the active runway actually allows the ATCT to permit up to a 5-knot tailwind (with clear and dry runways).¹⁸

Wind data indicates that this criterion would allow south flow at least 80 percent of the time. **Appendix E** provides noise contours for average annual daily operations in 2000, with the assumption that the Airport operates in either the north or south flow the entire day. As summarized in **Table 7.2**, the population within the 2000 south-flow noise contours is substantially less than either north flow or the actual annual runway use. Increasing south flow will reduce overall exposure.

Based on this analysis, it was initially recommended that the study considers the effect of increasing south flow to 80 percent of the time be prepared. Subsequent FAA input indicated that this assumed compliance was too high, and that a 73 percent use was a more reasonable assumption, which the NCP should include as a goal. Section 7.4.1 presents additional analysis.

The ATCT suggested that the NCP should call for them to make all reasonable efforts to implement the preferential runway program consistent with operating conditions and reasonable attention to delay. To assist in achieving this goal, the ATCT has already added improved wording to the existing Letter to Airmen, as discussed in Section 7.5.

Population Within Contour Intervals for Differing Runway Use Assumptions

Contour Interval (DNL)	South Flow	North Flow	2000 Annualized
65 - 70 dB	148	1,954	191
70 - 75 dB	0	96	0
Over 75 dB	0	0	0
Total (over 65 dB)	148	2,050	191

Source: HNTB analysis.

Minimized Turbojet Departures on Runway 18L and Arrivals on 36R

The restriction of turbojet operations on and off the south end of the east parallel has been an element of the TPA noise abatement program since at least the early 1960's. The current Tower Letter to Airmen clearly identifies these operations as the lowest priority runway use for turbojets (see Appendix D), as have preceding versions of the Letter.

The NEM runway use analysis used a large sample of "radar" data obtained from the FAA's ARTS system for TPA. The sample included over 15,000 flight tracks from slightly over 18 days of operations in March and October 1997.¹⁹ The data indicate that compliance was extremely high with this component of the preferential runway program, as summarized in **Table 7.3**.

As Table 7.3 indicates, corporate jet compliance with this component of the preferential runway was not as high as for air carrier jets. This is due largely to the following set of circumstances:

• Corporate jets generally originate or terminate at locations on the east side of the Airport, for which taxi times are often shorter to and from the east parallel. This causes pilots to request (and the ATCT to approve) the use of that runway, particularly during high demand periods when there are delays on the west parallel.

• Air carrier compliance with this component of the runway use program appears to be as high as expected given a reasonable balance between delay and noise considerations. It should be noted that some commentators have suggested *relaxing* this runway use restriction for quieter corporate jets.

This important measure should be continued with maximum possible compliance. Section 7.4.1 presents additional analysis.

Nighttime Bi-Directional Runway Use

Paragraph 2 of the "Informal Runway Use Program" Letter to Airmen defines this measure as follows:²⁰

• When traffic, wind, weather, and field conditions permit, and no delays to arrivals or departures will result, use Runway 18R for turbojet departures and Runway 36L for turbojet arrivals. If conditions do not permit, then runways will be assigned as defined in Paragraph 1.

Table 7.3

Turbojet Operations on Runways 18L and 36R from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from March and October 1997

Openator (Airgraft Tune	Approximate Use of Runway End				
	18L Departures	36R Arrivals			
Air Carrier Jets	1%	Less than 1%			
Comparing Late	Day: 4%,	Day: 8%			
Corporate Jets	Night: Less than 1%	Night: 13%			

Source: HMMH analysis.

The 1987 Part 150 Study investigated this measure, but it was not included in the approved NCP. The FAA subsequently added the measure to the Tower Letter to Airmen based on discussions with the HCAA staff. (See paragraph 2 of current Letter to Airmen presented in Appendix D.) The ARTS data analysis indicates partial compliance with this preferential runway program component, as **Table 7.4** indicates.

Operations complied with this measure to the extent that use of the least preferred runways was below 2 percent. There were no turbojet departures on Runway 18L and only two turbojet arrivals on Runway 36R, out of a total identified sample of 129 operations. However, there were 20 departures on 36R and 36L, and 49 arrivals on 18R and 18L. These 69 operations represent approximately 53 percent of the nighttime operations.

Public input groups requested the extension of this measure to all aircraft. The FAA accepted this recommendation, as long as operating conditions permit. Section 7.4.1 presents additional analysis.

Initial Departure Headings

Paragraph 4 of the Tower Letter to Airmen (Appendix D) sets forth the following initial departure tracks for turbojet operations.

• Initial Departure Tracks. Headings shall be assigned to insure aircraft remain on the designated tracks. Do not expect turns from initial headings until the aircraft has reached 3,000 feet unless operationally required.

a)	Runway 36L or 36R	track 360
b)	Runway 18R	track 200
c)	Runway 18L	track 210
d)	Runway 27	track 270
e)	Runway 9	track 090

The March and October 1997 ARTS data samples provide information that reveal a high degree of compliance with these desired initial departure tracks. Plots of flight tracks were used to analyze the actual flight track geometry. **Figure 7-1** presents a base map showing three imaginary airspace "gates" that were used for this analysis. The gates are vertical "windows" in space that start at ground level at the locations shown and extend up to 10,000 feet. The gates include:

• Westshore Gate: Extends southerly along the coast of the communities immediately south of the Airport, to identify departures that crossed over these communities below 2,600 feet, which was the minimum turn altitude in effect in 1997.

Table '	7.4
---------	-----

Turbojet Operations from Midnight to 6 a.m. from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from March and October 1997

	Number of Operations by Type of Operator, Type of Operation, and Runway End									
	18L 18R				36L		36R		Total	
	Air Carrier	Corp. Jet	Air Carrier	Corp. Jet	Air Carrier	Corp. Jet	Air Carrier	Corp. Jet	Air Carrier	Corp. Jet
Arr.	29	4	15	1	56	1	0	2	100	8
_ Dep.	0	0	1	0	7	0	2	11	10	11

Source: HMMH analysis.



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Airspace "Gates" Used in Flight Track Analysis Figure 7-1



- Runway 36R Gate: Extends north of the Airport to the east of the Runway 36R extended centerline, to identify departure turns to the east prior to reaching 2,600 feet.
- Runway 36L Gate: Extends north of the Airport to the west of the Runway 36R extended centerline, to identify departure turns to the west prior to reaching 2,600 feet.

The overhead view of air carrier jet flight tracks, by runway end, that show which tracks cross each of the gates is presented in **Figures 7-2 through 7-10**. The gates are also shown in vertical perspective (i.e., looking at the gates head on), depicting where the tracks "penetrate" the gates.

Analysis of Westshore Gate

Figure 7-2 presents the plot of the 465 flight tracks for air carrier jet departures off of Runway 18R from the March and October 1997 data samples. Figure 7-3 plots the nine operations that penetrated the Westshore Gate. Note that none of the tracks penetrated the gate below 2,600 feet, indicating perfect compliance with the departure procedure.

Figures 7-4 7-5 and present the corresponding plots for the four Runway 18L air carrier jet departures in the March and October 1997 data samples. Three of the tracks penetrated the gate; however, note that two of those penetrations were at the extreme north end of the gate and flew through the gate from the east to the west. Only one track turned back to the east through the gate, and it penetrated the gate at nearly 6,000 feet, once again indicating perfect compliance with the departure procedure.

Figures 7-6 and 7-7 present the same plots for the 920 Runway 18L departures during 14 days in July 1997, when the west parallel was closed for rehabilitation. These plots clearly show the undesirable consequences of high turbojet use of Runway 18L for departure.

This analysis did not indicate a need to consider revisions to the existing procedures nor any alternative contour cases to run. However, the revised NCP should incorporate the initial departure heading procedure as they currently exist for turbojets in the Tampa ATCT Letter to Airmen.

Analysis of Runway 36R and 36L Gates

Figure 7-8 plots the 2,148 air carrier jet departures from Runways 36R and 36L. from the combined March, July, and October data samples.²¹ Figures 7-9 and 7-10 plot the 44 operations that penetrated the Runway 36R and 36L gates below 2,600 feet (11 through the Runway 36R gate and 33 through the 36L gate). These operations represent approximately two percent of all departures and less than two operations on the average day. This rate of noncompliance with the departure procedures is very low, and is typical of the level of early turns that can be attributed to unusual weather or traffic considerations.

This analysis did not indicate a need to consider revisions to the existing procedures nor any alternative contour cases to run. However, the revised NCP should incorporate the initial departure heading procedures as they currently exist for turbojets in the current Tower Letter to Airmen (Appendix D).

Noise Abatement Procedures

The original Part 150 included an FAAapproved measure for the HCAA to: "Encourage operators of turbojet aircraft to use ATA [Air Transport Association] recommended noise abatement arrival procedures." This recommendation suggests a broader category of noise abatement that relates to procedures that pilots can use to reduce noise exposure through the manner in which they "fly" the aircraft. The original Part 150 only addressed arrival procedures. Since the completion of that study, the FAA has provided airports and operators of airline type jets with specific guidance on the selection and implementation of noise abatement *departure* procedures

Based on public input, one effect of increasing the glide slope is presented in Section 7.4.5. That analysis does not support increasing one glide slope angle, or otherwise changing one existing NCP element.

Noise Abatement Arrival Procedures

The intent of the noise abatement arrival procedures is to minimize thrust used on approach by delaying gear and flap deployment as long as possible, and to use the minimum flap setting possible. As discussed in the original study, these procedures affect aircraft approaches at least three miles from the landing threshold, when the aircraft are at altitudes above 1,000 feet above ground level (AGL). These distances are significantly outside of the 65 dB DNL contours for either 2000 or 2005. While the procedures would not affect the noise considered contours land for use compatibility purposes, there would be benefits outside the contours, and the

procedures are worthy of continued implementation.

Implementation of this measure is purely voluntary and is based on wind, weather, visibility, traffic, aircraft weight and performance, and other considerations. Airlines develop guidelines for pilots to follow that take all of these factors into account, but pilots retain a high degree of discretion. These factors make it nearly impossible to model the effect of the recommended procedures with any degree of certainty.

Figures 7-11 through 7-14 present plots of altitude profiles for Boeing 727-200 approaches to Runways 18R, 18L, 36R, and 36L, from the March, July, and October 1997 data. The dark lines on the plots show the 3-degree approach angle that is the standard setting for airport "glide slope" instrumentation that pilots can use for vertical guidance on approach (and that airline pilots must follow if it is turned on). The glide slope setting is three degrees on Runways 18R, 18L, and 36L (Runway 36R does not have glide slope instrumentation).²² These plots reveal that the sample of approaches is almost universally at or above the 3-degree approach slope. In addition, they reveal that a large proportion of the aircraft approach at significantly steeper angles than three degrees. These steeper angles imply the use of reduced power over the settings that would be required to maintain a 3-degree slope, all other parameters being equal. It should be noted that, even without instrumentation, a 3degree approach slope appears to be the effective "floor" for approaches to Runway 36R.



Air Carrier Jet departures, Runway 18R with Westshore Gate

Figure 7-2

March and October 1997 Data Samples (465 Operations)





HI O U G H CΟ UNTY AVIATION ΑU ТНО R ΤY S В Ο R **Penetration Plot for Westshore Gate Runway 18L Air Carrier Jet Departures** Figure 7-3

March and October 1997 Data Samples No Tracks Penetrated Gate Below 2,600 Feet (Out of 465 Operations)



Deviation From Center of Gate (Feet)



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Air Carrier Jet Departures, Runway 18L with Westshore Gate Figure 7-4

March and October 1997 Data Samples (4 Operations)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Penetration Plot for Westshore Gate Runway 18L Air Carrier Jet Departures Figure 7-5

March and October 1997 Data Samples 2 Tracks Penetrated Gate Below 2,600 Feet (Out of Total)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Air Carrier Jet Departures, Runway 18L with Westshore Gate Figure 7-6

July 1997 Data Sample (920 Operations)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Penetration Plot for Westshore Gate Runway 18L Air Carrier Jet Departures Figure 7-7

July 1997 Data Samples 681 Tracks Penetrated Gate (Out of 920 Tracks)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Air Carrier Jet Departures, Runways 36R and 36L, with 36R and 36L Gates Figure 7-8

March, July and October 1997 Data Samples

(2,148 Operations)

50000 ft

TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

Arrivals Departures Overflights



HILLSBOROUGHCOUNTYAVIATIONAUTHORITYPenetration Plot for Gate 36RBunway 36R and 36L Air Carrier Jet DeparturesFigure 7-9

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples 11 Tracks Penetrated Gate (Out of 2,148 Operations)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Penetration Plot for Gate 36L Runway 36R and 36L Air Carrier Jet Departures Figure 7-10

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples 33 Tracks Penetrated Gate (Out of 2,148 Operations)





Approach Altitude Profiles B727200s on Runway18R

Figure 7-11

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples (76 Operations)





Approach Altitude Profiles B727200s on Runway18L

Figure 7-12

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples (172 Operations)




HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Approach Altitude Profiles B727200s on Runway 36R

Figure 7-13

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples (61 Operations)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Approach Altitude Profiles B727200s on Runway 36L

Figure 7-14

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples (312 Operations)



Run-Up Procedures

The 1987 Part 150 included an approved measure for the HCAA to: "Designate engine runup areas." The study included a proposed runup policy and location. **Figure** 7-15 represents that recommendation.

Currently, the only regular runup activity is conducted at the Delta and US Airways maintenance facilities on the east side of the Airport as shown in Figure 4-16. Section 4.3.4 describes the average daily runup activity that the airlines conduct at these two facilities, which are modeled in the 2000 and 2005 contours. The contours clearly show the effects of this activity, in the form of bulges on the east side of the Airport at the locations of these two facilities. It should be noted that the INM does not assume any sound attenuation from structures in calculating the effect of runups; the maintenance hangars and associated walls provide some attenuation. The con-tours should be considered conservatively large in that area.

Runups conducted at the two maintenance facilities are audible in the Drew Park community, including outside of the buyout area. At least one resident of the Drew Park area has requested that the HCAA consider using the buyout area to install a berm or other type of barrier to mitigate runup noise.

For the limited remaining runup activity, the HCAA Operations staff designate locations that do not conflict with airport operations on a case-by-case basis. In most instances the location shown in Figure 7-15 is used. Other locations are used too infrequently to depict.

The noise level produced in the community by run-up operations at the current Delta Airlines and USAirways facilities varies according to the type of aircraft conducting the operation, the power setting in use, and the meteorological conditions. However, maximum noise levels in excess of 75 decibels can occur up to a mile from the facility. The 2000 and 2005 noise contours without the run up enclosure (Figures 6-1 and 6-2) clearly show the effect of the existing runups, with the 65 dB DNL contour extending into the Drew Park community east of the airport in both years, and even the 70 dB DNL contour in the 2000 case.

Section 7.4.3 describes the analysis of a shared-use maintenance runup facility to address this issue. The proposed location is at the north runup location at the Delta Airlines maintenance facility shown in Figure 4-16.

Noise Barriers

The 1987 Part 150 included an FAAapproved measure for the HCAA to: "Augment the vegetation noise barrier along the western perimeter of the Airport." The highway structures west of the Airport make this recommendation largely irrelevant. Contrarv commonly-held to views. landscaping does not significantly attenuate sound unless there is heavy vegetation over relatively long distances. On the order of 100 feet of heavily-wooded area is required to provide five decibels of attenuation; this is the same level of attenuation from a single structure that breaks the line of sight from the noise source to the receiver. The existing highway structure west of the Airport provides this type of attenuation. One hundred feet of dense vegetation in addition to the highway structure would add only one or two additional decibels of attenuation.

It should also be recognized that any type of vegetation or structure has essentially no benefit once an aircraft is in the air and there is a direct line-of-sight path from it to the residences west of the Airport. Alternative 1 percent, po preferential run The runway

No further noise barriers west of the Airport appear to offer potential benefit.

Helipad

The original Part 150 included a measure to: "Establish a helipad on the east side of the Airport." The HCAA established this helipad at a location approximately 2,100 feet west of the east end of Runway 9-27, approximately 800 feet south of the runway centerline. The helipad location is shown on the existing airport layout presented in Figure 4-2 of the Draft Part 150 NEM Update documentation, and with the modeled helicopter flight tracks in Figure 4-15.

Helicopter operations and the helipad location do not affect the noise contours to any noticeable extent; therefore, there is no basis on which to consider a change in the helipad location.

7.4 POTENTIAL NEW OR REVISED MEASURES

Five categories of noise abatement measures were considered:

- preferential runway use
- noise abatement cockpit procedures
- runup noise control
- noise abatement flight paths
- noise abatement arrival procedures

7.4.1 Preferential Runway Use

Five potential revisions to the existing preferential runway program at TPA are described below.

Alternative 1a. Increase south flow to 80 percent, possibly through "formal" preferential runway program status.

The runway use analysis for this study revealed that south flow is used approximately 67 percent of the time overall. While this is a relatively high percentage of the time, it suggests that the ATCT typically assigns south flow up to approximately a 3-knot tail wind before switching to north flow. However, the FAA's criteria for assignment of the active runway actually allows the ATCT to allow up to a 5-knot tailwind (with clear and dry runways).²³ Wind data indicates that this criterion would allow south flow at least 80 percent of the time. However, the Tampa ATCT review of this proposal indicated that operational requirements would only permit them to reduce the gap between current and ideal implementation by 50 percent, or to 73 percent use of the preferential south flow, so the final contours for 2000 and 2005 with the revised NCP (shown in Figures 6-1 and 6-2) assumed this percentage.

Figure 7-16 presents DNL contours for application of the 80 percent assumption to the 2000 operations, compared to the 2000 Base Case contours. As expected, the contours shrink to the north and expand to the south. It is estimated that this revision to the noise abatement program would result in a net *increase* in the residential population within the 65 dB DNL contour by approximately 100 persons.²⁴ The increased population appears to be largely in the Dana Shores neighborhood immediately west of TPA.

All Working Group members accepted this recommendation subject to the FAA ATCT suggestion that 73 percent compliance would be more reasonable to expect. There were no objectives to continued efforts to implement



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Runup Procedures Recommended in Original Part 150

Figure 7-15

PROPOSED HANDOUT DESCRIBING RUNUP POLICY

AIRCRAFT RUNUPS

As part of its Noise Abatement Program, the Tampa International Airport has established the following policy for engine maintenance runups.

Time: Runups shall only be conducted between 6:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m without prior approval. This limit has previously been in effect.

Location: Delta Air Lines will conduct runups at its maintenance area. All other extended turbojet runups (more than 30 seconds) shall be conducted at the location shown below, on Taxiway "N" just east of Taxiway "L."

Orientation: Aircraft orientation during runups at the Taxiway "N" site shall be limited to a heading of 345° to 165°, and a heading of 090° to 220° when Runway 9/27 is in use.

Your cooperation in carrying out the policy is appreciated. Let's help make Tampa International Airport a "Good Neighbor."





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY 2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1A, Preferential Runway Use -80% South Flow Figure 7-16



this measure to the maximum extent feasible. Moreover, the ATCT proceeded to make revisions to the existing Letter to Airmen to help meet this objective. Specifically, they added the wording regarding the treatment of pilot requests for non-preferred runways, as presented in Section 7.5.

Alternative 1b. Increase corporate jet compliance with restricted use of turbojet operations on and off the south end of Runway 18L-36R.

The runway use analysis for this study used a large sample of "radar" data obtained from the FAA's ARTS system for TPA. The sample included over 15,000 flight tracks from slightly over 18 days of operations in March and October 1997.²⁵ The data indicate that overall compliance was extremely high with this component of the preferential runway program, as summarized in **Table 7.5**.

Working Group members agreed that air carrier compliance with this component of the runway use program appears to be as high as could be expected, given a reasonable balance between delay and noise considerations, but recommended analysis of increasing corporate jet compliance to the air carrier level. **Figure 7-17** presents DNL contours for application of this assumption to modeled 2000 operations compared to the 2000 Base Case contours. The two contour sets do not differ significantly over any populated area. A difference in the residential population within the 65 dB DNL contour is not expected.

Corporate aviation representatives to the Working Groups requested that this restriction be eased because it increases taxi time to and from corporate facilities on the east side of the Airport. This option is considered in Alternative 1e.

Alternative 1c. Increased compliance with nighttime preference for 18R departures and 36L arrivals.

The existing preferential runway program calls for turbojets to depart on Runway 18R and to arrive on Runway 36L between midnight and 6 a.m., when traffic, wind, weather, and field conditions permit, without delays to arrivals or departures.

As shown in **Table 7.6**, the ARTS data analysis indicates partial compliance with this preferential runway program component.

Table 7.5

Turbojet Operations on Runways 18L and 36R from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from March and October 1997

Operator/Aircraft Tupe	Approximate Overall (24-Hour) Use of Runway End ¹			
	18L Departures	36R Arrivals		
Air Carrier Jets	1%	Less than 1%		
Corporate Jets	4%	8%		

¹These runway use figures are for 24-hour runway use. Because of the numerical dominance of daytime activity, the 24-hour use rates are essentially the same as daytime runway use (under both the DNL definition of day, 7 a.m. - 10 p.m., and the TPA preferential runway program definition of day, 6 a.m. - midnight). Alternative 1b discusses the specific issue of nighttime preferential runway compliance.

Source: HMMH analysis.

Table 7.6

		Number	of Operation	ons by Ty	pe of Opera	tor, Type	of Operation	on, and Ru	nway End	
	18	L	18	R	36	L	36R Total		tal	
	Air Carrier	Corp. Jet								
Arr.	29	4	15	1	56	1	0	2	100	8
Dep.	0	0	1	0	7	0	2	11	10	11

Turbojet Operations from Midnight to 6 a.m. from 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from March and October 1997

Source: HMMH analysis.

Operations complied with this measure to the extent that use of the least preferred runways was below 2 percent; out of a total sample of 129 operations, there were no turbojet departures on Runway 18L and only two turbojet arrivals on Runway 36R. However, there were 20 departures on 36R and 36L, and 49 arrivals on 18R and 18L. These 69 operations represent approximately 53 percent of the operations during the midnight to 6 a.m. preferential runway period.

Working Group members agreed that it would be reasonable to assume that tighter implementation could result in adherence to this measure to the extent permitted by wind conditions, which is approximately 81 percent for departures on Runway 18R, and 85 percent for arrivals on Runway 36L.

Figure 7-18 presents DNL contours for application of this assumption to the 2000 operations compared to the 2000 Base Case contours. As expected, the contours shrink to the north and expand to the south. It is estimated that this revision to the noise abatement program would result in a net *increase* in the residential population within the 65 dB DNL contour by approximately 100 persons. The increased population would be largely Mariner Street in the Beach Park community immediately south of TPA.

No Working Group members identified any significant capacity, delay, or other negative operational implications that this alternative might cause.

Alternative 1d. Extend nighttime preference for 18R departures and 36L arrivals to all aircraft.

Several members of the general public, as well as Working Group and Community Input Group members, suggested consideration of extending the nighttime (midnight to 6 a.m.) preferential runway program to all aircraft types.

Figure 7-19 presents DNL contours for application of this assumption to the 2000 operations compared to the 2000 Base Case contours. As expected, the contours shrink to the north and expand to the south. It is estimated that this revision to the noise abatement program would result in a net increase in the residential population within the 65 dB DNL contour by approximately 200 persons. The increased population would be largely on Mariner Street in the Beach Park community south of TPA, with a slight increase in the Dana Shores community immediately to the west.

No Working Group members identified any significant capacity, delay, or other negative





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY 2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1C, Preferential Runway Use -Improved Nighttime Preferential Figure 7-18





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY 2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 1D, Preferential Runway Use -Night Preferential for All Aircraft Type Figure 7-19



operational implications that this alternative might cause.

Alternative 1e. Ease restrictions on turbojet 36R arrivals and 18L departures.

Corporate aviation representatives on the Working Groups requested that the HCAA consider easing the restriction on use of 18L-36R, because of the longer taxi time between the west parallel and corporate facilities on the east side of the Airport. Two principal factors oppose this action: (1) it would represent a major change in noise abatement policy that is extremely important to residents south of the Airport (and that many have considered in making home purchase decisions), and (2) analyses and forecasts of airport delay indicate that turbojet use of the east parallel would not be required within the 5-year forecast time frame of the Part 150 The restriction could cause Update. excessive delay within the 20-year time frame of the Master Plan Update. That study will include a DNL contour forecast for the year 2020. However, that year is beyond the time frame for consideration in this study.

In response to these concerns, corporate jet pilots suggested that they could turn sharply and early enough on departure from Runway 18L to sidestep to the west, so as to effectively follow the preferred departure path for Runway 18R, thereby avoiding residential areas south of the Airport. The pilots requested that flight track data be used to investigate this option, including information on where corporate jets reach 400 feet AGL (the earliest point at which they may initiate a turn), and comparisons of actual corporate and air carrier jet tracks on the two runways.

Appendix L provides a copy of a letter provided to three corporate jet pilots who

commented on this matter. The appendix also includes copies of their letters.

Figure 7-20 presents a plot of corporate jet altitude profiles obtained from the 1997 ARTS data samples. That plot indicates that most corporate jets reach 400 feet somewhere between the southern end of Runway 18L and Interstate 275 (Frankland Bridge).

Figure 7-21 compares plots of corporate jet departure flight tracks for Runway 18L, and air carrier jet departure flight tracks for Runway 18R from the 1997 ARTS data samples.

Figure 7-22 compares plots of the points at which those tracks penetrate an artificial airspace "gate" or window in space over I-275. The plots assume the observer is looking south from the Airport toward the bay. The left (east) end of the gate is approximately at Westshore Boulevard. The right end of the gate is approximately 20,000 feet to the west over I-275.

The plots reveal that corporate jet tracks are centered on a point approximately 5,000 feet east of the air carrier jet tracks, approximately the same distance as the separation of the parallel runways, despite the fact that pilots are assigned a sharper turn on Runway 18L than 18R (210° versus 200).

This analysis did not support easing the restriction on use of 18L-36R. Moreover, easing the restriction would increase airport activity over communities south of the Airport, in a manner that is contrary to established noise abatement policy implications. In the absence of both delay and noise abatement benefits. no justification can be found for changing the existing restriction, at least within the 5-year Part 150 forecast period.

In response to corporate jet pilot requests, the HCAA proposes to undertake the following test, outside the Part 150 process:

Following FAA approval of the revised NCP, and after the HCAA has obtained flight tracking and portable noise monitoring equipment, the HCAA will request that the FAA initiate a test of eased use of Runway 18L for departures to allow pilots to demonstrate their ability to consistently make early turn in a manner that will have the same effect on the noise contours as the current departures on Runway 18R. The test will consider easing the restriction 24-hours a day. or for some portion(s) of the day. If the test indicates the procedures are feasible, the FAA will likely require an Environmental Assessment (EA). If the test and EA are successfully approved, and the measure implemented on a continuing basis, the FAA and HCAA will consider establishment of an appropriate Standard Instrument Departure (SID) which would be issued only to pilots who had demonstrated their ability to comply with the procedures, and who had entered into a Letter of Agreement with the HCAA and the FAA, recognizing that permission to use the SID was contingent on continued, demonstrated compliance based on HCAA flight track monitoring.

7.4.2 Noise Abatement Cockpit Procedures

Noise Abatement Departure Procedures

FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 91-53A ("Noise Abatement Departure Profiles") "describes acceptable criteria for safe NADP profiles for subsonic turbojet-powered airplanes with a maximum certificated gross takeoff weight over 75,000 pounds." The original version of this circular, AC 91-53, was adopted in 1978. That version—in effect at the time of the original Part 150—identified a *single* noise abatement departure profile for all situations. While the original study was silent on the matter of NADP profiles, information provided by the airlines for other airport studies indicated that most operators followed the AC 91-53 procedures at that time.

In 1990, in response to widespread concern over safety issues related to noise abatement departure procedures, the FAA instituted an Aviation Rulemaking Advisory Committee (ARAC) to assess NADP guidelines. The ARAC included representatives from airports, air carriers, Federal regulatory and research agencies, and communities. The committee developed two alternative procedures, which were tested by the FAA and the airlines at John Wayne Airport (Orange County, California) in 1992, and for which the FAA subsequently issued guide-lines in AC 91-53A, replacing AC 91-53.

Unlike its predecessor, AC 91-53A defines: (1) a close-in NADP to provide noise reduction for land uses in close proximity to the departure end of an airport runway, and (2) a distant NADP to provide noise reduction for more remote areas.

The AC defines the procedures generally, identifying a minimum set of operating parameters for carriers to use in developing their own aircraft-specific procedures. Because of the complexity of individual aircraft and airline operating procedures, the AC does not (and could not) provide precise cockpit instructions.

Major differences between AC 91-53A and AC 91-53 include the following:

• For either the close-in or distant NADP, thrust reductions can be initiated under AC 91-53A at 800 feet above airport



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

Departure Altitude Profiles Corporate Jets on Runway 18L

Figure 7-20

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples (69 Operations)





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Departure Track Plots for Corporate Jet Departures on Runway 18L and Aircarrier Jet Departures on Runway 18R Figure 7-21



Corporate Jet Departures Runway 18L

March, July, and October 1997 Data Samples

(69) Operations

Air Carrier Jet Departures Runway 18R

March and October 1997 Data Samples

(Runway 18R was closed for rehabilitation in July)

(472) Operations







elevation (AAE), 200 feet lower than the 1,000 feet AAE that AC 91-53 recommended, but 300 feet higher than the minimum cutback altitude in AC 91-53.

- AC 91-53A defines cutback thrust for all aircraft as "no less than the thrust necessary to maintain a takeoff path engine-inoperative climb gradient."²⁶ AC 91-53 identified the thrust for highbypass-ratio aircraft reducing power at 1,000 feet AAE as "normal climb thrust."
- AC 91-53A's close-in NADP recommends that flaps be retracted after reaching 800 feet AAE and *after thrust reduction*, compared with flap retraction at 1,000 feet AAE, but before reducing thrust, in AC 91-53.
- Like AC 91-53, the distant NADP in AC 91-53A recommends *flap retraction before the thrust cutback*, but, like the close-in NADP, this cutback can be at a lower altitude and to a lower thrust level than AC 91-53A.

Table 7.7 summarizes these differences. As indicated, the major difference between the close-in and distant NADP is the timing of the flap/slat retraction relative to the thrust cutback.

AC 91-53A allows airport operators to work with aircraft operators to select the

appropriate NADP for each runway end. This level of site-specific program customization was a major step over the previous AC.

Evaluation of NADP Alternatives at TPA

To consider the NADP alternatives and their potential effectiveness at TPA, **Figures 7-23 through 7-25** present and compare the 95 dB Sound Exposure Level (SEL) contours for straight-out departures on Runways 18R, 36R, and 36L, respectively, for the Boeing 737-200 with the JT8D-17 engine. Each figure presents contours for the following three departure procedures:

- Standard (non-NADP) departure procedure, as modeled in the INM.
- Close-in NADP.
- Distant NADP.

The contours were prepared using the FAA's INM Version 5.1a. The INM does not include modeling inputs for the NADPs. These NADP contours are based on data collected from airlines for a similar analysis at Palm Beach International Airport (PBI). The FAA requires that consultants and airports submit detailed documentation justifying the NADP modeling inputs used in developing official NEM contours. Following consideration of the alternatives is a discussion of how to obtain authorized inputs for critical aircraft types at TPA.

	AC 91 53	AC 91-53A		
	AC 91-55	Close-In	Distant	
Minimum thrust cutback altitude	mum thrust cutback altitude 1,000' AAE (recommended) 800' AAE		0' AAE	
Cutback thrust	high-bypass-ratio engines: normal climb	no less than minimum one-engine out		
	low-bypass-ratio engines: no less than minimum 1-engine out			
Flap/slat retraction	prior to cutback	after thrust cutback	prior to thrust cutback	

Table 7.7

Comparison of AC 91-53 NADP to AC 91-53A Close-In and Distant NADPs

Source: HMMH analysis.

The B737-200 was used as the example aircraft in these figures because it is the most common type of older, relatively noisy Stage 2 aircraft currently operating at TPA. It is likely that "hush-kitted" Stage 3 versions of this aircraft type will continue to operate at TPA after 2000. The NADP benefits of the Stage 3 version will essentially be the same as the Stage 2 version depicted here.

As shown in Figures 7-23 through 7-25, the close-in and distant NADP contours are narrower but longer than those for the standard procedure. The distant NADP contour is smaller than the close-in contour in all areas.

Based on this analysis, it is recommended that the revised NCP include the distant NADP.

7.4.3 Runup Noise Control

Noise from engine runups at the US Airways and Delta maintenance facilities is one of the most significant issues of public concern.

The noise level produced in the community by run-up operations at the current Delta Airlines and USAirways facilities varies according to the type of aircraft conducting the operation, the power setting in use, and the meteorological conditions. However. maximum noise levels in excess of 75 decibels can occur up to a mile from the facility. The 2000 and 2005 noise contours without the run up enclosure (Figures 6-1 and 6-2) clearly show the effect of the existing runups, with the 65 dB DNL contour extending into the Drew Park community east of the airport in both years, and even the 70 dB DNL contour in the 2000 case.

Data collected indicated that the Delta and US Airways conducted a combined total of approximately 21 runup sessions per week in 1997, of which approximately 14 were between 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. (DNL "nighttime").²⁷ Only half of the weekly runup sessions (approximately 11 per week on average) involved power settings above idle, and idle runups do not produce noise levels loud enough to require the use of an enclosure. It should be noted that US Airways has initiated maintenance on Airbus A319, A320, and A321 aircraft, and maintenance runup activity is expected to increase at the Airport.

The Working Groups and Community Input Group requested noise benefit and construction cost information for runup enclosures. This information was obtained from the two sources described below.

Chicago - O'Hare International Airport Runup Enclosure Study

The Chicago Department of Aviation recently completed the installation of a runup enclosure designed for shared use by two major air carriers with maintenance facilities at O'Hare International Airport—United and American. That 3-sided facility is approximately 300 feet wide and 300 feet deep, and has no door. It is designed for "taxi-in, taxi-out" operation of aircraft up to a Boeing 757 (130-foot wingspan) and "pushin, pull-out" use by aircraft up to a Boeing 747 or 777 (198-foot wingspan). The facility is used three to four times per night (10 p.m. to 7 a.m.), i.e., 21 to 28 nighttime runup sessions per week.

The 11 runup sessions that Delta and US Airways conducted per week in 1997, on average, represent less than half of just the *nighttime* use at O'Hare. Even with the potential increase in runup activity associated with the US Airways' Airbus maintenance, a shared facility would accommodate current runup demand at TPA, and would provide



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY



SBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY L 737-200 95 dB SEL Contours for INM Standard Departure Procedures, and for Close-in and DistantNoise Abatement Departure Procedures, on Runway 36L

Figure 7-25



significant capacity for growth in maintenance activity.

The O'Hare enclosure was constructed by Blast Deflectors Incorporated (BDI), at a cost of approximately \$3 million, exclusive of ramp construction, since it was built on an existing ramp. The measurements conducted for BDI showed noise reduction of three to five decibels three miles from the facility under "adverse" wind conditions (wind blowing toward the community), and up to 10 to 11 dB in more neutral or beneficial wind conditions.

Portland International Airport Ground Runup Enclosure Study

A study of runup enclosure options was conducted for Portland (Oregon) International Airport. That study estimated potential costs for enclosures for several aircraft types, as summarized in **Table 7.8**.²⁸

Computed noise analyses indicate that noise reductions of 10 to 15 dBA are possible in most wind conditions at community locations approximately 5,000 to 10,000 feet from the enclosure.

Conclusion

These runup data suggest that the HCAA could reasonably expect approximately a 10

dB reduction from an open 3-sided enclosure properly oriented on the airfield. The enclosure could be shared by all turbojet operators conducting maintenance runups at power settings above idle. The enclosure would cost \$1 to \$3 million, depending on configuration and whether or not it would be necessary to construct a runup pad. Based on the fact that prevailing winds are from the south, the structure would be oriented with the opening to the south, and the engine exhausts facing north. This orientation would maximize the conditions under which the facility could be used, and would maximize noise reduction in the critical directions to the sides and rear of the aircraft.

7.4.4 Noise Abatement Flight Paths

The first round noise analysis resulted in the identification of the following two flight path issues of significant public concern:

- Short finals conducted by aircraft on approach to Runways 36L and 36R when conducting east downwinds.
- Early turns conducted by propeller-driven aircraft departing on Runways 36L and 36R.

The Working Groups requested noise contour analyses of these issues.

Aircraft Type	Dimensions	Runup Enclosure Cost	Enclosure Door Cost	Runup Pad Cost ¹	Total Cost
F-28	100' by 100', 30' high	\$700,000	\$400,000	\$1 million	\$2.1 million
<u>MD-11</u>	205' by 205', 45' high	\$3 million	\$1 million	\$2.4 - \$3 m.	\$6.4 - \$7 m.
Boeing 737	N/A	\$1 million	\$600,000	\$1.2 million	\$2.8 million
Boeing 757	140' wide, 165' deep, 30' high	\$1.2 million	\$800,000	\$1.4 - \$1.6 m.	\$3.4 - \$3.6 m
¹ The runup p	ad costs included engineering, e	xcavation, paving, d	rainage, lighting	signage, relocation	of some existing
facilities, a 15	5% contingency, and other costs.	, r - 6, -		, s.B.a.ge, relocation	or some existing

Source: HMMH research.

Runup Enclosure Cost Estimates for a Variety of Air Carrier Aircraft Types

Table 7.8

Alternative 4a. Short finals conducted by aircraft on approach to Runways 36L and 36R, when conducting east downwinds.

The 1997 ARTS data sample reveals that substantial numbers of aircraft make east downwind approaches to 36L and 36R, with relatively short finals. **Table 7.9** summarizes the observed frequency of east downwinds where the "base leg" (the eastto-west turn from the downwind to the final approach course) was north of MacDill Air Force Base.

Figure 7-26 presents DNL contours for 2000 operations, with the assumption that early turns north of MacDill are eliminated, compared to the 2000 Base Case contours. This contour case does not differ significantly from the base case contours. No change in population within the 65 dB contour is estimated. However, single event analysis reveals that the length of the final approach legs for these arrivals has a significant effect on population exposure, as discussed below.

Figure 7-27 presents 70 dBA single event noise contours for five different flight paths.²⁹ Three of the paths involve turns north of MacDill, while the other two paths involve straight-in approaches from south of MacDill and are essentially identical within the figure. These tracks are based on radar

observations of the most common groupings of east-downwind approaches.

Residential population within the 70 dBA contour for tracks that turn south of MacDill (tracks Arr36la1 and Arr36la9) is estimated to be approximately 500. The encompassed population for tracks that turn north of MacDill is approximately as follow:

- Arr36la3 (turns north of MacDill) 14,400 residents
- Arr36la5 (turns north of MacDill) 15,700 residents
- Arr36la7 (turns north of MacDill) 13,100 residents

Elimination of early turns would clearly result in sharp reductions in single event exposure.

FAA ATCT staff on the Technical Working Group indicated that prohibition of turns north of MacDill could significantly increase delay during busy traffic periods. It is suggested that the measure could be implemented on an informal basis when traffic and other operating conditions permit.

Alternative 4b. Early turns by propellerdriven aircraft departing on Runways 36L and 36R.

Table	7.9
-------	-----

Frequency of East Downwinds Based on 15-Day ARTS Data Sample from March and October 1997

Aircraft Type	East Downwin (Turn	ds to 36L with Short Finals s North of MacDill)	East Downwinds to 36R with Short Finals (Turns North of MacDill)		
	Day	Night (10 p.m. – 7 a.m.)	Day	Night (10 p.m 7 a.m.)	
Air Carrier Jets	8%	15%	0%	0%	
Corporate Jets	11%	11%	0%	0%	
Propeller Aircraft	6%	30%	8%	21%	

Source: HMMH analysis.



LSBOROUGH HIL COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY 2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 4A, Elimination of Turbojet East Base Legs North of MacDill AFB Figure 7-26 (D) CHO Expressway (CHIC) 0.3 Veterans 間刻 584 DDT 皕 建建建 HillsboroughCounty | Tampa City Limits ΞΠ 92 580 **18** 589 181 (600) 500 NO. Courtney 92 Campbell Causeway G Tampa 60 International (589) Airport* 36R 36L Airport Boundary City/County Boundary 1998 Base Case 587 Alternate 4A 65DNL 60

TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

Howard Frankland Bridge

Source: HMMH Analysis

4000 Ft.

275



TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND F.A.R. PART 150 STUDY

Residents in communities north of TPA have commented that early departure turns by turboprops are a major issue of concern.³⁰ The FAA assigns propeller-driven aircraft departing on Runways 36L and 36R to three basic flight paths:

Runway 36L

- 1) runway heading
- 2) 20 degree turn (340 degree heading)
- 3) 50 degree turn (310 degree heading)

Runway 36R

- 1) runway heading
- 2) 20 degree turn (20 degree heading)
- 3) 60 degree turn (60 degree heading)

The track assignments are based on destination and traffic considerations. For example, on Runway 36L, westerly and southerly departures are assigned the 20 degree and 50 degree turns, respectively, as a rule. Other propeller departures are assigned the straight-out track unless a faster jet aircraft is waiting to depart next. In that case, the FAA assigns the propeller aircraft a turn to provide a path that diverges from the straight-out path of the following turbojet. If there are multiple propeller aircraft with a turbojet following, the FAA uses both turn headings.

Figures 7-28 and 7-29 present 70 dBA single event noise contours for the most common INM turboprop class operating at TPA, for prototypical tracks off of Runways 36L and 36R¹ that represent the three basic heading assignments made by the FAA. Note that the modeling tracks are based on "center of gravity" paths from actual radar observations of aircraft following these instructions; the modeled tracks do not match the exact heading assignments. It is estimated that the residential populations within these contours are approximately as follows:

- Runway 36L straight-out 200 residents
- Runway 36R straight-out 200 residents
- Runway 36L 20 degree turn 300 residents
- Runway 36R 20 degree turn 400 residents
- Runway 36L 50 degree turn 400 residents
- Runway 36R 60 degree turn 500 residents

Increased angles of turn clearly increase exposure to single event noise levels. As a compromise between operational necessity and noise abatement, it is suggested that a contour case be evaluated where turns over 20 degrees would be prohibited. This alternative would allow the FAA to assign diverging paths, except in the cases where two turboprops are followed by a turbojet.

Figure 7-30 presents DNL contours for application of this assumption to the 2000 operations compared to the 2000 Base Case contours. The figure reveals minor differences in the two contours, including a slight expansion to the immediate northeast of the Airport that increases the encompassed population by approximately 100 residents.

The Working Groups also suggested assigning runways and headings based on destination in a more formal manner than currently occurs (i.e., for east and southbound departures to be assigned 36R). However, the single event contours indicate that impacts are relatively equal on both sides of the Airport, and that it is more appropriate to reduce the incidence of early turns.

Further ATCT input led to the understanding that an outright prohibition on turns greater than 20° might result in excessive delay in some conditions. At the ATCT's request, this measure was revised to allow for sharper turns when excessive delay might result, or for other safety-related reasons. Based on ATCT input, the revised Noise Exposure Map Contours (Figures 6-1 and 6-2) assume 50 percent reduction in turns greater than 20° (i.e., turns to 310° on 36L and to 60° on 36R.

7.4.5 Noise Abatement Arrival Procedures

The effect of increasing approach slopes over the 3-degree standard that is imple-mented by the glide slope instrumentation at TPA³¹ was analyzed.

Table 7.10 presents the estimated reduction in maximum A-weighted sound level of 737-200 approaches that would result from increasing the approach slope from 3 to 4.5 degrees. These estimates were calculated using the INM for the noise monitoring locations from the NEM development phase of the study. The calculations are for straightin approaches to Runways 18R, 18L, and 36L, as appropriate for each location.

As shown in Table 7.10, the results are A rule of thumb to consider in mixed. reviewing these results is that it is highly unlikely that a person will notice a change in A-weighted maximum levels of less than two to three decibels in a normal day-to-day listening environment. Only Sites 1 and 15, immediately off the end of Runway 36L, have estimated reductions over two decibels. The estimated noise level actually goes up at more sites than it goes down. This is because the increased altitude may actually reduce the attenuation provided by interaction with the ground, that occurs at low propagation path angles, when sites are to the side of the approach path.

It should be noted that the 4.5-degree approach slope used in this analysis is higher than many turbojet aircraft could safely use, including such common aircraft as the Boeing 757. A more reasonable angle would yield even less significant noise reduction.

Table 7.10

INM-Estimated Reduction in Maximum A-Weighted Sound Level of Straight-In B737-200 Approaches from Increasing Approach Slope from 3 to 4.5 Degrees

Site	Runway 18L	Runway 18R	Runway 361	
1. Mariner Street, Beach Park			-2 3	
2. Longfellow Ave., Sunset Park			-0.8	
3. St. Croix Drive, Culbreath Isles			1 3 (increase)	
4. Pepperell Dr., Carroliwood	N. A Aircraft ar	e not likely to be establi	shed on glide slope	
5. Sierra Madre Drive	0.2 (increase)	0.1 (increase)		
6. Westford Cir., Village West	N. A. – Sites ar	e too distant Aircraft ar	e not likely to be	
7. Clubhouse, Plantation		established on glide slop	e	
7A. Park Crest, Plantation		Surface of Surface or ob	•	
8. Twelve Oaks Blvd.	1.5 (increase)	1.3 (increase)		
9. D'Azzo Ave., Drew Park	N.A Sideline site			
10. Johns Road, Northwest Park	0.4 (increase)	1.3 (increase)		
11. West Laurel St.			0.8 (increase)	
12. North St./Occident Ave.	0.3 (increase)	0.5 (increase)		
13. Leeward Dr., Watermill Village	0.9 (increase)	0.6 (increase)		
14. Doral Drive, Dana Shores		N.A Sideline site.	I	
15. Cypress Point Park			-2.3	
16. Aileen St.		N.A Sideline site.		

Source: HMMH analysis.



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Representative 70dB Maximum A-Weighted Single Event Contours for Shorts SD-330 Twin-Engine Turboprop Departures off of Runway 36L Figure 7-28





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY Representative 70dB Maximum A-Weighted Single Event Contours for Shorts SD-330 Twin-Engine Turboprop Departures off of Runway 36R Figure 7-29





COUNTY HILLSBOROUGH AVIATION AUTHORITY 2000 Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) Contours for Noise Abatement Alt. 4B, Elimination of Propeller Departure Turns Sharper than 20 Degrees, Compared to Base Case





7.4.6 Modeling Assumptions for Preferred Alternative

The following revisions to the TPA noise abatement program were recommended:

Preferential Runway Use

- Assume 73 percent compliance with daytime south-flow preferential.
- Extend nighttime (midnight to 6 a.m.) preferential runway program to all aircraft types, and assume 81 percent compliance for departures on 18R and 85 percent for arrivals on 36L.

The FAA Air Traffic Control Tower at Tampa indicated that they believed it would be reasonable to expect this level of compliance through improved wording in the Tower Letter to Airmen. Appendix D presents a copy of the current Tower Letter to Airmen on the "Informal Runway Use Program" that the Tower issued during the study partly in response to this objective. The Tower added the second paragraph in the Letter with the specific purpose of achieving the desired level of preferential runway use.

The Tower provided the estimate of compliance that this improved program would yield, for use in developing the revised noise contours. In addition to this very positive action by the Tower, the operations monitoring system that the HCAA proposes to install as part of the revised NCP will provide the airport staff with a means to monitor actual runway use and provide appropriate feedback to the Tower and aircraft operators to maximize compliance.

Noise Abatement Cockpit Procedures

• Recommend air carrier turbojet use of AC 91-53A "distant" noise abatement departure profile.

Runup Noise Control

• Construction of single shared-use runup enclosure sized for Delta and US Airways fleets, in the vicinity of existing maintenance areas. Use of runup facility would only be required for runups above idle power, with voluntary use for idle power runups. Assume 10 dBA attenuation will be achieved.

Noise Abatement Flight Paths

- When traffic, wind, weather, and field conditions permit, and no delays will result, turbojet arrivals on Runway 36L will not conduct base legs north of MacDill Air Force Base. Assume 50 percent reduction in current level of base legs occurring north of MacDill Air Force Base.
- When traffic, wind, weather, and field conditions permit, and no delays will result, propeller-driven aircraft will not conduct turns greater than 20 degrees on departure from Runways 36L and 36R prior to reaching 3,000 feet. Assume 50 percent reduction in current use of sharper turns.

7.5 UPDATED LETTER TO AIRMEN

On July 1, 1998, the FAA Air Traffic Manager for the TPA ATCT issued "Tampa Air Traffic Control Tower Letter to Airmen No. 98-05" (see Appendix D). A copy of that letter is appended to this document. It includes several changes that are consistent with noise abatement analysis results to date, including the following:

• The preferential runway program instructions include the following statement:

Pilots requesting to use a runway other than the active are expected to advise the control tower. These requests will be honored; however, the Tower will advise that the requested runway is a deviation from the Noise Abatement Runway Use Program and will advise of any expected delay. These deviations from the Informal Runway Use Program will be noted in the Facility Record of Operations (FAA 7230-4). This revision requires that ATCT staff implement effectively the same process that a formal runway use program would require. HCAA should monitor runway use under this revised order to determine the extent to which ATCT staff adhere to these better-defined assignment practices. The updated Part 150 NCP should include a recommendation to officially adopt the preferential runway program on a formal basis, and to recognize the importance of ongoing implementation and monitoring.

• A new paragraph relating to east base legs north of MacDill:

Noise Sensitive Area. Between the hours of 11 p.m. and 6 a.m., when traffic conditions permit, turbojet arrivals to Runway 36L shall be vectored to avoid the Interbay Area (peninsula south of Runway 36R).

This paragraph represents nighttime implementation of the recommended restriction on east base leg turns north of MacDill.

Chapter Eight Land Use Compatibility

The HCAA, cooperation with in Hillsborough County and the City of Tampa, has worked to minimize non-compatible land uses in the areas surrounding TPA. cooperatively prepared Thev and implemented land use regulations, as discussed in Chapter Five, have proven to be highly effective in the prevention of noncompatible development. Since the initiation of the first Part 150 program in 1985, the population within the DNL 65 contour area has declined from 14,200 to 310 in 1999.

This chapter reviews the 1985 FAR Part 150, identifies future non-compatible land uses, and evaluates land use alternatives to further reduce non-compatibility.

8.1 REVIEW OF 1985 FAR PART 150

The 1985 FAR Part 150 Study accepted by the HCAA recommended five preventive land use measures and two remedial land use measures.

8.1.1 1985 FAR Part 150 Land Use Recommendations

Brief descriptions of the recommended preventive measures follow:

1. Zoning for Compatible Use - This measure recommended that the comprehensive plans and zoning maps

be amended to show permitted compatible uses in airport noise zones and allow only low density uses in noise zones to prevent new development of residential dwelling units and other noise sensitive land uses from being constructed within the 65 DNL areas north and south of the Airport.

- 2. Overlay Zoning study ----The recommended that the existing zoning regulations be amended to restrict new residential development and other noncompatible uses in airport noise zones, noise reduction require or to construction techniques for land uses permitted in noise zones.
- 3. Purchase of Undeveloped Land This measure called for the purchase of land to (1) maintain as vacant land, (2) develop for compatible use, or (3) sell for development in compatible use.
- 4. Public Information Program The study recommended the development of a package of aircraft noise zones and noise impacts information, including explanatory brochures and noise control maps. The purpose would be to raise public awareness about purchasing real estate in non-compatible zones and, thereby, discourage builders from developing in these zones.
- 5. Soundproofing New Construction In areas within the 65 DNL where the land use would not be changed, the study recommended that the building codes be

amended to require noise reduction construction building approval for new development.

The 1985 FAR Part 150 Study also recommended the following remedial measures to alleviate non-compatibility with existing land uses:

- 1. Purchase of Avigation Easements This recommendation called for the purchase of easements from property owners in airport noise zones permitting both overflights of aircraft and the associated noise.
- 2. Acquisition of Developed Land The study recommended that developed property with non-compatible uses be purchased to (1) keep it vacant and unused, (2) redevelop it for compatible uses, or (3) resell it for compatible use.

8.1.2 Implementation of the FAR Part 150 Recommendations

As discussed in Section 5.3, both the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County adopted land use measures in coordination with the HCAA that effectively prohibited new, noncompatible land use in the areas surrounding TPA. These measures incorporated much of the preventive program recommended in the Part 150 Study in the 1980s.

The adoption of the Comprehensive Plans of the City and the County implemented recommendations for excluding noncompatible land uses in the areas north and south of the Airport where the areas within the 65 DNL were primarily located. As previously noted, the County adoption of its Land Development Code in 1989 established special airport zoning districts prohibiting non-compatible land uses. To develop land use compatibility, the City also adopted airport-related zoning to restrict land use types, heights of structures, and the intensity of development.

8.1.3 Results of Implementation

The noise impacts at TPA have been decreasing since the 1985 FAR Part 150 Study was completed and implemented. This has primarily been a result of the cooperative efforts bv successful Hillsborough County, the City of Tampa, and the HCAA, and the increased utilization of Stage 3 aircraft. The land use regulations that the County and the City have developed have precluded the introduction of any new residential or other noise sensitive land uses into the 65 DNL areas surrounding the Airport since the completion of the 1985 FAR Part 150 Study.

8.2 FUTURE (2005) NON-COMPATIBLE LAND USES

The 2005 DNL contours are smaller in area than the 2000 contours. This is primarily the result of the future utilization of quieter aircraft. If land uses remain as they are today, there would be ten dwellings remaining within the 65 DNL for the forecasted 2005 DNL contour.

The potential for developing additional noncompatible land uses in the future was virtually eliminated by the comprehensive plan and zoning measures adopted by Hillsborough County and the City of Tampa in 1989 following the 1985 Part 150 Study. **Table 8.1** summarizes non-compatible land use properties relative to the 2000 and 2005 noise contours, without the recommended noise compatibility program. This analysis is based on the existing pattern of land use. Figure 6-1 presents the 2000 condition, **Figure 8-1** presents the 2005 noise contours without consideration of the noise abatement measures recommended in Chapter Seven.

8.3 RECOMMENDED LAND USE ALTERNATIVES

As discussed in Chapter Seven, the recommended land use element of the NCP is a refinement of the existing land use measures contained in the current NCP. The updated land use element of the NCP includes changes to five of the seven approved measures. Following are the three recommended measures to be continued without change and the three recommended measures to be modified from the existing NCP.

Measures recommended to be continued without change from the existing NCP:

- Zoning to promote compatible land use in airport noise zones and to allow only low density uses in noise zones.
- Overlay zoning to require noise reduction construction techniques for land uses permitted in noise zones.

• Public information program to provide information on aircraft noise zones and noise impacts.

Measures recommended to be modified from the existing NCP:

- Purchase of avigation easement from property owners in airport noise zones permitting overflight of aircraft and the associated noise. *Measure to be modified to be part of an acoustical treatment program for existing residencies*.
- Soundproofing of new construction to achieve the recommended Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) interior noise level standard of 45 dBA. This measure should be modified for remedial efforts (existing residences).

Measures not recommended for NCP.

- Purchase of undeveloped land to prevent non-compatible land uses from potential for developing. The development of non-compatible land uses in the future is minimal due to and zoning comprehensive plan measure, this measure is no longer needed.
- Purchase of developed lands. Developed non-compatible land within the future contours is minimal and use of soundproofing as a remedial measure will mitigation these parcels, this measure is no longer needed.

Table 8.1

Contour Interval	Residential Dwelling Units	Population
Current (2000)		
65-70	78	191
70-75	0	0
75-80	0	0
85+	0	0
Future (2005) without	ut the proposed Noise Compatibility	y Program
65-70	10	24
70-75	0	0
75-80	0	0
85+	0	0

Non-Compatible Land Use Properties by Noise Contour

Source: HNTB analysis.

8.4 POTENTIAL NEW OR REVISED LAND USE MEASURES

This section presents the rationale for recommended changes to the land use element of the existing NCP. These recommendations reflect the following developments since the adoption of the current program.

8.4.1 Aviation Easement Acquisition

This measure is part of the program for acoustical treatment of existing residences for the benefit of existing and future residents of these homes and to relieve HCAA from further mitigation responsibility associated with the impact of airport noise on these residences.

HCAA, in cooperation with the FAA, the City of Tampa, and Hillsborough County, is responsible for implementation.

8.4.2 Soundproofing/Climate Control Program

This measure would require the reduction of interior noise levels to 45 dBA for all residences within the 65 DNL contour. Twenty-two existing residences located on Mariner Street in the City of Tampa are within the 65 DNL. There is a total of 34 single family residences on Mariner Street in this residential neighborhood.

In addition, four homes are currently located north of Runway 18R-36L east of Benjamin Road in the vicinity of Bridal Veil Path within the DNL 65 dB contour. By the year 2005 it is estimated that because of the noise abatement measures recommended in this study this number will be reduced to 0 residences. Although this neighborhood is in a transition to non-residential uses these considered residences should be for inclusion in the soundproofing/climate control program.

It is recommended that all of the residences on Mariner Street in this neighborhood be included in the acoustical noise treatment program, starting with the homes within the


HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY 2005 Day-Night Average Sound Level Contours without the Proposed Noise Compatibility Program Figure 8-1



65 DNL and adding homes eastward as funding is available. In addition, there are four single family homes located in the Benjamin Road vicinity within the 65 DNL that is to be included in the program.

8.4.3 Purchase of Undeveloped Land

This measure would require additional acquisition of undeveloped land to prevent non-compatible development. Review of aerial mapping and field verification of data for the Tampa area found there is no undeveloped land zoned for residential use remaining in the DNL 65 dB contour. Therefore, no additional land would need to be acquired as part of the Part 150 process.

This program, when coupled with the implementation of the noise abatement recommendations, would benefit an estimated 17 people now residing within the 65 DNL and up to an estimated 75 people in the immediate neighborhood by reducing the interior noise level of these residences to 45 dB. This program, when coupled with the other NCP recommendations, would achieve an interior noise level of 45 dB or less for all homes in the vicinity of TPA.

Figure 6-4 presents the 2005 condition with the recommended noise compatibility program. **Table 8.2** summarizes noncompatible land use properties within the 2005 noise contours, with the recommended noise compatibility program.

The HCAA, in cooperation with the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County, would be responsible for implementation, with financial funding assistance from the FAA, subject to FAA approval.

Table	8.2
-------	-----

Contour Interval	Residential Dwelling Units	Population
Future (2005) with th	e proposed Noise Compatibility Pl	rogram
65-70	10	25
70-75	0	0
75-80	0	0
85+	0	0

Non-Compatible Land Use Properties by Noise Contour

Source: HNTB analysis.

Chapter Nine Recommended Noise Compatibility Program

As discussed in Section 1.2.1, the HCAA had overall responsibility for the conduct of the Part 150 update, including ultimate responsibility for the recommendation of measures for inclusion in the revised NCP. All of the final NCP measures that this document proposes for implementation are the recommendations of the HCAA, and not those of the project consultants or any other third party. See checklist item V.A.2, Appendix A.2.

Section 9.1 summarizes the noise abatement and land use measures that the Authority proposes for inclusion in the revised NCP. Section 9.2 summarizes program benefits. Section 9.3 summarizes NCP implementation documentation requirements set forth in the FAA's NCP checklist.

9.1 PROGRAM SUMMARY

The revised NCP for TPA includes nine measures: seven noise abatement measures and two land use measures.

Sections 9.1.1 and 9.1.2 define the noise abatement and land use measures. Chapters Seven and Eight present the analyses that led to the selection of those measures.

9.1.1 Noise Abatement Measures

The revised NCP includes the noise abatement measures below. They are defined in formal terms that adopt language from the existing ATCT/TRACON and Authority Letter of Agreement for the preferential runway and noise abatement flight path measures (measures 1 through 7). The descriptions indicate which measures are changed from the original NCP, and what FAA and HCAA actions are required to implement the change.³²

- 1. Maximize daytime (6 a.m. to midnight) – The south flow preferential, based on existing improved language in the current ATCT Letter to Airmen. (Existing measure, with improved implementation element.)
- 2. Adopt preferential order of runway use from existing ATCT Letter to Airmen – (Adopt existing measure in current Letter to Airmen as part of NCP.)
- 3. Extend night (midnight to 6 a.m.) -Preference for 36L arrivals and 18R departures to all aircraft. (Existing measure extended to all aircraft, not just turbojets.)
- 4. Initial turbojet departure headings (Adopt existing measure in current ATCT Letter to Airmen as part of NCP.)
- 5. Noise abatement propeller aircraft flight paths for Runway 36L and 36R departures – Minimize turns greater than 20°, as permitted by operating conditions. (New measure.)
- 6. Limit base legs for Runway 36L arrivals – Limiting base legs for

- Runway 36L arrivals north of MacDill AFB as permitted by operating conditions. (Adopt existing measure in current ATCT Letter to Airmen as part of NCP.)
- 7. Helipad on east side of the Airport (Continue existing NCP measure.)
- 8. Recommend turbojets use distant noise abatement departure procedures - (New measure.)
- 9. Recommend turbojets use ATA noise abatement arrival procedures -(Continue existing NCP measure.)
- 10. Construct shared runup enclosure for turbojet maintenance runups above idle power - Continue idle power runups in designated areas. (Add enclosure to existing measure.)
- 11. Amend Tower Letter to Airmen to Reflect Revised NCP – The TPA ATCT will revise the existing Letter to Airmen (presented in Appendix D) to reflect the NCP changes identified above. In addition, in order to ensure that the noise abatement elements of the NCP are implemented to the maximum feasible extent consistent with safe operation, the ATCT Manager has proposed revising the second paragraph of the Letter to state the following:

Pilots requesting to use a runway other than the active or to deviate from noise abatement flight tracks for reasons of operations safety are expected to advise the control tower. The Tower will honor these safety-related requests. However, the Tower will advise that the requested runway or flight track is a deviation from the Informal Runway Use Program and will advise of any expected delay. The Tower will not direct pilots to deviate from preferential runway use or noise abatement flight track

procedures unless the deviation is required to avoid unsafe operations or significant delay. All deviations from the Informal Runway Use Program, including preferential runway use and noise abatement tracks, will be noted in the Facility Record of Operations (FAA 7230-4).

9.1.2 Land Use Measures

The original NCP included seven land use measures, of which one was remedial and six were preventative measures. Although the specific measures recommended in the previous Part 150 were not implemented, the comprehensive plans for growth management adopted by both the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County have served to reduce non-compatible development. The revised NCP includes five of the seven original measures—three without revision and two with revisions to reflect current conditions and policies.

Preventive Measures

Continued application of these measures is recommended to maintain the current compatible development trends in the airport environs.

Existing Preventative Measure 1: Zoning for Compatible Use – This measure will prevent new development of residential dwellings and other noise sensitive land uses from being constructed with the DNL 65 dBA contour. (No Change.)

Existing Preventative Measure 2: Overlay Zoning – This measure will prevent new residential development and other noncompatible uses in airport noise zones. (No Change.)

Existing Preventative Measure 3: Public Information Program – This measure will raise public awareness in purchasing real estate in non-compatible zones. (No Change.)

Existing Preventative Measure 4: Soundproofing of New Construction - The original NCP recommended that the Airport provide soundproofing of new construction to achieve recommended EPA interior noise level standards of 45 dBA for buildings within the DNL 65 dB contour. The NCP should be revised such that this measure becomes a remedial measure. This measure is described within the remedial measure discussion.

Remedial Measures

The original remedial measures have been revised to incorporate existing conditions.

Existing Remedial Measure 1: Purchase of Avigation Easements - This measure is modified to be part of the acoustical treatment program of existing residences for the benefit of existing and future residents of these homes and to relieve HCAA from further financial responsibility associated with the impact of airport noise on these residences.

HCAA, in cooperation with the FAA, the City of Tampa, and Hillsborough County, is responsible for implementation.

Existing Remedial Measure 2: Soundproofing/Climate Control Program - This measure proposes to reduce the interior noise levels to 45 dBA for all residences within the DNL 65 dBA. This measure applies to existing residents; future development within the DNL 65 dBA contour will not be considered for this treatment if Federal funds are used. The HCAA, in cooperation with the City if Tampa and Hillsborough County, would be responsible for implementation, with financial funding assistance from the FAA, subject to FAA approval.

9.2 OVERALL BENEFITS OF THE PROPOSED REVISED NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM

The noise abatement elements of the revised NCP will enhance the effectiveness of the existing NCP in reducing non-compatible land use in the TPA environs. The land use elements include preventative measures to deter future incompatibility.

With the implementation of the proposed noise abatement elements of the revised NCP, there will only be limited areas of noncompatible land use according to FAR Part 150 guidelines. These areas are shown in Figures 6-1 and 6-2 for the base and 5-year forecast case conditions. The general areas of non-compatible land use are as follow:

- Areas of residential use within planned industrial use areas surrounding the Airport.
- Areas of residential use within wellestablished residential communities that will not be rezoned.

Table 9.1 summarizes the residential population within the existing conditions and 5-year forecast contours for the current and proposed revised NCPs. The bottom line of the table summarizes the overall benefit of the revised noise abatement elements of the revised program. The net effect is that non-compatible land use at TPA will be reduced to six dwelling units by the year 2005.

Table 9.1

	Population and Dwelling Units within 65 dB DNL Contours					
	Base Case NEM 5-Year Forecast N		cast NEM			
Case	Dwelling Units	Residents	Dwelling Units	Residents		
Existing NCP	78	191	10	24		
Revised NCP	70	172	10	25		
Reduction (Effect of NCP Revision)	-8	-19	0	1		
¹ Residents estimated to be 2.5 people per dwelling.						

Comparison of the Estimated Residential Population¹ within the Existing Condition and 5-Year Forecast NEMs for the Existing and Proposed NCPs

Source: HNTB analysis.

A major conclusion of this study is that comprehensive planning by the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County has served the Airport well by reducing the potential for development of non-compatible land uses. The reductions in the population level within the 65 dB DNL contour are the result of fine-tuning the existing flight track and preferential runway use measures to ensure their implementability and effectiveness under current and forecast operating conditions at the Airport.

9.3 CONTINUING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

This section outlines further suggestions for implementation of the NCP as it relates to the noise abatement measures recommended. The success of the abatement program depends on actions taken to implement and monitor the effectiveness of the measures. The following implementation and monitoring elements are recommended for inclusion in the revised NCP.

9.3.1 Operations, Noise and Complaint Monitoring

The revised NCP should include a provision for the HCAA to acquire the capabilities to monitor operations, noise, and complaints. This monitoring capability is eligible for Part 150 implementation funding.

9.4 NCP IMPLEMENTATION

Part 150 includes extensive requirements related to NCP implementation, including:

- Identification of the time period covered by the program.
- Identification of parties responsible for implementation of each program element.
- Indication that responsible parties have agreed to implement the measure.
- Schedule for implementation of the program.
- Essential government actions.
- Anticipated funding sources.

9.4.1 Time Period Covered by the Revised NCP

In the absence of unanticipated changes in forecast conditions, the revised NCP and related revised NEMs cover 5 years from the date of submission.

9.4.2 Implementation Responsibility

Part 150 requires that the NCP clearly identify the person(s) or entity(ies) responsible for implementing each recommended element.

According to the FAA's definition of implementation responsibility,³³ the Authority, as airport operator. must initiate the implementation of all noise abatement measures. Clearly, however, the FAA and pilots have key roles in the implementation of aircraft operational measures. Since the FAA is responsible for air traffic control, it must provide instructions to pilots related to preferential runway use and noise abatement flight tracks. Pilots must cooperate by following these instructions and by utilizing noise abatement cockpit procedures consistent with the safe operation of aircraft.

The Authority, counties, municipalities, and the FAA share responsibility for the implementation of land use measures. The Authority will seek assistance from county and municipal governments in the publicity and administration of land use measures. Local jurisdictions are responsible for the implementation and enforcement of land use controls. The FAA is involved in the implementation of land use measures through program approval and funding assistance.

The Authority has the lead responsibility for continuing program measures. The FAA will assist by providing funding and assisting in ongoing program review. County and municipal governments will assist in ongoing program review.

9.4.3 Indication of Agreement to Implement

As the lead agency in the implementation of all measures, the Authority clearly agrees to its responsibilities. Through the Authority staff, the consulting team members have discussed the proposed NCP elements with the FAA, aviation users, and local government representatives. They have indicated their support for the revised NCP.

9.4.4 Further Environmental Review

Federal or local regulations may require further environmental review prior to the implementation of some NCP measures. The Authority will not initiate the implementation of any measure until it, the FAA, or other responsible agency has satisfied any such requirements. It is not appropriate to initiate any such review until the FAA has completed the NCP approval process.

In particular, the FAA may approve some noise abatement measures "subject to environmental review." The FAA will determine environmental review requirements when an official FAA "action" is contemplated. In the case of the TPA NCP, the triggering FAA action would likely be the Authority's request to amend the existing ATCT Letter of Agreement.

9.4.5 Summary of Implementation Actions, Responsibilities, Costs, Funding Sources, and Schedules

Tables 9.2 through 9.4 summarize implementation details for each proposed element of the revised NCP in the noise abatement, land use, and continuing program categories, respectively.

Table 9.2

Summary of NCP Implementation Details for Proposed Noise Abatement Elements of Revised NCP

Proposed Measure	Implementation Actions and Responsible Parties	Anticipated Costs and Funding Sources	Anticipated Schedule
1. Maximize Daytime South Flow Preferential	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect improved implementation element. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
2. Preferential Order of Runway Use Adoption	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect preferential runway use. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
3. Extend Night Preference of Runway 36L Arrivals and 18R Departures to All Aircraft	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect new night time preference to all aircraft. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
4. Initial Turbojet Departure Headings	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect existing measure. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
 Noise Abatement Propeller Aircraft Flight Paths for Runway 36L and 36R Departures 	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect minimization of turns greater than 20 degrees off Runways 36L and 36R. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
6. Limit Base Legs for Runway 36L Arrivals North of MacDill AFB	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect current measure. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
7. Helipad on East Side of Airport	Continue existing measure. FAA implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
8. Turbojet Use of Distant Noise Abatement Departure Procedures	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect new turbojet procedures. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
9. Turbojet Use of ATA Noise Abatement Arrival Procedures	Authority requests change in ATCT Letter of Agreement to reflect new turbojet procedures. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
10. Shared Runup Enclosure for Turbojet Maintenance Runups Above Idle Power	Authority constructs runup enclosure and instructs all turbojet users to use runup enclosure for maintenance runups above idle. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	\$ 1 million - \$ 3 million HCAA applies to FAA for funding support. (up to 80% eligible)	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.
 Amend Tower Letter to Airmen to Reflect Revised NCP 	Authority requests changes in ATC Letter to Airmen to reflect the NCP revisions identified above, and to reflect the Tower's advisement regarding pilots' requests to deviate from the Informal Runway Use Program. FAA reviews, approves, and implements.	None	Process initiated immediately following NCP approval.

.

Table 9.3

Summary of NCP Implementation Details for Proposed Land Use Elements of Revised NCP

Proposed Measure	Implementation Actions and Responsible Parties	Anticipated Costs and Funding Sources	Anticipated Schedule
1. Zoning for	HCAA and Hillsborough County adopts measure and requests	Administrative costs borne by local	Upon County approval.
Compatible Use	implementation by the County.	governments.	
2. Overlay Zoning	HCAA adopts measure and requests implementation by Hillsborough County and Tampa City. County and City zoning regulations are revised. County and City Building departments determine noise reduction requirements for new construction.	Administrative costs borne by local governments.	Upon County approval.
3. Public Information Program	HCAA adopts measure, organizes and manages the program.	Administrative budget, local governments.	Continuing.
4. Purchase Avigation Easements	HCAA adopts measure. HCAA approves application for funding grant. HCAA staff negotiates with property owners for easement as a part of the soundproofing/climate control program.	Estimated cost: \$4 million. Project would be eligible for up to 80% Federal funding under Airport Improvement Program (AIP).	Formal request to follow Authority adoption of the Part 150 Update.
5. Soundproofing/ Climate Control Program	HCAA adopts measure. Pilot program is developed to determine sound attenuation methods to be used to achieve required interior noise reductions.	Project would be eligible for up to 80% Federal funding under Airport Improvement Program (AIP).	Formal request to follow Authority adoption of the Part 150 Update.

9-7

Table 9.4

Summary of NCP Implementation Details for Proposed Continuing Program Elements of Revised NCP

	Proposed Measure	Implementation Actions and Responsible Parties	Anticipated Costs and Funding Sources	Anticipated Schedule
1.	Noise Abatement Office Staffing	Authority continues to implement.	Authority pays staff salary, benefits, and overhead.	Continuing.
2.	Airport Noise and Operations Monitoring System	Authority continues to operate existing system until FAA approves revised NCP, then applies for FAA funding for system upgrade and expansion.	Estimated cost of \$450,000 - \$550,000, to cover costs for system specification, procurement, installation, testing, and staff training. HCAA applies to FAA for funding assistance (up to 80% eligible).	Continuing.
3.	Periodic evaluation of noise exposure, and NEM and NCP Revision	Authority continues evaluation and review.	Authority for year-to-year evaluation, Authority and FAA fund NEM/NCP revision.	Continuing. NEM/NCP revision approximately at 5- year intervals.
4.	Noise Abatement Committee	Authority continues to implement.	None.	Continuing.

Operations Monitoring

Compliance with the flight track and runway use elements of the noise abatement program could be increased if the HCAA had the capability to monitor, record, analyze, and report actual flight track geometry and runway utilization. This capability would provide the HCAA with information to use in communicating with the FAA, pilots, airlines, and other operators. It would provide a basis for determining actual compliance with measures, identifying conditions under which compliance is above or below expected levels, and suggesting actions which might improve compliance. The capability would also provide a basis for responding to citizen inquiries.

There are a number of different technical approaches available for accessing aircraft operational data. All of the systems utilize flight track and flight identification data collected by the FAA's Automated Radar Terminal Service (ARTS) system. Major operations include:

- "Passive radar" systems that monitor FAA radar tracking without any direct data transfer from the FAA.
- Systems that acquire data from the FAA on a post-processing basis, using a bulk data storage device that is compatible with the installation at the FAA TRACON facility at the Airport.
- A direct connection with the TRACON ARTS system.

Each of these systems provides information on flight track geometry, aircraft altitude, runway utilization, dates and times of operations, flight identification, flight origin and destination, navigational fixes, and other relevant information. The specific technical approach should be selected based on discussions with the FAA regarding the current and projected ARTS installation at the Airport.

Operations monitoring using a sample of ARTS data from the FAA was a major source of data used in this Part 150 Update.

Noise Monitoring

It is recommended that the monitoring system include two permanent noise monitors, one installed north of the Airport and one installed south of the Airport. It is also recommended that the system include two portable noise monitors with appropriate capabilities and accessories to allow independent, continuous monitoring for five days to a week, and software to support data processing, archiving, analysis, and reporting. The monitors could be used for the following purposes:

- To monitor trends in noise exposure at representative locations in the airport environs.
- To assess the effects of unusual airport operating conditions, such as temporary runway closures for maintenance, or the proposed test of corporate jet operations on and off the south end of Runway 18L-36R.
- To respond to citizen requests for noise measurements.
- To correlate with data collected from the operations monitoring system.

Complaint Database Software

The operations and noise monitoring software should also include capabilities to identify complainants' addresses, correlate complaints with operations and noise data, develop a database on complaints and correlated data, and prepare appropriate analyses, data summaries, and responses.

Estimated Cost of Monitoring Capabilities

The estimated cost of acquiring the operations and noise monitoring capabilities described in the preceding paragraphs is \$450,000 to \$550,000, including specification, acquisition, installation, and staff training, and assistance in acquisition of the capabilities (development for specifications, acceptance testing, etc.).

Continued Noise Abatement Advisory Committee

Given the comprehensive scope of the existing and recommended noise abatement measures, the anticipated testing of some procedures, and the recommended monitoring program, it would be beneficial for the HCAA to have a continuing committee to provide regular review and input. It would be most efficient to establish a single committee that is representative of the three groups formed for the Part 150 Update.

Noise Office Staffing

Monitoring and advisory committee functions would increase staff workload and potentially require additional staff support. It should be understood that such staffing is not eligible for FAA Part 150 funding support.

Noise Compatibility Program Publicity

Upon FAA approval of the revised noise abatement program, the HCAA should take steps to publicize the program. Methods for publicizing the program include:

- Revisions to on-airfield signs.
- Posters for pilot lounges or flight planning areas.
- Pilot handouts, such as flight manual inserts summarizing the preferred procedures.

These materials are eligible for FAA Part 150 funding.

9.5 NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM REVISION

The HCAA will consider the Noise Compatibility Program for revision, if it becomes necessary because of Noise Exposure Map revision.

Chapter Ten Consultation with Public, Users, and Outside Agencies

The TPA Part 150 Study Update was conducted with extensive consultation with all members of the airport "public," including aviation interests, potentially affected residents of the Airport environs, and local, State, and Federal officials. The public involvement process exceeded Part 150 requirements.

The Airport Authority and its consultants used the following seven principal mechanisms in pursuing public input:

- The Agency Working Group (AWG), including written background material and formal briefings at committee meetings.
- The Technical Working Group (TWG), including written background material and formal briefings at committee meetings.
- The Community Input Group (CIG), including written background material and formal briefings at committee meetings.
- Public information workshops, including newspaper advertisements and direct mailings to potentially interested groups and individuals.
- Distribution of *Horizon 2020* Newsletter.

- Briefings of various public, quasi-public, and private boards.
- A public hearing.

10.1 WORKING GROUPS

The HCAA established three Advisory Groups to oversee the simultaneous Part 150 and Master Plan Update studies: an AWG, TWG, and CIG.

These Working Groups included representatives from a broad spectrum of entities with interest in the Part 150 process and its products. The AWG includes government agencies with aviation and land use responsibilities. The TWG includes private sector interests, particularly in the aviation industry. The CIG includes representatives of the affected communities in the Airport environs. Appendix B lists the invited working group memberships.

The Working Group members were responsible for representing their constituents throughout the study process by commenting on the adequacy and accuracy of collected data, simplifying assumptions, and performing technical analyses. The Working Groups also served as a forum in which the varied interest groups could discuss complex issues and share their perspectives on the use of the airport facilities and aircraft noise issues.

The Working Groups met six times during the course of the study process. All facets of the Master Plan/Part 150 process were discussed with these groups. The membership was encouraged to offer feedback and input on the progress to date either at these formal meetings or at a later date with the appropriate staff member. **Table 10.1** lists the dates of the Working Group meetings. **Appendix G** contains the meeting summaries for these Working Groups.

10.2 PUBLIC INFORMATION WORKSHOPS

The study team conducted two public workshops during the Master Plan/Part 150 update, as shown in **Table 10.2**.

The HCAA went to great lengths to invite potentially interested residents to the public workshops. Prior to each meeting, 1,000 invitation postcards were sent via direct mail, and a display-type ad was run in the metro section of two local newspapers. **Appendix H** contains copies of these invitations, sign-in sheets, and the meeting summaries.

Horizon 2020 Newsletter

A project newsletter was developed entitled "Horizon 2020 – Commitment to Excellence: Taking TPA Into the 21st Century." Five issues were developed and distributed, informing the general public as well as those already participating in the Master Plan/Part 150 Update about the study's progress and informing about upcoming meetings. **Appendix I** contains copies of all the newsletters developed.

Table 10.1

Group	Date	Time
AGENCY WORKING	#1 August 11, 1997	l p.m.
-	#2 March 3, 1998	1 p.m.
	#3 July 20, 1998	2 p.m.
	#4 September 9, 1998	1
	#5 December 1, 1998	1 p.m.
	#6 August 31, 1999	- F
TECHNICAL WORKING	#1 August 11, 1997	1 p.m.
	#2 March 3, 1998	1 p.m.
	#3 July 20, 1998	2 p.m.
	#4 September 9, 1998	- 1
	#5 December 1, 1998	1 p.m.
	#6 August 31, 1999	
COMMUNITY INPUT	#1 August 11, 1997	1 p.m.
	#2 March 3, 1998	l p.m.
	#3 July 20, 1998	2 p.m.
	#4 September 9, 1998	- r [,]
	#5 December 1, 1998	1 p.m.
	#6 August 31, 1999	- P

Schedule of Working Group Meetings

Table 10.2

Schedule of Public Workshops/Hearings

Event	Date	Time	Location
Public Workshop #1	October 22, 1998	6-8 p.m.	Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish
Public Workshop #2	September 1, 1999	6-8 p.m.	Jefferson High School
Public Hearing (FAR Part 150)	December 16, 1999	6-8 p.m.	Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish

10.3 EXPERT PANEL FORECAST SESSION

An "expert panel" session was held in order to have a group of local and industry "experts" review and discuss historic airport activity, the regional economy, and the industry trends; to agree on the assumptions and methodologies that will be used for the master plan forecast effort; and to ensure that the master plan forecasts are both credible and usable. The panel consisted of Authority staff, local business and aviation industry representatives, and Master Plan Team Members. **Appendix J** contains the list of expert panel participants.

10.4 PART 150 PUBLIC HEARING

A final public hearing on the Part 150 update was held on December 16, 1999. The meeting was held at Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish (5225 Himes Avenue). Appendix K provides copies of materials used to provide notice of the meeting, including: (1) newspaper advertisements and (2) a postcard notice that was mailed to approximately 2000 individuals and organizations, public officials, working and input group members, and other interested parties. In addition, the fifth issue of the "Horizon 2020" project newsletter included an announcement of the meeting. A copy of that newsletter is included in Appendix I. With the other issues. The newsletter was mailed to 500 interested parties.

Approximately 49 individuals attended the meeting.

The meeting was conducted in a varied format, to meet all attendees' needs and interests. From approximately 6 t o7 p.m. the meeting was conducted in workshop format, with numerous staffed "stations" providing information on all aspects of the study. That portion of the meeting provided attendees with the opportunity to discuss issues of concern on a one-on-one basis with HCAA and consulting team staff. At 7 p.m., the meeting shifted to a formal presentation made by HCAA and consulting team staff. At the end of the presentation, the HCAA and consulting staff field questions from the audience. Appendix K presents a summary of the questions and responses.

Attendees at the meeting were also provided with forms to use in submitting written comments, either at the meeting or mailed in later. Appendix K includes copies. The comments and responses to technical issues can be summarized as follow:

1. Comments from Ms. Evelyn Bless, 5803 Myrtle Lane, Tampa

Ms. Bless observed that there were increased number of planes over her house from dawn

to late at night, seven days a week. Planes frequently fly low enough to drown out conversation. There does not seem to have been abatement, to the contrary, noise has increased in the last couple of years.

Ms. Bless requested responses to two questions:

- a) Why can't TIA disperse flight patterns to spread the traffic out more over North Tampa neighborhoods. Response: Ms. Bless lives to the north of the airport. Several of the recommended noise abatement measures will directly address her concerns, including improvements in the daytime preferential runway program implementation, the extension of the nighttime preferential runway program to all aircraft types, and the reduction in the frequency of turns greater than 20° by turbopropellor aircraft departing on runways 36L and 36R.
- b) She requested noise monitoring. Response: Noise and operations monitoring are a study recommendation.
- 2. Comments from Ms. Teresa W. McDaniel, 5834 Mariner Street, Tampa

Ms. McDaniel notes that she lives immediately south of the airport, where noise from takeoff and landing is high. The most annoying flights are between 10 p.m. and 6 a.m., particularly larger cargo aircraft in the middle of the night. Ms. McDaniel requested that her whole street be considered for eligibility for sound insulation. Response: The recommended sound insulation program as presented in this document, proposes eligibility for her whole street.

3. Comments from Dr. Luis A. Gutierrez, 24 Sandpiper Road, Tampa

Dr. Gutierrez notes that noise levels are very high at his home, interrupting conversation and making windows rattle. He notes that his previous complaints have been ignored. He is concerned that future increases in airport activity and aircraft size will make his home unlivable and less valuable. Response: The recommended NCP includes provision for Noise Exposure Map and Noise Compatibility program revision, to take into account future changes.

4. Comments from Ms. Elia Gutierrez, 24 Sandpiper Road, Tampa

Ms. Gutierrez suggests the following:

- a) Rather than increasing south flow, divide the traffic up in all directions. Response: The preferential runway analysis considered both north and south flow preferential. The analysis presented in Appendix F clearly shows that south flow affects significantly fewer residents (on the order of one-tenth as many within the contours).
- b) Ms. Gutierrez recommends runway extensions, to allow aircraft to be as high as possible when passing over residential areas. Response: There is insufficient land area at TPA to permit extensions that would provide noticeable reduction.
- c) She notes that her sliding glass door is cracked. She will not consider sound insulation at this time, because she does not know what effect the easement requirement would have. Response: Ms. Gutierrez is not in the area eligible for sound insulation.

5. Comments from George and Deborah Christen-Domedion, 5820 Mariner Street, Tampa

The Christen-Domedions cited problems including "hearing loss", "have to stop conversations", "difficulty in selling a home", "difficulty sleeping (planes keep coming later at night, earlier in the morning, and more frequently all day)", and "reluctant to entertain".

They offered two suggestions:

- a) "Build a new runway to the west to keep planes over the water."
- b) "Land more often from the north."

Response: The Part 150 Update recognizes that Mariner Street is one of the most highly noise impacted areas in the airport environs. The NCP recommends offering sound insulation to the entire street. With regard to the two proposals:

- 1) The Master Plan continues to include a new western runway, to be constructed when traffic requires.
- 2) South flow (land from the north) is the preferred flow during the daytime, for noise abatement reasons. However, the nighttime preferential runway use assigns highest priority to arrivals and departures over Mariner Street, as that practice essentially eliminates close-in overflight of all other areas. This runway use procedure is one of the major reasons for offering sound insulation in the neighborhood.

10.5 WRITTEN COMMENTS AND RESPONSES

Appendix L provides copies of written comments that have been received during the Part 150 study process (with the exception of comment sheets handed in during the public workshop, as summarized in Section 10.4). Appendix L also provides copies of the responses that the HCAA or consulting team staff provided to the copies of written correspondence related to the Part 150 Update received from the public and copies of the responses from HCAA and the consultant.

- Comments regarding restricted turbojet use of the east parallel, submitted by three corporate representatives (Mr. James Biggs, Dillards Department Stores; Mr. Richard Houghton, Havatampa; and Mr. Mark Wagner, Havatampa). Α written response is included from Ted Baldwin of HMMH, on behalf of the HCAA and the consulting team. As he notes in his letter. the recommended Noise Compatibility Program includes provision for a potential future test of the pilots' proposal that they be allowed to depart on Runway 18L, if they are able to make sharp enough and early enough turns to follow the departure flight track for Runway 18R.
- A letter from Mr. Peter R. Cunzolo, Vice President, Director of Operations, ExecJet, and a response from Mr. Louis E. Miller, Executive Director of the HCAA. Mr. Cunzolo asks about the same issue as the preceding three pilots. The same response applies - the potential test of

departures on Runway 18L will accommodate his interests.

- A letter from Ms. Janice O'Brien, ٠ 6017 West North Street, Tampa, and a response from Mr. Louis E. Miller, Executive Director, HCAA. Ms. O'Brien notes that there are aircraft turning over her house (to the northwest of the airport) at low altitudes. Mr. Miller notes that the noise abatement flight paths for turbojet aircraft (straight out until reaching at least 3,000 feet) and the recommended minimization of turns by turbopropellor departing on Runways 36L and 36R address her He also notes that the concerns. recommended monitoring system included in the Noise Compatibility Program will provide the HCAA with a means to monitor these flight path procedures, and work with the FAA and operators to improve compliance. In addition. the improved implementation of the day south flow preferential, and the extension of the night bidirectional runway use will benefit her.
- A letter from Ms. Melissa B. Rogers, 5810 Mariner Street, Tampa, and response from Mr. Louis E. Miller. Executive Director, HCAA. Ms. Rogers requests expansion of the sound insulation program to her entire street, and notes that she has already spent money to install new windows. The recommended sound insulation program as presented in this document, proposes eligibility for her whole street. Her home will be considered for additional treatment to the extent that the existing windows

do not provide sufficient noise reduction.

1 14 CFR Part 150

2 Noise Exposure Map Checklist, Part II, Section III("Noise Exposure Maps – General Requirements", paragraph B (Federal Aviation Administration, 1989, page 3). This portion of the NEM checklist narrative clarifies the FAA's interpretation of Part 150 § 150.21 requirements.

³ Ibid.

4 Mathematically, SEL is expressed by the following equation:

 $SEL = 10 \log \left(\frac{1}{2} 2 10^{(SPL(t)/10)} dt \right)$

Where t_1 is the start of the event, t_2 is the end of the event, and L(t) is the time varying A-weighted sound level between t_1 and t_2 .

- 5 Op. Cit., EPA Report No. 550/9-74-004, March 1974.
- 6 Wyle Labs, "Study of Soundproofing Public Buildings Near Airports", FAA Report No. DOT-FAA-AEQ-77-9, April 1977.
- 7 Op. Cit., EPA Report No. 550/9-74-004, March 1974.
- 8 Newman S.J., and Beattie, K.R., "Aviation Noise Effects", FAA Report No. FAA-EE-85-2, March 1985.
- 9 Schultz, T.J., "Synthesis of Social Surveys on Noise Annoyance", Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, Vol. 64, No. 2, August 1978.
- 10 Since the UF employment counts do not include farm workers or non-wage and salary workers, they are not strictly comparable with the BEA counts. Therefore, the BEA projections were adjusted downward, using the 1994 UF to BEA ratio to make the two sets of projections more comparable.
- 11 Newman, J. Steven; Rickley, Edward J.; and Bland, Tyrone J.; <u>Helicopter Noise Exposure Curves for Use in Environmental Impact Assessment</u>; (Report No. DOT-FAA-EE-82-16); U. S. Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration, Office of Environment and Energy; Washington, DC; November 1982.
- 12 Additional ARTS data were obtained for July 1997 during a period when the west parallel was closed for repairs. The data from that period were not used in this analysis because of the unusual operating conditions.

- 13 Chapter Two, Table 2.1 of the Federal Aviation Regulation Part 150.
- 14HNTB Corporation, "Tampa International Airport Compatibility Study: FAR Part 150 Submittals.," pages III-1 through III-3.
- 15"Tampa Air Traffic Control Tower Letter to Airmen No. 98-05: Informal Runway Use Program," issued July 1, 1998, effective August 1, 1998, cancellation August 1, 2000, Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration, Air Traffic Control Tower, Tampa International Airport, Tampa, Florida, 33607.
- 16There is no requirement that the NCP include all noise abatement measures; measures can be implemented outside of the NCP. Adding existing measures to the NCP subjects them to FAA review that could jeopardize continuing implementation. This is particularly true in the case of use restrictions, which are not a current issue at TPA. It is unlikely that adding the nighttime runway use priority or the noise abatement flight tracks to the NCP would jeopardize their continuing implementation by the FAA.
- 17 Paragraph 3 of the Letter sets forth "operational safety criteria" that the ATCT shall use in assigning runways, "whenever possible." See Attachment 2.
- 18 FAA Order 8400.9, "National Safety and Operational Criteria for Runway Use Programs."
- 19 ARTS data on over 10,000 additional operations were also obtained for approximately 14 days in July 1997, when the east parallel was closed for rehabilitation. Those data were not used for runway use analysis purposes because of the unusual airfield conditions.
- 20 Paragraph 4 of the Letter sets forth "operational safety criteria" that the ATCT shall use in assigning runways, "whenever possible." See Appendix D.
- 21 There is no reason to separate the July data in this case because closure of the west parallel increased departures on 36R, but did not put operations on runways where turbojet operations are restricted in any fashion.
- 22 The glide slope instrumentation also assumes a 50' crossing height at the landing threshold.
- 23 FAA Order 8400.9, "National Safety and Operational Criteria for Runway Use Programs."

- 24 Census data were used to calculate these population statistics. This method is less precise than the parcel-byparcel counting technique used in developing the updated NEM earlier in this study. However, this technique is appropriate for this level of analysis.
- 25 ARTS data on over 10,000 additional operations were also obtained for approximately 14 days in July 1997 when the west parallel was closed for rehabilitation. Those data were not used for runway use analysis purposes because of the unusual airfield conditions.

26This gradient is defined in FAR 25.111(c)3.

- 27 All of these nighttime runups were between midnight and 7 a.m.
- 28 The study also looked at fully enclosed (roofed) "hush houses." Those facilities had extremely high costs, ranging from approximately \$10 to 18 million.
- 29 The base mapping available to HNTB does not extend throughout the full area affected by these contours.
- 30 FAA standard procedure is to assign runway heading in the south flow. Actual turns are rarely greater than 10 degree.
- 31 As shown in the first round analysis, the 3-degree slope represented the "floor" for actual turbojet operations at TPA.
- 32 Section 9.4.4 discusses environmental review steps that FAA must also consider.
- 33 As set forth in FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5020-1, "Noise Control and Compatibility Planning for Airports", August 5, 1982.

APPENDIX A

Part 150 NEM and NCP Checklists

.

Part 150 Noise Exposure Map Checklist (page 1 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

	FAR PART 150 NOISE EXPOSURE MAP CHECKLIST-PART I				
	Airport Name: Tanipa International Airport	REVIEWER:			
		Yes/No/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments	
I. IDI	ENTIFICATION AND SUBMISSION OF MAP DOCUMENT				
A.	Is this submittal appropriately identified as one of the following, submitted under Part 150:				
	1. a NEM only	No			
	2. a NEM and NCP	Yes	Sponsor Certification		
	3. a revision to NEMs which have previously been determined by FAA to be in compliance with Part 150?	Yes			
В.	Is the airport name and the qualified airport operator identified?	Yes	1-1		
C.	Is there a dated cover letter from the airport operator which indicates the documents are submitted under Part 150 for appropriate FAA determinations?	Yes	Letter of Transmittal		
II. CO	NSULTATION: [150.21(B), A150.105(A)]				
А.	Is there a narrative description of the consultation accomplished, including opportunities for public review and comment during map development?	Yes	Chapter 10		
B.	Identification:				
	1. Are the consulted parties identified?	Yes	Chapter 10		
	2. Do they include all those required by 150.21(b) and 150.105(a)?	Yes	Chapter 10		
C.	Does the documentation include the airport operator's certification, and evidence to support it, that interested persons have been afforded adequate opportunity to submit their views data, and comments during map development and in accordance with 150.21(b)?	Yes	Certification follows Title page, Chapter 10 provides consultation		
D.	Does the document indicate whether written comments were received during consultation and, if there were comments, that they are on file with the FAA region?	Yes	Chapter 10	Comments were not on FAR Part 150 documentation	

Part 150 Noise Exposure Map Checklist (page 2 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

FAR PART 150 NOISE EXPOSURE MAP CHECKLIST-PART I				
Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER:			
	Yes/No/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments	
III. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: (150.21)				
A. Are there two maps, each clearly labeled on the face with (existing condition year and 5-year)?	year Yes	Chapter 6		
B. Map currency:				
1. Does the existing condition map year match the year the airport operator's submittal letter?	r on Yes	Section 1.1.1		
2. Is the 5-year map based on reasonable forecasts and o planning assumptions and is it for the fifth calendar after the year of submission?	other Yes year	Section 4.3		
3. If the answer to 1 and 2 above is no, has the air operator verified in writing that data in the documenta are representative of existing condition and 5-year fore conditions as of the date of submission?	port ution ecast			
C. If the NEM and NCP are submitted together:				
1. Has the airport operator indicated whether the 5-year is based on 5-year contours without the program contours if the program is implemented?	map Yes vs.	Chapter 6	With Program	
2. If the 5-year map is based on program implementation	:			
a. are the specific program measures which are refle on the map identified?	cted Yes	Chapter 7		
b. does the documentation specifically describe these measures affect land use compatibilidepicted on the map?	how Yes ity's	Chapter 8		
3. If the 5-year NEM does not incorporate prog implementation, has the airport operator included additional NEM for FAA determination after the prog is approved which shows program implementa conditions and which is intended to replace the 5- NEM as the new official 5-year map?	ram Yes an ram tion year	Chapter 6		

Part 150 Noise Exposure Map Checklist (page 3 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

	FAR PART 150 NOISE EXPOSURE MAP CHECKLIST	-PART I		
	Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER		
		Yes No NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments
IV.	MAP SCALE, GRAPHICS, AND DATA REQUIREMENTS: [A150.101, A150.103, A150.105, 150.21(A)]			
A.	Are the maps of sufficient scale to be clear and readable (they must be not be less than 1" to 8,000'), and is the scale indicated on the maps?	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	1" + 4,000'
В.	Is the quality of the graphics such that required information is clear and readable?	Yes		
C.	Depiction of the airport and its environs.			
	1. Is the following graphically depicted to scale on both the existing condition and 5-year maps:	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	
	a. airport boundaries	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	
	b. runway configurations with runway and numbers	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	
	2. Does the depiction of the off-airport data include:			
	a. a land use base map depicting streets and other identifiable geographic features	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	
	b. area within 65 L_{dn} (or beyond. at local discretion.)	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	Beyond DNL 60
	c. clear delineation of geographic boundaries and the names of all jurisdictions with planning and land use control authority within the 65 L_{dn} (or beyond, at local discretion).	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	
D.	1. Continuous contours for at least L _{dn} 65, 70, and 75?	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	
	2. Based on current airport and operational data for the existing condition year NEM, and forecast data for the 5-year NEM?	Yes	Section 4.3	
E.	Flight tracks for the existing condition and 5-year forecast timeframes (these may be on supplemental graphics which must use the same land use base map as the existing condition and 5-year NEM), which are numbered to correspond to accompanying narrative?	Yes	Chapter 7	
F.	Locations of any noise monitoring sties (these may be on supplemental graphics which must use the same land use base map as the official NEMs)	Yes	Figure 3-1	Monitored locations more clearly depicted on street map

Part 150 Noise Exposure Map Checklist (page 4 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

	FAR PART 150 NOISE EXPOSURE MAP CHECKLIST-PART 1				
		Auport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER		
			Yes/No/NA	Page Öther Reference	Notes/ Comments
G.	No	ncompatible land use identification:			
	1.	Are noncompatible land uses within at least the 65 L_{dn} depicted on the maps?	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	2.	Are noise sensitive public buildings identified?	NA		
	3.	Are the noncompatible uses and noise sensitive public buildings readily identifiable and explained on the map legend?	NA		
	4.	Are compatible land uses, which would normally be considered noncompatible, explained in the accompanying narrative?	NA		
V. NA	AI	ATIVE SUPPORT OF MAP DATA: [150.21(A), A150.1, 50.101, A150.103]			
А.	1.	Are the technical data, including data sources, on which the NEMs are based, adequately described in the narrative?	Yes	Chapters 2 and 4	
	2.	Are the underlying technical data and planning assumptions reasonable?	Yes	Chapters 2 and 4	
B.	Ca	lculation of Noise Contours:		7	
	1.	Is the methodology indicated?			
		a. is it FAA approved?	Yes		INM
		b. was the same model used for both maps?	Yes		INM 5.1a
		c. has AEE approval been obtained for use of a model other than those which have previous blanket FAA approval?	NA		
	2.	Correct use of noise models:			
		a. does the documentation indicate the airport operator has adjusted or calibrated FAA-approved noise models or substituted one aircraft type for another?	NA		
		b. if so, does this have written approval from AEE?	NA		
	3.	If noise monitoring was used, does the narrative indicate that Part 150 guidelines were followed?	NA		Noise monitoring verified output

۰.

•••

.

Ē

Part 150 Noise Exposure Map Checklist (page 5 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

FAR PART 150 NOISE EXPOSURE MAP CHECKLIST-PART I					
Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER	REVIEWER:			
	Yes No/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments		
 For noise contours below 65 L_{dn}, does the supporting documentation include explanation of local reasons? (Narrative explanation is desirable but not required.) 	Yes	Chapter 5			
C. Noncompatible Land Use Information:					
 Does the narrative give estimates of the number of people residing in each of the contours (L_{dn} 65, 70 and 75, at a minimum) for both the existing condition and 5-year maps? 	Yes	Tables 5.1 and 5.2			
2. Does the documentation indicate whether Table 1 of Part 150 was used by the airport operator?	Yes	Table 2.1			
a. If a local variation to Table 1 was used:					
 does the narrative clearly indicated which adjustments were made and the local reasons for doing so? 	NA				
(2) does the narrative include the airport operator's complete substitution for Table 1?	NA				
3. Does the narrative include information on self-generated or ambient noise where compatible/ noncompatible land use identifications consider non-airport/aircraft sources?	NA				
4. Where normally noncompatible land uses are not depicted as such on the NEMs, does the narrative satisfactorily explain why, with reference to the specific geographic areas?	NA				
5. Does the narrative describe how forecasts will affect land use compatibility?	Yes	Chapter 8			
VI. MAP CERTIFICATIONS: [150.21(B), 150.21(E)]					
A. Has the operator certified in writing that interested persons have been afforded adequate opportunity to submit views, data, and comments concerning the correctness and adequacy of the draft maps and forecasts?	Yes	Certification following Title page			
B. Has the operator certified in writing that each map and description of consultation and opportunity for public comment are true and complete?	Yes	Certification following Title Page			

. Part 150 Noise Compatibility Program Checklist (page 1 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

FAR PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM CHECKLIST-PART I				
Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER:			
	Yes/No/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments	
I. IDENTIFICATION and SUBMISSION of PROGRAM:				
A. Submission is properly identified:				
1. FAR 150 NCP?	No			
2. NEM and NCP together?	Yes			
3. Program Revision?	Yes			
B. Airport and Airport Operator's name identified?	Yes	1-1		
C. NCP transmitted by airport operator's cover letter?	Yes			
I. CONSULTATION: [150.23]				
A. Documentation includes narrative of public participation and consultation process?	Yes	Chapter 10		
B. Identification of consulted parties:				
1. all parties in 150.23(c) consulted?	Yes	Chapter 10		
2. public and planning agencies identified?	Yes	Appendix B		
 agencies in 2., above, correspond to those indicated on the NEM? 	Yes	NCP and NEM combined effort		
C. Satisfies 150.23(d) requirements:				
1. documentation shows active and direct participation of parties in B., above?	Yes	Chapter 10 and Appendix B		
2. active and direct participation of general public?	Yes	Chapter 10		
3. participation was prior to and during development of NCP and prior to submittal to FAA?	Yes	Chapter 10	Public Information meetings and TAC meetings	
 indicates adequate opportunity afforded to submit views, data, etc.? 	Yes	Public Information meetings		
D. Evidence included of notice and opportunity for a public hearing on NCP?	Yes	Chapter 10		

1

Part 150 Noise Compatibility Program Checklist (page 2 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

	FAR PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM	CHECKLISI-	PART I	
	Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER:		
		Yes/No/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments
E.	Documentation of comments:			
	 includes summary of public hearing comments, if hearing was held? 	Yes	Chapter 10	
	2. includes copy of all written material submitted to operator?	Yes	Chapter 10, Appendix L	
	3. includes operator's response/disposition of written and verbal comments?	Yes	Chapter 10	
F.	Informal agreement received from FAA on flight procedures?	Yes	Appendix D	"Letter To Airmen"
III.	NOISE EXPOSURE MAPS: [150.23, B150.3; 150.35(f)] (This section of the checklist is not a substitute for the Noise Exposure Map checklist. It deals with maps in the context of the Noise Compatibility Program submission.)			
A.	Inclusion of NEMs and supporting documentation:			
	1. Map documentation either included or incorporated by reference?	Yes	Chapter 6	
	2. Maps previously found in compliance by FAA?	NA		NEM submitted with NCP
	3. Compliance determination still valid?	NA		
	4. Does 180-day period have to wait for map compliance finding?	Yes		
В.	Revised NEMs submitted with program: (Review using NEM checklist if map revisions included in NCP submittal)			
	1. Revised NEMs included with program?	Yes	Chapter 6	
	2. Has airport operator requested FAA to make a determination on the NEM(s) when NCP approval is made?	Yes		

Part 150 Noise Compatibility Program Checklist (page 3 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

FAR PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM CHECKLIST-PART I				
Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER:			
	YesNo/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes/ Comments	
C. If program analysis uses noise modeling:		1		
1. INM, HNM or FAA-approved equivalent?	Yes	Section 4.3	INM	
2. Monitoring in accordance with A150.5?	Yes	Section 4.4	ENOMS	
D. Existing condition and 5-year maps clearly identified as the official NEMs?	Yes	Figures 6-1 through 6-4		
IV. CONSIDERATION of ALTERNATIVES: [B150.7, 150.23(e)]				
A. At a minimum, are the alternatives below considered?				
1. land acquisition and interests therein, including air rights, easements, and development rights?	Yes	Section 8.4		
 barriers, acoustical shielding, public building soundproofing 	NA			
3. preferential runway system	Yes	Chapter 7		
4. flight procedures	Yes	Chapter 7		
 restrictions on type/class of aircraft (at least one restriction below must be checked): deny use based on Federal standards capacity limits based on noisiness noise abatement takeoff/approach procedures landing fees based on noise or time of day nighttime restrictions 	Yes No Yes No Yes	Chapters 7 and 8		
B. Responsible implementing authority identified for each considered alternative?	Yes	Chapter 9		
C. Analysis of alternative measures:				
1. measures clearly described?	Yes	Chapters 7 and 8		
2. measures adequately analyzed?	Yes	Chapters 7 and 8		
3. adequate reasoning for rejecting alternatives?	Yes	Chapters 7 and 8		
D. Other actions recommended by the FAA?	NA			

.

Part 150 Noise Compatibility Program Checklist (page 4 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

FAR PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM CHECKLIST-PART I				
Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER:			
	YesNoNA	Page/Other Reference	Notes Comments	
V. ALTERNATIVES RECOMMENDED fo IMPLEMENTATION: [150.23(e), B150.7(c) 150.35(b), B150.5]	r ;			
A. Document clearly indicates:				
1. alternatives recommended for implementation?	Yes	Chapter 9		
2. final recommendations are airport operator's, no those of consultant or third party?	t Yes	Certification following Title page		
B. Do all program recommendations :				
1. relate directly or indirectly to reduction of noise and noncompatible land uses?	i Yes			
2. contain description of contribution to overal effectiveness of program?	l Yes	Section 9.2		
3. noise/land use benefits quantified to exten possible?	t Yes	Chapter 9		
4. include actual/anticipated effect on reducing noise exposure within noncompatible areas shown or NEM?	e Yes	Figures 6-2 and 6-4.		
5. effects based on relevant and reasonable expressed assumptions?	l Yes	Section 4.3, Chapters 7 and 8		
6. have adequate supporting data to support it contribution to the noise/land use compatibility?	s Yes	Chapters 3-9		
C. Analysis appears to support program standards set forth in 150.35(b) and B150.5?	n Yes	Chapters 7-9		
D When use restrictions are recommended:				
1. Are alternatives with potentially significan noise/compatible land use benefits thoroughly analyzed so that appropriate comparisons and conclusions can be made?	t Yes	Section 7.4		
2. use restrictions coordinated with APP-600 prior to making determination on start of 180-days?	Yes		TAC meetings	

Part 150 Noise Compatibility Program Checklist (page 5 of 5) Source: Federal Aviation Administration, 1989

FAR PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY PROGRAM CHECKLIST-PART 1					
	Airport Name: Tampa International Airport	REVIEWER:			
		Yes/No/NA	Page/Other Reference	Notes: Comments	
E	Do the following also meet Part 150 analytical standards?:				
	1. formal recommendations which continue existing practices?	Yes	Sections 9.1.1 and 9.1.2		
	2. new recommendations or changes proposed at end of Part 150 process?		Sections 9.1.1, 9.1.2 and 9.1.3		
F	Documentation indicates how recommendations may change previously adopted plans?	Yes	Sections 9.1.1, 9.1.2 and 9.1.3		
G.	Documentation also:				
	1. identifies agencies which are responsible for implementing each recommendation?	Yes	Section 9.1.3		
	2. indicates whether those agencies have agreed to implement?				
	3. indicates essential government actions necessary to implement recommendations?	Yes	Section 9.1.3		
Н.	Time frame:				
	1. includes agreed-upon schedule to implement alternatives?	Yes	Tables 9.2, 9.3 and 9.4		
	2. indicates period covered by the program?	Yes	Section 9.3.1		
I.	Funding/Costs:				
	1. includes costs to implement alternatives?	Yes	Tables 9.2, 9.3 and 9.4		
	2. includes anticipated funding sources?	Yes	Tables 9.2, 9.3 and 9.4		
VI.	PROGRAM REVISION: [150.23(e)(9)] Supporting documentation includes provision for revision?	Yes	Chapter 9		

-

APPENDIX B

Technical and Agency Working Groups

Tampa International Airport Master Plan Update / Part 150 Study

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEMBERSHIP

Avis Rent A Car System Ms. Josephine Stevens Tampa International Airport Service Rd. Tampa FL 33607

Budget Rent A Car Mr. Todd Kirk, Airport Manager P.O. Box 21188 Tampa, FL 33622

Delta Air Lines Steve Callaway Atlanta International Airport Dept. 878 Atlanta, GA 30320

Dobbs Houses In-Flite Catering Mr. Edwin Garcia, Manager - Unit # 725 2404 N. Westshore Tampa, FL 33607

Dollar Rent A Car Mr. Bill Harper Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607

Emery Air Freight Corporation Mr. Dave Siegler, Terminal Mgr 5411 Johns Rd., Ste 601 Tampa, FL 33634

Federal Aviation Administration Mr. John Stewart Manager, Air Traffic Control Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607

Federal Aviation Administration Tampa ATCT Marvin Hudspeth Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607 Federal Aviation Administration Orlando - APO C. Ed. Howard Jr. 5950 Hazeltine Drive Suite 400 Orlando, FL 32822

Federal Express Ms Lori Debevec, Senior Manager 6204 Benjamin Rd., Ste. 211 Tampa, FL 33614

Fenton Hill Florida, Inc. Duty Free Mrs. Susan Stackhouse, President Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607

Hertz Corporation (Rent-A-Car) Mr. Jim Sepa Tampa International Airport P.O. Box 31166 Tampa, FL 33631

Host Marriott Food/Beverage/News/Gifts Operations Mr. Jeff Yablun, Manager Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607

Jerry's Caterers John O'Brian 7723 Anderson Rd. Tampa, FL 33614

LSG/Sky Chefs (In-Flight Kitchen) Mr. Mark Jensen 5401 W. Spruce St. Tampa, FL 33607

National Car Rental Mr. Dennis Pocsatko, City Manager 5402 W. Laurel Tampa, FL 33607 Republic Parking Mr. Bill Canavan, Manager Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607

Southwest Airlines David Herrera P.O. Box 36611 Dallas TX 75235-1611

Tampa Airport Marriott Hotel Mr. Richard Harris, Gen. Mgr P.O. Box 24107 Tampa FL 33623 (Don Runyon, contact person)

Raytheon Aircraft Services Mr. Gary Dempsey, Location Mgr. P.O. Box 30100 Tampa, FL 33630

TWA Yeong S. Yee Room 201 Hangar # 12 JFK International Airport Jamacia, NY 11430

United Airlines Jay Dayhoff 2618 Cason Houston, TX 77005

Bill McDaniel, District Secretary FDOT, District 7 11201 North McKinley Dr. Tampa, FL 33612-6403

John Roeller FDOT, District 7 11201 N. McKinley Blvd. Tampa, FL 33612

Ed Howard, Airports Plans & Programs Manager Federal Aviation Administration 5950 Hazeltine National Dr. Ste 400 Orlando, FL 32822-5024

Mark Wagner, Pilot HavaTampa 15920 Hampton Village Dr. Tampa, FL 33618 Major Marc Fox MacDill Air Force Base Plans & Programs -6ARW/XP8208 Hangar Loop Dr. Tampa, FL 33621

Donna Murrell, Chair Tampa Airport Managers Association United Airlines Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607 (Steve Senica, contact person)

Mike Falhmark, Manager Admin. Ser. Suncoast District United States Postal Services 2203 N. Lois Ave Ste 1010 Tampa, FL 33607-7110

Dee Brady Airborne Express 4617 N. Westshore Tampa, FL 33614

Gary Lantner, Director Facilities Engineering United Airlines 3627 Coltwood Drive Spring, TX 77388

U.S. Airways Mary C. Leyden 2345 Crystal Drive Arlington, VA 22227

URS Greiner/St. Pete Clearwater Airport Laddie E. Irion 7650 W. Courtney Campbell Causeway Tampa, FL 33607

Mike Dodd, Manager ATC/Airfield Operations US Airways 173 Industry Drive - K240 Pittsburgh, PA 15275-5228

Sandra A. Holliday, Program Manager FAA, Orlando Airports District Office 5950 Hazeltine National Drive, Suite 400 Orlando, FL 32822-5024

B-2

Tampa International Airport Master Plan Update / Part 150 Study

AGENCY WORKING GROUP MEMBERSHIP

The Honorable David Fischer Mayor City of St. Petersburg P.O. Box 2842 St. Petersburg, FL 33731

Darryl Stephens, City Administrator City of St. Petersburg P.O. Box 2842 St. Petersburg, FL 33731

Dave Goodwin Planning Department City of St. Petersburg P.O. Box 2842 St. Petersburg, FL 33731

Gwendolyn W. Stephenson, President Hillsborough Community College P.O. Box 31127 Tampa, FL 33631-3127

Chuck Sackett Hillsborough Community College P.O. Box 31127 Tampa, FL 33631-3127

Bob Beaman Hillsborough Community College P.O. Box 30030 Tampa, FL 33630-3030

Commissioner Ed Turanchik Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners P.O. Box 1110 Tampa, FL 33601

Dan Kleman, County Administrator Hillsborough County County Center, 1st Floor 601 E. Kennedy Blvd. Tampa, FL 33602 Robert Hunter, Executive Director Hills. County City-County Planning Commission County Center, 18th Floor 601 E. Kennedy Blvd. Tampa, FL 33602

Gene Boles, Director Planning and Growth Management Hillsborough County P.O. Box 1110 Tampa, FL 33601

Ned Baier Transportation Demand Manager Hillsborough County 601 E. Kennedy Blvd., 20th Floor Tampa, FL 33602

Robert Steiner, Port Director Tampa Port Authority P.O. Box 2192 811 Wynkoop Rd. Tampa, FL 33601 (Ram Kancharia, contact person)

Sharon Dent, Director HARTLINE 4305 E. 21st Ave. Tampa, Fl 33605

Lucy Ayers, Executive Director Metropolitan Planning Organization County Center, 18th Floor 601 E. Kennedy Blvd. Tampa, FL 33602

Patrick McCue, Executive Director Tampa/Hillsborough County Expressway Authority 412 Madison St., Room 802 Tampa, FL 33602 (Mary Hall, contact person) Bruce T. Haddock, City Manager City of Oldsmar 100 State Street Oldsmar, FL 34677-3655

Nick Staszko, Comm. Development Dir. City of Oldsmar 100 State Street Oldsmar, FL 34677-3655

Fred E. Marquis, County Administrator Pinellas County 315 Court Street Clearwater, FL 34616

Brian Smith, Director of Planning/MPO Pinellas County 14 South Ft. Harrison Ave. Clearwater, FL 33756

Michael J. Roberto, City Manager City of Clearwater P.O. Box 4748 Clearwater, FL 33758

Henry Saavedra, Executive Director Tampa Sports Authority 4201 N. Dale Mabry Highway Tampa, FL 33607

The Honorable Dick A. Greco, Mayor City of Tampa 306 E. Jackson Tampa, FL 33602

Fernando Noriega, Director Land Development Department City of Tampa 306 E. Jackson St. 2nd Floor North Tampa, FL 33602 Rick Smith, Director Planning and Management Division City of Tampa 306 E. Jackson St., 8 E Tampa, FL 33602

Elton Smith, Director Transportation Division City of Tampa 306 E. Jackson St., 4th Floor, East Tampa, FL 33602

Andrea Scarborough City of Tampa 306 E. Jackson St., 3N Tampa, FL 33602

Ron Rotella, Executive Director Westshore Alliance 5100 W. Lemon Street, Ste 107 Tampa FL 33609

Jim Cloar, Executive Director Tampa Downtown Partnership P.O. Box 2387 Tampa, FL 33602

Don Barber, President Greater Tampa Chamber of Commerce P.O. Box 420 Tampa, FL 33601

Jim Clark, Executive Director Tampa/Hills. Convention & Visitors Assoc. 400 N. Tampa St. Ste. 1010 Tampa, FL 33602 (Terry Fox, contact person)

Jim Howes, Director St. Petersburg/Clearwater International Airport Administration Building, Ste. 221 Clearwater, FL 33762
Tampa International Airport Master Plan Update / Part 150 Study

COMMUNITY INPUT GROUP

CITY OF TAMPA

Drew Park Property League Lidia Skaates 4301 North Trask Tampa, FL 33614 877-6669 Home 876-0674

Carver City/Lincoln Gardens

Thelma L. Davis 1602 North Lois Avenue Tampa, FL 33607 870-0593 Home (800) 288-7499 Work

Drew Park Property League

Chris Bittmann P.O. Box 15423 Tampa, FL 33684 949-5738

Westshore Palms

Dr. Tom Bird 4513 West Gray Street Tampa, FL 33609 287-0468

North Bon Air

Edna Patrick 317 North A Street West Tampa, FL 33609-2702 877-2350 Home

Beach Park

Margaret Vizzi 213 South Sherrill Tampa, FL 33609 286-0980 Home

Sunset Park Debbie Perez 4816 South Sunset Blvd.

Tampa, FL 33629

Beach Park Isles Frank Gassler 4907 Bay Way Drive Tampa, FL 33629 286-1497 Home

Culbreath Bayou Bill Cook 4704 Neptune Tampa, FL 33629 286-6365

Culbreath Isles Larry Comeges 4904 St. Croix Drive Tampa, FL 33629 286-2386 Home 265-3367 FAX

Culbreath Isles Ben Nelson, Jr. 4923 St. Croix Drive Tampa, FL 33629 289-9082 home 348-4863 office

Sunset Park Joyce Brewer 4616 Estrella Street Tampa, FL 33629 287-1581 Home

Sunset Park

James Van Diset, Chairman c/o Zan's Automotives 4240 Henderson Blvd. Tampa, FL 33629 287-2550 work 839-7481 home

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY

Dana Shores Civic Association

Jonathan Kaplan, President P.O. Box 20164 Tampa, FL 33622

Sweetwater Homeowners Association

Gloria Jones 4302 Deepwater Lane Tampa, FL 33615 889-7064

Dana Shores Civic Association Robert Grab, Treasurer

886-1045

Bay Pointe Condo Association

Joe Bearinger Ye Mystic AirKrewe 8822 Bay Pointe Drive Tampa, FL 33615 886-9336

Pelican Island Civic Association

Jeannette Jerome 7103 Pelican Island Drive Tampa, FL 33634

Bay Pointe Condo Association

Audrey Pache, Vice President 8829 Bay Pointe Drive Tampa, FL 33615-5000 886-5703

Bay Crest Park Civic Association

John . Parcelewica 4716 Travertine Drive Tampa, FL 33615 281-4986 Work 281-4959 FAX 880-9412 Home

Carrollwood Village Phase 2 Homeowners Assoc. Dan Ruskiewicz 4131 Gunn Hwy Tampa, FL 33624 961-2203 ext. 13

Bay Crest Civic Association Larry Redmond 8425 Flagstone Tampa, FL 33615 483-8175

North West Park Homeowners Assoc. Bob Hennessey 6513 Johns Road Tampa, FL 33634 884-8326

North West Park Civic Assoc. Calvin Logan

6526 Johns Road Tampa, FL 33634 885-3750

Twelve Oaks Special District Richard L. Eldridge 7803 Greenshire Drive

Tampa, FL 33634 417-0440

Twelve Oaks Civic Assoc.

Vicky Bledsoe 501 Oak Vista Circle Tampa, FL 33634 888-8640 Twelve Oak Tax DistrictMike Frederick7502 Armand CircleTampa, FL33634889-9833210-8649 FAX

Twin Lakes Marty Norris 8635 Twin Lakes Blvd. Tampa, FL 33614 932-7029

Lake Egypt Civic Association Landon Cheek 3008 West Broad Street Tampa, FL 33614 935-4030

Grove Park Civic Association Walter E. Doll 2711 W. Cluster Avenue Tampa, FL 33614 935-4030

Carrollwood Oaks Property Owners Assn. Bill Wall 10135 Lake Oak Circle Tampa, FL 33624 968-8965

Burnbrook Homeowners Association Ted Sjoberg 10404 Oakbrook Drive Tampa, FL 33624 968-9396

Village South Civic Association Rollen Steadman P.O. Box 270353 Tampa, FL 33688 Village West Homeowners Association Kenneth S. Hoyt, President 4610 Westford Circle Tampa, FL 33624 969-0759 963-6959 FAX

Plantation Homeowners Association Tom Jones

11380 Brookgreen Drive Tampa, FL 33624 969-3991 962-6648 FAX

Plantation Homeowners Inc. Ellen Nelson 11380 Brookgreen Drive Tampa, FL 33624 969-3991

Village of Cypress Bend James Mace 6107 Silkdale Court Tampa, FL 33625

George Bean 415 S. Paloma Place Tampa, FL 33609

Mr. Michael M. Beachler 2424 West Tampa Bay Boulevard Tampa, FL 33607

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVES:

Hillsborough County

Michael Raposa Office of Neighborhood Relations P.O. Box 1110 Tampa, FL 33601 272-5843 Work 272-5882 FAX

Hillsborough County

Vince Pardo, Director Office of Neighborhood Relations P.O. Box 1110 Tampa, FL 33601 272-5860

City of Tampa

Judy Bruggeman, Mayor's Liaison 306 E. Jackson Street Tampa, FL 33602 274-8890

City of Tampa

Julie Harris, Neighborhood Liaison Neighborhood Liaison's Office 306 E. Jackson Street 7E Tampa, FL 33602 274-7835 274-7176 FAX

City of Tampa

Ernestine Larry, Community Services Rep. Neighborhood Information Center 306 E. Jackson Street Tampa, FL 33602 274-7734

APPENDIX C

INM Aircraft Substitution Information



• • •

Aircraft	Engine		
HMMH: D727 (00		MTOW(Klbs)	Thrust/Eng.(Klbs)
DDA(#26) 737-600	<u>CFM56-7B</u>	143.5	22
INM(#36): 7373B2	2 eng. Turboprop	139	20
(narrow body)	CFM56-3B-2		
<u>HMMH: B767-400</u>	PW4000/CF6-80	450	NA
INM(#87) 767300	2 eng Turboprop	407	60
(wide body)	PW4060		(11)
HMMH: A-319	CFM56-5A4/JAF	150	
	V2522	150	23
INM(#97): A320	2 eng Turbofan	162	
(wide body)	CFM56-5A-1	102	25
HMMH Avres	2 ong turker		
Loadmaster	2 eng. turboprop	19	2,400 HP
INIM(#69): SID220	Allison CTP-800		
114101(#08): SD330	2 eng Turboprop	22.9	1,254 HP
	<u>PT6A-45AR</u>		
*HMMH: EMB 145	AE3007A	7	43
*INM(# 61) CL601	2 eng. Turbofan	9.2	43
	CF34-3A		-15
HMMH: EMB 135	small ver. of 145	<u>+</u>	+
INM(#58): CL600	2 eng. Turbofan	75	26
	ALF502I	1.5	36
			1

HMMH aircraft are listed on top line & recommended INM sub. below it:

.

* Currently in INM SUB list

APPENDIX D

Tampa Air Traffic Control Tower Letter to Airmen No. 98-05, "Informal Runway Use Program"

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Federal Aviation Administration Air Traffic Control Tower Tampa International Airport Tampa, Florida 33607

ISSUED: July 1, 1998

EFFECTIVE: August 1, 1998

KC

TAMPA AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL TOWER LETTER TO AIRMEN No. 98-05

SUBJECT: Informal Runway Use Program

CANCELLATION: August 1, 2000

This Letter to Airmen cancels Letter to Airmen 96-06 and restates the runway use program which has been in effect at Tampa International Airport for many years. The program was developed in the public interest, designed to enhance noise abatement efforts with regard to airport communities, and applies to all arriving and departing turbojet operations.

Pilots requesting to use a runway other than the active are expected to advise the control tower. These requests will be honored; however, the Tower will advise that the requested runway is a deviation from the Noise Abatement Runway Use Program and will advise of any expected delay. These deviations from the Informal Runway Use Program will be noted in the Facility Record of Operations (FAA 7230-4).

1. RUNWAY USE IN ORDER OF PRIORITY FROM 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 Midnight

- a. South Operation -- Arrive 18L/18R
 - (1) Depart 18R (2) Depart 18L

b. North Operation -- Depart 36L/36R

(1) Arrive 36L (2) Arrive 36R

c. East/West Operation – Amve/Depart 9/27

2. RUNWAY USE PRIORITY FROM 12:00 Midnight to 6:00 a.m.

When traffic, wind, weather, and field conditions permit, and no delays to arrivals or departures will result, Tower will use Runway 18R for turbojet departures and Runway 36L for turbojet arrivals. If conditions do not permit, then runways will be assigned as defined in Paragraph 1.

3. NOISE-SENSITIVE AREA. Between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., when traffic conditions permit, turbojet arrivals to Runway 36L shall be vectored to avoid the Interbay Area (peninsula south of Runway 36R).

4. OPERATIONAL SAFETY CRITERIA. Whenever possible, Tower will assign runways based on the Runway Use Priorities stated above and will apply the following criteria:

a. There should be no significant wind shear or thunderstorms affecting the use of the assigned runway.

b. A runway of lower-use priority may be assigned as follows:

(1) For landing, when the reported visibility is less than one statute mile, or the runway visual range for the higher priority is less than 5,000 feet.

(2) When braking action is reported less than good, or if reports are received of hydroplaning or unusually slippery runway surfaces.

c. Maximum Crosswind Component (including Gust Values) - Tailwind Component.

(1) Clear and dry runway, 20 KTS crosswind - 5 KTS tailwind.

(2) Runways not clear and dry, 15 KTS crosswind - No tailwind; except for the nominal range of wind reported as calm (less than 3 KTS).

5. INITIAL DEPARTURE TRACKS. (Headings will be assigned to insure aircraft remain on the designated tracks. Do not expect turns from initial headings until the aircraft has reached 3,000 feet, unless operationally required.)

a. Runways 36L or 36R - track 360.

b. Runway 18R - track 200.

c. Runway 18L - track 210.

d. Runway 27 - track 270.

e. Runway 9 - track 090.

John W Stewart, Jr.

Air Traffic Manager Tampa Tower

2.

APPENDIX E

Operational Flow Sensitivity Analysis

A sensitivity analysis was performed to better understand noise levels associated with north and south-flow conditions experienced at TPA. These one-direction flow contours are presented for a number of reasons, including: (1) they provide a basis for understanding the potential day-to-day differences in noise levels resulting from variations in runway use, (2) they provide a basis for understanding the effects of preferential runway use as an introduction to the noise abatement planning phase of the study, and (3) the north-flow contours provide a basis for comparing modeled DNL to the values measured during the field measurements on October 14-21, 1997. Results of the noise monitoring measurement averaged DNL is compared to the north-flow conditions INM calculated DNL in Table 4.13 of Chapter Four.

Figures E-1 and E-2 present 2000 "North-Flow" and "South-Flow" DNL contours with existing non-compatible land uses. These contours assume 2000 annual day runway use, flight track use, and runup activity. However, they assume that the winds require 100 percent of the operations in the north or south flow with runway use as presented in Tables 4.4 and 4.5 of Chapter Four.

Existing land use compatibility was analyzed for the north-flow and south-flow conditions. The following discussion examines the non-compatible land uses surrounding the Airport.

Areas North of TPA

The residential vicinity most potentially impacted by existing aircraft noise is located north of the Airport, as can be seen in both Figure E-1 and Table 5.1.

West Park Estates is a subdivision of several hundred single family homes. Under the north-flow condition, the western portion of this community has an estimated 1,018 persons residing in 414 dwelling units within the DNL 65-70 contour interval, and another 96 residents in 39 dwelling units within the DNL 70-75 contour interval. No residents are located within the 65 DNL in the south-flow condition.

The Benjamin Road area in the vicinity of Barry Road has an estimated 50 dwelling units with 148 residents in the DNL 65-70 contour interval under the north-flow condition. This drops to 15 dwelling units and 37 residents for the south-flow condition. No residents are located within the DNL 70^+ contour. Field observation discloses that many of the dwellings are older, mobile (manufactured) homes that appear to have been in place for many years.

An estimated 292 dwelling units with 719 residents are located in the DNL 65-70 contour interval in the Southern Comfort subdivision with the north-flow condition. No residents are within the DNL 65^+ for the south-flow condition. No residents are within the DNL 70^+ contour for either condition. This development is comprised entirely of single family homes that have been in place for over two decades.

Areas South of TPA

The only existing non-compatible land use south of the Airport is a residential neighborhood that extends along Mariner Street. An estimated population of 64 in 26 dwelling units are located within the DNL 65-70 contour interval for both north-flow and south-flow conditions.





HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY 2000 South Flow Day-Night Average Sound Level with Non-compatible Land Uses Figure E-2



Areas East of TPA

The Drew Park area is an older area in transition from a one residential area. An estimated five residents in two dwelling units are located in the DNL 65-70 contour interval under the north-flow scenario. No residences are located in the DNL 70^+ contour for either condition.

Areas West of TPA

Another transitional area impacted by aircraft noise is east of George Road in the vicinity of Chelsea and Eleanor Streets. An estimated 47 residents live in 19 dwelling units are located in the DNL 65-70 contour interval under the south-flow condition; there are no residences within this contour interval for the north-flow condition. There are no residences within the DNL 70^+ contour for either condition.

Conclusions

The existing residential population in the vicinity of TPA is substantially less impacted by the south-flow condition and most impacted by the north-flow condition. Table E.1 summarizes the total residential population impacted by the north- and south-flow conditions.

Table E.1

Non-Compatible Land Use Properties by Noise Contour Interval

Contour Interval	2000 North-Flow Condition		2000 South-F	low Condition
	Dwellings	Population ¹	Dwellings	Population ¹
65-70	784	1,954	60	148
70-75	39	96	0	0
75 ⁺	0	0	0	0
Total	823	2,050	60	148

¹ Population estimate based on dwelling unit counts. Hillsborough County household size of 2.46 persons/household as estimated by Hillsborough County City-County Planning Commission, April 1997.

APPENDIX F

Runway and Flight Track Use With Revised Noise Compatibility Program

Modeled Runway Use Annual Average Day With Revised Noise Compatibility Program

Aircraft Catanon	Dunnan	Departures		An	rivals
Amerani Calegoi y	Runway	Day	Night	Day	Night
Air Carrier Jet	09	0	0	0	0
(includes Military	18L	1	0	28	28
DC9s)	18R	72	75	45	30
	27	0	0	1	1
	36L	15	14	26	41
	36R	12	11	0	0
Corporate Jet	09	0	0	0	0
(includes Military	18L	1	0	64	35
GIIBs)	18R	71	75	9	23
	27	1	0	1	1
	36L	2	0	26	41
	36R	25	25	0	0
Turboprop Aircraft	09	4	1	1	1
	18L	22	0	25	42
	18R	47	65	45	23
	27	1	0	3	3
	36L	19	28	17	31
	36R	7	6	9	0
Piston Aircraft	09	54	3	3	3
	18L	25	0	42	42
	18R	4	63	0	0
	27	3	3	35	3
	36L	0	0	1	52
	36R	14	31	19	0

Modeled Air Carrier Jet Flight Track Use (includes Military DC9s) With Revised Noise Compatibility Program

.

Runway		Departures			Arrivals	
	Track Name	Day Usage	Night Usage	Track Name	Day Usage	Night Usage
09	09D1	0.0%	0.0%	09A1	0.0%	0.0%
	09D2	0.0%	0.0%	09A2	0.0%	0.0%
	09D3	0.0%	0.0%	09A3	0.0%	0.0%
	09D4	0.0%	0.0%			
	09D5	0.0%	0.0%			
	09D6	0.0%	0.0%			
	09D7	0.0%	0.0%			
18L	8LD1	0.0%	0.0%	8LA1	35.0%	59.0%
	8LD2	0.0%	0.0%	8LA2	20.0%	20.0%
	8LD3	100.0%	100.0%	8LA3	10.0%	0.0%
	8LD4	0.0%	0.0%	8LA4	15.0%	15.0%
	8LD5	0.0%	0.0%	8LA5	10.0%	3.0%
	8LD6	0.0%	0.0%	8LA6	10.0%	3.0%
				8LA7	0.0%	0.0%
				8LA8	0.0%	0.0%
18R	8RD1	1.0%	5.0%	8RA1	30.0%	46.0%
	8RD2	10.0%	15.0%	8RA2	20,0%	20.0%
	8RD3	20.0%	0.0%	8RA3	10.0%	10.0%
	8RD4	30.0%	20.0%	8RA4	10.0%	10.0%
	8RD5	30.0%	40.0%	8RA5	10.0%	0.0%
	8RD6	6.0%	20.0%	8RA6	6.0%	10.0%
	8RD7	3.0%	0.0%	8RA7	10.0%	0.0%
	8RD8	0.0%	0.0%	8RA8	4.0%	4.0%
	8RD9	0.0%	0.0%	8RA9	0.0%	0.0%
	8RD0	0.0%	0.0%	8RA0	0.0%	0.0%
	8RDA	0.0%	<u>0</u> .0%	8RAA	0.0%	0.0%
27	27D1	0.0%	0.0%	Al	100.0%	100.0%
	27D2	0.0%	0.0%	A2	0.0%	0.0%
	27D3	0.0%	0.0%	A3	0.0%	0.0%
				A4	0.0%	0.0%
				A5	0.0%	0.0%
				A6	0.0%	0.0%
36L	6LD1	35.0%	35.0%	6LA1	22.0%	20.0%
	6LD2	32.0%	45.0%	6LA2	2.0%	4.0%
	6LD3	1.0%	5.0%	6LA3	0.0%	0.0%
	6LD4	10.0%	10.0%	6LA4	3.0%	16.0%
	6LD5	1.0%	1.0%	6LA5	0.0%	0.0%
	6LD6	7.0%	0.0%	6LA6	7.0%	17.0%
		6.0%	0.0%	6LA7	18.0%	23.0%
		4.0%	0.0%	6LA8	16.0%	10.0%
		4.0%	4.0%	6LA9	20.0%	5.0%
	6LD0	0.0%	0.0%	6LA0	12.0%	5.0%
		0.0%	0.0%	6LAA	0.0%	0.0%
	OLDB	0.0%	0.0%	6LAB	0.0%	0.0%
	6LDD	0.0%	0.0%	6LAD	0.0%	0.0%
	6LDE	0.0%	0.0%			
	6LDF	0.0%	0.0%			
	6LDG	0.0%	0.0%			
	6LDH	0.0%	0.0%			
	6LDI	0.0%	0.0%			

Modeled Air Carrier Jet Flight Track Use (includes Military DC9s) With Revised Noise Compatibility Program (Continued)

.

.

Paraway		Departures			Arrivals	
Kuuway	Track Name	Day Usage	Night Usage	Track Name	Day Usage	Night Usage
36R	6RD1	30.0%	30.0%	6RA1	100.0%	100.0%
	6RD2	4.0%	4.0%	6RA2	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD3	2.0%	18.0%	6RA3	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD4	1.0%	2.0%	6RA4	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD5	40.0%	40.0%	6RA5	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD6	2.0%	2.0%	6RA6	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD7	7.0%	2.0%	6RA7	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD8	7.0%	2.0%	6RA8	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD9	7.0%	0.0%	6RA9	0.0%	0.0%
	6RD0	0.0%	0.0%	6RA0	0.0%	0.0%
	6RDA	0.0%	0.0%	6RAA	0.0%	0.0%
	6RDB	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDD	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDE	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDF	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDG	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDH	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDI	0.0%	0.0%			

Modeled Corporate Jet Flight Tracks (includes Military GIIBs) With Revised Noise Compatibility Program

,

Runway	Dep	artures	AI	Tivals
	Track Name	Day / Night Lisage	Track Name	Day / Night Usage
09	09D1	30.0%	09A1	100.0%
	09D2	0.0%	09A2	0.0%
	09D3	70.0%	09A3	0.0%
	09D4	0.0%		
	09D5	0.0%		
	09D6	0.0%		
	09D7	0.0%		
18L	8LD1	0.0%	8LA1	44.0%
	8LD2	0.0%	8LA2	12.0%
	8LD3	100.0%	8LA3	12.0%
	8LD4	0.0%	8LA4	12.0%
	8LD5	0.0%	8LA5	12.0%
	8LD6	0.0%	8LA6	4.0%
			8LA7	4.0%
			8LA8	0.0%
18R	8RD1	0.0%	8RA1	60.0%
	8RD2	10.0%	8RA2	0.0%
	8RD3	20.0%	8RA3	10.0%
	8RD4	30.0%	8RA4	20.0%
	8RD5	30.0%	8RA5	0.0%
	8RD6	10.0%	8RA6	0.0%
	8RD7	0.0%	8RA7	0.0%
	8RD8	0.0%	8RA8	10.0%
	8RD9	0.0%	8RA9	0.0%
	8RD0	0.0%	8RA0	0.0%
	8RDA	0.0%	8RAA	0.0%
27	27D1	100.0%	Al	40.0%
	27 D2	0.0%	A2	0.0%
	27D3	0.0%	· A3	30.0%
			A4	0.0%
			A5	0.0%
			A6	30.0%
36L	6LD1	25.0%	6LA1	37.0%
	6LD2	45.0%	6LA2	1.0%
	6LD3	0.0%	6LA3	0.0%
	6LD4	0.0%	6LA4	1.0%
	6LD5	12.0%	6LA5	0.0%
	6LD6	0.0%	6LA6	5.0%
	6LD7	6.0%	6LA7	27.0%
	6LD8	6.0%	6LA8	6.0%
	6LD9	0.0%	6LA9	12.0%
	6LD0	6.0%	6LA0	6.0%
	6LDA	0.0%	6LAA	5.0%
	6LDB	0.0%	6LAB	0.0%
	6LDD	0.0%	6LAD	0.0%
	6LDE	0.0%		
	6LDF	0.0%		
	6LDG	0.0%		
	6LDH	0.0%		
	6LDI	0.0%		

Modeled Corporate Jet Flight Tracks (includes Military GIIBs) With Revised Noise Compatibility Program (Continued)

Runway	Deps	irtures	Ar	rivals
	Track Name	Day / Night Usage	Track Name	Day / Night Usage
36R	6RD1	36.0%	6RA1	40.0%
	6RD2	5.0%	6RA2	15.0%
	6RD3	4.0%	6RA3	10.0%
	6RD4	1.0%	6RA4	0.0%
	6RD5	36.0%	6RA5	20.0%
	6RD6	2.0%	6RA6	15.0%
	6RD7	5.0%	6RA7	0.0%
	6RD8	8.0%	6RA8	0.0%
	6RD9	2.0%	6RA9	0.0%
	6RD0	1.0%	6RA0	0.0%
	6RDA	0.0%	6RAA	0.0%
	6RDB	0.0%		
	6RDD	0.0%		
	6RDE	0.0%		
	6RDF	0.0%		
	6RDG	0.0%		
	6RDH	0.0%		
	6RDI	0.0%		

Runway		Departures		<u> </u>	Arrivals	
	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use
09	09D1	75.0%	10.0%	09A1	90.0%	0.0%
	09D2	6.0%	40.0%	09A2	10.0%	50.0%
	09D3	4.0%	1.0%	09A3	0.0%	50.0%
	09D4	10.0%	35.0%			
	09D5	0.0%	4.0%			
	09D6	5.0%	4.0%			
	09D7	0.0%	6.0%			
18L	8LD1	38.0%	10.0%	8LA1	25.0%	65.0%
	8LD2	38.0%	25.0%	8LA2	5.0%	0.0%
	8LD3	14.0%	0.0%	8LA3	5.0%	5.0%
	8LD4	10.0%	10.0%	8LA4	5.0%	0.0%
	8LD5	0.0%	45.0%	8LA5	25.0%	10.0%
	8LD6	0.0%	10.0%	8LA6	0.0%	0.0%
				8LA7	25.0%	10.0%
				8LA8	10.0%	10.0%
18R	8RD1	30.0%	30.0%	8RA1	30.0%	0.0%
	8RD2	2.0%	2.0%	8RA2	5.0%	0.0%
	8RD3	3.0%	3.0%	8RA3	7.0%	0.0%
	8RD4	3.0%	3.0%	8RA4	5.0%	0.0%
	8RD5	5.0%	5.0%	8RA5	3.0%	0.0%
	8RD6	15.0%	15.0%	8RA6	5.0%	0.0%
	8RD7	2.0%	2.0%	8RA7	5.0%	0.0%
	8RD8	20.0%	20.0%	8RA8	10.0%	0.0%
	8RD9	10.0%	10.0%	8RA9	10.0%	0.0%
	8RD0	5.0%	5.0%	8RA0	10.0%	0.0%
	8RDA	5.0%	5.0%	8RAA	10.0%	0.0%
27	27D1	0.0%	0.0%	Al	35.0%	26.0%
	27D2	100.0%	100.0%	A2	0.0%	8.0%
	27D3	0.0%	0.0%	A3	4.0%	25.0%
				A4	30.0%	8.0%
				A5	4.0%	25.0%
				A6	27.0%	8.0%
36L	6LD1	5.0%	5.0%	6LA1	45.0%	40.0%
	6LD2	4.0%	4.0%	6LA2	2.0%	0.0%
	6LD3	0.0%	0.0%	6LA3	2.0%	10.0%
	6LD4	0.0%	0.0%	6LA4	8.0%	10.0%
	6LD5	0.0%	0.0%	6LA5	3.0%	10.0%
	6LD6	0.0%	0.0%	6LA6	10.0%	0.0%
	6LD7	0.0%	0.0%	6LA7	2.0%	0.0%
	6LD8	0.0%	0.0%	6LA8	4.0%	0.0%
	6LD9	0.0%	0.0%	6LA9	2.0%	20.0%
	6LD0	0.0%	0.0%	6LA0	0.0%	0.0%
	6LDA	5.0%	5.0%	6LAA	15.0%	0.0%
	6LDB	27.0%	27.0%	6LAB	1.0%	10.0%
	6LDD	27.0%	27.0%	6LAD	6.0%	0.0%
	6LDE	7.0%	7.0%			
	6LDF	12.0%	12.0%			
	6LDG	5.0%	5.0%			
	6LDH	3.0%	3.0%			
	6LDI	5.0%	5.0%			

Modeled Turboprop and Piston Flight Track Use With Revised Noise Compatibility Program

.

Modeled Turboprop and Piston Flight Track Use
With Revised Noise Compatibility Program
(Continued)

		Departures			Arrivals	
Runway	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use	Track Name	Day Use	Night Use
36R	6RD1	1.0%	1.0%	6RA1	55.0%	40.0%
	6RD2	0.0%	0.0%	6RA2	4.0%	2.0%
	6RD3	1.0%	1.0%	6RA3	15.0%	10.0%
	6RD4	3.0%	3.0%	6RA4	3.0%	10.0%
	6RD5	3.0%	3.0%	6RA5	1.0%	0.0%
	6RD6	0.0%	0.0%	6RA6	3.0%	0.0%
	6RD7	1.0%	1.0%	6RA7	2.0%	3.0%
	6RD8	0.0%	0.0%	6RA8	2.0%	10.0%
	6RD9	0.0%	0.0%	6RA9	4.0%	3.0%
	6RD0	31.0%	31.0%	6RA0	3.0%	1.0%
•	6RDA	9.0%	9.0%	6RAA	8.0%	21.0%
	6RDB	15.0%	15.0%			
	6RDD	0.0%	0.0%			
	6RDE	0.0%	0.0%	1		
	6RDF	14.0%	14.0%			
	6RDG	11.0%	11.0%			
	6RDH	10.0%	10.0%			[
	6RDI	1.0%	1.0%			

APPENDIX G

Working Group Meeting Summaries





Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: August 26, 1997

To: Agency Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #1 - Summary

On August 11, 1997 the first meeting of the Agency Working Group was conducted at the Airport Marriott. Twenty-three (23) persons attended--13 invitees and 10 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Louis Miller, Executive Director of the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority, made opening remarks and introduced Nadine Jones, HCAA's project director for update of these studies. Jeff Mishler, HNTB, introduced the project team, explained the purpose of the Master Plan/Part 150 Study and reviewed key issues. Ted Baldwin made a presentation on the Part 150 Study. Handouts included copies of the transparencies which summarize major points of the presentations and a draft of Chapter One, Goals and Objectives. Meeting participants were invited to review the draft Goals and Objectives and call Jeff with comments.

Bill Connors clarified that the update of the HCAA Height Zoning Ordinance would also be completed as part of the Master Plan/Part 150 Study update. He explained that state law enabled the HCAA to adopt height controls for structures based on runway configurations as shown on the Master Plan. The ordinance was last updated in 1986 and will be updated toward the end of this study.

Jeff indicated that agendas will be provided in advance of future meetings.

Questions/Comments:

Lucy Ayers, Hillsborough County MPO, offered the following questions and comments:

(1) What area will be included in the projections? She suggested that the metropolitan area incorporate the same four counties (Hillsborough, Pinellas, Pasco and Manatee) that the Regional Transportation Model includes. The Hillsborough County Planning Commission is in the process of projecting employment and population to 2020 (expected to be completed by early 1998). Population and employment to 2015 for the four counties has already been developed.

(2) Tampa/Hillsborough County/Lakeland are in the process of developing a Major Investment Study (MIS) Transit Operation Plan. The Master Plan update should be coordinated with this effort.

(3) I-275 will be completely reworked in the next ten years. There will be short term and long term improvements scheduled and a mid-range contingency plan. I-275 to the Howard Franklin will be widened to 8 lanes and access from the south side of the airport will be majorly affected. This study should take this potential problem into account.

Ram Kancharia, Port of Tampa, reported that the Port Authority has just finished a Master Plan update of their own. He asked if we also anticipate having to go through the Department of Community Affairs (DCA) in Tallahassee. Nadine explained that the HCAA would be completing a DRI after the update of the Master Plan; however, because the City of Tampa has been approved as a "Sustainable Community", HCAA will coordinate with the City, the state clearinghouse process and all applicable agencies.

Jim Cloar of the Downtown Partnership asked whether the new stadium was approved under the existing plan and height ordinance. The answer was yes.

Enclosures: Agency Working Group Membership List of Attendees - Meeting #1 Project Schedule

ATTENDANCE - Agency Working Group Meeting #1 August 11, 1997 3:00 p.m.

- 1. Chuck Sackett Hillsborough Community College P.O. Box 31127 Tampa, FL 33631-3127 253-7158 253-7553 FAX
- 3. Bruce Haddock City of Oldsmar 100 State Street Oldsmar, FL 34677 855-4693
- 5. Bob Beaman Hillsborough Comm. College P.O. Box 30030 Tampa, FL 33630-3030
- 7. Mary J. Hall THCEA/Pat McCue 412 E. Madison Street S-800 Tampa, FL 33602 813-272-6740 813-273-3730 FAX
- 9. Andrea Scarborough City of Tampa 306 E. Jackson Street, 3N Tampa, FL 33602 274-8405 274-8143
- 11. Gene Boles Hillsborough Co. Planning & Growth Management 272-5147

STAFF:

Louis Miller, HCAA Bill Connor, HCAA Nadine S. Jones, HCAA Brenda Geoghagen, HCAA Jeff Mishler, HNTB

Joe Navarette, HNTB Richard T. Fricke, HNTB George Huffman, HNTB Ted Baldwin, HMM&H Georgianne Ratliff, R&A

- 2. Henry Saavedra Tampa Sports Authority 4201 N. Dale Mabry Hwy Tampa, FL 33607 813-673-4300 813-673-4308 FAX
- 4. Grady Smith Pinellas Co. MPO 14 South Ft. Harrison Ave. Clearwater, FL 32761 813-464-4751
- Lucie Ayer Hillsborough County MPO 601 E. Kennedy Blvd., #1800 Tampa, FL 33602 813-272-5940 813-272-6258 FAX
- 8. Terri L. Fox Westshore Alliance 5100 W. Lemon Tampa, FL 289-5488
- 10. Ram Kancharia Port of Tampa P.O. Box 2192 Tampa, FL 33601 813-272-0554 813-272-0570 FAX
- 12. Jim Cloar Tampa Downtown Partnership P.O. Box 2387 Tampa, FL 33601 221-3686 229-1328 FAX



SEP 1007 Received Alexandria

Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: August 26, 1997

To: Technical Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #1 - Summary

On August 11, 1997 the first meeting of the Technical Working Group was conducted at the Airport Marriott. Twenty-five (25) persons attended--17 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Louis Miller, Executive Director of the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority made opening remarks and introduced Nadine Jones, HCAA project director for the update of these studies. Jeff Mishler, HNTB, introduced the project team, explained the purpose of the Master Plan/Part 150 Study and reviewed key issues. Ted Baldwin made a presentation on the Part 150 Study. Handouts included copies of the transparencies which summarize major points of the presentations and a draft of Chapter One, Goals and Objectives. Meeting participants were invited to review the draft Goals and Objectives and call Jeff with comments. Jeff indicated that agendas will be provided in advance of future meetings.

Questions/Comments:

- 1. The primary question concerned the methodology to be utilized in preparing activity forecasts. Jeff Mishler was asked if he would be distributing an airline questionnaire. The airline representatives expressed concern than they be given an opportunity to provide input and sufficient time to respond. Jeff reviewed the methodology including the intent to utilize a "panel of experts." He indicated to the group that the Expert Panel would most likely be meeting in late September or early October.
- 2. A committee member requested that copies of the "Project Schedule" be provided to the members.

It was decided that we would proceed with an airline questionnaire and use the expert panel regarding the forecast of activity.

Enclosures: Technical Working Group Membership List of Attendees - Meeting #1 Project Schedule

ATTENDANCE - Technical Working Group Meeting #1 August 11, 1997 1:00 p.m.

- 1. Don Runyon Marriott T.I.A. 813-879-5151
- Mary C. Leyden
 U.S. Airways
 2345 Crystal Drive
 Arlington, VA 22227
 703-872-5972
 703-872-7986 FAX
- 5. C. Ed. Howard Jr. FAA-Orlando-APO 5950 Hazeltine Drive Suite 400 Orlando, FL 32822 407-812-6331 ext.25 407-812-6978 FAX
- Laddie E. Irion URS/Greiner-St. Pete Clearwater Airport 7650 West Courtney Campbell Causeway Tampa, FL 33607 813-286-1711
- 9. John Roeller
 FDOT
 11201 N. McKinley Blvd.
 Tampa, FL 33612
 813-975-6409

- 2. Jim Sepa Hertz Corporation P.O. Box 31166 Tampa, FL 33631 813-874-3232 813-870-1354 FAX
- 4. Steve Senica United T.I.A. 396-3256
- 6. Bill Harper Dollar Rent A Car T.I.A. 813-396-3640 813-289-0453 FAX

8.

- Steve Callaway Delta Air Lines Dept. 878, Atlanta Int'l Airport Atlanta, GA 404-715-2261 404-715-2548 FAX
- 10. Josephine Stevens Avis Rent A Car T.I.A. 813-396-3530 B.P. 813-879-9812 FAX

- 11. David Herrera Southwest Airlines P.O. Box 36611 Dallas, TX 75235-1611 214-792-5244 214-792-4086 FAX
- 13. Gary Lantner VAL
 3627 Coltwood Drive Spring, TX 77388
 281-350-2889
 281-288-3945 FAX
- 15. Marvin Hudspeth FAA Tampa ATCT T.I.A. Tampa, FL 33607 813-872-1528
- 17. Yeong S. Yee TWA
 Rm 201 Hangar #12
 JFK Int'l Airport 718-244-2806
 718-244-2810 FAX

- 12. Jay Dayhoff
 United
 2618 Cason
 Houston, TX 77005
 713-664-4134
 FAX is the same #
- 14. Mike Fahlmark USPS
 2203 N. Lois Avenue, Suite 1010 Tampa, FL 33607-7110
 813-354-6002
 813-877-8656 FAX
- Mark Wagner Havatampa, Inc.
 15920 Hampton Village Drive Tampa, FL 33618 813-269-9225

<u>STAFF:</u>

Louis Miller, HCAA Bill Connor, HCAA Nadine S. Jones, HCAA Brenda Geoghagen, HCAA Jeff Mishler, HNTB Joe Navarette, HNTB Richard T. Fricke, HNTB George Huffman, HNTB Georgianne Ratliff, R&A



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: August 14, 1998

To: Agency Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #3 (July 20, 1998) - Summary

On July 20, 1998 the third meeting of the Agency Working Group was conducted in the HCAA Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Fourteen (14) persons attended-6 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, made opening remarks and began the meeting with an explanation of where we are in the master plan update process. Jeff Mishler, explained that to date, the master plan focus has been on planning for the airport terminal. An extensive survey of TPA's terminal landside, airside and curb facilities was conducted. The survey's key observations were reviewed with the group. Major points of interest included:

- Departure Level- Ticket counters under lease are fully staffed; processing times are at or lower than industry standards, therefore the queues in the ticket lines seem to indicate the airlines are not leasing sufficient space.
- Arrival Level- Baggage display and claim area are insufficient, many conflicts occur with congestion between baggage claim area and rental car area;
- > Transfer Level- currently under construction, some confusion with signage;
- > Airside-Concourses C & D need expansion; and
- > Parking- currently adequate (only approaches capacity at holidays).

Following an explanation of airfield capacity and requirements, four (4) preliminary terminal concepts were presented by Tony Dockery, terminal architect. Meeting participants were advised that the concepts presented are preliminary at this point. Handouts included copies of the transparencies which summarize major points of the presentations and terminal design concept drawings.

The next working group meeting will be held in September where a detailed evaluation of the terminal concepts will be presented, as well as the costs associated with each concept; this group will meet two (2) to three (3) more times before the end of the year.

Questions/Comments:

Jim Cloar, Tampa Downtown Partnership asked if conflicts would arise with the pedestrian access across lanes on the conceptual plan. Tony Dockery answered no, the plan actually misrepresents traffic flow, the arrows need to be changed.

Ned Baier, Hillsborough County Growth Management asked if the terminal concepts will show a light rail connection? Jeff Mishler answered yes, the team would like to integrate this connection into the terminal itself. Preliminary alternatives are still being evaluated and costed out.

Ram Kancharia, Port of Tampa, offered that the exit area from the parking garage need to be looked at, stating that the lanes are very confusing to drivers which results in a lot of weaving.

Andrea Scarborough, City of Tampa asked if expansion of the existing sky cap area had been considered, since this seems to be an area underutilized by passengers. Jeff answered that the potential for future expansion of the curb area for the sky cap is possible.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #3

TIA MASTER PLAN/PART 150 STUDY UPDATE

.

.

SIGN-IN SHEET

July 20, Agency Work 10:30 a	1997 ing Group .m.
(PLEASE PRINT) Name: Andrea Scarborouch Na	me: LOR, CNESTER
Representing: City of TAMPA Re	presenting: THCVA
Address: 306 E. HZKSONS & 3EA	idress: 400 N. Tanya ST. Site 1010 Tanya 71- 33602
Phone/FAX: 274-8405/8143 Ph	none/FAX: <u>223-11/1 ext. 53</u>
Name: <u>AUD WHITEHEAD</u> Na.	me: KAM KIEWCHARLA
Representing: MILLS. LOUATY MAD Rep	presenting: <u>PORT OF TAMEA</u>
Address: 20; E. KEnter BY 18th FL Ad	Idress: P.O. BOX 2192 TAMPA FL 33601
Phone/FAX: 272-5540 Ph	one/FAX: 272-0554

Name: VIM CLOAR.	Name:Ned Baier
TALIPA- Representing: DOWNTOWN PARTNERSHIP	Representing: Gene Boles-Hillsburout County
Address: P.O. Box 2387	Address: 601 East-Kennedy Blud.
7AMPA FL 33601	Tampa
Phone/FAX: 221-3686 229-1328 FX)	Phone/FAX: 813-272.5849

٠



MEMORANDUM

Date: August 14, 1998

To: Technical Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #3 (July 20, 1998) - Summary

On July 20, 1998 the third meeting of the Agency Working Group was conducted in the HCAA Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Eighteen (18) persons attended-10 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, made opening remarks and began the meeting with an explanation of where we are in the master plan update process. Jeff Mishler, explained that to date, the master plan focus has been on planning for the airport terminal. An extensive survey of TPA's terminal landside, airside and curb facilities was conducted. The survey's key observations were reviewed with the group. Major points of interest included:

- Departure Level- Ticket counters under lease are fully staffed; processing times are at or lower than industry standards, therefore the queues in the ticket lines seem to indicate the airlines are not leasing sufficient space.
- > Arrival Level- Baggage display and claim area are insufficient, many conflicts occur with congestion between baggage claim area and rental car area;
- > Transfer Level- currently under construction, some confusion with signage;
- > Airside- Concourses C & D need expansion; and
- > Parking- currently adequate (only approaches capacity at holidays).

Following an explanation of airfield capacity and requirements, four (4) preliminary terminal concepts were presented by Tony Dockery, terminal architect. Louis Miller, executive director of HCAA, requested that meeting participants look carefully over the concepts and ideas presented and advise of any difficulties that might be encountered from an operational standpoint. He advised that the concepts presented are preliminary and have not been costed out at this point. Handouts included copies of the transparencies which summarize major points of the presentations and terminal design concept drawings.

The next working group meeting will be held in September where a detailed evaluation of the terminal concepts will be presented, as well as the cost associated with each concept; this group will meet two (2) to three (3) more times before the end of the year.

Questions/Comments:

- Q: Why do the concept plans only show 757 gates?
- A: We considered the projected fleet mix for peak hour aircraft parking and equalized to a 757 gate.
- Q: It is important to consider baggage movement from the terminal to landside. Will you have a professional baggage consultant look at this aspect? This would be worthwhile.
- A: Yes, the master plan team committed to get a baggage consultant to address the feasibility by conducting a preliminary evaluation of adding a high speed belt system from the landside terminal to airside.
- Q: In the survey work presented today, did anyone talk with corporate users about runway use and airfield requirements?
- A: Yes, during the inventory major coporate carriers were asked about runway use and requirments.
- Comment: The concepts only provide for one (1) commercial area. There is too much commercial vehicle traffic for one area this design would result in a massive traffic jam.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #3

TIA MASTER PLAN/PART 150 STUDY UPDATE

SIGN-IN SHEET

July 20, 1998 Technical Working Group 2:00 p.m.	
(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: MARC STANK	Name: Mille Thompson
Representing: Swithwest AIRLINES	Representing: URSGreiner / PIF
Address: TAMPA INT' AIRPORT	Address:
Phone/FAX: 813 396 4350 / 396 4356	Phone/FAX:_ 7132861711
Name: JEFF ABB5TH	Name: GARY M. GUTKOWSKI
Representing: FAA TRAPA TOUCK	Representing: RAYTHEON AVACRAPT GERVINES
Address: IPMP INT'L A, RPSM	Address: 2450 N WEST SHORE BLVP.
TAMPA FL 3360)	TAMPA, FL. 33607
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX: <u>813-878-4563</u> 874-2590
Name: LADDIE IRION	Name:
Representing: IRSLIEINET/PIE,	Representing:
Address:	Address:
Phone/FAX: 813 286-1711	Phone/FAX:
SIGN-IN SHEET

July 20, 1998 Technical Working Group 2:00 p.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)

Name: PICHAR HOUGHTON	Name: Mary C. Leyden -
Representing: HAXATAMPA INC.	Representing: (Succence, S
Address: 3901 REGA BLUS.	Address: 2345 Creestrac Dr.
TAMMA, FL. 33601	Apulaton (4 2227
Phone/FAX: 621-3535	Phone/FAX: 703-872 7986 P. 703.84
	5972
Name: MIKE FAHLMARK	Name: Dallas Belt
Representing: USPS	Representing: United Airlines
Address: 2203 N. LOIS AVE	Address: 4403 Willow Shade Court
AMAA FL 33607-7110	Orlando, JEL 32835
Phone/FAX: FAX 877-8656	Phone/FAX: (407) 532-0546
Name: ROBERS S. MIRKELSEN	Name:
Representing: FAA - TAMSA ATCT	Representing:
Address: Tomas Toter Manon An	Address:
T.m. Fr. 33607	
Phone/FAX: 848-1553 348-1560	Phone/FAX:



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: August 14, 1998

To: Community Input Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #3 (July 20, 1998) - Summary

On July 20, 1998 the third meeting of the Community Input Group was conducted in the HCAA Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Seventeen (17) persons attended-9 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, made opening remarks and began the meeting with an explanation of where we are in the master plan update process. Jeff Mishler, explained that to date, the master plan focus has been on planning for the airport terminal. An extensive survey of TPA's terminal landside, airside and curb facilities was conducted. The survey's key observations were reviewed with the group. Major points of interest included:

- Departure Level- Ticket counters under lease are fully staffed; processing times are at or lower than industry standards, therefore the queues in the ticket lines seem to indicate the airlines are not leasing sufficient space.
- > Arrival Level- Baggage display and claim area are insufficient, many conflicts occur with congestion between baggage claim area and rental car area;
- > Transfer Level- currently under construction, some confusion with signage;
- > Airside- Concourses C & D need expansion; and
- > Parking- currently adequate (only approaches capacity at holidays).

Following an explanation of airfield capacity and requirements, four (4) preliminary terminal concepts were presented. Meeting participants were advised that the concepts presented are preliminary at this point. Handouts included copies of the transparencies which summarize major points of the presentations and terminal design concept drawings.

The next working group meeting will be held in September where a detailed evaluation of the terminal concepts will be presented, as well as a the costs associated with each concept. In addition, City of Tampa representatives will talk about how the road system in Drew Park will be maintained after HCAA acquires property in this area. This group will meet two (2) to three (3) more times before the end of the year.

Questions/Comments:

Frank Gassler, Beach Park Isle, asked how Tampa International Airport plans to compete with Orlando in 2020. Louis Miller explained that a competition exists between "communities" for tourists, etc., not between airports. Therefore, he does not see TPA as competing with Orlando's airport.

Rick Eldridge, Twelve Oaks Special District, asked what will happen to Westshore in Drew Park? Bill Connors answered that Lois will become the main road. Martin Luther King will never become the main entrance to the airport.

Lydia Skaates, Drew Park Property League stated that Drew Park businesses are worried about having adequate roadways in and out of Drew Park. Louis Miller stated that he will ask the City of Tampa to have appropriate representatives on hand at the next meeting to discuss how they will maintain the road system.

Rick Eldridge, Twelve Oak Special District indicated that he feels the majority of the public misunderstands the plans for the new runway. The runway will have 1,200 feet of separation from Memorial, which he feels is adequate.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #3

.

SIGN-IN SHEET

July 20, 1998 Community Input Group 6:30 p.m.		
(PLEASE PRINT)		
Name: Lybia Shaates	Name: Richard Skaates	
Representing: Drea Park Roperty	Representing:	
Address: 4301 N. Jash St.	Address: 909 E. 12310 ane.	
	Tampa, 70 33612	
Phone/FAX: 877-6669	Phone/FAX: 971-4751	
Name:IKE TREDERICK	Name: CALUTAL COCAL	
Representing: 12 OAKS / TUC ALLIANCE	Representing: <u>NURTHWEST</u> PARK	
Address: 1502 ARMAND Cek	Address: 6526 TOHALS RD	
A FL 33634	TAMPA EL	
Phone/FAX: \$13-889-9833	Phone/FAX: 8/3 885-3750	
Name: OF BEARINGER	Name: Margarot P. Vingi	
Representing: BAY POINTE	Representing: Beach Car & H A	
Address: 8822 BAY POINTE DGS	Address: 213 So, Shemill 331110	
TAMPA 33615		
Phone/FAX: 886-9336	Phone/FAX: 286 0980	

SIGN-IN SHEET

July 20, 1998 Community Input Group		
6:30 p.m.		
(PLEASE PRINT)		
Name: Kick ELORIOCE	Name:	
Representing: TWELVE OAKS SECOND Distan	Representing:	
Address: 7803 GREENStine Dr.	Address:	
TPAFEL 33634		
Phone/FAX: 884-1.530 881-1202	Phone/FAX:	
7		
Name: STRIE HVERE	Name:	
Representing: TAAM TAINWE	Representing:	
Address: 202 S. P.Anken ST	Address:	
- THAPA FL		
Phone/FAX: 877-757-7527	Phone/FAX:	
Name: FRANK GASSLER	Name:	
Representing: REACH PARIL ISLE	Representing:	
Address: \$907 W. RAY WAY DR	Address:	
TAMPA PC 33629		
Phone/FAX: 281-1497	Phone/FAX:	



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study MEMORANDUM

Date: February 10, 1999

To: Agency Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #4 - Summary

On September 9, 1998 the fourth meeting of the Agency Working Group was conducted in the HCAA Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Eighteen (18) persons attended—10 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, made opening remarks and began the meeting by introducing Ted Baldwin. All meeting attendees received a copy of the noise abatement measures Technical Memorandum. Ted gave a quick review of the document.

George Huffman of HNTB presented the land use compatibility analysis. He reported that careful review of the existing land use maps and field investigation of areas surrounding TPA reveal that 14,000 residents currently live within the 65 dbl contour (representing 232 homes at an average of 2.46 persons per household). There are certain types of land uses that are noise sensitive – i.e.) churches, schools, passive recreation and hospitals. The closest of these types of uses to TPA are two churches, both located within the 70 or higher noise contour. No single family structures exist within the 70 dbl or higher noise contour. These findings demonstrate that TPA is implementing a successful program, since the last master plan update approximately 14,000 persons have been eliminated from the noise contour.

Ted Baldwin reviewed the recommendations from the 1997 TPA Part 150 study:

- Use southerly traffic flows whenever possible;
- Encourage turbo jet operations to use Air Transport Association (ATA) recommended noise abatement arrival procedures;
- Designate engine runup procedures;
- Augment vegetation noise barriers along the western perimeter of airport;
- Establish a helipad on the east side of airport.

Runway preference and airspace "gate" concepts were discussed. The group was referred to table 7 of the technical memorandum summarizing the recommended noise abatement alternatives for further consideration:

- preferential runway use;
- noise abatement cockpit procedures;

- runup noise control;
- noise abatement flight paths.

Evan Futterman of HNTB offered comment on the recommended alternatives by clarifying that although easing "restrictions" has been mentioned, the use of the word restriction is inaccurate. Pilot participation in the program is voluntary, not mandatory.

Attendees were asked to review the F.A.R. Part 150 Noise Abatement Measures Technical Memorandum document and asked to get back to Nadine Jones with any comments or concerns within three weeks. All members of the working group who were not present at this meeting will be mailed a copy of this document.

Questions/Comments:

Terri Fox, Westhore Alliance, asked if a daycare center had been identified within the noise contours around TPA? George Huffman answered that a daycare had not been identified; but he would look into the area in question and confirm.

Tony Mantenga, HCAA, asked if the tower informs the pilot about preferential runway procedures? Ted Baldwin explained that the tower resists this type of explanation to pilots due to regulations on the number of words that can be used in communications between aircraft and the tower, etc.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #4

TIA	L I		
MASTER PLAN/PART 1	50 S	STUDY	UPDATE

SIGN-IN SHEET

September 9, 1998 Agency Working Group 10:30 a.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: Tim Clark	Name: Elton Smith
Representing: <u>THCVA</u>	Representing: <u>City</u>
Address: 111 Madison, Swite 1010	Address:
<u>Tampa 33602</u>	
Phone/FAX: 223-1111 229-6616	Phone/FAX: 274 8048
Name: <u>POSE PETRUCHA</u>	Name: 121aue Vereilli
Representing: PLANNING COMMISSION	Representing: HCAA
Address: 60/ E. KENNEDY FLIS	Address:
TAMPA, FL	
Phone/FAX: 2219272-5940	Phone/FAX: 870 - 8789
Name: Duria Mendes	Name: Terr LFox
Representing: BRW, Inc	Representing: Westshore Allance
Address: 3012209 - Eust Juckson St.	Address: 5100 13 Lemon St Stelo7
Tampa FL 33602	T 33 609
Phone/FAX: 224-0448 2240339	Phone/FAX: 289-5488, 289-6727

SIGN-IN SHEET

September 9, 1998 Agency Working Group 10:30 a.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)

Name: Harvey Fleckner	Name: Tony Mantagna
Representing: <u>BRw</u> , Irc	Representing: HCAA
Address: 505 East Jackson ST	Address:
	Phone/FAX: 870-7863
Name:	Name:
Representing: PINELLAS COUNTY	Representing:
Address: SUITE 221 TERMINAL	Address:
Phone/FAX: 531-1451	Phone/FAX:
Name: Ned Baier	Name:
Representing: Hillsborough County	Representing:
Address: 601 E. Kennedy Blud	Address:
20th Kloor. Tampa	
Phone/FAX: 813.272-5849 FAX.272.5248	Phone/FAX:



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date:February 10, 1999To:Technical Working GroupFrom:Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project ManagerRe:TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study
Meeting #4 - Summary

On September 9, 1998 the fourth meeting of the Technical Working Group was conducted in the HCAA. Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Nineteen (19) persons attended—12 invitees and 7 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Nadine Jones, HCAA, made opening remarks and began the meeting by introducing Jeff Mishler. All meeting attendees received a copy of the noise abatement measures Technical Memorandum. Jeff explained that at the last meeting was focused on the terminal. This meeting would be devoted to noise issues, both noise abatement and land uses surrounding the airport property.

Ted Baldwin of HMMH gave a quick review of the noise abatement measures Technical Memorandum for understanding. Attendees were asked to review the Noise Abatement Measures Technical Memorandum document and asked to get back to Nadine Jones with any comments or concerns within 3 weeks. All members of the working group who were not present at this meeting will be mailed a copy of this document.

George Huffman of HNTB presented the land use compatibility analysis. He reported that careful review of the existing land use maps and field investigation of areas surrounding TPA reveal that 232 homes are currently located within the 65 dbl contour. There are certain types of land uses that are noise sensitive – i.e.) churches, schools, passive recreation and hospitals. The closest of these types of uses to TPA are two churches, both located within the 70 or higher noise contour. No single family structures exist within the 70 dbl or higher noise contour. However, there are a few areas with single family homes within the 65-70 dbl noise contour. Since the 1983 Part 150 study, approximately 1,168 residences have been eliminated from the noise contour. These findings demonstrate that TPA is implementing a successful program.

Ted Baldwin reviewed the recommendations from the 1997 TPA Part 150 study:

- Use southerly traffic flows whenever possible;
- Encourage turbo jet operations to use Air Transport Association (ATA) recommended noise abatement arrival procedures;
- Designate engine runup procedures;
- Augment vegetation noise barriers along the western perimeter of airport;
- Establish a helipad on the east side of airport.

Runway preference and airspace "gate" concepts were discussed. The group was referred to table 7 of the technical memorandum summarizing the recommended noise abatement alternatives for further

Meeting #4 Summary TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study February 10, 1999 Page 2

consideration:

- preferential runway use;
- noise abatement cockpit procedures;
- runup noise control;
- noise abatement flight paths.

Clarification was given that although easing "restrictions" has been mentioned, the use of the word restriction is inaccurate. Pilot participation in the program is voluntary, not mandatory. The FAA has approved an "informal" runway use program. Any changes to this program will have to approved by FAA.

Questions/Comments:

Richard Houghton, Raytheon, asked if equal weight was given to 18L and 18R in this analysis? Does the tower review these documents? Ted Baldwin answered that the tower sets the runway priorities. The tower reviews these analyses and has an opportunity to comment as part of their membership on this working group.

Mark Wagner, Havatampa, offers that it appears that if pilots keep on the west side of the gate, there will be no impact on residences. Ted Baldwin answered that residences would be impacted. The diagrams in the Technical Memorandum show air carriers only, not corporate users.

Richard Houghton asks that if there were no monitors on the southeast side of the airport, how can we know there are unacceptable noise events occurring? Ted Baldwin offers that the community is quick to inform us of problems.

Mark Wagner offers that it would be helpful to have graphics that overlay arrival flight paths with departures.

Jeff Abbott offers that if the changes Ted Baldwin is discussing are implemented, the delays would be extreme.

Richard Houghton asks why the 411 Turboprop is not on the list? Ted Baldwin indicates that there are limitations to the model of aircraft he can select. He has to choose representative models of planes on the list.

Michael Beachler, Outback, asks about the possibility of designating an exclusive runway? Ted Baldwin indicates that you cannot discriminate against certain types of users. Segregation of air traffic can only be due to the noise level of aircraft.

Mark Wagner asks if a corporate jet traffic graphic could be prepared? Ted Baldwin answers yes, in fact, please review the documentation in detail and let staff know if there are any more analyses you feel are needed.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #4

SIGN-IN SHEET

September 9, 1998 Technical Working Group 2:00 p.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: KICHARN A. HOUGHTON	Name: MARK WAGNER
Representing: HAVATAMPA THC.	Representing: HAJATAMPA Fre.
Address: 4127 MALLATES DE	Address:
SAFETY HARBOR, FL. 34695	
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX:
TT TT	
Name: JEFF ABBOIL	Name: <u>MIKE FAHLMARK</u>
Representing: FAA TAMPA ATCT	Representing: USPS
Address: TAMPA INTL A.R.P.P.	Address: 2203 NLOIS AVE
TAMPA, FL 33607	SUITEIOIO 873 TAMPAFL 33607
Phone/FAX: 813-348-1553 Fox (15-0)	P 354-6002 Phone/FAX: F 877-8656
Name: MOLLY C. LEYDEN	Name: ardy. Hollway
Representing: US Alreways	Representing: FAA -Orlando ADO
Address: Properentes & FACILITET	Address: 5950 Hazelling Nat'l Dr.
2345 CRYCTAL DR. ARL. VA	5 Suite 400
Phone/FAX: 703-872-5972/7986	Phone/FAX: (407)812-6331 x21
	-6978 (fax)

SIGN-IN SHEET

•

September 9, 1998		
Technical Working Group		
2:00 p.m.		

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: John Roaller	Name: LADOIE IRION
Representing: FDOT D-7	Representing: UDS CREINER
Address: 11201 N. MCKINLEY D	-Address: 76. JC: W COLONE
Tampa, FL.	CONPRELL CONERAL
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX: 282 1711
	286-6587.
Name: 10 STEVENS	Name:
Representing: AUIS KENTACA	Representing:
Address: TAMPA APT	Address:
Phone/FAX: 873 396 3530 FAX 813 879 9872	Phone/FAX:
Name: Kenneth L. Johnson	Name:
Representing: HCAA-OPS	Representing:
Address: Tampa Int'l Airport	Address:
Phone/FAX: \$70-875 Z	Phone/FAX:

TPA MASTER PLAN/PART 150 STUDY UPDATE		
SIGN	SIGN-IN SHEET	
September 9, 1998 Technical Working Group 2:00 p.m.		
(PLEASE PRINT)		
Name: Michael Beachlin	Name:	
Representing: 10+18ack FLF DCpF	– Representing:	
Address: 2410 N. Westore But	Address:	
Tompa	45	
Phone/FAX:813 / 870 -009 8/874-980	SPhone/FAX:	
Name: Dallas Belt	Name:	
Representing: UNITED AN IMES	Representing:	
Address: 4403 Willow Shade Court	Address:	
Orlando, FL 32835		
Phone/FAX: (407) 532-054 61467) 532-2548	Phone/FAX:	
Name:	Name:	
Representing:	Representing:	
Address:	Address:	
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX:	



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: February 10, 1999

To: Community Input Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #4 - Summary

On September 9, 1998 the fourth meeting of the Community Input Group was conducted in Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish. Fifteen (15) persons attended—7 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB, made opening remarks and began the meeting by introducing Ted Baldwin. Jeff explained that at the last meeting the focus was on the terminal. This meeting would be devoted to noise issues, both noise abatement and land uses surrounding the airport property.

George Huffman of HNTB presented the land use compatibility analysis. He reported that careful review of the existing land use maps and field investigation of areas surrounding TPA reveal that 232 homes are currently located within the 65 dbl contour. There are certain types of land uses that are noise sensitive – i.e.) churches, schools, passive recreation and hospitals. The closest of these types of uses to TPA are two churches, both located within the 70 or higher noise contour. No single family structures exist within the 70 dbl or higher noise contour. However, there are a few areas with single family homes within the 65-70 dbl noise contour. Since the 1983 Part 150 study, approximately 1,168 residences have been eliminated from the noise contour. These findings demonstrate that TPA is implementing a successful program.

Ted Baldwin reviewed the noise abatement recommendations from the 1997 TPA Part 150 study:

- Use southerly traffic flows whenever possible;
- Encourage turbo jet operations to use Air Transport Association (ATA) recommended noise abatement arrival procedures;
- Designate engine runup procedures;
- Augment vegetation noise barriers along the western perimeter of airport;
- Establish a helipad on the east side of airport.

The following noise abatement alternatives are being recommended for further consideration:

- preferential runway use;
- noise abatement cockpit procedures;
- runup noise control;
- noise abatement flight paths.

Questions/Comments:

- Q: What exactly is the vegetative barrier being referred to?
- A: This barrier is located along the Veterans expressway and is composed of trees, shrubs, etc.
- Q: Are you recommending removal of the barrier?
- A: No, we are just recommending that it would be worth enhancing the vegetation that already exists.
- Q: I am concerned that last evening I observed turboprops headed directly over my house (extremely low). I live in the Northwest Park Neighborhood.
- A: We will check with the tower to find outwhat occurred.
- Q: What angle do pilots take when arriving at TPA?
- A: When reviewing data on 727s on 36L, most were well within 3 degrees upon arrival. Many were well above 3 degrees. It will be worthwhile to analyze the cost/benefit of a higher angle.
- Q: Run-ups are still a problem, especially north and west of the airport.
- A: Yes, we have been hearing complaints about runups from both the Town & Country and Drew Park neighborhoods. We are analyzing whether or not better orientation of aircraft will help reduce the noise associated withrunups. Atmospheric conditions have a big affect on this noise.
- Q: Are aircraft getting smaller in size as a general rule? I am concerned that this trend will increase the number of flights taken to accommodate the same number of people.
- A: Aircraft size is actually increasing. However, some markets do have regional carriers making the decision to go to smaller aircraft for certain flights.
- Q: What if I buy a home near TPA, and later I am forced to leave due to zoning changes?
- A: You will not have to move from your neighborhood as a result of TPA's growth. As has been demonstrated this evening, although TPA has a steady growth rate (3-4% per year), noise contours are shrinking around the airport.



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: March 7, 1999

To: Agency Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #5 (December 1, 1998) - Summary

On December 1, 1998 the fifth meeting of the Agency Working Group was conducted in the HCAA Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Twelve (12) persons attended-4 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, welcomed the group and opened the meeting by introducing Ted Baldwin of HIMMH. Ted presented the results of the second round of noise analysis alternatives. Six (6) noise abatement alternatives were detailed, each with differing effect on the population living within the noise contours. Alternatives to reduce "run-up" noise complaints (received from Dana Shores, Drew Park and areas north of TPA) were studied as well, with the benefit/costs of adding a run-up facility enclosure being discussed.

Recommendations for changes to TPA's noise abatement program include changes to:

- Preferential runway use (including a formal program to improve compliance and extending nighttime preferential to all aircraft types);
- Noise Abatement Cockpit procedures;
- Run-up noise control (including shared run-up enclosure on east side of airport);
- Noise Abatement Flight Paths (including prohibition of east base legs north of MacDill and departure turns greater than 20 degrees below 3,000 ft.).

Following an explanation these recommendations, Jeff Mishler reviewed airfield, air cargo and general aviation development concepts including a new west parallel, extension of 18L and 26R and lastly, use of the south end of the east parallel. He reported that it appears that the 2015-2020 is the time period in which TPA will need to address capacity issues.

The revised master plan layout includes improved taxiways, a new Spruce Street interchange (2005) and a shift of George Bean Parkway to the east. Remote surface parking and rental car expansion has also been identified but the phasing of these improvements has not yet been determined. Cargo operations are growing fast at TPA. Existing cargo operations, currently utilizing 25 acres, are expected to triple in 25 years. This growth would result in a need for a total of 90 acres in 2020. Identification of additional sites for cargo utilization is being examined.

Jeff reported that the master plan is moving along with refinement of the airport layout plan and development costs being the primary focus of the team's current efforts. Staff will continue to complete the Part 150 and Master Plan documentation and anticipate its completion by the end of March.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #5

SIGN-IN SHEET

December 1, 1998 Agency Working Group 10:00 a.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: Tom Whalen	Name: Jim Cloue
Representing: St. Peter spurg City Adminic	to Representing: Tpa Downtown Partnership
Address: One Fourth Street North	Address:
St. Petersburg, FL 33701	
Phone/FAX: (727) 893-7883	Phone/FAX:
Name: <u>Ferri</u> For	Name: Taha Ataya
Representing: (1) - stshare Allisnie	Representing: City of tampa
Address: 5444 Bay Center De	Address: 306 E. JACKSON
Tampa FL 3360	Ĵ
Phone/FAX: 289-5488- FAX 251-6	277 Phone/FAX: <u>274 - 7347</u>
Name:	Name:
Representing:	Representing:
Address:	Address:
Phone/FAX:	_ Phone/FAX:



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: March 7, 1999

To: Technical Working Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #5 (December 1, 1998) - Summary

On December 1, 1998 the fifth meeting of the Technical Working Group was conducted in the HCAA Board Room at Tampa International Airport. Eighteen (18) persons attended--13 invitees and 10 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, welcomed the group and opened the meeting by introducing Ted Baldwin of HMMH. Ted presented the results of the second round of noise analysis alternatives. Six (6) noise abatement alternatives were detailed, each with differing effect on the population living within the noise contours. Alternatives to reduce "run-up" noise complaints (received from Dana Shores, Drew Park and areas north of TPA) were studied as well, with the benefit/costs of adding a run-up facility enclosure being discussed.

Recommendations for changes to TPA's noise abatement program include changes to:

- Preferential runway use (including a formal program to improve compliance and extending nighttime preferential to all aircraft types);
- Noise Abatement Cockpit procedures;
- > Run-up noise control (including shared run-up enclosure on east side of airport);
- Noise Abatement Flight Paths (including prohibition of east base legs north of MacDill and departure turns greater than 20 degrees below 3,000 ft.).

Following an explanation these recommendations, Jeff Mishler reviewed airfield, air cargo and general aviation development concepts including a new west parallel, extension of 18L and 26R and lastly, use of the south end of the east parallel. He reported that it appears that the 2015-2020 is the time period in which TPA will need to address capacity issues.

The revised master plan layout includes improved taxiways, a new Spruce Street interchange (2005) and a shift of George Bean Parkway to the east. Remote surface parking and rental car expansion has also been identified but the phasing of these improvements has not yet been determined. Cargo operations are growing fast at TPA. Existing cargo operations, currently utilizing 25 acres, are expected to triple in 25 years. This growth would result in a need for a total of 90 acres in 2020. Identification of additional sites for cargo utilization is being examined.

Jeff reported that the master plan is moving along with refinement of the airport layout plan and development costs being the primary focus of the team's current efforts. Staff will continue to complete the Part 150 and Master Plan documentation and anticipate its completion by the end of March.

Questions/Comments:

- Q: As a result of these recommended programs, will we see an increase in larger traffic?
- A: No, if we can get this program operating as we would like, traffic conflicts may actually decrease.
- Q: What is the percentage of corporate aircraft that take off during the day? Would it be possible to add a sign that tells users to abide by the noise abatement procedures?
- A: The percentage of corporate aircraft that take off during the day is very small. We do have these types of signs, but it is difficult to enforce things such as climb gradients.
- Q: Are you proposing that the program currently in effect at TPA become formal? I am concerned about discrimination against certain types of aircraft.
- A: Yes, we are proposing a formal program. It should be noted that he program in effect now does not treat all aircraft equally. This proposal may tie down some specific requirements, thereby decreasing some of the inequities.
- Q: Is it possible we would be required to complete an Environmental Assessment?
- A: It is possible, but at this point it would only be a formality.
- Q: Who be responsible for approving the changes you are proposing?
- A: The Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (HCAA) would have to approve the program. HCAA would then recommend approval to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). The FAA has 180 days to review the request.

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #5

.

SIGN-IN SHEET

December 1, 1998 Technical Working Group 1:00 p.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: PICHAR HOUGHTON	Name: Vic Slacta
Representing: <u>HANATANEA</u> ILC.	Representing: Oct Kick Stuckhouse
Address: 3901 RIGA BLUX	Address: 10 528 First Nor M
TAHIMA FL 33.01	Bradita- FL
Phone/FAX: (313) (221-3235	Phone/FAX: 941-727-8034/941727-9134
Name: Michael BeacyLin	Name: Gary Dempsey
Representing:	Representing: Raythem accord Services
Address: 5110 a. Claucing St-	- Address: 2450 N. Wastshore Blud
Tampa 33609	Paupa K 33607
Phone/FAX: 6:13-670-0078	Phone/FAX: 813-874-1542
Name: Deillers Belt	Name: Ciff Abbot
Representing: Chited AN lines	Representing: TAMPA TOWER FOR
Address: 440% Willow Shade Court	Address: Tampe Anti Cungent
Crlande, FL 32835	/ <i>V</i>
Phone/FAX: (101) 532-0596/2513	Phone/FAX: 5-13-371-7702-

SIGN-IN SHEET

	December 1, 1998 Technical Working Group 1:00 p.m.		
	(PLEASE PRINT) Name: <u>Mayne</u> Doggs Representing: <u>IAMPA</u> TOWER	Name: Stere Callanay Representing: Delta Ar Lanes	
-	Address: FAA ATCT TAMPA ZNERNATIONALA	Address:	
*	Phone/FAX: 813 371 7705	Phone/FAX: 404-715-2261 / FAX	
	Name: Joel TORO Representing: Home ocurren	Name: Representing:	
	Address: 5108 Wclevelyni) st TAMAN F/ 35609	Address:	
with the second	Phone/FAX: 2560419	Phone/FAX:	
	Name: JEFFISEL SHIDIENS Representing: LEMFE (240) NGR	Name: Representing:	
	Address: <u>5105W. CIRULANDS</u> . IAMPAFE 33609	Address:	
	Phone/FAX: 288-02/2 288-0364	Phone/FAX:	

SIGN-IN SHEET

December 1, 1998 Technical Working Group 1:00 p.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: Daw Dill / Dave Maliszewski	Name:
Representing: MAC. Aviation	Representing:
Address: 2450 N. Westshore Blud 2054	Address:
Tumpo, FL 33607	
Phone/FAX: (8:3) 354-8100 354-8003	Phone/FAX:
Name: DUE GALLAGHER	Name:
Representing: TRANS (North Awintream	Representing:
Address: 1903 LAKE John Ree	Address:
Automobile FL 33.823	
Phone/FAX: 941 - 98 4-4866	Phone/FAX:
Name: Alichael Thompson	Name:
Representing: <u>OPSC-reiner</u> /SPCIA	Representing:
Address: 710 50 Cove twey Comple 11 Csi	NAddress:
TAMPS, FC	
Phone/FAX: 313 236 -17/1	Phone/FAX:



Master Plan Update/Part 150 Study M E M O R A N D U M

Date: March 7, 1999

To: Community Input Group

From: Jeff Mishler, HNTB, Project Manager

Re: TIA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Meeting #5 (December 1, 1998) - Summary

On December 1, 1998 the fifth meeting of the Community Input Group was conducted in Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish. Eighteen (18) persons attended-14 invitees and 8 staff and consultant representatives. An attendance list is attached.

Jeff Mishler, HNTB Corporation, welcomed the group and opened the meeting by introducing Ted Baldwin of HMMH. Ted presented the results of the second round of noise analysis alternatives. Six (6) noise abatement alternatives were detailed, each with differing effect on the population living within the noise contours. Alternatives to reduce "run-up" noise complaints (received from Dana Shores, Drew Park and areas north of TPA) were studied as well, with the benefit/costs of adding a run-up facility enclosure being discussed.

Recommendations for changes to TPA's noise abatement program include changes to:

- Preferential runway use (including a formal program to improve compliance and extending nighttime preferential to all aircraft types);
- Noise Abatement Cockpit procedures;
- > Run-up noise control (including shared run-up enclosure on east side of airport);
- Noise Abatement Flight Paths (including prohibition of east base legs north of MacDill and departure turns greater than 20 degrees below 3,000 ft.).

Following an explanation these recommendations, Jeff Mishler reviewed airfield, air cargo and general aviation development concepts including a new west parallel, extension of 18L and 26R and lastly, use of the south end of the east parallel. He reported that it appears that the 2015-2020 is the time period in which TPA will need to address capacity issues.

The revised master plan layout includes improved taxiways, a new Spruce Street interchange (2005) and a shift of George Bean Parkway to the east. Remote surface parking and rental car expansion has also been identified but the phasing of these improvements has not yet been determined. Cargo operations are growing fast at TPA. Existing cargo operations, currently utilizing 25 acres, are expected to triple in 25 years. This growth would result in a need for a total of 90 acres in 2020. Identification of additional sites for cargo utilization is being examined.

Meeting #5 Summary - Community Input Group TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study March 7, 1999 Page 2

Jeff reported that the master plan is moving along with refinement of the airport layout plan and development costs being the primary focus of the team's current efforts. Staff will continue to complete the Part 150 and Master Plan documentation and anticipate its completion by the end of March.

Questions/Comments:

Margaret Vizzi, Beach Park, reports that noise is still a problem for many homes, particularly the arrival flights. She is concerned that the "numbers" reported this evening are skewed and paint "too good" a picture. Louis Miller explained that compliance with noise abatement measures has greatly decreased. The study's recommendation for formalizing the noise abatement program will help this situation. Margaret asks that it be put in writing that the final choice is up to the pilot.

Ben Nelson offers that he thinks local pilots are creating the noise problem (not the airlines). Pilot technique is to blame for the majority of noise problems experienced.

Ken Hoyt asks what happens to TPA in 2050? Can we expect to be out of capacity at that point? Bill Connors explains that the projections presented tonight are based on using today's data. Technology can change dramatically in fifty years. Therefore, we cannot accurately predict needs for that far in the future.

A representative of Arturo's Moving, a company located in the Drew Park Acquisition Area asks if there is a time frame for the acquisition of properties in the Drew Park area. Bill Connors explains that at this point in time, acquisition is on a voluntary basis only. There is no set timeline for acquiring Drew Park properties. Discussion followed regarding how appraisals are determined for these properties and concerns regarding decreasing property values in the area. Property owners interested in getting more information about the acquisition area were invited to contact Chris Hardman, HCAA Properties and Contracts (870-8700).

Enclosures: List of Attendees - Meeting #5

SIGN-IN SHEET

December 1, 1998 Community Input Group 6:00 p.m.

0:	00 p.m.
(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: MARGARet R. Vizzi	Name: BOS HANNESSE
Representings <u>BPHA</u>	Representing: NMPARK
Address: 2/3 So. SHERRicht ST	t. Address: 0573 JALIS DT
TAMPA, F/ 33609	
Phone/FAX: 2860 980	Phone/FAX: \$84-\$326
Name: <u>Representing:</u> Address: <u>PO BOX (SII95</u>	Name: Joek Rouse Représenting: <u>b</u> Address: <u>L(208 N. TKi4K</u>
Phone/FAX: 690 4272	Phone/FAX: <u>\$138737497 87</u> 37588
Name: Dayny Carrento Representing: Whive'r Whing Jours Address: 4101 VF Worthore Ble Toup, FT 33614	Name: Representing: Address:
Phone/FAX: 876-6919	Phone/FAX:

SIGN-IN SHEET

December 1, 1998 Community Input Group 6:00 p.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)

Name: Nick COLMENGREZ	Name: 10m JONES
Representing: City of TAMPA	Representing: PLAN TATION HOA
Address: 30% E. JACKSON St.	Address: 11 3 80 Bredau REEN Dre
TAMPA, FL 33602	TAMPO, 1=1 33624
Phone/FAX: 274-8152	Phone/FAX: 969-3991
Name: EDGERSA	Name: PAUL Steele
Representing: T+C ALLIANCE	Representing: CARRONWOOD VILLACE
Address: 4812 WANNOD THE.	Address: 13721 Hallifierd Drive
TAMOR FL 3361:	TAMPA J1. 33624
Phone/FAX: 884-1530	Phone/FAX:2-2418
Name: <u>Ser Nulsor</u> Representing: <u>Self</u>	Name: SCM Hay A
Address: 4923 St. Corix Dr	Address:
TANDA, EL 33629	
Phone/FAX: 289-9092	Phone/FAX:

MASTER PLAN/PA	TPA ART 150 STUDY UPDATE	
SIGN-IN SHEET		
Decer Commun 6	mber 1, 1998 aity Input Group 2:00 p.m.	
(PLEASE PRINT) Name: <u>ARTIE CARRENO</u> Representing: <u>ARTURU'S MOVING</u> Address: <u>4104 N. WESTSHORE</u>	Name: <u>RCELDRIOCCE</u> Representing: <u>TWEEVE OAKS Specifi</u> e Dis MAddress:	
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX:	
Name:	Name: DDG COHN	
Representing:	Representing:	
Address:	Address: 4616 SAN MIGUEL TOMBA, FLA	
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX: 251-590 251-3046-PAX	
Name:	Name:	
Representing:	Representing:	
Address:	Address:	
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX:	

APPENDIX H

Public Information Workshops

Public Information Workshop #1

.

TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Update Public Workshop #1 October 22, 1998

DRAFT

The first workshop for the TPA Master Plan/Part 150 update was held on October 22, 1998 from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. in Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish. Guests were given a handout at the door containing information about the project, the purpose of the workshop, what happens next and a comment form. Approximately twenty-seven (27) persons from the public attended (see attached signin sheet). Eleven (11) staff members were present. The meeting was held in an open-house format with information stations set around the room for public review. Staff members were available at these stations to answer questions. Six different information stations were presented:

- 1. Overview;
- 2. Forecast;
- 3. Airfield Requirements/Terminal Requirements;
- 4. Terminal Concepts/Airfield Concepts;
- 5. Land Use; and,
- 6. Noise Abatement.

Louis Miller gave an overall project presentation at 7:00 p.m. Jeff Mishler introduced the project team and discussed the information stations available as well as the schedule for proceeding through the Master Planning process. Participants were invited to fill out the comment form located in the packet of information that was handed out at the front door. No comment forms were received that evening or subsequently in the mail. However, there was public discussion after the presentation conclusion. The following is a summary of the public comment/concerns:

- Q: Are there any plans to add more cars to Airside C? It seems this area in particular is always in need of additional back-up.
- A: Yes, we are looking at this possibility. The master plan will address these types of needs for all areas of the airport.
- Q: Will the HCAA ever levy a tax on citizens to fund the Year 2020 improvements that will be necessary?
- A: No, the HCAA does not anticipate that levying a tax will ever be necessary since the HCAA has other methods of financing development at the airport.
- Q: Will the HCAA continue to have and encourage disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) participation in the development program?
- A: Yes, the HCAA is very committed to ensuring this type of participation.
- Q: Is there any intention to expand the East/West runway? I am curious because the HCAA purchased \$20 million in property on the east side of airport. Why?
- A: There are plans to extend the east/west runway. It is necessary because the runway does not meet the standards for air carrier use. The extension is not needed for capacity at this time.
- Q: Arturo's Moving Company is a business located in the acquisition area. Do you have plans to close the road we are utilizing?
- A: We have not yet determined the timeframe for developing in Drew Park. This will be based on demand or a company being interested in a new facility in Drew Park. We have no idea when acquisition will be completed because land is being purchased on a voluntary basis.
- Q: What about the use of parking facilities for the Stadium? I have seen newspaper articles about this. Who will pay for it?
- A: Yes, we have had discussions about this possibility. The developers of the lot will incur the costs. It is anticipated that they will use the property only 10 times per year.

പ്ര വാര

dies and ending with ondo a la turque. She a couple of popular tie. It's really evocative of Ravel's sensibility."

Walsh, who won the Munich International Piano Competition,

see pass me sort of doldrums of early middle age, there is more of a market for a mature woman pianist than there was for someone who was 35 "

unusuar tonamics that he uses."

Walsh's recital is at 8 p.m. Saturday at. Tarpon Springs Performing Arts Center. Tickets are \$10 and \$12. Call (813) 942-5605.



Holiday begins tonight wntown Clearwater

h annual Clearwater / kicks off at 6 p.m. chman Park in downater with the Bobby Frio, followed by guitarist Duke Robilp.m. and the Count estra at 9:15 p.m. Adee, and fans are enoring lawn chairs and olers are permitted, holic beverages may ht in.

Williams



er Brown's

1ahal site luding cal section and valley or Robert dessert? cted



Albert meets Fox

Marv Albert and Michael J. Fox will bump into each other at Madison Square Garden on an episode of Spin City. It should be an easy role for the sportscaster ---he will play himself. The episode hasn't been shot and an air date hasn't been set. Albert's career as an NBA play-by-play man collapsed last year after he pleaded guilty to biting a lover. But he landed a job last month with cable's MSG network.

Cash hospitalized

Johnny Cash is back in the hospital for a check on his medication for a nervous-system disor-

der. The 66-yearold country star has Shy-Drager syndrome, a disease in the Parkinson's family. He was admitted Monday to Baptist Hospital. Cash was released from Bap-

Johnny Cash

ter a week and a half for treatment for pneumonia.

Smooth jazz group Spyro Gyra will headline a free concert tonight at Curtis Hixon Park in downtown Tampa as part of the Downtown Riverjam music series. The concert is 5-9 p.m.

Mall surprise

Brooks in the rotunda! The country star surprised Trisha Yearwood at the Mall of America in Minneapolis on Monday by stepping out of a crowd as she signed autographs and breaking into song. The pair did two duets be-fore 5,000 screaming fans. Yearwood has been opening for Brooks, and the two were in town for sold-out shows at the Target Center in nearby Minneapolis.

tist on Oct. 2 af-

Riverjam features jazz

Attention shoppers, Garth



Public Information Workshop # 2

,

.

..


APPENDIX I

.

Newsletters

..

Horizon 2020

.

ė

Volume I



HORIZON 2020 COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE: Taking TPA Into the 21st Century

Issue |

NEWSLETTER

October 1997

TPA Planning Program Update Underway _____

The current Tampa International Airport (TPA) Master Plan, approved in 1990, has guided airport development during the past decade, but major changes in the aviation industry necessitate a reexamination of the development plan. The new Master Plan is being prepared to provide a comprehensive development program for TPA into the 21st century. This will enable TPA to respond to business opportunities as they arise, maintain its economic leadership role in the region, and continue to serve as a positive factor in regional economic decisions. TPA is important to the economic well-being of the Tampa Bay Region in two ways. First, the Airport and its support services and industries provide employment, purchase local goods and

IN THIS ISSUE

What is A Master Plan?
What is a Part 150 Study?
Who is Conducting this Study?
Opportunities for Input
Master Plan Study Goals
Noise Monitoring Program
Upcoming Activities services, and add to local and state revenue. Second, the Airport serves as a major component of the region's transportation network, facilitating the movement of people and goods into and out of the community and thereby stimulating the local economy.

What is a Master Plan?

The Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (HCAA) has begun an 18month process to update the Master Plan and Federal Aviation Regulation Part 150 Noise Compatibility Program for TPA. An airport master plan is a blueprint for development of all the facilities within an airport, from runways to buildings to ticket counters. The objectives of the TPA Master Plan are to project the number of passengers who will use the Airport and the number of aircraft operations, assess the facilities needed to accommodate this activity, and investigate alternatives to meet these needs. "The Master Plan process will result in a long range plan for meeting the region's growing demand for air travel," said Louis E. Miller, Executive Director, HCAA. "We look forward to the future growth of the air transportation system to meet the needs of Airport customers; while at the same time, we want to make sure our plans are compatible with those of the community we serve."

What is a Part 150 Study?

A noise compatibility study (F.A.R. Part 150 Study) will be conducted at the same time as the Master Plan Study to address the compatibility of the Airport with its neighbors, specifically in the area of airport noise. A noise compatibility study is a specialized study and plan intended to promote aircraft noise control and land use compatibility. According to Miller, "Through the Part 150 Program we will do everything possible to ensure that the Airport remains a good neighbor as it develops in the future."





The Master Plan will be conducted by the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority with technical assistance from a team of expert firms specializing in airport planning, financial planning, and environmental analysis led by HNTB Corporation. Nadine Jones is the Authority's Project Manager for these studies. Harris Miller Miller and Hanson, Inc. will assist in the development of the Part 150 Update and study the noise impacts of various

Airport development concepts. Camp Dresser & McKee, Inc. will analyze potential environmental impacts. The Airport's future people mover system requirements will be addressed by Lea+Elliott. Financial planning will be conducted by Aviation Resource Partners, Inc. Pierce Goodwin Alexander & Linville, Inc. will detail the phasing of the Master Plan. Public and agency involvement will be coordinated locally by Ratliff & Associates, Inc.

NEIGHBORHOODS REPRESENTED

Twenty-five neighborhood associations have been invited to send representatives to the Community Input Group. These include:

Bay Crest Civic Assoc. Bay Pointe Condo Assoc. Beach Park **Beach Park Isles** Burnbrook Homeowners Assoc. Carrollwood Oaks Property Owners Assoc. Carrollwood Village - Phase 2 Carver City/Lincoln Gardens Culbreath Bayou Culbreath Isles Dana Shores Civic Association Drew Park Property League Grove Park Civic Assoc. Lake Egypt Civic Assoc. North Bon Air North West Park Homeowners Assoc. Pelican Island Civic Assoc. Plantation Homeowners, Inc. Sunset Park Sweetwater Homeowners Assoc. Twelve Oaks Civic Assoc. Twelve Oaks Special District Twin Lakes Village of Cypress Bend Village South Civic Assoc. Village West Homeowners Assoc. Westshore Palms

Opportunities for Input

The participation of various public agencies and private interests will be coordinated through three different representative groups: a Technical Working Group; an Agency Working Group; and, a Community Input Group.



A STATE OF A

Community Input Group held kick-off meeting in September.

These three working groups include representatives from:

- Airlines and Tenants
- Business Community
- Federal Aviation Administration
- Florida Department of Transportation
- Local City and County Agencies
- Neighborhood Representatives
- Policymakers

Kickoff meetings for the Technical and Agency Working Groups were held in early August. The Community Input Group met in September. The study team welcomes the input of local citizens. Not only airport officials and users, but all interested citizens may participate in the development of the master plan and the noise compatibility program. As an individual, as a member of a group, or through your elected officials, you are invited to contribute your thoughts. During the course of the 18 month study, 3 to 5 public meetings will be held, giving you, as a private citizen, the chance to express your ideas and concerns, to help ensure that the study is more responsive to the community. Advance notice of these meetings will appear in your local newspapers and you are encouraged to attend.





- Continue to meet and enhance the existing high level of service for passengers, the community and other users.
- Provide an airport that is safe and reliable.
- Minimize costs to all users of the Airport.
- Ensure convenient ground access to the Airport.
- Develop the Airport in a manner which is flexible and adaptable to changing conditions.
- Reduce, to the extent feasible, the impact of aircraft noise on neighboring residents and noisesensitive land uses through noise abatement and noise mitigation.
- Promote the development of compatible land uses in undeveloped areas expected to remain impacted by high noise levels.
- Develop the Airport and Airport vicinity to minimize and reduce environmental effects.
- Develop an airport that supports local and regional economic goals and plans while providing the flexibility to accommodate new opportunities and growth.
- Develop an airport that is consistent with Federal, State, regional and local plans.
- Build and maintain public confidence.

Noise Monitoring Program

Although Part 150 studies are voluntary, airports realize the value of determining potential aircraft noise impacts. The noise analysis requirement under the Federal regulations governing how noise studies are to be conducted include noise exposure maps for a base year (1997) and five year (2002) forecast conditions. The regulations do not require any noise measurements. However, the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority and the project team believe that collecting noise measurement data serves at least three important purposes:

- They provide information on a diverse range of representative aircraft noise events, including takeoffs and landings, fixed-wing and helicopter operations, overflights and runups.
- (2) They provide information on nonaircraft noise events and "background" (ambient) noise levels in the community, as a basis for comparison to airport-related noise.

(3) They provide a sample of noise exposure measurements for comparison to the noise model.

An important element of the data base for the FAR Part 150 noise study is a week of noise measurements taken in communities around the Airport. The measurements are scheduled for October 15 through 22.

The noise monitoring program will involve the use of three computerized portable noise monitors that can operate independently 24-hours per day. The monitors are approximately the size of a large "bread box", with a cable to a tripodmounted microphone, approximately 5 feet in height. A project team member will be stationed at each monitor for extended periods to photograph aircraft overflights and log information on aircraft and nonaircraft noise-producing activity. The monitors will collect noise information whether or not a person is stationed at the site. The project team will also collect radar data for the measurement period to correlate aircraft operations with noise events.

The project team described the measurement program at the first Community Input Group meeting on September 8. Community representatives provided valuable input on noise monitoring site selection. The project team anticipates that measurements will be conducted at 12 to 15 locations for periods ranging from several hours to two or three days.

Citizens who are interested in observing the measurements and providing input on potential monitoring locations are asked to call Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 899-2011.

 October
 Noise Monitoring (15th - 22nd)

 November
 Forecasting

 PLEASE CALLTO CONFIRM & RECEIVE AN UPDATE OFALL SCHEDULED MEETINGS AND TOPICS
 (813) 899-2011



Ratliff & Associates, Inc.

Universal Square, Suite C 6610 East Fowler Avenue Tampa, Florida 33617

Recycled/Re

COMMITMENT COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE

Taking TPA Into the 2.1st Century Tes I want to receive the Master Please check it your address

Plan / Part 150 Study Newsletter. has changed

State

Address:

Suggestions or comments?

Prior issues of the <u>Horizon 2020</u> are available upon request at no charge. Please clip and return to: Ratliff & Associates, Inc., Universal Square, Suite C. 6610 E. Fowler Avenue, Tampa, FL-33617

Where Can You Get More Information?

For specific information on the progress of the study, please contact Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 899-2011. If you prefer, send written requests to:

TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study c/o Ratliff & Associates, Inc. 6610 E. Fowler Ave., Suite C Tampa, Florida 33617 Fax: (813) 899-2207 e-mail: randa@gte.net

or contact Nadine Jones (813) 870-8773 at the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Offices located in the Landside Terminal, 3rd Level-Blue Side between 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. any weekday.



Master Plan / Part 150 Study

Horizon 2020

Volume II



Tampa International Airport

HORIZON 2020 COMMITMENT **TO EXCELLENCE:** Taking TPA Into the 21st Century

Issue II

Passenger and Employee Survey

As part of the Master Plan Update Process, both a passenger survey and an Airport employee survey were conducted during the Fall. The purpose of these surveys was to obtain information on passenger and employee travel characteristics. The data will be used to help plan future Airport facilities and to help identify ways of increasing transit use by Airport passengers and employees.

Results

IN THIS ISSUE

- Passenger and Employee Survey Results
- HCAA Addresses Beach Park
- Noise Measurements Taken
- 1997 Town Meeting
- Expert Panel Forecast Session
- Student for a Day

NEWSLETTER

January 1998

Passenger Survey

A random sample of 1,200 passengers was surveyed during a one week period to collect information on passenger travel characteristics. This sample is statistically significant and has a sampling error of plus or minus 3 percentage points. Key findings are described below:

- Approximately 36 percent of passengers began their ground trip to the Airport from within the City of Tampa; || percent from St. Petersburg; and 9 percent from Clearwater.
- Most passengers are visitors to the region traveling on vacation or personal matters. About sixin-ten passengers were visitors (as opposed to residents); and 37 percent of passengers were traveling on business.
- About half of all passengers drove (or were driven) in a private vehicle to the Airport; one-in-four took a rental car; about 5 percent took a taxi. Six percent arrived by hotel/motel courtesy car; and 7 percent arrived by airport limousine. Less than 0.1 percent of surveyed passengers reported using public transit.
- The great majority of comments offered by survey respondents were favorable. The high level of positive comments is unique to Tampa International Airport. Sample responses include: "Fantastic," "Best Airport in the country," and "I love the Airport."

Employee Survey

There are over 8,000 employees working at the Airport. As part of the Master Plan Update effort, an analysis will determine if employees could benefit from improved mass transit service, and if doing so, congestion along local highways could be reduced. The employee survey was the first step in this analysis.

The purpose of the survey was to establish employee travel patterns, including where they live, where on the Airport they work, their work schedule, and schedule flexibility. This information will help determine how many employees would choose transit over using their own car. (Nearly 94 percent of the Airport employees drive alone to work.)

A representative sample of over 2,000 employees responded to the survey. The results suggest that it may be difficult to encourage a significant number of employees to switch to transit. The reasons are listed below:

Employees live in many areas of the Tampa-Bay region and work in different areas of the Airport. Forty-four percent live outside the City of Tampa; and 44 percent do not work at either the Landside or Airside Terminals, but at the cargo center, airline maintenance bases, general aviation terminal, or U.S. Post Office.

Forty-five percent of Airport employees report to work on the weekend.

Continued on Page 5

Master Plan / Part 150 Study



Aviation Authority Invited to Address Beach Park Group

As part of the on-going public information program for the Airport Master Plan and Part 150 Study, Aviation Authority officials are available to speak to any interested community or neighborhood association. On October 14th, Louis E. Miller, Executive Director and Nadine S. Jones, Director of Planning and Environmental Services, conducted a presentation on the master plan and noise study process before eighty residents at the annual meeting of the Beach Park Homeowners Association. Representatives from Harris Miller Miller & Hanson, Inc., the Aviation Authority's acoustical consultants conducting the noise study, were also present. The following is a summary of the questions and answers.

Q: What is the timing and impact of the new third parallel runway?

A: This runway is to the west of existing runway 18 Right / 36 Left and parallels the Veterans Expressway and Eisenhower Blvd. The work that is being conducted under the current master plan will determine when this runway is needed based on forecast demand. Our Part 150 Study will identify potential noise impacts (if any) and recommend mitigation measures. On a preliminary basis we feel that operation of this new runway will help to reduce noise impacts over residential areas.

Q: Given that the new runway is being constructed so close to the existing runway (18 Right/ 36 Left), won't this result in the east runway (18 Left/36 Right) having to be used by jet aircraft again?

A: It will be used on a limited basis during construction of the new runway; however, we will work with all affected parties to determine how to limit the noise impacts to the extent that we can. For example, we were able to reduce the construction time during the recent runway construction work by offering the contractors financial incentives.

Q: It is my understanding that some of the airports in California use aircraft departure profiles to reduce noise in communities near airports?

A: Noise abatement departure profiles are a promising area for noise abatement. We have already requested that our consultants consider them in the noise study. In addition to the potential for noise abatement, the consultants must assess the airspace operational implications of the procedures, to ensure that they do not affect airport safety and to determine if there are impacts on airport capacity.

Q: Will aircraft that haven't installed engine hush kits to reduce noise levels by the United States Department of Transportation's December 31, 1999, deadline be allowed to operate at Tampa International?

A: No, unless the USDOT were to grant extensions and that is doubtful. We also expect that every aircraft operating at the Airport will meet the Federal noise standards by 2000, either by original design and construction, or through "hushkits".

Noise Levels Measured

Consulting team staff conducted noise measurements around the Airport on October 14 - 21, 1997, as part of the database development for the Part 150 Noise Exposure Map and Noise Compatibility Program Update. The measurement program substantially exceeded Part 150 requirements established by the Federal Aviation Administration, and will provide valuable information for describing, analyzing, and improving noise issues.

Over 400 hours of measurements were conducted at 17 locations. The figure on page 3 depicts these locations.

Measurement locations were selected based on input received at the first Community Input Group meeting, on September 9, 1997. Sites were selected to provide representative information on a diverse range of aircraft activity in noise-sensitive areas on all sides of the airport. The sites were largely clustered under major flight corridors north and south of the airport, where aircraft overflights are the primary concern.

Additional locations were selected close to the airport, on the east and west, where communities are largely affected by noise from on-airport activity.

The measurements were conducted with four sets of instruments. Three of the instrument sets utilized portable noise monitors that permit extended unattended measurement of individual noise events and of cumulative noise exposure over hourly and daily time periods. The fourth instrument set utilized a hand-held sound level meter for measurement of individual noise events, and short term measurement of cumulative exposure.







Consulting team members spent the daylight hours conducting observations at the monitoring locations, to log the noise-producing aircraft and non-aircraft activity.

Single event measurements will provide us with a basis for understanding typical noise levels for different types of operations (such as landings, takeoffs, maintenance runups, and overflights), and for comparing the relative noisiness of different aircraft types. Cumulative exposure measurements will provide us with a basis for comparing actual measured data to noise modeling results, and for evaluating the overall compatibility of the noise levels with land uses.

We greatly appreciate the cooperation of residents in providing us with access to their yards for the measurement sessions.

Measurement results will be presented at Working Group and Community Input Group meetings in early 1998. The study documentation will present the measurement results in graphical form, with detailed technical discussion. Study team members will also present the results at public workshops held throughout the study process. Those workshops will provide an opportunity for one-on-one discussion of the measurement results of greatest interest to attendees.

1997 Tampa Transportation Town Meeting

On October 24th the Tampa Downtown Partnership and HARTline held their annual town meeting to provide a forum for policy makers and transportation officials to discuss current and future regional transportation projects. The meeting was open to the public and held at the beautiful and historic Tampa Theater.

Louis E. Miller, Executive Director of the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority, was one of the transportation officials who spoke. His topic was "Don't Limit Tampa International Airport Through Inadequate Surface Transportation" During his presentation, he described how the current master planning activities at Tampa International Airport were addressing

many of the issues and options other speakers had identified for the future inter-modal opportunities. He stated, "Intensive urbanization of communities ultimately leads to roadway congestion. Rightly or wrongly, airports are seen as significant contributors to this congestion. However, from my perspective, roadway congestion creates delay for airport users and leads to poor customer service. Rail service is one option to create inter-modal opportunities at airports...if there is significant demand, we want to have appropriate airport facilities planned to accommodate this demand." In concluding his remarks, he stated that planning a viable, regional, inter-modal transportation system required the four "C's". they are:

Connections;Choices;

 Coordination; and

Cooperation

Tampa Transportation Town Meeting October 24, 1997 Tampa Theater Tampa, FL

Louis E. Miller, Executive Director of Hillsborough County Aviation Authority



- There are over 8,000 employees working at TIA.
- TIA is the 5th largest employer in Hillsborough County.
- TIA encompasses approximately 3,300 acres of land.
- TIA terminal, parking and airside buildings contain over 5,000,0000 sq. ft.

Student Executive for a Day

As part of the University of Tampa's twelfth annual STUDENT EXECUTIVE FOR A DAY program, the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority invited a student to attend a "Forecast Expert Panel" session conducted at the Tampa International Airport Marriott. The purpose of the STUDENT EXECUTIVE FOR A DAY program is to offer business students the opportunity to visit a company or agency for a day to gain knowledge about how it is managed. As part of the program, University of Tampa student Luiz Augusto de Oliviera Bisachi attended the Expert Panel session. Mr. Bisachi is originally from Sao Paulo, Brazil and is majoring in "international business". He is also a licensed pilot and would not be denied the opportunity for a tour of the airfield as part of his exposure to how the Aviation Authority manages the airport. In a letter to the Aviation Authority Mr. Bisachi states, "...there is still a long way before I can decide what to do with my professional career, however this event was a decisive, very important and unforgettable first step." We wish Mr. Bisachi much success in whichever career he decides to pursue.

Master Plan / Part 150 Study • Page 4

1

Expert Panel -Forecast Session

On October 16, 1997 HCAA staff, local business and aviation industry representatives, and Master Plan Team members met at the Tampa Airport Marriott to conduct an Expert Panel Forecast Session. The purpose of the session was to have this group of local and industry "experts" review and discuss historic airport activity, the regional economy, and the industry trends; to agree on the assumptions and methodologies that will be used for the master plan forecast effort; and to ensure that the master plan forecasts are both credible and usable.

The Panel discussed demographic, employment, income and aviation industry trends as well technological, political, economic and social scenarios which could potentially impact local conditions and affect aviation activity forecasts. Twelve forecast scenarios were identified by the Panel as a way of testing the impact of variations in the assumptions used in the base case forecast.

Valuable information and insight was gained from the Expert Panel Session. The HCAA staff and the Master Plan Team extend their appreciation to Panel members for giving generously of their time and expertise.



Expert Panel meets in day-long session to discuss forecasting.



Passenger and Employee Survey Results

- Over 70 percent of employees have non-traditional working hours (i.e., they report to work before 6:00 AM or after 10:00 AM).
- More than seven-in-ten employees report that they have no flexibility in their scheduled work times.

Based on this data, transit routings and service frequency would have to be significantly expanded to encourage a sizable increase in employee use of this travel mode.





Universal Square, Suite C 6610 East Fowler Avenue Tampa, Florida 33617

rinted on

City

Area Code/Phone:

Suggestions or comments?



State:

Prior issues of the Horizon 2020 are available upon request at no charge. Please clip and return

to: Ratliff & Associates, Inc., Universal Square, Suite C, 6610 E. Fowler Avenue, Tampa, FL 33617

Where Can You Get More Information?

For specific information on the progress of the study, please contact Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 899-2011. If you prefer, send written requests to:

TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study c/o Ratliff & Associates, Inc. 6610 E. Fowler Ave., Suite C Tampa, Florida 33617 Fax: (813) 899-2207 e-mail: randa@gte.net

or contact Nadine Jones (813) 870-8773 at the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Offices located in the Landside Terminal, 3rd Level-Blue Side between 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. any weekday.

Horizon 2020

.

ζ

Volume III





Taking TPA Into the 21st Century

Issue III

NEWSLETTER

October 1998

UPCOMING PUBLIC WORKSHOP

he first public workshop for the Master Plan/Part 150 Study has been scheduled for October 22nd from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. in Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish (5225 N. Himes Ave.). This public workshop will be held in an informal "open house" format. Louis Miller, Executive Director of the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority will conduct an overview presentation at 7:00 p.m. Various presentation stations will be set up for participants to browse the Master Plan/ Part 150 information and learn about our progress to date. HCAA staff and project consultants will be readily available to answer your questions and respond to your comments/concerns. You will be able to turn in written comments at this hearing or mail them back in at a later date. For more information please contact Georgianne Ratliff, our Public Involvement Coordinator at (813) 615-1319.

TERMINAL COMPLEX STUDIED

Terminal Requirements

Past planning efforts at Tampa International Airport (TPA) have set the capacity

IN THIS ISSUE

 Terminal Complex Studied
 Part 150 Noise Study Enters Noise Compatibility Planning Phase

- TPA's Airfield To Be
- Evaluated
- Did You Know?

of the existing terminal complex at approximately 20 million total passengers. When demand approaches 20 million passengers, the current master plan recommends development of a new, supplemental terminal complex to the north. Since total passenger levels are projected to reach approximately 25 million passengers by 2020, one overall objective of the Master Plan Update process is to evaluate the potential to accommodate 25 million passengers in the existing terminal complex.

Landside Building -Arrival Level (Baggage Claim)

Demand has grown to the level where areas in which the rental car counters are near baggage claim devices are congested and general circulation is restricted during peak periods.

Landside Building -Departure Level (Ticketing)

Long ticket lines and congested circulation areas near ticket counter

areas were observed during peak periods. However, processing times by the airlines were good, and the available ticket positions were fully staffed.

Airsides

Because they were designed to meet current standards, the newer airside buildings, Airsides A and F, were observed to function well during the peak periods. Congestion at the people mover stations, in the holdrooms, and at security were observed at the two older airside buildings, Airsides C and D, which are nearly 30 years old.

Departure and Arrival Level Curbs

Congestion was observed at both the upper and lower terminal roadways during peak periods.

Parking

Demand approaches the capacity of the two parking structures during peak periods. Peak periods for parking are typically around holidays such as Thanksgiving.

Continued on Page 2

Master Plan / Part 150 Study



Continued from Page I

Terminal Expansion Concepts

In an effort to maintain its historically high ratings, a series of planning objectives was established to guide the identification and evaluation of terminal area expansion alternatives:

- Maximum walking distances will not be greater than what exists today.
- Maximum passenger processing times will be between 20 and 30 minutes for arriving (baggage claim) passengers, and 30 and 45 minutes for departing (check-in) passengers.

- Short-term and long-term parking will be within walking distance of the terminal.
- Economy (remote) parking will be made available.
- Rental cars will be within walking distance of the terminal.
- The number of pedestrian roadway crossings will be minimized.
- A hotel will be within walking distance of the landside building.
- Light rail will have a seamless integration into the terminal area.

Landside Building -Arrival Level

The landside building has minimal east/west expansion capability. Therefore, a combination of building expansion and relocation of some functions is required to meet 2020 requirements. The following alternatives to address facility requirements are under consideration:

- Expand the ends of the building and add more baggage claim devices.
- Relocating the outbound baggage system currently in the center of the building to the airsides. This would require the development of a new baggage conveyor system between the landside and airsides.



- Move all or some of the airline baggage handling facilities in the center of the landside building and provide an open space between the Blue and Red sides for baggage claim area.
- Relocate the rental car counters outside the landside building but within walking distance.

Landside Building -Departure Level (Ticketing)

Unlike the arrival level, the departure level is not as constrained. Some combination of terminal building expansion and modification to the existing facilities should meet 2020 requirements. The following alternatives to address facility requirements are under consideration:

- Expand the building to the east and add more ticket counter positions.
- Reconfigure ticket counters to provide less linear feet per agent.
- To provide more circulation area, reduce the amount of airline ticket office area behind ticket counters, and move the ticket counters closer together.
- To provide more circulation area, close floor openings at escalators/stairs.

Airsides

The newer Airsides A and F are adequate throughout the planning period. The focus of the airsides alternatives analysis is on the redevelopment and/or expansion of the original four airsides.

Alternatives for Airsides C and D include expansion of the existing layout or development of a new layout. The advantage of a new layout would be the ability to bring the shuttle cars into the second level, similar to Airsides A and F. Both Airside C and D currently have shuttle car systems on the third level.

- Airsides B and E will have to be demolished and rebuilt. The alternatives analysis for Airsides B and E focus on which one should get rebuilt by 2020. The advantage of Airside E is that it would place the majority of gates closer to the primary runway, resulting in reduced taxi distances.

Terminal Roadways

The terminal roadways have limited expansion capability. The alternatives to providing additional capacity are as follows:

- On the arrival level, capacity requirements could be met through the reduction of dwell times at the curb. Additional commercial lanes may have to be developed outboard of the existing roadways to replace commercial vehicle space lost to terminal expansion.
- The departure or upper level roadway will require both a reduction in dwell times and a segregation of commercial vehicles from private autos to meet 2020 facility requirements. There are three alternatives to segregate commercial vehicles on the departure level: (1) use the existing circulation roads at the end of the building, (2) develop new commercial vehicle lanes outboard of the existing roadway, or (3) use the existing rental car ready areas off either end of the building. The last alternative would require relocation of the rental car facilities.

Parking

The existing terminal area has little area in which to expand parking; the existing short-term structure could be expanded by approximately 2,000 spaces. The focus of the analysis is to identify a site for future economy parking. Alternative sites south of the terminal adjacent to the access roadway are under consideration.

Rental Car

There are three objectives for rental car facility expansion: (1) keep ready/return facilities within walking distance of the terminal, (2) relocate rental car counters from the terminal, and (3) reduce the number of rental car counter locations (there are currently five). The alternatives to meet these objectives are as follows:

- Consolidate all rental car facilities into the long-term parking structure. This would only work with building expansion concepts that provide an open space between the Red and Blue sides of the baggage claim level.
- Relocate the rental car ready spaces on the departure level to two new structures on the Red side of the terminal area. This would reduce the number of counter locations from five to three.

he evaluation of alternatives will consider their ability to meet planning objectives, passenger level of service, constructability, environmental factors, and costs. The final overall recommendation will likely include the best one or two alternatives from each of the individual facilities. The next newsletter will provide details of the final terminal area plan.

PARI 150 NOISE STUDY ENTERS NOISE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING PHASE

The Noise Exposure Map phase of the study is essentially complete, and the Noise Compatibility Program phase is underway.

1998 and 2003 Forecast Case Noise Contours Prepared

The figure on this page presents the 65 decibel DNL contours for 1998 and 2003, compared to the 1990 forecast contour from the original (1985-87) Part 150 study. Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) guidelines in Part 150 consider all land uses to be compatible outside the 65 DNL contour. The contour comparison clearly shows the reductions in noise exposure that have occurred since the original study. The population within the contours has dropped dramatically, from approximately 14,000 residents within the 1990 contours, to approximately 200 - 300 in 1998. This drop is the result of two principal factors: (1) the effectiveness of the airport's Noise Compatibility Program, and (2) federal regulations that require airlines to retire older, noisier aircraft.



Authority Receives "High Marks" for Noise Abatement Program Implementation

The original Part 150 study recommended five noise abatement measures, all of which the FAA approved for implementation:

Use southerly traffic flows whenever possible.

Continued on Page 5

Master Plan / Part 150 Study • Page 4

- Encourage operators of turbojet aircraft to use Air Transport Association (ATA) recommended noise abatement arrival procedures.
- Designate engine runup procedures.
- Augment vegetation noise barrier along the western perimeter of the airport.
- Establish a helipad on the east side of the airport.

The Authority and FAA developed two other noise abatement measures outside of the Part 150 process:

- Priority of turbojet runway use from midnight to 6 a.m.
- Initial turbojet departure headings.

The noise consulting firm on the Part 150 study team, Harris Miller Miller & Hanson Inc. (HMMH), presented a detailed review of the implementation of these measures to meetings of the Technical Working Group, Agency Working Group, and Community Input Group on September 9th. That review revealed that the Authority and FAA, with cooperation from aircraft operators and pilots, are implementing the measures in a highly effective manner overall.

Based on its technical analysis and feedback, HMMH identified five areas for further assessment:

- Control of engine runup noise, particularly at night, possibly through the construction of noise-attenuating structures.
- Limitation of early turns by propeller aircraft on departure, particularly to the northwest of the airport.

- the east that fly over populated areas between MacDill Air Force Base and Tampa International.
- Adding propeller aircraft to the nighttime preferential runway program (which maximizes operations over the Bay).
- Noise abatement flight paths on the eastern parallel runway and the east-west runway, that would lead aircraft over the water, in the same general area as operations on the west parallel.

These potential noise abatement measures are being evaluated.

Land Use Compatibility Controls

The previous Part 150 Study recommended that zoning restrictions be placed on areas potentially adversely impacted by noise from Tampa International Airport.

Thanks to the effectiveness of the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority's Noise Abatement Program and to the Land Use Compatibility Program implemented by the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County in cooperation with the Authority, virtually no new residential or noise sensitive land development has occurred since the adoption of city and county plans and airport related zoning districts.

The study team is investigating measures to further reduce existing and future non-compatible land uses.

TPA's AIRFIELD TO BE EVALUATED

It is estimated that the airfield is currently capable of handling between 410,000 and 440,000 operations per year at an acceptable delay level through the year 2020. Current operations are about 250,000 per year. As annual aircraft operations approach these levels, aircraft delays could increase rapidly with small increases in aircraft operations and delays potentially becoming unacceptable.

The present average delay at TPA is about 2.0 minutes per aircraft – lower than 4 to 6 minutes delay which is generally considered the acceptable range for measuring capacity. Above this range, delays tend to increase rapidly as the Airport nears its capacity to handle additional aircraft operations. Considering the forecast growth in aircraft operations, the Airport could reach its capacity between 2015 and 2020. As part of the Master Plan process, a series of alternative airfield improvements are under consideration to determine their potential to enhance airfield capacity.



- Total passenger traffic continues to climb at TPA, rising to 1,115,927 passengers in August.
- Total air cargo for the last twelve months to date was up 6.29%.
- For the past twelve months (ending in August) - 13,610,026 passengers utilized TPA.
- Prior Community Input Group (CIG) Meetings have been held in September, 1997 (Study Objectives); March, 1998 (Airport Inventory and Survey); July, 1998 (Facility Requirements); and September, 1998 (Noise).

Page 5 • M

Page 5 • Master Plan / Part 150 Study

Katliff & Associates, Inc.

c/o Wilson Miller Lakeview Office Building 8875 Hidden River Parkway, Suite 250 Tampa, Florida 33637

HORIZON 2020 COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE: Taking TPA Into the 21st century

Yes, I wish to be added to the Master Plan mailing list. As changed

Zï

State

Address:

City: _____/___

Area Code/Phone:

Suggestions or comments?

Prior issues of the <u>Horizon 2020</u> are available upon request at no charge. Please clip and return to: Ratliff & Associates c/o Wilson Miller, 8875 Hidden River, Parkway, Suite 250, Tampa, FL 33637

Where Can You Get More Information?

or specific information on the progress of the study, please contact Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 615-1319. If you prefer, send written requests to:

TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study c/o Wilson Miller Lakeview Office Building 8875 Hidden River Parkway Suite 250 Tampa, Florida 33637 Fax: (813) 615-0407 e-mail: randa@gte.net

or contact Nadine Jones (813) 870-8773 at the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Offices located in the Landside Terminal, 3rd Level-Blue Side between 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. any weekday.

rinted on ecycled/Recyclable Paj

のないのですの

Horizon 2020

34 T

.

.

Volume IV





Issue IV

NEWSLETTER

August 1999

Draft Master Plan Nears Completion

he final phase of the Draft Master Plan Study for Tampa Interna-tional Airport (TPA) is underway. This effort will consolidate all of the individual facility development recommendations into one integrated airport development program. The plan, when approved by the Federal Aviation Administration, will serve as a blueprint for future development at TPA, showing both the Airport as it exists today and the facilities recommended to accommodate projected demand through 2020.

One of the keys to a successful airport development plan is the ability to accommodate the projected airport facilities in a flexible manner. The plan lays the foundation to accommodate the expected requirements for the next 20 years, while allowing the flexibility to alter the development plan should a change in demand occur.



Mail Handled in 1998: 58.8 Million Ibs.

Flights in May, 1999: 83% Departed on Time 77% Arrived on Time

Airport Development Program

The recommended development plan for each functional area of TPA is outlined below. The map on page 3 highlights some of these recommended projects.

Airfield

Objective: Additional airfield capacity was recommended when the benefits exceeded the costs of adding the additional capacity.

Recommendations:

- Construct a new north-south runway. Runway 17-35, 700 feet from existing Runway 18R-36L.
- 2. Extend Taxiway N over George J. Bean Parkway to Taxiway A to improve circulation between east and west airfields.
- 3. Construct various other taxiways to improve aircraft circulation.
- 4. Preserve option to extend Runways 18L and 27 for long term capacity benefits.

Terminal

Objective: Identification of the best way to expand the existing terminal complex to accommodate 25 million passengers (the projected Year 2020 demand level) while maintaining the existing high level of customer service. Historically, the capacity of the existing terminal complex has been set at 20 million passengers, at

which time a new terminal would be built on the north side of the airport.

Recommendations:

- 1. Expand the baggage claim level to the west and add additional claim devices.
- 2. Move the outbound baggage area to Airsides.
- 3. Relocate the rental car counters to new consilidated service facilities.
- 4. Expand the ticketing level to the west and add additional ticket counters.
- 5. Expand the shuttle car lobbies in Airsides C, D, and E to accommodate 2-car trains (currently one car).
- Expand/renovate all airsides to accommodate an additional 15 jet gates, increase security areas, and holdrooms. This includes expansion/renovation of Airsides C and D, and demolition/redevelopment of Airside E.
- 7. Demolish Airside B and convert it to an overnight aircraft parking area.
- 8. Construct an additional terminal complex in the North Terminal Area.

Continued Next Page

Noise Compatibility Public Hearing

The noise compatibility study, also known as the F.A.R. Part 150 is nearing completion and will be presented to the community in an upcoming public hearing – to be scheduled in the next couple of months.

On Airport Roads

Objective: To provide sufficient capacity to maintain appropriate vehicle speeds and keep the number of driver decision points to a minimum.

Recommendations:

- I. Expand and realign George J. Bean Parkway to be consistent with the development of the new interchange south of the Airport.
- 2. Add one lane to the terminal circulation roadway.
- 3. Maintain the segregation of commercial and private vehicles in the terminal area.
- 4. Convert upper rental car parking decks on east and west side of landside building to commercial vehicle parking.
- 5. Establish a new access corridor for the East Development Area (Drew
- Park Acquisition Area) that mitigates airport traffic impacts on local roads and the community.
- 6. Relocate Hillsborough Avenue to accommodate North Terminal development beyond 2020.

Passenger and Employee Parking

Objective: To provide a total supply that meets 2020 demand for parking (17,500 spaces). In response to passenger survey comments provide an enhanced spectrum of parking options and choices by instituting remote, economy lots oriented towards the more price sensitive segment of the market.

Recommendations:

- I. Construct a new economy lot in the South Support Area (up to 8,200 spaces).
- 2. Construct a new employee parking lot in the South Support Area (up to 3,200 spaces).
- Construct 1,200-space expansion 3: to existing hourly parking garage in the landside building garage.

"The plan lays the foundation to accommodate the expected requirements for the next 20 years"

Rental Car

Objective: The objective is to improve rental car operational efficiency through the consolidation of functions.

Recommendations.

- I. Relocate/consolidate existing rental car counters into two new service facilities, one on the Red Side and one on the Blue Side.
- 2. Expand the ready/return area in the south parking structure (second level).
- 3. Construct two new ready/return garages on the Red Side, on either side of the Airport Service Building.
- 4. Expand the rental car storage areas in the South Support Area.
- 5. Construct additional rental car facilities for the North Terminal Area beyond 2020.

Light Rail

Objective: To provide for the integration of the regional light rail system into the Airport complex when the community requires it and there is an adequate ridership.

Recommendations:

- 1. Provide for a north/south right-ofway corridor through the Airport.
- 2. Develop a light rail station that is integrated into the Landside Terminal Building.

Cargo

Objective: To ensure adequate facilities can be built to facilitate the growth of air cargo in the Airport Service area. Air cargo is one of the fastest growing segments of demand at TPA.

Recommendations:

- I. Develop all-cargo facilities in the East Support Area (Drew Park aquisition area).
- 2. Renovate/expand the existing air cargo facilities for airline belly cargo only.
- Demolish the existing regional 3. postal facility; develop a new air mail facility in the East Support Area.
- 4. A longer-term option is to relocate and expand the airline belly cargo facilities in the East Support Area.

General Aviation

Objective: To accommodate the projected growth in corporate general aviation activity.

Recommendations:

- I. Preserve land east of the existing Raytheon facility for commercial general aviation (FBO) development (south of Runway 9/27).
- 2. Preserve land east of the existing private hangars for non-commercial aviation development (north of Runway 9/27).

Airlines Support

Objective: To ensure sufficient land is available for the airlines to develop those facilities needed to support their operations.

Recommendations:

- I. Preserve approximately 60 acres of land east of Runway 18L-36R to either expand existing airline maintenance facilities or to construct new facilities.
- 2. Relocate the existing flight kitchen located in the South Support Area to the East Support Area to accommodate the development of a new employee parking lot.
- 3. Relocate the fuel farm to provide more direct airfield access for aviation-related facilities.

Airport Support

Objective: To ensure sufficient land is available for the airport authority to develop those facilities needed to support Airport operations and long-term growth.

Recommendations:

- I. Construct a new consolidated Air Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) facility at the south end of the terminal complex adjacent to the apron serving Airside A.
- 2. Expand the existing airport maintenance facilities as other Airport functions expand.
- 3. Complete the existing Drew Park Acquisition Program.
- 4. Initiate land acquisition north of Hillsborough Avenue to support long-term terminal expansion beyond 2020.

Continued Next Page





Environmental

Objective: To mitigate the environmental effects due to Airport development.

Recommendations:

- 1. Construct a noise enclosure facility for engine run-ups.
- Soundproof up to 6 homes south and west of the Airport (based on 2003 noise contours).
- Develop a long-term strategy to accommodate additional stormwater runoff due to Airport development.
- 4. Develop a long-term strategy to mitigate wetland impacts due to Airport development.

B Development Costs

Capital costs for the TPA Master Plan total approximately \$1.02 billion in 1999 dollars over the next 20 years. The Development Program will be funded through a combination of Federal and State funds, Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs), revenue bonds, and revenue from sources like airline landing fees, concessions and parking. As such, Airport users will bear the cost of development; no local tax dollars will be used to fund these improvements.

Opportunity for Input at Upcoming Public Workshop

he second public workshop for the Master Plan/Part 150 Study has been scheduled for Wednesday, September 1, 1999 from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. in the Auditorium of Jefferson High School (4401 West Cypress Street). The public workshop will be held in an informal "open house" format. Louis E. Miller, Executive Director of the HCAA will give an overview presentation at 7:00 p.m. Various presentation stations will be set up for participants to browse the Master Plan/Part 150 Study information and learn about our progress to date. HCAA staff and project consultants will be readily available to answer your questions and respond to your comments/concerns. You will be given the opportunity to turn in written comments at the meeting or return them by mail. For more information, please contact Georgianne Ratliff, our Public Involvement Coordinator, at (813) 615-1319.

Working Group Meetings Scheduled

the same to the state of the second

The sixth and final meetings of the Agency, Technical and Community Input Groups have been scheduled for Tuesday, August 31, 1999. The meeting schedule is as follows:

- Agency Working Group 10:00 AM, HCAA Board Room at TPA (Earhart Elevators, Level 3, Blue Side)
- Technical Working Group <u>1:00 PM, HCAA Board Room at TPA</u> (Earhart Elevators, Level 3, Blue Side)
- Community Input Group 6:00 PM, Jefferson High School

Auditorium (440 | W. Cypress Street) Please join us to discuss the final recommendations for the Master Plan and F.A.R. Part 150 Study recommendations. We request that you call to confirm your attendance:

(813) 615-1319

Master Plan / Part 150 Study • Page 3

and e

Ratliff & Associates, Inc.

c/o Wilson Miller Lakeview Office Building 8875 Hidden River Parkway, Suite 250 Tampa, Florida 33637

IN THIS ISSUE

- Draft Master Plan
- Nears Completion
- Did You Know?

Printed or

Recycled/Recyclable Paper

- Upcoming Workshop
- Working Group Meetings

JEFF MISHLER HNTB CORPORATION 99 CANAL CENTER PLAZA, STE 100 ALEXANDRIA, VA 22314-1538

հահահահահահահեհեհեհետորդաններ

HORIZON 2020 COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE: Taking TPA Into the 21st Century Yes, I wish to be added to the Master Plan mailing list. Name

12

22314X1580

Address: ______ State: _____ Zip: ____

Area Code/Phone: _____

Suggestions or comments? ____

Prior issues of the <u>Horizon 2020</u> are available upon request at no charge. Please clip and return to: Ratliff & Associates c/o Wilson Miller, 8875 Hidden River Parkway, Suite 250, Tampa, FL 33637

Where Can You Get More Information?

or specific information on the progress of the study, please contact Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 615-1319. If you prefer, send written requests to:

TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study c/o Wilson Miller Lakeview Office Building 8875 Hidden River Parkway Suite 250 Tampa, Florida 33637 Fax: (813) 615-0407 e-mail: randa@gte.net

or contact Nadine Jones (813) 870-8773 at the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Offices located in the Landside Terminal, 3rd Level-Blue Side between 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. any weekday. Horizon 2020

Volume V

.



HORIZON 2020 COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE:

Taking TPA Into the 21st Century

Issue V

NEWSLETTER

December 1999

Part 150 Noise Study Recommends Revised Noise Compatibility Program

he Part 150 Update Study has reached an important mile stone. With significant guidance from Community, Technical and Agency Input Groups, the HCAA staff and consultants have developed recommendations for a revised "Noise Compatibility Program". This program is a culmination of extensive work conducted over the past two years- meeting with members of the surrounding community, conducting over 400 hours of noise level measurements and evaluation of potential noise abatement measures. The recommendations that have been prepared build on the elements of the existing, highly successful program that the HCAA has continuously developed and refined over more than two decades at TPA.

Did You Know? Passenger traffic broke the I million mark in September 1999. (First time in TPA's history) The recommended program includes 10 noise abatement measures that reduce noise and direct it away from residential areas. FAA guidelines consider all land uses compatible with aircraft noise outside of the 65 decibel "Day-Night Average Sound Level" (DNL) contour. Figure 1 shows the 65 decibel contour for two cases: (1) existing conditions, and (2) five-year forecast conditions with the recommended revised program. The population within the contours drops as shown in the following table:

Case	Estimated People with 65 DNL Contour	Estimated Properties within 65 DNL Contour
Existing Conditions	254	103
Five-Year Forecast with Recommended Program	15	6

As these figures show, the population within the estimated 65 DNL contour will drop dramatically over the five-year forecast with the noise abatement program. In fact, the airport benefits from a federal law that requires airlines to stop operating their noisiest aircraft, or to retrofit

1 - S.S.

them to meet noise standards, by the end of 1999. That regulation is responsible for the overall shrinkage in the contours.

The proposed or recommended program includes two corrective land use measures designed to address remaining residential land in the forecast case contours, seven preventive land use measures to prevent new non-compatible uses, and program publicity and monitoring actions.

Noise Abatement Measures:

- Priority for daytime (6 am to midnight) south-flow departures over the bay;
- Daytime runway use priorities, to limit jet operations over residential areas in the communities immediately south of the airport;
- Nighttime (midnight to 6 am) preference for all arrivals from the north and departures to the north over the bay;
- Initial jet departure headings off all runways, to lead aircraft over least-populated areas;

Continued on Page 2

- Reduce early propeller aircraft departure turns northeast and northwest of the airport;
- Reduce close-in arrival turns over residential areas south of the airport;
- Continue use of existing helipad location on east side of airport designed to facilitate preferential routes;
- Request jet pilots use FAAdeveloped noise abatement departure profiles (cockpit procedures);
- Request jet pilots use industry-developed noise abatement arrival procedures (cockpit procedures); and
- Construct noise-reduction enclosure for high-power jet engine maintenance runups.

Corrective Land Use Measures -Within the Five-Year (2003) Forecast 65 DNL Contour

- Sound-insulation of existing residences; and
- Obtain avigation easements from property owners receiving sound insulation.

Preventive Land Use Measures -Within the Five-Year (2003) 65 DNL Contour

- Compatible zoning included in comprehensive plans and zoning maps;
- Overlay zoning to restrict noncompatible development; and
- Public information program for potential purchasers in noncompatible construction.

Publicity and Monitoring Actions

- Ongoing operations and flight track monitoring
- Portable noise monitoring
- Complaint database software
- Continuing Public Information/ Input Program
- Noise office staffing
- Noise Compatibility Program publicity: signs, posters, and pilot handouts

Implementation of these measures will result in Tampa International Airport achieving the objective of complete abatement, mitigation, and prevention of non-compatible land use. Details regarding these measures and the entire Part 150/Noise Compatibility study will be given at a final public hearing to be held on December 16th from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. in Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish (5225 N. Himes Avenue). HCAA and consultant staffs will be available at this hearing to answer your questions and respond to your comments/concerns. For more information please contact Georgianne Ratliff, our public involvement coordinator, at 813-615-1319.

Thank You

As the Master Plan/FA.R. Part 150 Update winds to a close, we would like to thank those members of the community who have taken part. Over the course of this extensive effort, many individuals have taken time out to give us their feedback, ideas, and often voice their concerns about the future "blueprint" for TPA. Three focus groups in particular —the Community Input Group (CIG), the Technical Working Group (TWG) and the Agency Working Group (AWG) have met many times over the last two years. The membership of

HCAA APPROVES MASTER PLAN

he Draft Master Plan was approved by the Board of the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (HCAA) on October 7, 1999. The approved Master Plan consolidated all of the individual facility development recommendations developed over the past two years into one integrated airport development program. This plan must now be accepted by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). It will serve as the blueprint for future development at TPA and will show both the Airport as it exists today and the facilities recommended to accommodate projected demand through 2020. For more information about the Master Plan, please contact Nadine S. Jones, Director of Planning & Environmental Services for HCAA at 813-870-8773.



في المريخ بيار الموجد الما

Louis Miller, Executive Director of Hillsborough Co. Aviation Authority

these groups include business leaders; local government representatives; community leaders; airport neighbors and those pilots/employees who use the airport facilities on a daily basis. Input from such a diverse group of concerned people has made the TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study Update a successful effort--one that lays the foundation to accommodate the expected needs for TPA for the next 20 years.



Page 2 • Master Plan / Part 150 Study



Master Plan / Part 150 Study • Page 3

Ratliff & Associates, Inc.

c/o WilsonMiller, Inc. Lakeview Office Building 8875 Hidden River Parkway, Suite 250 Tampa, Florida 33637

$\left(\frac{1}{n}\left(0\right)\left(\frac{1}{n}\left(\frac{1}{2}\right)\left(\frac{1}{2}\right)\left(\frac{1}{2}\right)\right)$

A pressil with to be added to the second of the second sec

 City:
 State:
 Zip:

 Area Code/Phone:
 Suggestions or comments?

 Suggestions or comments?
 Suggestions or comments?

 Prior issues of the Horizon 2020 are svalable upon request at no charge. Please clip and return so:

 Rådliff & Associates c/o WilsonMiller; 8875 Hidden River Parkway. Suite 250, Tampa, FL 33637.

Where Can You Get More Information?

or specific information on the progress of the study, please contact Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 615-1319. If you prefer, send written requests to:

TPA Master Plan/Part 150 Study c/o Wilson Miller, Inc. Lakeview Office Building 8875 Hidden River Parkway Suite 250 Tampa, Florida 33637 Fax: (813) 615-0407 e-mail: tampa@wilsonmiller.com

or contact Nadine Jones (813) 870-8773 at the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Offices located in the Landside Terminal, 3rd Level-Blue Side between 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. any weekday.

 \bigcirc

inted on ecycled/Recyclable P

APPENDIX J

٠,

•

Expert Panel Participants

EXPERT FORECAST PANEL TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT PART 150 UPDATE

William Ashbaker Alan Baker Luiz Bisachi Ginny Brewer James Cloar **Bill Connors** John Dausman Terri Fox Evan Futterman Brenda Geoghagan James Hosler C. Edward Howard Jim Johnson Nadine Jones Pat Kennon William Lax G. Hartley Mellish Edward Mierzejewski Louis Miller Jeff Mishler Joe Navarrete Paul Puckli Georgianne Ratliff David Swierenga

Aviation Bureau, Florida Department of Transportation Economist, City of Tampa Planning Department University of Tampa Hillsborough County Aviation Authority President, Tampa Downtown Partnership Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Economic Development Dept., Hillsborough County Westshore Alliance **HNTB** Corporation Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Hillsborough County Planning Commission Orlando Airports District Office, FAA Hillsborough County Aviation Administration Hillsborough County Aviation Administration **HNTB** Corporation Tampa Chamber of Commerce, Committee of 100 Economist CUTR, University of South Florida Hillsborough County Aviation Authority **HNTB** Corporation **HNTB** Corporation **HNTB** Corporation Ratliff & Associates Air Transport Association of America

APPENDIX K

Part 150 Public Hearing

TPA Part 150 Hearing - Summary December 16, 1999 6:00 – 8:00 P.M.

The TPA Part 150 public hearing was held on December 16, 1999 from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. in Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish. Guests were given handouts at the door containing information about the Part 150 process and final recommendations, a copy of Newsletter #5 and a comment form. Approximately 46 persons from the public attended (see attached sign-in sheet). Ten (10) staff members were present. An open-house type format was utilized with information stations set around the room for public review. Staff members were available to answer questions.

Louis Miller, Executive Director of HCAA gave opening remarks at 7:00 p.m. and informed those present that although this hearing represents the close of the study, it does not mean it is the end of the process. The HCAA will continue to receive public comment on the Part 150 Study after this hearing. Participants were reminded to fill out the comment form provided to them at the door (see attached comment sheets received to date). The Part 150 document will be available for public inspection. Mr. Miller introduced Ted Baldwin of HMMH, Inc. who gave an overall project presentation. There was public discussion after the presentation concluded. The following is a summary of the public comment/concerns:

- Q: Is there a specific timeframe that planes can land and takeoff from?
- A: No, but it is recommended that when flying between midnight and 6 a.m., planes should land from the south and depart to the south.
- Q: How will signing an avigation easement affect me? Is receiving sound insulation reimbursement predicated on signing this easement?
- A: The FAA will not fund any sound insulation improvements without the signing of an easement. The easement allows aircraft to operate within projected noise levels that have been addressed through sound insulation. We do not provide reimbursement because we do the insulation work.

Q: If you sign an avigation easement, can pilots violate the informal runway use program? A: No.

- Q: Is 65 DNL based on the average over one year? Will noise contours shrink over time? Why?
- A: The 65 DNL is based on the average over one year. Noise contours are shrinking because aircraft are getting quieter, many are making use of "hushkits" and runways are being used more properly.
- Q: Why did the HCAA just purchase a large area in Drew Park? Is it for a new runway?
- A: The HCAA is purchasing property in Drew Park (on a voluntary basis only) to build future cargo buildings and other additional facilities. The Drew Park property is not being acquired for a new runway. Although, if current trends continue, a new runway is a possibility for the year 2011 or 2012 on the west side of the airport.
- Q: As a resident of Mariner Street, our homes are greatly affected by airport noise. Have you taken residences in this area (Mariner St.) into account in your studies? Are you going to include all of Mariner Street in the insulation program? People outside of the 65 DNL are still suffering.
- A: The consultant team will take a close look at the Mariner Street area. It is clear that this area just outside of the 65 DNL is being subjected to similar noise levels and we will include them in the insulation program. All residences on Mariner Street will be added to the mailing list and receive future notices and updates.

- Q: Shouldn't these meetings be held at a more centrally located facility i.e., the Westshore area?
- A: The public meetings and workshops for the update of the Master Plan and Part 150 Study have been held in a variety of locations. The last meeting was held in the Westshore area at Jefferson High School's auditorium.
- Q: When will you reach closure on this study?
- A: The public comment period will be held open until approximately February 15, 2000. We anticipate that the HCAA Board will discuss the final report on March 2nd and then submit it to FAA for review. The FAA review typically lasts 3 6 months. We expect completion by the end of next summer.
- Q: The noise from the airport is very loud at night. Will this get any better with the addition of a "runup" enclosure?
- A: The noises you are describing are engine "runup" noises. This situation should improve, since there is no enclosure on the airport grounds now. We expect that within 3 4 years an enclosure will be built.
- Q: How much control do you have over aircraft? Can you restrict the number of flights that take off in the evening?
- A: None. The HCAA controls the airport and can only recommend flight patterns. The FAA controls aircraft and would not allow a restriction of that kind.
- Q: Can you allocate money for the creation of a vegetative barrier for the south side of the airport?
- A: There is a barrier located along the Veterans expressway, composed of trees, shrubs, etc. Vegetative barriers are not always the best solution for a noise problem because they require hundreds of feet of density to be effective. These barriers often only provide visual relief and actually do not decrease noise levels.
- Q: I am concerned that the changes being recommended for the airport will increase traffic.
- A: TPA does not generate traffic. The community generates additional business for the Airport facility. It is the Airport's responsibility to accommodate the growth of the community. These studies address any foreseen growth. But it is important to recognize that the Airport does not stimulate any growth. If this growth does not occur, TPA will not have a need to expand it's facilities.
- Q: What if the FAA turns down the Part 150 Study?
- A: The FAA has been repeatedly briefed on this study for over 2 years. We also have had preliminary feedback from them and at this point there has been no indication of a problem with the study.
- Q: What about a new airport?
- A: When looking at the availability of land and the development pattern of Hillsborough County, there is not land or airspace available for an international airport.
- Q: Have you looked at dispersion of the flights at TPA over a wider area?
- A: That is also called "fanning" It is more effective from a noise mitigation standpoint for us to continue flights over the water. Fanning would also require that flight tracks and airspace be changed and that would involve the FAA doing a major Environmental Impact Statement.
- Q: How do we get notification on the status of the Part 150 study?
- A: The sign-in sheets/comment forms handed out when you came in to this hearing are used for future notifications.

- Q: Couldn't the Aviation Authority offer to pay the property taxes of residents in lieu of sound insulation?
- A: We don't have the authority to do that and it wouldn't mitigate aircraft noise.
- Q: I am very disturbed when there are operations to the south and you have to use the east runway because of rubber removal.
- A: Rubber removal is a critical safety matter at airports. We have to do it. We are sorry for the disturbance and we will look at ways to stage the work to possibly reduce the time it takes.
- Q: Are stage IV aircraft in development?
- A: Yes. That is being looked at by the FAA, industry groups, airlines, and aircraft manufacturers.
- Q: When will you build the west runway? Will it impact Dana Shores? When the west runway is constructed the airport should not monitor itself.
- A: The new runway is projected for 2011-2012. There are a number of studies we must do before we can construct it. We are not going to monitor noise. We are going to acquire a flight monitoring system that will assist us in enforcing our preferential runway use program.
- Q: I am bothered by jet fuel soot and kerosene odors on my property.
- A: We conducted a study this past summer to investigate that concern and found nothing in that soot that would come from an aircraft. Our findings were sent to the property owners that had the problem. We would be happy to provide copies.
.

SIGN-IN SHEET

ere ere print
(PLEASE PRINT)
Name: Barbara Motte Name: ODE BEARINGER
Representing: <u>EPC</u> Representing: <u>VMA</u>
Address: 410 N. 215t Address: 8822 BAYPTDR
St TPA, FL 33605 TAMPA 33615
Phone/FAX: 272-5530 Phone/FAX: 813-886-9336
Name: JOYCE MITH Name: OSCAR SARDUY
Representing: Town Country Representing: TEC PARK CIVIC ASSOC.
Address: 7201 Daiquiri LN Address: 7003 LAWNVIEW CT.
Tampa, FI 33634 TAMPA FL 33615
Phone/FAX:885_4444 Phone/FAX:885-232&
Name: TERESA MUDANIEL Name: Jana Jeseritz
Representing: <u>Self</u> Representing:
Address: 5834 Mpainer St. Address: 5839 Marinen Dr.
TPAFL 33609 Tampe, Fl. 33609
Phone/FAX: 288-9041 289-8481 Phone/FAX: 286-2756

SIGN-IN SHEET

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: Wheat	Name: Gid & Josie Fernandez
Representing: <u>ACAA</u>	Representing:
Address: 3631 Tabornade PL	Address: 5826-Mariner
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Phone/FAX: 813 870 876	Phone/FAX: (813) 286-0865
1-0-1 (1 And Part	
Name: Fonda Neath & Mud Hea	Mame: MIKE (FREDERICK
Representing:	Representing: Tweeve DAKS Specific DIST.
Address: 5814 Mariner St	Address: 7502 ARMAND CR
TAMPA PC 33609	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Phone/FAX: 636 0398 - 77x	Phone/FAX:
Name: DON COX	Name: DON Roberts
Representing:	Representing: Roth Investment Realty
Address: 5823 MARINH ST	Address: 8507 Sunstate St.
Tampa 33609	Tpa, 71 33634
Phone/FAX: 813 284-0861	Phone/FAX: 885-5811 /884/8927
	/ *

į.

.

SIGN-IN SHEET

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: DWARD MILES	Name: Alelson Recentorte
Representing:	Representing:
Address: 5003 MIRADA DR	Address: 2520 W. NORTH ST.
Phone/FAX: 908 9025	- <u>Tainpa</u> Fla, 33614 Phone/FAX: <u>813</u> <u>877</u> - 2120
Name: <u>Heuttoyt</u>	Name:
Representing: <u>CAAN</u>	Representing:
Address: 4610 Westford Civel	Address:
Tanepa FL 33624	
Phone/FAX: 813 960 3178	Phone/FAX:
Caroline, Yowell	
Name: KUSSell Yowell	Name:
Representing: <u>Self</u>	Representing:
Address: 5835 MarineR	Address:
Tanpa FL 33609	
Phone/FAX: 286-1421	Phone/FAX:

SIGN-IN SHEET

December 16, 1999 6:00 - 8:00 p.m.

(PLEASE PRINT)

	•
Name: GEORGE & DEBORAH DOMEDIO	Name: heref Bar
Representing:	Representing: Robert Bur
Address: 5820 MARINER ST	Address: 3947 Denal Of
TAMPA, FL 33609	-lampa, 4/ 33634
Phone/FAX: 813-877-1018	Phone/FAX:
I I P	
Name: Jack Parrino MD	Name: Michael Beach Li
Representing: <u>Sel</u>	Representing: 1904 130012 Stalchr
Address: 5830 Mariner Dr	Address: 2450 N Westere BCL
Tampa, FC.	Tampa pa 33607
Phone/FAX: (813) 281 - 0511	Phone/FAX: 213 - 870 -0098
(8(3) 876-0635	813 874-9803
Name: JERRY GRELSON	Name: Nen L Wilson
Representing: <u>×/</u> A	Representing: N/A.
Address: 3909 VENETIAN DR	Address: 5827 MArivier St.
TAMPA FL 33634	TAMPH, Fla. 33609
Phone/FAX: 813-888-9709	Phone/FAX: (813) 286-9018

SIGN-IN SHEET

.

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: Gutierrez, Luis & Eli	a Name: Mark & Dee Oksa
Representing: Ourselves	Representing: OURSe ves
Address: 24 Saudpipeir Ed.	Address: 5811 Mariner St.
TAMPA, FL 33609	Tampa, FL 33609
Phone/FAX: 813-286 2967	Phone/FAX: 813-282-9875
Name: BOUG MEEHAN Representing: WTSP-TV	Name: <u>IS Addams</u>
Address:	Address: SUD9 Form This
	Taupa 33615
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX:
Name: <u>Gloria - Don Purson</u> Representing: <u>Manner</u> ST	Name: Jonuth) Kaplan Representing ANA SHONES (WILL ASS
Address: 5833 MARINER St.	Address: 3729 V=15A11=5 ND
TAMPA 33609	TAMPA, FC 33634
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX: (813) 882 - 8833

SIGN-IN SHEET

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: BERT RACHER	Name:
Representing: ME	Representing:
Address: 5816 MARINEN ST	Address:
Phone/FAX: 813-281-9597	Phone/FAX:
Name: Bea Sinicrope	Name:
Representing: Dana Sheres	Representing:
Address: 3946 DorAL DK	Address:
TAMPA 33634	
Phone/FAX: 813 885 3312	Phone/FAX:
Name: Louis Miller	Name:
Representing: HCAA	Representing:
Address:	Address:
Phone/FAX:	Phone/FAX:

SIGN-IN SHEET

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: R.C. Hilton	Name: RON SCHON
Representing: OWNer	Representing: BACHPANIC (SLE
Address: 5839 marina Dr.	Address: POBOX 23572
	TAMPA 33623
Phone/FAX: 813/286-27.56	Phone/FAX: 287-0379
Name: Alastair Lawrie	Name: Dan Verech
Representing: Mills. Co. Pluning Com	Representing: 40144
Address: 601 beenedy blud.	Address:
Tanpa	···
Phone/FAX: 813 05 100 1272 - 625	Phone/FAX: 810 -8789
Name://ARIE Representing: Address:	Name: <u>Refuda Aco fiacon</u> Representing: <u>HCAA</u>
Phone/FAX: 813-875-9993	Phone/FAX:

SIGN-IN SHEET

6:00	- 8:00 p.m.
(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: GeorgionNekztliff	Name: Crely Ster
Representing: Wilson Miller	Representing:
Address: 8875 HiddenRuien Pluny	_ Address: 5803 Myrtle 2n.
Sta 250 Tpa FL 336 37	- TAMPA FL 33625
Phone/FAX: (15-1319	Phone/FAX: 813 264-0446
Name: MARYSE PARRIA	IRiame: Robert Jones
Representing: <u>SELF</u>	Representing: Self
Address: 5830 MARINER	Address: 58020 Mariner
(873)	Tanpe Fl 33609
Phone/FAX: 281-0511	Phone/FAX:
Name:	Name: Corol Maneza
Representing: Sill	Representing: <u>SU</u>
Address: <u>6832</u> MARWER	Address: 5806 Mainer;
813 - 202 - 1877	IGNOS FR 33609
Phone/FAX:	(817) Phone/FAX: 878-2446

MITZOHWITTEL TLY

THE OTO OTO OAOL

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its 1. activities. AM UNABLE TO MANTEIN A CONVERSION \mathcal{I} MY HOUSE, WE HAVE TO STOP U. HEN TAKES DEF OVER MY PLAME HOUSE STENING TO MUSIC, NDOWS $\underline{r}\nu$ 171 FICTURE WINDOWS £ BRATE, EVENTUALLY BREA

2. Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary)

ON THE ALL MY COMPLAINS HAUR PAST <u>BEEN IGNORED</u>, EPA WILI "MOVING NOISE SOURCES HAVE NE ACON TA TRUST THAT ΔN THE ____ I [Mill GB7 LONTRARY_ 45 TRAFFI ES AND PLANE Wir BECOMB UNLIVABLE THE VALUE WILS ろ CREWF

Name: LUIS, HIGUTIBRRB2, MD	Address: 24 SANDPIPER PD
Telephone Number: <u>8/3-286-2467</u>	TAMPA FL 33609

SIGN-IN SHEET

(PLEASE PRINT)	
Name: Barbara A. Barton	Name: Monuta Martin
Representing: HCAA	Representing: HCAA
Address: Tampa Int'L Airport	Address: TPA, P.O. BOX 22237
P.O. Box 22287 Tpa 3362	2 Toumpar, FL 33622
Phone/FAX: 870-8700 x 8514 870-7844	870 8700 X 8512 Phone/FAX: 870 7844
	,
Name: Nadine S. Jones	Name: TONY MANTEGNA
Representing: HCAA	Representing: HCAA
Address: Tpa INT'L Airport	Address: Tpa INT'L Auport
Tampa 33622	P.O. Box 22287 Tpa 33622
Phone/FAX: 870-8173 /870-8844	Phone/FAX:
Name: Bill Connors	Name: LAFA CAFNOW
Representing: 14CAA TPG INT'L A:	Representing: Wilson Miller
Address: Tampe, FL 33622	Address: 2875 Hidden Run Plany
	Ste 250 Tpa 33637
Phone/FAX: <u>\$70-</u>	Phone/FAX:615-1319

TAA 010 010 0407

141 401 00

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its 1. activities. Greetly increased numbers & gurplanes nuclead. fore dawn rom le at TU. days a meek our neiph bor to constant airplane noise. e T low enong So The resise We have seen No a out conversation. in airplane noise - on The contrary, it she Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary) 2. മറ NONA 2 5 borhoveds? ne Y See norse Ivai Installo -ov *ai 201 d 2 ę (a) ar (LO 1 The _×0 1 reel Name: 🖉 Address: 5803 Myrtle Telephone Number: 813 2640446 H 813273 3517 W

010 010 0401

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

1. Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its activities.

no 10 annou 00<u>0M.</u> (AM C

2. Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary)

ease ONH-Companded Ωα

have AI Edx ÖN ONT IERESA W. M. Name: NNI DRINER Address: Telephone Number:<u>(813</u>) R = R

If you have any questions, please contact Georgianne Ratliff at (813)615-1319.

UIU V4V

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its 1. activities. Rather than increase the court flow of airplane tra iding the traffic evening in all directions, after Cons all e noise is hest as bad for I person as it would 2. another person in a different derution am talking connel indurded not Ruanti MI more. Rerson is a s indu

2. Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary) <u>I would supplet runways be extended as much as possible</u> our the airpro be planes will reach higher attitude sooner before reaching nicehoorhoods.

my sleder glass door is cracked from vibration of plane is elimmer. I would apprecepte replacement T. au oneider ensulation because Roser lacement requirement will have

Name: Cia Buterris	Address: 24 Sandpiper Rd.
Telephone Number: (813) 286 2967	Tampa, F. 23609



TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its 1. AM UNABLE TO MANTRIN A CONVERSETION T LNSID MV HOUSE WE HAVE TO STOP <u>UIAEN</u> A PLAMB TAKES DEF NUBR AX HOUSE KTENING TO MUSIC <u>rv</u> 17 DOUR NAT 1 6 £ FICTURE MINDOWS BRATE + EVBNTVALL

2. Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary)

ON THE PAST ALL MU COMPLAINS HAUP BEN IGNORED. EPA WiLI NOT HAN-"MOVING NOISE SOURIEC HAVE NO REALON TRUST TH LNTHE TI Min 6B DNTRARY TRA EF ANA WILL BELOMB UNLIVA THE VALUE WILS Ď CREDSE

Name: LUIS, H, GUTIBRRB2, MD	Address: 24 SANDPIPER AD
Telephone Number: <u>8/3-286-2467</u>	TAMPA FL. 33609

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

- 1. Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its activities. — We are located at the Southern End of the Airport. The roise level is high due to the landing i taking the algenes — The Most analysis is the flights — Scheduled between 10 pm, i ban, When the T.V. is off and all is quiet the airplane roise is very lond.
- 2. Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary)

76 8 ME laminendiel Ø we are 0

Then RAI hall Edix (91 wit fire a ~ N LERESA M. Name: BRINER 24 Address: Telephone Number: (813

o/

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

1. Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its activities.

- HEALING LOSS
- HAVE TO STOP CONVERSATIONS
DIFFICULTY IN SELLING A Home
DIFFICULTY SLEEPING (PLANES KEEP
EARIER IN THE MORNING AND WANG LATER AT NIGHT,
- RELUCTANT TO ENTERTAIN.
2. Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary)
BUILD A RUNWAY TO THE WEST TO KEEP PLANES OVER THE WATER
- LAND MORE OFTEN FROM THE NORTH.
Name: GEORGE + JEBORAN CHRISTEN-DOMEDICAL deren 5820
Ielephone Number: 877-1018
If you have any questions, please contact Georgianne Rarliff at (813)615-1319.

TPA PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY

Please address the following items and provide any other comments and/or suggestions that you feel are appropriate:

Please identify any impacts to your property or neighborhood associated with the Airport or its 1. Cincett. - numbers of groplanes nucherd. 1 increased rom da all. al wn Tho: ngh dan a week ow ect Constant air plan to 2 enong 5.5 So The nise drown cut conversation. We have seen No A in airplane noise - on the contrary, Any additional comments or suggestions? (Attach additional pages if necessary) 2. 1 C Delle രറ ۵ wheredo n Y. See noise Ivai \sim Installo north ٤ Kan ne 4.01 d 0 70 9×C air С DUS m XO 1erV 0.1 Name: 2 Address: 583 Myrtle Telephone Number: 8132640446 H 832273 3517 W

Part 150 Public Hearing Advertisements from Four Oaksever attending a town meeting at which commissioners talk to residents. Jones said he has never once heard the name "Four Oaks" mentioned at one of those meetings.

Judy Siling, a community crime watch captain in the nearby Stonehedge subdivision, said CAAN would like for people from Four Oaks to help plan the new Carrollwood community center, which will use \$3million in tax money. But the group go there and develop contacts because of safety scheer function of Timberlan Park, a county facility in Four Oaks, is largely unused for the same reasons, Siling said.

"People are apprehensive about getting involved with that area, but it's not fair because I know there are probably a lot of good people in there," Siling said.

Many judge Four Oaks on its appearance, but for those residents who do maintain their homes and want to improve the neighborhood's Oaks homeowner Murphy woolard, The collimptivity strains 85,0 munity investment tax money to build 3,200 feet of new sidewalks along Four Oaks Road, said Steve Valdez, the county's community relations director. Construction is to start in February and last about six months. Stormwater drain improvements are also planned at Four Oaks and Adams Street, Valdez said. That \$7,000 project is expected in November 2002.

Final Public Hearing Notice Hillsborough County Aviation Authority

The HCAA will hold the final Public Hearing on the Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study for Tampa International Airport.

Thursday, December 16, 1999 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish 5225 North Himes Avenue – Tampa



This public workshop will be held in an informal "open house" format with an overview by Louis E. Miller, Executive Director, and presentation to be given by the consultant team at 7.00 p.m. A question and answer session will follow. Various presentation stations with information about the study will provide a chance to learn about the study recommendations, as well as offer input. For more information, please contact our Public Involvement Coordinator Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 615-1319.

domingos a misa o a caminar por Coconut Grove. Como mantiene el contacto con su país, siempre está al tanto de todo lo que ocurre a nivel musical en cada región. Gracias a Gaira, la compañía donde nace su música, se mide por la importancia que puede tener a nivel internacional", dice tajante. "Nadie aprecia el talento local de cada país. ¿Por eso no quieres volver a actuar? No me gustaría puesta que me llegó de República Dominicana. Si ésta se concretara, me los llevaría a todos hasta allá. Pero antes, estaré en el concierto de Amor, una experiencia que siempre vale la pena repetir.

Final Public Hearing Notice Hillsborough County Aviation Authority

The HCAA will hold the final Public Hearing on the Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study for Tampa International Airport.

Thursday, December 16, 1999 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish 5225 North Himes Avenue - Tampa



This pubic workshop will be held in an informal "open house" format with an overview by Louis E. Miller, Executive Director, and presentation to be given by the consultant team at 7:00 p.m. A question and answer session will follow. Various presentation stations with information about the study will provide a chance to learn about the study recommendations, as well as offer input. For more information, please contact our Public Involvement Coordinator Georgianne Ratliffe at (813) 615-1319.

La gente bondadosa ayuda. Porque la ayuda no puede esperar.

American Red Cross

Page 32/LA GACETA/Friday, December 10, 1999

Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authority, locatec 4305 East 21st Avenue, Tampa, Florida. Arrangements pickup of these documents may be made by ca HART's Purchasing Department at (813) 623-5835 1188, Monday through Friday, between the hours of the AM and 5:00 PM.

A pre-proposal meeting will be held December 17, 1 at 10:00am, at HART's offices located at 4305 East Avenue, Tampa, FL 33605.

All inquiries pertaining to proposal specifications, or questions in reference to the proposal documents shibe directed to:

John J. Clark Procurément Manager (813) 623-5835 Ext 1189 12/10/99 PREGUNTENOS ACERCA DE NUESTRO MAGNÍFICO PLAN CON SÓLO Y $$59^{00}$ de cuota inic \$59⁰⁰ MENSUALES ♦ FINANCIAMOS ♦ Tampa's Oldest Furniture Family Since 1931 YBOR CITY - TAMPA

1324 E 7TH AVE 247-4711

v faces iristmas ar crash

three vith the

o be a joy-

ald eg

e automo-

nald

Ocala

begged

gua and

accident.

happy,

ribution

er carrier

Id

EGINALD

lilt of

he ac-

was

le one doctors

> peraurvive

for

ngly hope-

that

at l

never

⁶Only

strug-

ta.

li

oken

ain and

operly

inald re-

rh She

ald

, ages

d two

ing,

nate's

e, seri-

le Or-

1 they

Community With a Heart by Cleve Butler, a social worker assistant with Marion County Public Schools.

This is something that has a long-term implication," Butler said. "He's got some treatment, but he has not really done some things that he needs to do, and there is a very strong possibility that this has hampered his being able to walk because he is not getting the treatment he needs.

"We need some help from somebody who has some clout and When enough pull to be able to get through this red tape. This family is not asking for something they do not need."

> THE GALES are not eligible for Medicaid or food stamps because of their previous income.

On top of the problems with his insurance company, his exhausted life savings and the uncertainty about whether he will ever work again, Reginald's home must be made wheelchair-accessible.

"I need a ramp built to the front and back door, and I would like to be able to get into the bathroom so I can take a shower. The doorway needs to be widened so I can get my wheelchair through it."

At the moment. Yvette tries to take care of Reginald herself.

"It is very difficult for me to help him because I still have this broken arm and a damaged back from the accident," Yvette said.

THE FAMILY'S SITUATION has

them extremely worried about what lies ahead. Their retirement savings and money for their children's education is gone. Bills will soon begin piling up, and there is no way they can pay them. Their American dream is over.

Reginald is undergoing physical therapy at home His insurance

Final Public Hearing Notice Hillsborough County Aviation Authority

The HCAA will hold the final Public Hearing on the update of the Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study for Tampa International Airport.



Thursday, December 16th, 1999 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. Higgins Hall at St. Lawrence Parish 5225 N. Himes Avenue - Tampa



This public workshop will be held in an informal "open house" format with an overview by Louis Miller, Executive Director and presentation to be given by consultant team at 7:00 p.m. A question and answer session will follow. Various presentation stations with information about the study will provide a chance to learn about the study's recommendations as well as offer input. For more information please contact our Public Involvement Coordinator, Georgianne Ratliff at (813) 615-1319.



your job openin 1.3 million home

Employment every weekday as little as

\$40/day (\$200/week).

For advertising rates



Start the ne

THE TAMPA TRIBUNE **Published Daily** Tampa, Hillsborough County, Florida

State of Florida

County of Hillsborough } ss.

}

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared J. Rosenthal, who on oath says that she is Classified Billing Manager of The Tampa Tribune, a daily newspaper published at Tampa in Hillsborough County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement being a

LEGAL NOTICE	•		NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEAR
in the matter of	· · ·		ation Authority announces final Public Hearing on
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEAR	LING		Study for Tampa Internation Airport to which all person
			DATE: Thursday, Decemi 16, 1999
was published in said newspaper in the issues of			TIME: 6:00 PM - 8:00 P. Open House (7:00 Overvie presentation)
DECEMBER 15, 1999			LOCATION: Higgins Hall at Lawrence Parish, 5225 Nor Himes Avenue, 5225 Nor

Affiant further says that the said The Tampa Tribune is a newspaper published at Tampa in said Hillsborough County, Florida, and that the said newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in said Hillsborough County, Florida, each day and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in Tampa, in said Hillsborough County, Florida for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that she has neither paid nor promised any person, this advertisement for publication in the said newspaper.

A.D. 1999

33614 PURPOSE: To present of the study and recel OSE: To present resu Copies of the P 250 Nois Compatibility Study docu compatibility Study docu can be reviewed by car ing Brendo Gress 813-870-8721. 6174 12/1

12/15/99

asenthal

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this

day

of

Personally Known or Product Identification Type of Identification Produced

DECEMBER



CHARLOTTE A. OFFNER Notary Public, State of Florida My comm. expires April 21, 2000 No. CC548844

(SEAL)

Chan attill <u>. <u>ب</u></u>

Part 150 Public Hearing Post Card Notice



APPENDIX L

Written Correspondence

James Biggs 8518 Ruth Pl Tampa FL 33604

February 04, 1999

Mr. Ted Baldwin Harris, Miller, Miller, & Hanson, Inc.

Dear Mr. Baldwin,

I would like to provide input on the Part 150 noise study at Tampa International Airport(TPA). The current informal noise abatement procedures are not

justified in regards to the distinction of types of aircraft. There is a definite difference between the noise levels produced by certain turbo-prop aircraft (i.e., Cessna Conquest, MU2, King Air Bl00) and light jet turbo-fan aircraft(i.e., Cessna Citation series and Beech jets). The Turbo-prop category is allowed access to more runways than the light jets, even though the jets are quieter. This discrimination provides for undue costs and delays.

Some possible suggestions to help alleviate the formalization of the current standards would be:

Time restrictions for use of certain runways.

Modifications of departure headings.

Re-categorize aircraft based on actual decibel data.

Should you need more detailed information, please contact me at the above address or by phone at: 813-932-2883.

Sincerely,

James Biggs Pilot, Díllards Department Stores



Mr. Ted Baldwin Harris, Miller, Miller, Hanson, Inc.

February 4, 1999 Via facsimile: (781) 229-7939

Dear Mr. Baldwin:

This letter is in response to the difficulties I have with the process I observed at the last two Technical Working Group meetings at Tampa International Airport, and the Memorandum dated, 18 December, 1998, on the 150 Noise Abatement Analysis.

It appears to me that the objections and proposed solutions that I, and others, raised verbally at the Technical Working Group meetings have not seriously been addressed. I hope this letter does what I have failed to do thus far: convince you that the HCAA agenda, which is to formalize the current informal Noise Abatement Proposal, is flawed and needs to be reworked.

I submit the following articles for your consideration:

First, I have yet to receive a copy of this Memorandum from you. I am working from the copy supplied to Mark Wagner.

Second, it is my understanding that Tampa International Airport has an obligation to produce a Cost/Benefit Analysis for any proposed restrictions, as outlined in FAA Part 161 and I have not seen one, if it has been done.

Third, the proposed restriction may not unjustly discriminate between classes of aircraft. Any restriction must establish 'permissible levels of noise and apply them equally'. As yet, though I, and others, have requested noise profiles or "Footprints" for the Garret-Powered Turboprop Aircraft (Turbo-Commander, Mitsubishi, Merlin and Cessna 441), we have received no response. These aircraft are much noisier than our Stage III compliant Citation and permitting their access to runways to which we are denied access is, I believe, discriminatory, and if noisier non-jets that are given access denied quieter jets, it may also be considered an "Exclusive right"

Fourth, any proposed noise restriction must be, at a minimum, based on a <u>demonstrated</u> noise problem, and the restriction must respond in a rational manner to that <u>specific</u> noise problem, (rather that a shotgun response to political pressure). In the three meetings we have attended, I have seen only two members of the affected communities, and only one spoke specifically about noise, and that was to say "It's not the jets on landing that cause so much noise for me; it's the propjets doing what sounds like they're going into reverse, and it rattles my windows as they go over". He surely doesn't understand turboprop aircraft because, of course, they don't 'go into reverse' in flight, but, rather advance the condition levers on final which is what he described. He certainly does, however, understand what noise he hears and can distinguish between a jet and a turboprop, and knows which one causes that noise that he experiences. page 2 February 4, 1999

Fifth, in your Memorandum it is stated that during July 1997 when the west parallel runway was closed and "turbojets using 18L were requested to make early, sharp turns of the type corporate pilots have recommended, be made part of eased restrictions on 18L use".

1 have been an operator on the Tampa Airport since July of 1995, and my corporate flight logs indicate that during the month of July I made seven departures from KTPA, and not once was I asked to make any kind of "early, sharp turn". While my logs do not indicate which runway was used, it is reasonable to assume that one or more departures would have been on 18L. Further, none of the other corporate operators with whom I spoke recall any request of that type ever at KTPA. Therefore, I submit that no sincere effort to explore my proposal was made. I have demonstrated on numerous occasions that our Citation is quite capable of making an early turn to a 210° heading well within the airport boundary and north of Westshore Boulevard. Also, there is no operational or stanutory requirement which prohibits a turn below 400 feet.

In addition to this, I have demonstrated on numerous occasions, the most recent of which was on 2 February, 1999, the ability to depart runway 27 and make a left turn and follow the same 200° departure path as aircraft departing 18R.

Sixth, I see on Page 11, Par 1 of the Memorandum, reference to delays at the airport and that forecast delays are not such that use of the east parallel runway within the five-year time frame is necessitated.

Any time that we are requested to taxi to use the west parallel nunway, we incur a delay of six to fifteen minutes.

Any time runway 36L is in use for turbojets and there is more than one aircraft in the queue, we experience a delay since all aircraft must get line to land, and it is obvious to even a casual observer that two runways in use reduce delays.

I believe that we corporate Stage III compliant operators can be good neighbors and still get fair and nondiscriminatory treatment by Air Traffic Control, and be permitted the use of all runways at KTPA.

I hope that we all are working to that end.

Sincerely,

-Ar Hour

Richard A. Houghton

February 3, 1999

Mark Wagner 15920 Hampton Village Dr. Tampa, FI 32618 (813) 269-9225

Ted Baldwin Harris, Miller, Miller, & Hanson, Inc. 15 New England Executive Park Burlington, MA 01803

Re: Request for Comments - Noise Abatement Analysis

Ted.

As a corporate pilot and citizen of the Tampa community, I accepted the appointment to the Technical Working Group with a sincere desire to assist in developing a noise abatement program, which limits the impact on the local community but allows for efficient use of our aircraft.

After reviewing the memorandum dated December 18, 1998, of which I have recently received, I respectfully submit the following.

In the first paragraph of the section labeled *Alternative 1e* (page 11), you state that the first principle factor in not allowing for "easing" of current restrictions is due to a reluctance to changing the policy of which "is extremely important to residents south of the airport". From several comments made at the public meeting, I think our community wants to limit noise. If there is a public misconception that all turbofan aircraft are louder then turboprop, then we need to educate the population and make our decisions on facts not misconceptions.

Under the current Voluntary Noise Abatement Program, turboprop aircraft such as the Mitsubishi MU2 are allowed to use runways of which our Citation SII can not. From several comments that were made during the Technical Working Group meetings, I was under the impression this was to be addressed. I would therefore request that a study be undertaken as to the noise impact, in a quantifiable measure, allowing quieter jet aircraft, typically used in corporate aviation today, to use the runways otherwise unavailable and barring noisier turboprop aircraft. It would be reasonable to assume the aggregate noise would be reduced if quieter aircraft replace noisier aircraft. I strongly suggest the basis for aircraft inclusion/exclusion in the noise abatement policy be based on noise footprints for the individual aircraft not on general aircraft type (i.e. Turboprop, Turbofan, Turbojet). I would suggest this study utilize the FAA noise profile by aircraft type for noise signatures. If it is the goal of the Part 150 study to develop a plan to reduce the noise impact on our community, then this must surely be done.

In the sixth paragraph of the section labeled Alternative 1e (page 11), you state that pilots "were requested to make early, sharp turns" while using runway 18L. I can attest that we have never been asked to make turns other than the normal departure clearance to turn to a specific heading. Because we know what area the HCAA considers noise sensitive and how the HCAA would prefer aircraft to depart the airport boundaries, we have <u>offered</u> to turn in such a way as to have our aircraft depart the Tampa Airport boundary as if it was on the departure track of the preferential runway for noise abatement. A perfect example was our departure today (Feb 3) at 7:32am. A south flow was in effect, we requested runway 27, and said we could make the turn to follow as if we had departed 18R. The ground controller accepted our request and we taxied for take off. After we were cleared for takeoff from the tower controller, we were then given a clearance of "maintain runway heading". We explained to the controller that we were given the

200 heading and did not want to fly over sensitive areas. The clearance was changed as requested. Had we not questioned the clearance we would be one of the examples you have used to demonstrate the corporate aviation's non-compliance. Considering departures from 18L, I believe pilots whom are unaware of the geographic location of the "noise sensitive area" would most likely make the turn in accordance with standard operating procedures for their operation and would quite possibly impact the noise sensitive area. I believe this explains Figure 6's demonstration.

I therefore request a study be made as to the effect of publishing a noise abatement procedure, which geographically depicts the noise sensitive areas and a visual path to avoid such areas thereby allowing for greater utilization of the current airport runway structure. I would suggest one option, if using a south flow, would be to allow departures from 27 and make the turn as to track 18R departure profiles. A second option would be to allow use of 18L with a turn again to track 18R departure profiles. This would alleviate the prolonged taxi time to 18R and provide the desired effect of limiting noise over sensitive areas and increase airport utilization.

I believe we can achieve the desired result of limiting the noise impact on our community by designing a better system then formalizing the current policy, which is discriminatory in nature. I would gladly offer to coordinate our flight schedule with your noise survey reading as to demonstrate how we can operate as described above.

I look forward to receipt of your reply.

Sincerely,

Mark Wagner

15 New England Executive Park Burlington, MA 01803 Tel. (781) 229-0707 Fax (781) 229-7939

March 3, 1999

Mr. James Biggs 8518 Ruth Place Tampa, FL 33604

Mr. Richard A. Houghton Havatampa, Inc. 3901 Riga Boulevard P.O. Box 1261 Tampa, FL 33601

Mr. Mark Wagner 15920 Hampton Village Drive Tampa, FL 32618

Dear Sirs:

I am writing a joint response to the individual letters that you sent me regarding the Part 150 Study at Tampa International Airport. I have attached copies of your letters.

Your comments can be grouped into the following areas:

• Formalizing the restriction on turbojet use of Runway 36R for arrivals and 18L for departures would "unjustly discriminate between classes of aircraft" and would require a Part 161 study.

Based on discussions with the FAA Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT) staff, the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (HCAA) staff have agreed that the Noise Compatibility Program may retain its "informal" designation, so a potential Part 161 analysis is not an issue.

• Corporate jets that are quieter than propeller driven (turboprop) aircraft should be allowed to use 18L/36R in an unrestricted fashion.

Some corporate jets are quieter than some turboprop aircraft. Table 1, on the following page, provides single event noise data for the six corporate jet and six turboprop aircraft types that are available in the Integrated Noise Model (INM) database for modeling operations at TPA. While there are more corporate jet and turboprop aircraft types operating at the airport, the INM does not have data for every specific model; the FAA has developed noise modeling data for aircraft that represent reasonable groupings.

immu

Messrs. Biggs, Houghton, and Wagner - March 3, 1999 Page 2

NNNNN

The table lists the range of maximum A-weighted decibel level (Lmax) values published for each aircraft type at the FAR Part 36 takeoff and approach measurement locations.¹ The data are from FAA Advisory Circular 36-3G, "Estimated Airplane Noise Levels in A-Weighted Decibels" (4/2/96). The FAA maintains this Advisory Circular to give airports an A-weighted noise rating scale. Part 150 requires airports to use A-weighted noise levels. For most aircraft types, there are ranges of noise levels, due to variations in aircraft configuration, powerplants, weight, etc. The table also lists the percent of all corporate jet and turboprop operations that the aircraft types made up in the 1998 operations at TPA; e.g., the aircraft types represented in the INM by the Citation II accounted for approximately 32% of the 1998 corporate jet operations.

Table 1. Maximum A-Weighted Noise Levels for INM Corporate Jets and Turboprops

		Maximum A-Weighted Measurement Location	Approximate Percent of	
Aircraft Category	Aircraft Type	Takeoff	Approach	Operations in Category
Corporate Jets	Citation II	63 - 67	79 - 80	32%
	Lear 35	65 - 72	82 - 83	25%
	Citation III	69	81 - 85	21%
	Lear 25	80 - 83	88 - 94	14%
	Canadair 600/601	66 - 67	80 - 82	7%
	Gulfstream IIB	80 - 84	84 - 91	1%
<u></u>				100%
Turboprops	Dehavilland 8	65 - 67	81	43%
	Dehavilland 6	67	78	31%
	Saab-Fairchild 340	63 - 65	76 - 82	11%
	Cessna Conquest	63	75 - 77	9%
	Shorts 330/360	68 - 71	80 - 82	5%
	Dehavilland 7	69	84	1%
				100%

The noise levels presented in Table 1 reveal that, as a group, turboprops are quieter than corporate jets. All turboprops have departure noise levels of 71 dBA or less, compared to 85% of all

¹ The departure measurement location is under the flight path 6,500 meters from start of takeoff roll. The approach measurement location is under the flight path, 2,000 meters from the landing threshold.

Messrs. Biggs, Houghton, and Wagner - March 3, 1999 Page 3

corporate jets. All turboprops have approach noise levels of 84 dBA or less, compared to 86% of all corporate jets (assuming the quietest level in each range for the corporate jets).

Mr. Wagner's letter compared the Mitsubishi MU2 turboprop to the Citation SII. Mr. Houghton stated that the Turbo-Commander, Misubishi (MU2), Merlin, and Cessna 441 (Conquest) were much noisier than a Stage 3 Citation, such as the SII. Mr. Biggs compared the Citation and Beechcraft corporate jets to these aircraft and the Beechcraft King Air B100. Table 2 summarizes the noise levels for these specific aircraft. In most cases, the turboprop aircraft are quieter than the corporate jets.

Table 2. Requested Aircraft Comparisons

ımmh

	Maximum A-Weighted Sound Level, from FAA AC 36-3C		
Aircraft Type	Part 36 Takeoff Estimate	Part 36 Approach Estimate	
Citation SII Corporate Jet	65 ⁻	80	
Beechcraft Corporate Jet	72	83	
Beech King Air B100 Turboprop	62	77	
Cessna Conquest (441) Turboprop	63	75 - 77	
Mitsubishi MU2 Turboprop	64 - 66	76	
Fairchild Merlin Turboprop	69 - 71	76 - 79	
Gulfstream Commander Turboprop	61 - 66	76 - 78	

An advantage of the existing practice of basing the runway priority on the overall aircraft type classification is ease of implementation for the tower. A preferential runway program that required the tower to consider specific aircraft types would be extremely complex to implement. The tower staff would have to refer to a table of specific aircraft types to determine which aircraft fell under the program, on a flight-by-flight basis, which would introduce additional workload.

Instead of changing the existing runway priority, the HCAA staff support your offer to demonstrate that corporate jets can depart from 18L and 27 in a manner that simulates 18R departures, as discussed below.

Corporate jets could depart on 18L and 27 and make turns to simulate a departure on 18R.

Two of your letters suggested that corporate jets could depart on 18L and make an "S" turn, and on 27 make a 90° left turn, in a fashion that would allow them to follow the 18R 200° departure track, with no change in community noise exposure. Mr. Wagner suggests a study, or test, of these procedures. The HCAA staff will request that the FAA conduct the test. Radar data from the test

Messrs. Biggs, Houghton, and Wagner - March 3, 1999 Page 4

period would provide a basis for evaluating aircraft performance. If the test proves that the procedures are operationally feasible, it is likely that the FAA will require an Environmental Assessment (EA). The EA would include a noise analysis based on the actual aircraft performance, to determine the effect on noise exposure. Mr. Biggs suggests that runway use could be based on time of day. The test could consider this option. The test would take place after FAA approval of the Part 150 Update and after the HCAA has obtained monitoring equipment.

An important non-noise issue for the test to consider is the effect on FAA workload associated with the need to ensure that the Runway 18L or 27 departures safely merged with the Runway 18R flow. At a minimum, merging with the 18R traffic would mean that this procedure would have no benefit related to increasing overall airport capacity or reducing overall delay.

hmmh

Please note that the test would not imply any easing of the existing informal restriction on Runway 36R arrivals.

• • • •

In closing, I would like to let you know that we have asked Ms. Georgianne Ratliff of Wilson•Miller, the study's public involvement coordinator, to ensure that all three of you are notified of Technical Working Group (TWG) meetings, so that you can continue to monitor the study's progress and provide input. Mr. Wagner is already a member of the TWG, as the corporate aviation representative. You may be aware that the study also has an Agency Working Group and a Public Input Group. You are also welcome to attend meetings of those groups.

We greatly appreciate your thoughtful input and look forward to working with you on the items discussed above, or other issues of interest to you. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any further questions.

Sincerely,

HARRIS MILLER MILLER & HANSON INC.

o bold

Ted Baldwin Vice President

c: L. Miller, HCAA W. Connors, HCAA N. Jones, HCAA J. Mishler, HNTB G. Ratliff, WHI



P.O. Box 17265 • Clearnaint, FL 33762 (2369 6-FLY- JET (535-9636) • (813) 532-0337 • FAX (813) 533-6463 SEE SUVERSE

December 1, 1998

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Tampa International Airport Tampa, FL 33607

To Whom It May Concern:

It has been brought to my attention that a meeting is taking place regarding noise abatement and runway usage issues. Due to previous commitments I am unable to participate however, I an hopeful you will allow this letter be considered in lieu of my attendance.

In aviation there has been an ever-present conflict between airports and associated housing communities. Noise abatement concerns are an issue that most pilots will feel deserves attention 1 personally feel that a compromise is truly in order with respect to procedures at Tamp: International Airport and there are several considerations that need to be addressed.

Many years ago I was based at TIA and flew Learjets for both air-ambulance and charter. A you are well aware, those older aircraft were unable to conform to stage three noise criteri. however; we were still permitted to use 18L for a departure as long as we could initiate an early right turn to a heading of 210 degrees. Authorizations were also obtained for a 36R departure and arrivals with no consequence. In my opinion, I believe that companies such as mine that ar operating newer generation equipment powered by engines that not only meet but exceed stage three noise criteria, should be permitted to use the most accessible runway available. I am ever willing to offer that my contemporaries and I would accept a compromise to only request the us of the runway in question during normal business hours. This would greatly enable us to full capitalize on both time and fuel savings if we are able to utilize 18L/36R for departures and arrivals. Furthermore, due to equipment type and applications of procedures in my opinion th residents of neighboring communities will not be affected.

Thank you for your attention to this matter, your considerations are greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

Peter R. Cunzolo, Vice President, Director of Operations



- - - i i uriana

W. Crosby Few Charmon Arthonia L Joyner Vice Chairman Stella Ferguson I hayer Secretory Hillsborough County Commissioner Chris Hart Treasurer City of Jampa Mayor Dick A. Greco Assistant Sucretary/Assistant lieasurer

December 28, 1998

Mr. Peter R. Cunzolo, Vice President **Director of Operations** Execulet P.O. Box 17266 Clearwater, FL. 33762

Dear Mr. Cunzolo:

As a part of the update of the Master Plan and Part 150 Noise Control and Land Use Compatibility Study for Tampa International Airport, we have been striving though our Public Involvement Program to solicit input from as many segments of the community as possible. Using this approach has assisted us in identifying significant issues. The challenge remains to resolve these issues in a balanced manner for all Airport users.

A part of this study process addresses the issue of relaxing noise abatement restrictions on Runway 18L/36R, taking into consideration the fact that some corporate aircraft have achieved Stage III noise levels. The current noise abatement restrictions have been in effect since the sixties, and under the balanced approach mentioned previously, the only impetus the Aviation Authority would have to relax these restrictions would be the need for additional airfield capacity. Our preliminary airfield capacity studies have not identified a need for a new runway for at least ten to fifteen years. Therefore, it would be extremely difficult for the Aviation Authority to justify creating an environmental problem in the adjacent residential communities by operating Runway 18L/36R in a less restrictive manner. As you are based at Tampa, you are well aware of the residential areas adjacent to the Airport. Most of these communities were developed well before the Airport existed in its present location. Consequently, over the years we have fostered a very effective preferential runway use program that provides the Airport with adequate airfield capacity and the ability to operate without major noise impacts on surrounding communities. It is important that we maintain this balance in the future.

Thank you for taking the time to write about your concerns. Your suggestions are reasonable from your perspective as a corporate pilot and we will examine them in the "balanced" manner I have just discussed. I will forward your letter to our consultants updating the noise study for evaluation.

Sincerely

ouis E. Miller

CC:

Louis E Miller Executive Director

Hillsborough County Aviation Authonity P.O. Box 22287, Tampa, Florida 33622 phone 813-870-8700 fax 813-875-6670 web site www.TampaAirport.com Peter O. Knight Airport Plant City Aryon Vandenberg Airport
6017 W. North Street Tampa, FL 33634-4445

November 16, 1999

.

I have been calling the airport authority about the noise that the planes cause going over my home.

Repeatedly I have been told that they can muffle the sound as they leave and land.

The noise is all the time, however, the most urge problem is at night, when we are asleep and the planes shake the windows and the house, waking us from a sound sleep.

I noticed by the article in the paper on Saturday, November 13th, that you plan to give the people with homes of \$150,000 and up help with making their homes quieter.

I am a recent widow, who has now developed health problems making me give up my job of 21 years. I have had to apply for Social Security and of course that is limited money coming into the household.

It seems to me that if you are going to help those people who can afford a home of that value that you should also offer help to someone that has purchased a home, within their means but not that expensive.

When the reporter from the St. Pete Times called me about my calls to the airport, I explained that the noise at night was unbearable but that we can tolerate the noise during the daytime.

To listen to TV is impossible with the planes taking off. They do not stay on their flight pattern. They veer to the west as soon as they lift off and this brings them right over the house.

I noticed that you are having a meeting, however, with the pain I am in, I can not attend the meeting. I also have vision difficulties making it impossible for me to drive at night. I feel that this is a problem that could be solved between us, not bringing everyone into it.

I was very surprised when the reporter from the St. Pete Times called me one afternoon and I told him that the night time was the only thing that I could not take.

I have recently had new plywood and shingles placed on my home but that still has not helped with the noise. I have more insulation in the attic than is required according to the builder who lives next door to me and who installed the last amount of insulation.

Being on a fixed income, I can not afford the new windows that the article states you plan to help those other people with, and would

really appreciate any help you can give me in obtaining and getting those windows installed and to add more insulation to the attic and get better doors on the house.

Please take this letter as a request for your help to solve the noise.

Planes leaving at 10pm and after are really a nuisance. At 11:23pm the other night both of us were brought out of a sound sleep by a plane that was too low, too loud and right over the house.

I live just north west of the airport. I have lived here 21 years and the noise has been getting louder and louder but with the windows and house vibrating, it is getting out of hand.

Please let me know if you can add me to your list of people to get help.

They can tell you at the airport that I have asked for help many times and gotten a lot of different reasons for the noise. One reason was a so called medical emergency coming in and the planes had to go out over my house to get out of the way. Why couldn't they have been kept on the waiting strip until the emergency was over. The wind is blowing toward the east so we have to go out over your house. There is a storm 50 miles out bothering the planes.

I do not want anyone put into jeopardy, however, I do want to be able to sleep and enjoy my home.

Please help me.

Sincerely,

Janice G. O'Brien



W. Crosby Few Chairman Stella Ferguson Thayer Vice Chairman Alfred S. Austin Secretary Hillsborough County Commissioner Chris Hart Treasurer City of Tampa Mayor Dick A. Greco Assistant Secretary/Assistant Treasurer

December 1, 1999

Ms. Janice G. O'Brien 6017 W. North Street Tampa, Florida 33634-44445

Dear Mrs. O'Brien:

Thank you for your letter dated 11/16/99, bringing to my attention the aircraft noise impacts you are currently experiencing in the Southern Comfort community. As you are probably aware, the Aviation Authority is in the process of updating its 1986 Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study for Tampa International Airport.

My staff has researched the recent information available in the 1998 updated Noise Study regarding noise levels in your community. This information is shown on a map of the Airport and surrounding communities with an overlay of the noise level contours. These contours represent day night noise levels averaged for one year. Our updated map was produced using a computer simulation developed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and called an integrated noise model (INM). Also, attached is the 1998 noise contour map for your reference.

I would like to bring to your attention that the 1990 noise contours in the former Part 150 Study covered a larger land area than the 1998 contours. This means that noise levels generated by aircraft operating at Tampa International have decreased -and will continue to decrease. This is largely due to the following: 1) aircraft engines are quieter and 2) aircraft operations have grown at a slower rate than as forecast in the 1988 Master Plan.

When examining the 1998 noise contour map, your property does not fall within the 65 day night level (dnl) contour. At this noise level (65 dnl), the FAA asks airports to look at ways of reducing the noise impacts on adjacent residential properties, schools, hospitals, churches and other type land uses that could be considered incompatible with aircraft operations. The FAA also requires airports to complete a five year forecast to determine the possible impact growth in aircraft operations may have on adjacent incompatible land uses. The Aviation Authority has done this. By 2003, the projected noise contour map shows that your property (and community) will not be within the 65 dnl noise contour. Given this fact, your property is not eligible for sound insulation. I've attached a copy of the 2003 contour map for your reference.

Louis E. Miller Executive Director

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority P.O. Box 22287, Tampa, Florida 33622 phone 813-870-8700 fax 813-875-6670 web site www.TampaAirport..com

Ms. Janice G. O'Brien December 1, 1999 Page 2 -

Although our computer model did not show noise levels in your area that required mitigation on the Aviation Authority's part, we have nonetheless recommended some action to address noise impacts in your community. As part of our updated Part 150 Study, the Aviation Authority is requesting that the Air Traffic Control Tower at Tampa International Airport direct the noisier, propeller driven, small aircraft that tend to fly at lower attitudes and initiate turns over your community, when operating to the north, to take-off straight out, at a heading of 360 degrees, provided safety and weather conditions permit. This will reduce the number of aircraft turning over your community. The large jet aircraft currently use this heading when taking off to the north for a distance of at least 3 nautical miles before initiating any turns to the east or west.

For those instances described in your letter where aircraft are disturbing you in the evenings, the Aviation Authority will be acquiring a Flight Monitoring System, after the FAA approves our updated Part 150 Study. This equipment will assist us in identifying these aircraft and determining why they made early turns over Southern Comfort. Until such time that we have installed our equipment, please continue to notify the Authority's Operations or Planning and Environmental Services staff by calling 870-8700 so that we can follow-up with the Air Traffic Control Tower and the airline flying the aircraft.

Because your health will not permit you to attend our Part 150 Study Public Hearing on December 16th, I've asked my staff to make sure that you receive all the meeting materials and a newsletter. If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact Nadine Jones, Director of Planning & Environmental Services, at 870-8773. Or, you may contact me at 870-8701. I appreciate your bringing this matter to my attention.

Sincerely. Louis E. Miller

Enclosures

Cc: Bill Connors, Sr. Director, Planning and Development Grant Young, Director of Operations Nadine Jones, Director of Planning and Environmental Services

p.1

5810 Mariner St. Tampa, FL 33609 12/15/99

Nadine Jones Planning and Environmental Services Tampa International Airport Authority

Dear Ms. Jones,

I appreciate your taking the time to discuss the airport sound mitigation project. I have not yet received the contour map that you sent by email. I would appreciate your sending it again to "rogers@chuma.cas.usf.edu". I assume the data includes the predicted error of this analysis.

Based on your information and the Nov. 13 St. Petersburg Times article, I find the whole project highly irregular. It is inappropriate for just six houses to be chosen to receive a very large sum of money. The fact that the majority of this money is earmarked for "consultant" fees suggests that this project is more about appearances than substance. According to the Times article, 336 homes sit within the "contour" considered too noisy by FAA standards. If this is indeed the case, these homes should be soundproofed; to bring the interior within accepted limits. Clearly, all these homes should have at least partial assistance.

You stated that "65 DNL" is considered too noisy. The Times article states that this requires people to "raise their voices to be heard a few feet away" and that this is similar to the sound generated by a vacuum cleaner at 10 feet. This situation certainly occurs at our house when planes take-off or land over the southern approach. Indeed, we could not shout loud enough to be heard. Consequently, we spent \$15,000 to install double-glazed windows last year.

As a frequent payer of the exorbitant airport use fees, I am outraged that this money will be spent so selectively and on these consultant studies. Anyone can walk down Mariner Street and hear the terrible noise produced by users of the airport. Computer models are notoriously unreliable. The suggestion that the consultants will be rehired in five years to see if their models are correct is ridiculous. The consultants should experiment at their own expense. Spend the money to help soundproof homes that are clearly unacceptably noisy. The Airport Authority should limit the number of hours that the airport is open and require all airlines to abandon the old jet engines that are the worst noise producers. If the airport cannot handle all the air traffic in a limited day, build another runway. This would improve the quality of life in many more than six homes.

Yours truly

Mélissa B. Rogers

cc: Mayor Greco, Laura Carnow, Commissioner Hart



W. Crosby Few Chairman Stella Ferguson Thayer Vice Chairman Alfred S. Austin Secretary Hillsborough County Commissioner Chris Hart Treasurer City of Tampa Mayor Dick A. Greco Assistant Secretary/Assistant Treasurer

December 28, 1999

RECEIVED

JAN - 3 2000

HARRIS MILLER MILLER HANSON INC.

Melissa B. Rogers 5810 Mariner St. Tampa, Florida 33609

Dear Mrs. Rogers

I am writing to clear up some misunderstanding about why the Aviation Authority is looking at the option of sound insulation for at least six properties on Mariner Street. These properties are situated within the 65 dnl noise contour (year 2003) for Tampa International Airport. I also hope to outline a mutually acceptable option to address your particular situation discussed in your December 15, 1999, letter to Nadine Jones.

As a resident of Tampa and a frequent user of our Airport, you have every, correct expectation that the operators of this Airport will be prudent and fair when developing programs related to the expansion of Tampa International. Be assured that we have attempted to thoroughly evaluate noise impacts on all of our neighbors in the vicinity of the Airport. The FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study was developed using the guidelines recommended by the Federal Aviation Administration for conducting noise impact analysis. The updated Noise Exposure Map (1998 and 2003 noise contours) were produced using a computer simulation, called the integrated noise model (INM). This model was developed by the Federal Aviation Administration in the late 1970s and has undergone at least six upgrades to further refine its performance.

As you are aware, we developed the 2003 Noise Exposure Map during the update of the Part 150 Study for Tampa International Airport. This is a voluntary study. As is the case with many airports, we have opted to conduct this study because it is prudent for airport management to determine the potential noise impacts our projected growth may have on all affected parties. Once approved by the FAA, this study makes us eligible for funding to implement noise abatement projects, if and when, funds are available. At noise level 65 dnl, the FAA asks airports to look at ways of mitigating noise impacts on adjacent residential properties, schools, hospitals, churches and other incompatible land uses. The FAA also recommends that airports update their Part 150 Studies as frequently as every five years to determine if there are any changes in the noise levels and affected areas.

Louis E. Miller Executive Director

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority P.O. Box 22287, Tampa, Florida 33622 phone 813-870-8700 fax 813-875-6670 web site www.TampaAirport.com

Melissa B. Rogers December 28, 1999 Page Two

During the scheduled Public Hearing on December 16, 1999, we were informed by several residents on Mariner Street, whose homes were located outside of the 65 dnl, that they felt that they were exposed to levels of noise that were equally as intrusive as their neighbors whose properties fell within the 65 dnl contour. Because noise nuisance is subjective and because of the very close proximity of the properties outside of the contour, I have asked the consultants conducting the Part 150 Study to examine the feasibility of expanding sound insulation to all single family residences on Mariner St. that are outside of the 65 dnl. It is my understanding that your property falls in this category. Your letter to Mrs. Jones also indicates that you have recently installed new windows. My consultants have informed me that although you installed windows, the type windows and the manner of installation may not meet the FAA's standards for sound insulation programs. Therefore, at the appropriate time, we should measure the interior noise levels at your home to determine if your property meets the FAA noise attenuation If the noise level does not meet the FAA's standards, they would make standards. recommendations on what type of sound insulation treatment would be needed. We would apply this standard procedure to all eligible residential properties.

In closing, I want to make it clear that I cannot offer any of the options discussed in this letter until the FAA completes its evaluation, public review process and formally approves the updated Part 150 Study, including the Authority's recommendations relating to the sound insulation programs described above.

I hope that this information has adequately explained why we are proposing sound insulation as one option in our Noise Compatibility Program, as well as what our next steps will be in addressing your specific concerns.

If you have further questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me at 870-8701 or Nadine Jones at 870-8773. Thank you for taking the time to write and inform us of the nature of the problems you have experienced.

Sincerely,

Louis E. Miller

cc: Mayor Dick Greco Commissioner Chris Hart Nadine Jones, HCAA √Ted Baldwin, HMMH Bill Connors, HCAA John Wheat, HCAA